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Important  Notice  Regarding  Acceptance  of  Notices 
For  Publication  in  the  Weekly  “Gazette”

Attention is drawn to the Notification appearing in the 1st week of every month, regarding the latest dates and times of acceptance of Notices 
for publication in the weekly Gazettes, at the end of every weekly Gazette of Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes shall close at 12.00 noon of each Friday, two weeks before the date of publication. 
All Government Departments, corporations, Boards, etc. are hereby advised that Notifications fixing closing dates and times of applications in 
respect of Post-Vacancies, Examinations, Tender Notices and dates and times of Auction Sales, etc. should be prepared by giving adequate time 
both from the date of despatch of notices to Govt. Press and from the date of publication, thereby enabling those interested in the contents of such 
notices to actively and positively participate please note that inquiries and complaints made in respect of corrections pertaining to notification will 
not be entertained after three months from the date of publication.

All Notices to be published in the weekly Gazette should reach Government Press two weeks before the date of publication i.e. Notices 
for publication in the weekly Gazette of 09th November, 2018 should reach Government Press on or before 12.00 noon on 26th October, 2018.

Electronic Transactions Act, No. 19 of  2006 - Section 9
“Where any Act or enactment provides that any proclamation, rule, regulation, order, by-law, notification or other matter shall be 

published in the Gazette, then such requirement shall be deemed to have been satisfied if such rule, regulation, order, by-law, notification or other 
matter is published in an electronic form of the Gazette.”

	 Gangani Liyanage,
	 Government Printer.

Department of Govt. Printing, 
Colombo 08,
01st January, 2018.

  This Gazette can be downloaded from www.documents.gov.lk
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Appointments &c., by the President
MOD/DEF/10/03/RES/108.

SRI  LANKA  Air  Force

Cancellation of Withdrawal of Commission 
approved by His Excellency the President

the Gazette Notification “No. 224 of 2005, Serial Number 
D/AF/470” dated 13th May, 2005 withdrawal of Commission 
of Pilot Officer Sawanawadu Chathuran Sanjeewa (02462) 
is hereby cancelled.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C	
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
29th June, 2018.

10-1117/1

No. 821 of 2018

MOD/DEF/10/03/RES/108.

SRI  LANKA  Air  Force

Resignation of Commission approved by  
His Excellency the President

His Excellency the President has approved the Resignation 
of Commission of the undermentioned Officer with effect 
from 01st February, 2005.

Pilot Officer Sawanawadu Chathuran Sanjeewa (02462) 
- Logistics.

By His Excellency’s Command,

	 Kapila Waidyaratne, P.C	
	 Secretary,
	 Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
29th June, 2018.

10-1117/2

Appointments & c., by the Cabinet of Ministers
No. 822 of 2018

it is hereby notified that the following appointment has 
been made by the Cabinet of Ministers in terms of Article 55 
(2) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic 
of Sri Lanka :

Mrs. R. P. S. Samankumari, Grade I of the Sri Lanka 
Administrative Service as Commissioner of Community 
Based Corrections of the Department of Community Based 
Corrections, with effect from 01st August, 2018 until further 
orders.

By order of the Cabinet of Ministers,

	S umith Abeysinghe,
	 Secretary to the Cabinet 
	 of Ministers.

10-1144/1

No.  823 of 2018

it is hereby notified that the following appointment has 
been made by the Cabinet of Ministers in terms of Article 55 
(2) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic 
of Sri Lanka :

Mrs. I. R. Bandara, to act in the Post of Director General 
of the Department of Census and Statistics, with effect from 
09th August, 2018  to 08th October, 2018.

By order of the Cabinet of Ministers,

	S umith Abeysinghe,
	 Secretary to the Cabinet 
	 of Ministers.

10-1144/2
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No.  824 of 2018

it is hereby notified that the following appointment has 

been made by the Cabinet of Ministers in terms of Article 55 

(2) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic 

of Sri Lanka :

Mrs. I. R. Bandara as Director General of the Department 
of Census and Statistics, with effect from 09th October, 
2018 until further orders.

By order of the Cabinet of Ministers,

	S umith Abeysinghe,
	 Secretary to the Cabinet 
	 of Ministers.

10-1144/3

Other Appointments & c.
No. 825 of 2018

Ministry of Justice and Prison 
Reforms

Justice of Peace Appointments

I, Thalatha Atukorale, Minister of Justice by virtue of the 
powers vested in me by Section 45 (2) of the Judicature Act, 
No. 02 of 1978 do hereby appoint –

	 1.	 Mr. Weerakoon Mudiyanselage Senevirathne Banda 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 2.	 Mr. Kadanhene Gandura Gedara Priyantha 
Ranasinghe to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial 
Zone of Kandy;

	 3.	 Mrs. Disanayake Mudiyanselage Anoma Kumari 
Disanayake to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 4.	 Mr. Upali Ranjith Bandara Weerakoon to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 5.	 Mr. Ihalagalange Gedara Upasena to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 6.	 Mr. Haliyadde Mudiyanselage Aberathne to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

	 7.	 Mr. Athulath Mudalige Aruna Upul Chanath 
Athulathmudali to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	 8.	 Mr. Abdul Razak Mohamed Munaz  to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 9.	 Mrs. Galketiyage Fathima Shihana Abdul Raheem to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 10.	 Mr. Pareed Mohomad Sameer to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 11.	 Mr. Abdul Ansar Mohammed Arfark to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 12.	 Mr. Jamaldeenge Badurdeen to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 13.	 Mr. Douglas Siril Wijesiriwardhana to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 14.	 Mr. Balasooriya Arachchige Edman Gnanapala 
Balasooriya to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 15.	 Mr. Aththanayaka Mudiyanselage Suranga Sampath 
Jayasundara to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 16.	 Mrs. Benthota Arachchige Kusumawathie to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 17.	 Mr. Wickramasinghe Mudiyanselage Ariyarathna 
Wickramasinghe to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

	 18.	 Mrs. Pihatuwatta Arachchilage Chandralatha 
Pihatuarachchi to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	 19.	 Mr. Hetti Weerasinghage Ariyarathna to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

	 20.	 Mr. Warnakodi Mudiyanselage Gamini Chandrasena 
Loddrick to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial 
Zone of Ratnapura;

	 21.	 Mr. Aludeniya Hewalaya Sirisena to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

	 22.	 Mr. Nekath Gama Ethi Ralalaye Karunarathna 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Ratnapura;

	 23.	 Mrs. Haldola Blithiyannalage Padma Nandani 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Ratnapura;

	 24.	 Mr. Pathiranage Upul Kumara Pathirana to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

	 25.	 Mr. Pelapitige Seladin Sarath Upul Kantha to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 26.	 Mr. Aluth Gedara Chandrasena to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

	 27.	 Mrs. Deerasinghe Arachchige Achini Buddika to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 28.	 Mrs. Hewa Gamage Lalitha to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 29.	 Mr. Aluthgedara Keerthirathna to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

	 30.	 Mrs. Tikiri Hannadige Hemantha  to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

	 31.	 Mr. Singappuli Hewage Anura Indrasiri Fernando to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 32.	 Mrs. Jayasooriya Arachchige Geetha Chandani to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
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	 33.	 Mr. Lasantha Sanjeewa Ranil Wijayathilaka to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 34.	 Mr. Weyhenegei Ranathunga to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Galle;

	 35.	 Mrs. Wlahanduwa Gamage Wajira Praneeth 
Kumuduni to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 36.	 Mrs. Warahena Thanthrige Jayantha Latha Kanthi 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 37.	 Mr. Kankanam Gamage Sumanadasa to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Galle;

	 38.	 Mr. Kukule Liyanage Jayathilaka  to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 39.	 Mr. Sooriya Arachchilage Wijayapala Samarasinghe 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 40.	 Mr. Herath Mudiyanselagedara Herath Bandara to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 41.	 Mr. Wattegedara Somasiri Bandara to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 42.	 Mr. Anhetti Gedara Chandrapala to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 43.	 Mrs. Siwarani Rameshkumar to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 44.	 Mr. Arumugasiwam Arawindhan to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 45.	 Mr. Gane Achchige Upali Perera to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 46.	 Mr. Yapa Appuhamilage Themanthaka Hiranjan 
Dharmasena Yapa to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	 47.	 Mrs. Choolani Hewa Muthu Arachchi to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 48.	 Mr. Ranamuka Hewagedara Ariyarathna to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 49.	 Mr. Hapangama Arachchige Piyawardhana to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 50.	 Ven. Awissawelle Gnanarathne Thero to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 51.	 Mr. Sanny Gardiye Punchihewa to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 52.	 Mr. Hewa Mainaththuge Nalinda Roshan to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 53.	 Mrs. Weerasingha Arachchilage Shyama Prajapathi 
Weerasingha to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	 54.	 Mr. Maldeniya Koralalage Kusumsiri Senarath 
Maldeniya to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 55.	 Mr. Pathirana Keerthi Witharanage Sunil 
Dayananda to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 56.	 Mr. Kottal Badde Widanalage Nanditha 
Subhashana Dharmarathne  to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 57.	 Mr. Lechchumanan Selwarajasingham to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

	 58.	 Mr. Abdul Rasik Abul Mawaheeb to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 59.	 Mr. Samarawickarama Don Samarasekara to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

	 60.	 Mr. Sabarettinam Sutharsan to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 61.	 Mr. Thiyagarasa Panneerchelvam to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 62.	 Mr. Udugama Koralalage Don Harsha Srirash 
Perera to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 63.	 Mrs. Edirisinghe Arachchige Somawathi to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 64.	 Mr. Naotunna Arachchige Saman Wimalasiri to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 65.	 Mr. Kuda Wahumpurage Weerasinghe to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 66.	 Mr. Sinnaiya Shanmugaraja to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 67.	 Mr. Jayalath Ranasinghe Disanayaka Piyal to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 68.	 Mrs. Madampe Appuhamilage Thushara Padmini 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Gampaha;

	 69.	 Mrs. Samarasinghe Arachchige Sriyawathi Menike to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 70.	 Mrs. Seetha Jayasundara to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;

	 71.	 Mrs. Pallewela Sitisekara Mudiyanselage Nimali 
Manjula Wijesingha to be a Justice of the Peace for 
the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

	 72.	 Mrs. Sathyapala Sheshani Maduwanthi to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 73.	 Mrs. Royal Netil Ivon Dilrukshi Roundas to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 74.	 Mrs. Kokuhennedige Nilushika to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 75.	 Mrs. Piyarathna Anoma to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

	 76.	 Mrs. Herath Mudiyanselage Sudarshani Jayamali to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 77.	 Mrs. Hitihamillage Wijethunga Manike to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 78.	 Mrs. Karunage Violet Chandralatha to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 79.	 Mrs. Rammanda Dewayalage Seelawathi to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 80.	 Mrs. Kottaralalage Nimali Sarojani Kaldera to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 81.	 Mr. Asanka Liyanage De Alwis to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 82.	 Mr. Badana Mudiyanselage Nayantha Dilshan to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 83.	 Mrs. Senanayake Wasala Panditha Mudiyanselage 
Ilmi Sunali Senanayake to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;
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	 84.	 Mrs. Poddiwala Marage Menaka Samanthi to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 85.	 Mr. Sooriyakumbure Gedara Chaminda Sooriyakumbura 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Kandy;

	 86.	 Mrs. Arawwawala Susila Kumari to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 87.	 Mr. Kodagoda Hewa Vitharanage Saminda Suranga 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 88.	 Mr. Salahudeen Adnath Mohamed to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 89.	 Mr. Sinhara Mudiyanselage Manjula Disanayaka to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 90.	 Mrs. Thelge Nisansala Dineshini Peiris to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 91.	 Mrs. Udarata Rallage Nandani Manike to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

	 92.	 Mr. Babanhami Abeythilaka to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 93.	 Ven. Kumbalgama Dhammananda Thero to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

As the Justice of Peace.

	T halatha Atukorale,
	 Minister of Justice and Prison Reforms.

Ministry of Justice and Prison Reforms,
Colombo 12,
04th October, 2018.

10-1213

No. 826 of 2018

Ministry of Justice and Prison 
Reforms

Justice of Peace Appointments

I, Thalatha Atukorale, Minister of Justice by virtue of the 
powers vested in me by Section 45 (2) of the Judicature Act, 
No. 02 of 1978 do hereby appoint –

	 1.	 Mrs. Ganga Subashini Wijayarathna to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 2.	 Mr. Metaramba Kanaththe Gamage Jagath Sisira 
Kumara to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 3.	 Mr. Dilruk Rohan Pinnaduwa to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 4.	 Mr. Nilaar Mohomed Fuhad to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 5.	 Mr. Jayasinghe Arachchige Rasika Namal Jayasinghe 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 6.	 Mr. Dodampa Gamage Ranjith to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 7.	 Mr. Samarakoon Mudiyanselage Amarasooriya to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 8.	 Mr. Meedeniya Kankanamalage Kapila Malinda 
Gunarathne to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 9.	 Mr. Peththa Yaddehige Gamini Wijewardana to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 10.	 Mr. Kottalbadda Mahawidanage Sajeewan De 
Kostha to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 11.	 Mrs. Pathirannehelage Samila Sasanthi Senarathne 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 12.	 Rev. Ft. Arumugavadivel Arulanantham to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 13.	 Mr. Kiridigoda Kankanamge Sumanasena to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 14.	 Mr. Mohamed Aman Roshana to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 15.	 Mr. Bopagoda Hettige Sanjeewa to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 16.	 Mr. Karunarathna Arachchige Duminda Prasad 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Colombo;

	 17.	 Mr. Mohamed Nazeerdeen Mohamed Sham Nawaz to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 18.	 Mr. Munasinghe Arachchige Don Wijesiri to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 19.	 Mr. Mohottige Saman Chandanasiri to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 20.	 Mr. Jothimuni Sarath Kumara Mendis Rajapaksha 
Panditharathne to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	 21.	 Mrs. Thilakshi Thanuja Wijesinghe to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 22.	 Mr. Jamuni Chandradasa Perera to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;

	 23.	 Mrs. Selawa Gedara Kumuduni Gunathilaka to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 24.	 Mr. Rathnayaka Mudiyanselage Rathnayaka to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Polonnaruwa

	 25.	 Mr. Ranjith Ubesingha Jayawardana to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Panadura;

	 26.	 Mr. Mahanama Nam Loku Arachchige Gunasena to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 27.	 Mr. Thennakoon Mudiyanselage Laknath Dharmapala 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 28.	 Mr. Weerakoon Mudiyanselage Ravindrapala 
Weerakoon to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2018'10'19

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 19.10.2018
1608

	 29.	 Mr. Kariyawasam Jeewandara Appuhamilage Upawansa 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 30.	 Mr. Umar Kaththa Musammil to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 31.	 Mrs. Hadalagamage Don Nilmini Deepika Sanjeewani 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 32.	 Mr. Samaranayaka Gamage Jagath Udayanga to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 33.	 Mrs. Sirimawathi Pitiduwa Gamage to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 34.	 Mr. Rajaji Nandakumar to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	 35.	 Mr. Gode Vithanage Edmond Wickramasinghe to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 36.	 Mr. Malliya Dewayale Gedara Chandana Saman 
Kumara to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 37.	 Mr. Ginthota Nanayakkara Paranavithanage 
Keshika Chaminda Karunarathna to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 38.	 Mr. Athukoralage Weerasingha to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 39.	 Mr. Abeydeera Liyanagamage Don Piyathilaka to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 40.	 Mrs. Chamani Praboda Hettiarachchi to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 41.	 Mr. Hembawaduge Karunadasa to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 42.	 Mr. Padmasiri Hapangama to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	 43.	 Mr. Rupasingha Arachchige Don Joseph Andrew to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 44.	 Mr. Wickramasinghe Mudiyanselage Dahanayaka to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 45.	 Mr. Ahamed Mursi Mohommed Farzan to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 46.	 Mr. Deiyagala Arachchige Sachinthana Saranga to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 47.	 Mr. Hetti Pathirannehelage Uditha Sri Sampath 
Gunawardhana to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	 48.	 Mr. Ramaiya Ramanadan to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	 49.	 Mr. Manamperi Koralalage Ariyarathna to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 50.	 Mr. Nagoda Vithana Piyasena to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 51.	 Mrs. Kumarasami Lakshmi Sharmila Dharshini 
Suhumar to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 52.	 Mr. Kanagasabei Elilventhan to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 53.	 Mr. Dasanayaka Korale Kapila Ranjith Dasanayaka 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 54.	 Mr. Upul Sujeewa Haputhanthiri to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 55.	 Mr. Lalitha Bandara Dhammika Weerasekara to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

	 56.	 Mr. Dodangasthanne Gedara Vimalarathna  to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 57.	 Mr. Nawalage Albert to be a Justice of the Peace for 
the Whole Island;

	 58.	 Mr. Wijerathna Mudiyanselage Elahunkiri Gedara 
Disanayake to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 59.	 Mr. Kumarasinghe Arachchige Amila Sampath 
Kumarasingha to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	 60.	 Mr. Weerasinghe Mudiyanselage Sugathadasa 
Weerasinghe to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	 61.	 Mr. Athapaththu Mudiyanselage Piyadasa 
Athapaththu to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	 62.	 Mrs. Galappaththi Weerakkodige Hemalatha 
Galappaththi to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	 63.	 Mr. Atukorallaya Ubayasiri to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 64.	 Mr. Palliya Guruge Lakshman Ariyarathna to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 65.	 Mr. Nandana Jagath Indipolage to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 66.	 Mrs. Parameswaram Niranjala to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 67.	 Mr. Marasinghe Arachchige Samantha Marasinghe 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 68.	 Mr. Vijai Krishna Bandara Weerakoon to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 69.	 Ven. Kolongaswewa Sunanda Thero to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 70.	 Mr. Wedippuli Arachchige Upul Nishantha 
Marasinghe to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 71.	 Mr. Anujantha Punaruth Vidanage to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 72.	 Mr. Herath Mudiyanselage Kamal Chandana 
Bandara to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 73.	 Mr. Karuna Arachchilage Tharanga Dilshan 
Ariyapala to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 74.	 Mr. Bandara Dasanayakage Siripala Samarakkody 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 75.	 Mr. Champika Dilum Pasqual to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 76.	 Mrs. Arakawalage Susan Perera to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 77.	 Mr. Karunasoma Dalugoda to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Gampaha;
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	 78.	 Mr. Rathnayaka Mudiyanselage Ananda to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 79.	 Mr. Liyana Pathirannehelage Niranjana Karunarathna 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 80.	 Mr. Rathnayaka Dandena Koralage Kapila Chandana 
Kumara to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 81.	 Mrs. Vineetha Premarathna to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 82.	 Mrs. Nilmi Dileka Wanniarachchi to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

	 83.	 Mr. Pushpa Kumara Wijesinghage to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 84.	 Mr. Nihal Liyanarathna to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	 85.	 Mr. Marappuli Gedara Priyantha Lal Abeyrathna to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 86.	 Mr. Siriwardanage Nihal Ranjith to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 87.	 Mr. Chandika Dinesh Karunarathna to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 88.	 Mrs. Mathagaweera Arachchi Patabendige Helamini 
Sasika to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 89.	 Mr. Mohomed Fairroze Noon Mohamed Safraz 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Colombo;

	 90.	 Mr. Karunarathna Rajapaksha Mudiyanselage 
Uditha Muthuruwan to be a Justice of the Peace for 
the Whole Island;

	 91.	 Mr. Purushothaman Pushpangathan to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 92.	 Mr. Thala Bandaralage Muthubandara to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 93.	 Mr. Mahroof Mohamed Irsad to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 94.	 Mr. Mahroof Ubaithulla to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	 95.	 Mr. Rathnayaka Mudiyanselage Sudunilame to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Monaragala;

	 96.	 Mr. Baminahannadige Upul Pemathissa to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 97.	 Mr. Herath Mudiyanselage Kalubanda to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Monaragala;

	 98.	 Mr. Rasalingam Viji to be a Justice of the Peace for 
the Whole Island;

	 99.	 Mr. Disanayaka Mudiyanselage Siriwardhana to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	100.	 Mr. Raigama Vidanage Shanaka Perera to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	101.	 Mr. Kariyawasam Ambagahawatta Kankanamalage 
Bernard De Silva to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Judicial Zone of Colombo;

	102.	 Mrs. Samarakoon Mudiyanselage Jayamini Samarakoon 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	103.	 Mr. Mohamed Sali Mohamed Sanoos to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	104.	 Mr. Perummuli Mudiyanselage Jayarathna Bandara   
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	105.	 Mr. Jayalakshana Kulasekara Gamachchige Sirisena 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Tangalle;

	106.	 Mr. Kitnasamy Sivapragasam to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	107.	 Mr. Panditharatne Appuhamilage Lakshman Panditharatne 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Gampaha;

	108.	 Mr. Hettikanda Arachchilage Upula Sanjaya 
Hettikanda Arachchi to be a Justice of the Peace for 
the Whole Island;

	109.	 Mr. Beliya Kande Gedara Athula Piyarathna to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	110.	 Mr. Rathnathilaka Mudiyanselage Jayawardhana 
Banda to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	111.	 Mr. Abdul Cadar Mohmmed Naleem to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

	112.	 Mr. Athapaththu Mudiyanselage Asanka to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	113.	 Mr. Mohammadu Ansar Mohamed Adhil to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	114.	 Mrs. Loku Kamadi Hennadige Ariyawathi to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

	115.	 Mr. Kodithuwakku Kankanamalage Dinura Nandula 
Satharasinghe to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	116.	 Mr. Abdul Ashar Mohomad Pasli to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	117.	 Mrs. Muthuthanthrige Buddika Piumali Fernando to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	118.	 Mr. Mohamad Fouzi Mohamed Safran to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	119.	 Mr. Mailange Lilananda to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	120.	 Mrs. Palika Edirappuli to be a Justice of the Peace for 
the Whole Island;

	121.	 Mr. Kumarasamy Thusigaran to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	122.	 Mr. Hewa Wasamlage Piyasena to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	123.	 Mr. Disanayake Mudiyanselage Wijerathna Banda 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Badulla;

	124.	 Mr. Gopala Krishnar Vishnukanth to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	125.	 Mr. Dasanayakage Premasiri Karunarathna to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kegalle;
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	126.	 Mr. Jayalathge Ananda Kumarasinghe to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kegalle;

	127.	 Mr. Dodampahalage Indika Roshan Fernando to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Panadura;

	128.	 Mr. Kothalawalage Don Rathnasiri to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	129.	 Mrs. Nambuge Dona Renuka Malkanthi to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	130.	 Mr. Dapana Durage Ranjith Abeygunawardana to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	131.	 Mr. Malawenna Guruge Wijayananda to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	132.	 Mr. Nimal Rajapaksha to be a Justice of the Peace for 
the Judicial Zone of Tangalle;

	133.	 Mr. Jayakody Arachchige Sunil Jayakody to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Gampaha;

	134.	 Mr. Akuranage Somapala to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Judicial Zone of Polonnaruwa

	135.	 Mr. Weragama Imiyalage Leel Manabandu to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	136.	 Mr. Siyanekorale Kankanamalage Nalin Mudithakumara 
Wijendra to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	137.	 Mr. Mugunane Sampath Pushpa Kumara to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	138.	 Mrs. Kandangodage Malika Prasadi Kandangodage 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	139.	 Mrs. Diyagama Liyanage Sumudu Prasangika to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	140.	 Mrs. Dimbulpitiya Gamaethiralalage Jeevika 
Sandamali to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	141.	 Mr. Denagama Vitharanage Rukman Samantha to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	142.	 Mr. Mohomed Fasool Ajward to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	143.	 Mr. Muhammadu Suhairuddeen to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	144.	 Mr. Don Sarathchandra Weerasinghe to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	145.	 Mr. Thachchanamoorthy Meganaraj to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	146.	 Mr. Koneswaran Umaramanan to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	147.	 Mr. Kumarasamy Jeyaraj to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	148.	 Mrs. Gabbela Mannannalage Anula Padmini to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	149.	 Mr. Fulail Mohamed Faizal to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	150.	 Mr. Metiwalage Padma Kumara to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Balapitiya;

	151.	 Mr. Nandasiri Bataduwa Arachchi to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	152.	 Mr. Waragoda Mudalige George Prasanna Perera 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	153.	 Mr. Abdul Majeedu Lafeer to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	154.	 Mr. Godage Liyanage Somapala to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	155.	 Mr. Rangoda Arachchilage Palitha Sarathchandra 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	156.	 Mr. Siyanekorale Kankanamalage Linton 
Karunarathna to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

	157.	 Mr. Kudali Gamage Piyasena to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	158.	 Mr. Kahangamage Jayathissa to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	159.	 Mrs. Thudawa Hewa Gamage Nandawathi to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	160.	 Mr. Weerasinghe Suneth Sisirachandra Silva to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

	161.	 Mr. Pitadeniya Kattadige Gamini Mendis Pitadeniya 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	162.	 Mr. Gabbela Balangodage Oliver Saman Balangoda 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	163.	 Mr. Gamakaranage Dusantha Kumara to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	164.	 Mrs. Hendrik Jayasundarage Kusuma Jayasundara to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	165.	 Mrs. Dodamgodage Premawathi to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	166.	 Mr. Koralakanda Widanelage Chandrapala to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	167.	 Mr. Athukorala Wasantha Athukorala to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	168.	 Mr. Ganesan Logesvaran to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	169.	 Mr. Palliya Ralalage Don Ranil Danush Suranga to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	170.	 Mr. Angappuli Ranasinghalage Premasiri Ilukthenna 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	171.	 Mr. Pannila Mohottalalage Gamini Wijesingha 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Ratnapura;

	172.	 Mr. Withanage Nishantha Udayakumara to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	173.	 Mr. Amarakoon Appuhamilage Prabuddha Amasarada 
Kulathunga to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	174.	 Mr. Gabbela Mohottalalage Gunarathna to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	175.	 Mr. Vedamuththu Alexandar to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	176.	 Mr. Golukandalage Wimalasena to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	177.	 Mr. Siyambalape Kankanamalage Don Jayantha 
Senarath to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;
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	178.	 Mr. Kanavinne Aththanayaka Ralalage Siripala to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	179.	 Mr. Manathunge Jayasinghe to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	180.	 Mrs. Karunawathi Narayanage to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	181.	 Mr. Kudawahumpurage Weerasinghe to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

	182.	 Mr. Manannale Subasena to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

	183.	 Mrs. Galhena Kandage Don Shalika Lasanthi 
Galhena to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	184.	 Mr. Kankanige Amarasooriya to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	185.	 Mr. Ganewaththage Don Athula Kumarasiri 
Semapala to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	186.	 Mr. Habakkala Hewage Duminda Saman Manawasinghe 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	187.	 Mr. Amarathun Hettiarachchi Wickramage Podiappu 
Hami to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone 
of Embilipitiya;

	188.	 Mr. Pathiranage Dayawansha to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Embilipitiya;

	189.	 Mr. Konara Mudiyanselage Karunarathna to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

	190.	 Mr. Ranathunga Arachchillage Bumidu Shantha 
Kumara Ranathunga to be a Justice of the Peace for 
the Whole Island;

	191.	 Mr. Punyawardhana Lekamarachchi to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	192.	 Mr. Udahagedara Manannalage Somadasa to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

	193.	 Mr. Diyakolawaththe Somasiri to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	194.	 Mr. Diyakolawaththe Gunadasa to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

	195.	 Mrs. Korale Jasinge Ramya Nelum to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	196.	 Mrs. Kankanamalage Sumanalatha Wickramasinghe 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	197.	 Mr. Satharasinghage Dayananda to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	198.	 Mr. Rathnathilaka Mudiyanselage Nihal Lalith 
Rathnathilaka to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	199.	 Mr. Kadawatha Arachchige Keerthirathna to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	200.	 Mr. Malalage Upali Udaya Kumara Jayawardhana 
Peiris to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	201.	 Mr. Govindhasamy Devaseelan to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	202.	 Mrs. Ramanayaka Arachchilage Priyanka Jeewanthi 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	203.	 Mr. Paldhasan Sooriyakumar to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	204.	 Mr. Horathal Pedige Nimal Gunawardhana to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Negombo;

	205.	 Mr. Manodara Gedara Vajira Pradeep Krisantha 
Manodaragedara to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	206.	 Mr. Weerakoon Mudiyanselage Indika Shirantha 
Weerakoon to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial 
Zone of Colombo;

	207.	 Mr. Rajapaksha Liyanage Erik Collin Perera to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	208.	 Mr. Navimana Vidanage Sanjeewa Senevirathna to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	209.	 Mr. Rathnayaka Mudiyanselage Chaminda Sumith 
Rathnayake to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	210.	 Mr. Kirinda Liyanage Don Kusumsiri Jayalath to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	211.	 Mr. Bothalawe Arachchige Senerath Sirimewan 
Fernando to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	212.	 Mr. Wickramage Seryl Wickrama to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	213.	 Mr. Mohamed Usanar Mohamed Ismail to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	214.	 Mr. Kankani Thanthri Ranjith Sumanasooriya to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	215.	 Mr. Weerasinghe Arachchige Solaman Gunathilake 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Gampaha;

	216.	 Mr. Lawrance Weerasekara to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	217.	 Mr. Hewa Dewage Jayasiri to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	218.	 Mr. Nishshanka Mudiyanselage Rupasena to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	219.	 Mr. Naiyandi Karayalage Sedaram to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

	220.	 Mrs. Athuru Liyanage Samanthika Lakmini Thilakarathna 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	221.	 Mr. Kulasingham Victor Jeyasingham to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;	

	222.	 Mr. Don Premachandra Jayawardana to be a Justice 
of 	the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Balapitiya;

	223.	 Mr. Nadarasa Thevathas to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	224.	 Mr. Premasiri Kaluarachchi to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	225.	 Mr. Kireshiyas Anura Denisiyal to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;
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	226.	 Mr. Muththulingam Varatharajan to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	227.	 Mr. Rathnayaka Mudiyanselage Wijesinghe to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	228.	 Mr. Kankanige Pradeep Chandana Kumara to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	229.	 Mr. Elabada Liyanage Gunapala to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	230.	 Mr. Wanasinghe Arachchige Indika Ruwansiri 
Wanasinghe to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	231.	 Mr. Warnakulasooriya Danie Lucian to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	232.	 Mr. Nanayakkara Gamagelage Janaka Mahesh 
Gamage to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	233.	 Mr. Weerasinghe Arachchige Reginold Fernando to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	234.	 Mr. Somasiri Abeygunawardana Ekanayaka to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	235.	 Mr. Rajakaruna Jayasinghelage Tilak Rajakaruna 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	236.	 Mr. Sinnaththurai Srikanthasamy to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	237.	 Mr. Gamage Don Harith Nishantha to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	238.	 Mr. Herath Mudiyanselage Rahula Herath to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	239.	 Mr. Yapa Appuhamilage Chandrasekara to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	240.	 Mr. Bamunugama Koralage Nihal to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;

	241.	 Mr. Vellasamy Ravichandran to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	242.	 Mr. Puwalasiri Thilakawardane to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	243.	 Mr. Dewasingha Petarlage Gunadasa to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	244.	 Mr. Mohamed Casim Mohamed Ali to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	245.	 Mrs. Liyanage Shyama Manohari Chandrasiri to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	246.	 Mr. Mohamed Ismail Mohamed Jawfer to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	247.	 Mr. Rajapaksha Kumara Unnehelage Ajith Lucian 
Pushpa Kumar Alphonso to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	248.	 Mr. Mohamed Ismail Aalim Siddik Musththafah  to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	249.	 Mrs. Kariyawasam Mudalige Kanthi to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	250.	 Mr. Benthotage Sanjeewa Tharanga Kariyawasam to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	251.	 Mrs. Gamaralalage Wasantha Pushpalatha to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	252.	 Mrs. Deshakara Muhandiramlage Chandrika Jayawardhana 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Ratnapura;

	253.	 Mr. Udawala Hewage Jayananda to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	254.	 Mr. Welegedara Amarajeewa to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

	255.	 Mr. Dissanayake Mudiyanselage Dissanayake Bandara 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	256.	 Mr. Maheshwaran Sri Murugavel to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	257.	 Mr. Sothilingam Jeyananthan to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	258.	 Mr. Keenagahahele Hemachandra Karunathunga to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	259.	 Mr. Kankanam Gamage Thilanka Bandara to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	260.	 Ven. Mahanuwara Sugathasiri Thero to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

	261.	 Rev. Ft. Roshan Manjula Kumara Weerappuli 
Gamage to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	262.	 Mrs. Don Satmas Perera Kumarika Chulani 
Rajapaksha to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	263.	 Mr. Nagalingam Senthan to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	264.	 Mr. Wepath Ange Lekamalage Keerthi Thissa to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Kurunegala;

	265.	 Mr. Nandakumar Tharshan to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	266.	 Mr. Sapugodage Dharmasiri Gamini to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	267.	 Mrs. Priyadarshani Nadaraja to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	268.	 Mr. Herath Mudiyanselage Nimal Ranasinghe to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	269.	 Mr. Ambagahawatta Ranasinghe Arachchige Sarath 
Ashoka Ranasinghe to be a Justice of the Peace for 
the Whole Island;

	270.	 Mrs. Champika Lalan Munagoda Hewage to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	271.	 Mr. Susil Chandrakumara Weerakkody to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;

	272.	 Mrs. Athulage Yamuna Pradeepika Perera to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	273.	 Mr. Kerewgoda Kankanamalage Don Joseph Sirimal 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	274.	 Mr. Ashirvatham Mariya Arokkiyam to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Gampaha;

	275.	 Mr. Warnakulasooriya Fransis to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	276.	 Mr. Jayasekara Siriwardhna Dissanayake Mudiyanselage 
Sarath Dayananda to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;
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	277.	 Mr. Witihela Wanni Arachchige Weerasinghe to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	278.	 Mr. Appuwage Sirisena to be a Justice of the Peace for 
the Whole Island;

	279.	 Mr. Dharmasiri Devananda Nanayakkara to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	280.	 Mrs. Hewa Madihage Don Geetha Damayanthi to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

	281.	 Mr. Rajaratnam Sasidharan to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	282.	 Mr. Mohomed Faizal Mohomad Rifdi to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

	283.	 Mr. Sandra Ganithage Pradeep Indika to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	284.	 Mrs. Faleel Siththy Aseeza to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

	285.	 Mr. Tilak Hendri Wickramarathna to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	286.	 Mr. Karaliyadda Bandaralage Shanaka Hemal 
Karaliyadda  to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	287.	 Ven. Mabingoda Wimalaghanana Thero to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	288.	 Mr. Saul Hameed Mohamed Ameen to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	289.	 Mr. Mohamed Shalith Mohamed Abdulla to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Awissawella;

	290.	 Mr. Ravindra Buddhika Liyanarachchi Mahanama to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	291.	 Mr. Achira Kanishka Kaluhendiwela to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	292.	 Mr. Emil Nayana Rajapaksha to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	293.	 Ven. Ehelepola Inda Jothi Thero to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	294.	 Mrs. Pushpamalar Shivalingam to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	295.	 Mr. Abdul Salam Mohamed Sapeek to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	296.	 Mrs. Dharshika Kumarasinghe to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	297.	 Mrs. Sooriyage Darshani Priyanthi Wimalasena to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	298.	 Ven. Kumburugamuwe Rewatha Thero to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	299.	 Mr. Pula Wahum Purage Palitha to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

	300.	 Ven. Kumburugamuwe Indasara Thero to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	301.	 Mrs. Yoda Pedige Kelum Kumudu Kumari to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	302.	 Mr. Weligamage Kurukularathna Sathyapala Silva 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Anuradhapura;

	303.	 Ven. Balangoda Rathanasara Thero to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	304.	 Mr. Kasthuri Arachchilage Punchinilame Sumith 
Jayasuriya to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	305.	 Mr. Webada Ralalage Chinthana Karunarathna to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	306.	 Mr. Kamburugomuwa Loku Arachchige Sanath 
Kamburugamuwa to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	307.	 Mr. Mestiyage Don Gathindra Sapumal Gunathilaka 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	308.	 Mrs. Abeygunawardhana Kalukapuge Don Inoka to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	309.	 Mr. Palan Suthakaran to be a Justice of the Peace for 
the Whole Island;

	310.	 Mrs. Marina Kumudhini Dhammika Sarath to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	311.	 Mr. Ananda Janaka Palihawadana to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	312.	 Mr. Chackrawarthige Joseph Tudor Fernando to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	313.	 Mr. Manikkuge Indika Deepal De Silva Dharmaratne 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Negombo;

	314.	 Mr. Gardi Hewa Gamage Sugathadasa to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	315.	 Mr. Sulaima Lebbe Meera Sahib to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

	316.	 Mr. Kandasamy Vellasamy Muththuramalingam 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Kurunegala;

	317.	 Mr. Juwana Waththe Gedara Jayanath Nandana 
Thissa to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial 
Zone of Kandy;

	318.	 Mr. Kankanam Arachchige Chandradasa to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	319.	 Mr. Kanagasabai Rajaratnam to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	320.	 Mrs. Maddekande Manannalage Uththara 
Niroshani Gunadasa to be a Justice of the Peace for 
the Whole Island;

	321.	 Mrs. Kuruppu Arachchige Nimali Hasantha Kuruppu 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	322.	 Mrs. Abeyrathne Jayasundara Mudiyanselage 
Sunila Wasana Kumari Jayasundara to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	323.	 Mrs. Muthuthantrige Rasika Priyadarshani 
Vishvanatha Fernando to be a Justice of the Peace for 
the Whole Island;

	324.	 Mrs. Ehelepolage Manel Chandrika to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Awissawella;

	325.	 Mrs. Abeynayakage Hasintha Dilani to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

	326.	 Mr. Dissanayaka Mudiyanselage Chathura 
Lakshman Dissanayaka   to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;
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	327.	 Mr. Ranjan Filician Pathinadar to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	328.	 Mr. Shiran Anton Pathinadar to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	329.	 Mrs. Kavisinghage Dilini Chandima Dharmapala to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	330.	 Mrs. Assaddumage Rathnayaka Rasika Wasanthi 
Siriwardhana to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Judicial Zone of Awissawella;

	331.	 Mrs. Ilangakoon Mudiyanselage Ganga Rani to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	332.	 Mrs. Alpitiye Vidana Ralalage Asoka Geethanjali 
Karunathilaka to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	333.	 Mrs. Nishshanka Arachchilage Wimalawathi to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Anuradhapura;

	334.	 Mrs. Kalutharage Anusha Nilanthi to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	335.	 Mrs. Herath Mudiyanselage Nirosha Damayanthi 
Herath to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	336.	 Rev. Ft. Warnakulasuriyage Chaminda Krishan 
Thamel to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	337.	 Mr. Sangrange Lalith Perera to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	338.	 Mr. Herath Mudiyanselage Asela Herath Bandara 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	339.	 Mr. Mohinudeen Mohamad Musthakdeen to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	340.	 Mr. Abdul Wahab Hasbulla to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	341.	 Mr. Rathnayake Weerakoonge Chaminda Kumara to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	342.	 Mr. Dinusha Nishad Jayageeth Chandrasekara 
Jayaweera Gunarathna to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	343.	 Miss. Kanagasabai Thavamanidevi  to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	344.	 Mr. Thiyagarasa Gobinath to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	345.	 Mr. Devapurayalage Priyantha Chandrasiri to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	346.	 Mr. Thushara Sampath Danketiya to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	347.	 Mr. Amarasinghe Mudiyanselage Pradeep Asanka to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	348.	 Mrs. Ragulesan Nalayini to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	349.	 Mr. Delankage Jayaweera Sumanasinghe to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	350.	 Mr. Sedara Singachchige Thushara Indunil to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	351.	 Mr. Andra Hannadige Dharmadasa to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	352.	 Mrs. Ranasinghe Arachchige Mallika Jayanthi to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	353.	 Mr. Weerasooriya Arachchi Appuhamillage Ranjith 
Premawansha Weerasooriya to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	354.	 Mr. Wijayalath Pathirannehelage Ravindra Lal 
Wijayarathna to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	355.	 Mrs. Hewa Kokawelage Nilanthi Champika to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	356.	 Mr. Don Peduru Liyanage Wimalasiri to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	357.	 Mr. Karunarathna Mudiyanselage Rathnasiri 
Karunarathna to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

	358.	 Mrs. Waththe Gedara Nishanthi Chandrika 
Waththe Gedara to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	359.	 Mr. Abeykoon Mudiyansela Cyril Abeykoon to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

	360.	 Mrs. Don Athalage Amila Rangani to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	361.	 Mrs. Neththisinghe Appuhamilage Vajira Kumari 
Nilmini Perera to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	362.	 Mrs. Balapitiyage Anula Indrani Amarasinghe to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	363.	 Mrs. Kalwaragedara Thewara Thanthrige 
Neranjana Ramyalatha Karunarathne to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	364.	 Mr. Herath Mudiyanselage Ananda Bandara Herath 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	365.	 Mrs. Waduge Mallika Dharmasooriya to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Galle;

	366.	 Mrs. Nalini Gerty Dodampe Gamage to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	367.	 Mr. Kattadige Niroda Pradeep Dharmasiri to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	368.	 Mr. Jayanthiwasage  Ariyasiri to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	369.	 Mrs. Siriyawathie Suwaris Abeysekara to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Galle;

	370.	 Mrs. Demata Hennage Seetha Padmini to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Embilipitiya;

	371.	 Mrs. Kulathunga Mudiyanselage Udayangani 
Anosha Kulathunga to be a Justice of the Peace for 
the Whole Island;

	372.	 Mrs. Wellawaththa Arachchilage Sudeshini Manik 
Kumari to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	373.	 Mr. Mahes Pani Gunasekara to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	374.	 Mrs. Jayakodi Arachchige Nishanthi Priyadharshani 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	375.	 Mrs. Nigamuni Isurini Maheshika Mendis to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
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	376.	 Mrs. Senadeerage Manora Senadeera to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Awissawella;

	377.	 Mrs. Adhikarie Mudhiyanselage Dayawathi to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Kurunegala;

	378.	 Mrs. Konara Mudiyanselage Mallika Kumarihami 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	379.	 Mrs. Wee Bedde Walawwe Yaya Bandaralage 
Wasantha Kumari Yapa Manike to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	380.	 Mrs. Subasinghe Mudiyanselage Padma to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

	381.	 Mr. Marakkala Manage Sanath Sudharshana to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	382.	 Mr. Wele Gedara Karunarathna to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	383.	 Mrs. Nanda Wijekoon to be a Justice of the Peace for 
the Whole Island;

	384.	 Mrs. Masewge Mallika to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	385.	 Mrs. Rafeek Fathima Riyaza to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	386.	 Mrs. Dela Medagedara Sumedha Geethangani to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	387.	 Mrs. Baththana Mudiyanselage Sheetha Kumari 
Samarakoon to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	388.	 Mrs. Milla Withanachchi Piyaseeli to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	389.	 Mrs. Udugama Koralage Neetha to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	390.	 Mrs. Benthara Mesthrige Indumathi Swarnapali 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Kalutara;

	391.	 Mrs. Udarika Kasunhari Handaragama to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	392.	 Mrs. Sriya Weliwaththage to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	393.	 Mrs. Rajapakshage Delsi Grace Rajapaksha to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	394.	 Mrs. Rakwana Mudiyanselage Sudharma Piyadasa to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	395.	 Mrs. Horathal Pedige Vineetha Serasinghe 
Abeywickrama to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

	396.	 Mrs. Kananke Gamage Gangani Chandrika to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	397.	 Mrs. Chandralatha Manawaduge to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	398.	 Mrs. Senevirathne Mudiyanselage Chandrika 
Senevirathna to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	399.	 Mrs. Abeysinghage Kamani to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	400.	 Mrs. Kachchakaduge Sriyani Fernando to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	401.	 Mrs. Wanigasekara Senanayaka Mudiyanselage 
Yamuna Udeni Wanigasekara to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	402.	 Mr. Yaparathna Mudiyanselage Chandrathilaka to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	403.	 Mrs. Ranathunga Arachchillage Anusha Kumari 
Ranathunga to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	404.	 Ven. Kandekumbure Sudamma Thero to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	405.	 Mr. Ariyadasa Darmadasa to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	406.	 Mr. Welikada Gamage Karunasena to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	407.	 Mrs. Pitawela Manannalage Hemalatha to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Embilipitiya;

	408.	 Mr. Konara Mudiyanselage Bandu Yogananda to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	409.	 Mr. Senarath Appuhamilage Nandana Senarath to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	410.	 Mr. Weerasinghe Mudiyanselage Punchibanda 
Weerasinghe to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Judicial Zone of Nuwara Eliya;

	411.	 Mr. Anuranga Udesh Senadeera to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	412.	 Mr. Geekiyanage Eranda Uthpala Gunawardhana to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	413.	 Mr. Youth Wikasitha Samaranayaka to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	414.	 Mr. Balasooriya Arachchige Mangala Priyantha 
Balasooriya to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	415.	 Mr. Warnakulasooriya Prince Senadeera to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	416.	 Mr. Sooriya Arachchilage Thilak Rathna Shantha 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

As the Justice of Peace.

	T halatha Atukorale,
	 Minister of Justice and Prison Reforms.

Ministry of Justice and Prison Reforms,
Colombo 12,
04th October, 2018.

10-1214
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No. 827 of 2018

Ministry  of  Justice  and  Prison 
Reforms

Justice of Peace Appointments

I, Thalatha Atukorale, Minister of Justice by virtue of the 
powers vested in me by Section 45 (2) of the Judicature Act, 
No. 02 of 1978 do hereby appoint –

	 1.	 Mrs. Andadola Manannalage Udani Chathurika to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 2.	 Mr. Nammuni Arachchi Hewa Welhenage Pradeep 
Sameera Dissanayake to be a Justice of the Peace for 
the Whole Island;

	 3.	 Mrs. Thirimanna Mudiyanselage Dammika Dilrukshi 
Rathnayaka to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 4.	 Mr. Senanayaka Muthugala Arachchilage 
Wasantha Madura Kumara to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 5.	 Mrs. Ruwanthilaka Jayasinghe to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 6.	 Mrs. Kande Priyangani Kumari Mendis to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 7.	 Mrs. Rathmalavinna Mudiyanselage Amitha 
Nishanthi Kumari to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	 8.	 Mrs. Weihena Gamage Priyanka to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 9.	 Mrs. Udagama Acharige Sunethra Kumari to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 10.	 Mr. Mohamed Sali Mohamed Roshan to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 11.	 Mr. Srinivasan Shrikantharajah to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 12.	 Mr. Manuel Antony Aloysius to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 13.	 Mr. Rashmika Gamaarachchi to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 14.	 Mr. Wimaladasage Priyantha Dissanayake to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Anuradhapura;

	 15.	 Ven. Ethiliwewe Anuruddha Thero to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 16.	 Mr. Angulgamuwage Sarath Dharmasiri to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 17.	 Mr. Widana Gamage Wijedasa to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 18.	 Mr. Gonagala Mudiyanselage Upul Pushpa Kumara 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 19.	 Mr. Dissanayake Mudiyanselage Jayarathna 
Dissanayake to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 20.	 Mr. Hetti Arachchige Premarathna to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 21.	 Mr. Sunny Liyanage to be a Justice of the Peace for 
the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

	 22.	 Mrs. Goda Kankanamalage Dona Deepani 
Nayanananda to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	 23.	 Mr. Dissanayake Mudiyanselage Kapuru Bandage 
Jayarathna to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 24.	 Mr. Chulodara Ranasinghe to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 25.	 Mr. Herath Mudiyanselage Dissanayake to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 26.	 Mr. Dikkapitiya Thennakoon Mudiyanselage 
Amarawansha Dikkapitiya to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	 27.	 Ven. Akurugoda Dewananda Thero to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 28.	 Mrs. Gangodawilage Somawathi to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 29.	 Mrs. Karunanayaka Pathirajage Nimali Padmaseeli 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 30.	 Mr. Thiyoku Thasees to be a Justice of the Peace for 
the Judicial Zone of Mannar

	 31.	 Mr. Madutheen Vincent to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Judicial Zone of Mannar

	 32.	 Mr. Nakkavita Kankanamalage Priyantha to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 33.	 Mr. Pathu Embarillage Upali Yasarathna to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 34.	 Mr. Ekanayaka Mudiyanselage Lal Jayawardhana to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 35.	 Mr. Rathnasekara Mudiyanselage Suranga 
Rathnasekara to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	 36.	 Mr. Hewa Waduge Samarapala to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 37.	 Mr. Heenbandage Kiribanda to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 38.	 Mr. Somarathna Rajakaruna to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 39.	 Mrs. Egodage Karunawathi Abeysekara to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 40.	 Mr. Zahul Hameed Abdul Azees to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 41.	 Mr. Abdul Kareem Mohomadu Haneefa to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 42.	 Mr. Ketalapothe Wedagedara Wasantha Ranthilaka 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 43.	 Mr. Mohammad Razeek Mohammad Munas to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 44.	 Mr. Siripala Kulasekara to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;
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	 45.	 Mr. Maliyadde Gedara Samarasinghe to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 46.	 Mrs. Kapu Gamage Chithra to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 47.	 Mr. Uyangoda Ge Pemasiri to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	 48.	 Mrs. Kalyani Berugoda to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	 49.	 Mr. Somawantha Widanagamage Jayawardhana to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 50.	 Mr. Jayawardhana Liyanachchi Ge Pantis Jayawardhana 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 51.	 Mrs. Welengodage Adlin to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	 52.	 Mr. Rajapaksha Wellappuli Piyasena to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 53.	 Mr. Samarawickrama Gamachchi Ge Buddhadasa to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 54.	 Mr. Piyadasa Jayawickrama Subasinghe Arachchi to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 55.	 Mr. Paranamana Sumanasena to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 56.	 Mr. Hemapala Jayawardhana to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 57.	 Mr. Medagama Vidanelage Wimalasiri Ariyawansha 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 58.	 Mr. Bogahawatte Gedara Ruwan Sameera to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 59.	 Mr. Koholangodage Jayathilaka to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 60.	 Mrs. Ranhotipedi Gedara Gnanawathi Hathurusinghe 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 61.	 Mr. Nanayakkara Wellahewage  Premasiri Dasanayake 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 62.	 Mr. Handun Pathiraja Mudiyanselage Mahinda 
Pushpa Kumara to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	 63.	 Mr. Mallawa Arachchilage Damitha Mallawaarachchi 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 64.	 Mr. Sooriya Arachachilage Jayasekara to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 65.	 Mr. Gunathilaka Alahakoon Mudiyanselage 
Lokubandara to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	 66.	 Mrs. Guniyangodage  Sureka Shyamali Samarasekara 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 67.	 Mr. Maranthota Gamaethirallaya Sumanasiri 
Jayathilake to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 68.	 Mrs. Champa Indumathi Kumari Marabe to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 69.	 Mr. Nidam Mohammed Kiyas to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 70.	 Mr. Saman Priyantha Gamage to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 71.	 Mr. Berty Solomon Crispus Pakkyanathan to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 72.	 Mr. Hatharasinghe Liyanage Weerasekara to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 73.	 Mr. Ekanayake Mudiyanselage Wijewardhana to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 74.	 Mrs. Witharalalage Chandralatha Malkanthi 
Botheju to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 75.	 Mr. Buluwana Bandulage Amarasena Wijewansha to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 76.	 Mrs. Abeysinghe Mudiyanselage Vishaka Srimathi 
Abeysinghe to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 77.	 Mr. Hapugasthenna Manannalage Amararathna 
Kulasiri to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 78.	 Mr. Idiriyathalawe Sarath Kumara Jayasinghe to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 79.	 Mr. Moraendage Wimalawansha to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 80.	 Mrs. Moramudali Arachchilage Samantha Kumari 
Jayaweera to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 81.	 Mr. Ganearachchilage Lilarathna to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 82.	 Mrs. Weerathunga Mudiyanselage Kamala Weerathunga 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 83.	 Mr. Banduprema Opanayaka to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 84.	 Mr. Garasing Aarachchige Upul to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 85.	 Ven. Galayaye Paduma Rakkhitha Thero  to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 86.	 Mrs. Thennakoon Mudiyanselage Sujeewani 
Malkanthi to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	 87.	 Mr. Dassanayaka Mudiyanselage Athula Kumara 
Bandara Thanayamwaththa to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 88.	 Mrs. Gamage Sirimawathie to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	 89.	 Mr. Idirimannage Premarathna to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	 90.	 Mr. Alankarage Ariyawansha Gunathilake to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 91.	 Mr. Imbulegamaralalage Rathnayake to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 92.	 Mr. Rathnayake Mudiyanselage Ekanayaka Bandara 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2018'10'19

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 19.10.2018
1618

	 93.	 Mr. Yapita Mudiyanselage Thilakarathna Bandara 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 94.	 Mr. Dewamuni Wilbert Silva to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

	 95.	 Mr. Raththalage Gamini Weerarathna to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 96.	 Mrs. Ranasinghage Karunawathie Ranasinghe to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 97.	 Mr. Puransinalage Roshan Sampth Wijerathna to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 98.	 Mr. Amitha Uthsala Warnakulasooriya to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	 99.	 Mr. Godage Pahalage Dharmasena 
Wijegunawardhana  to be a Justice of the Peace for 
the Whole Island;

	100.	 Ven. Kahatavila Dhammathilake Thero to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	101.	 Mr. Aluthwaththa Dissanayakalage Ranjith to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	102.	 Mr. Horagoda Kankanamge Raja Mahindasoma 
Horagoda to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	103.	 Ven. Raddelle Rathanasiri Thero to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	104.	 Mr. Kalugal Heenne Dharamasinghe to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	105.	 Mr. Jayasundara Mudiyanselage Jayawardana 
Bandara to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	106.	 Mr. Bawantha Thushara Athukorala to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	107.	 Mr. Gunapala Halgaswatta to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	108.	 Mr. Wijesekara Sumanapala  to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	109.	 Ven. Thenipita Ariyananda Thero to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	110.	 Mr. Weththasinghe Appuhamillage Shaminda 
Thusara Wickramarathna to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	111.	 Mr. Dassanayaka Mudiyanselage Janaka Kumara 
Wijayawardhana to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	112.	 Mrs. Wanni Arachchilage Hema Chandralatha to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	113.	 Mr. Gampahe Koralalage Thilakasiri Gunasekara to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	114.	 Mrs. Appu Hennadige Anula Gunasinghe Menike to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	115.	 Mr. Weragampita Liyanage Dharmadasa to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	116.	 Mrs. Luvisdurage Dayani Samanthika to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	117.	 Mrs. Madurawalage Don Manthis Sriyani Mallika 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	118.	 Mr. Kahandawala Arachchige Don Nevil 
Kahandawala to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	119.	 Mr. Gangulwitiya Gamage Wijerathna to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	120.	 Mr. Deiyandara Vidanalage Sumanasena to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	121.	 Mr. Jayathunga Arachchilage Kolvin Hemapala 
Jayathunga to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	122.	 Mr. Samarathunga Koonvinna to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	123.	 Mr. Weebadda Mohottalalage Gamini Senarathna 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	124.	 Mrs. Maranthotage Ghanawathi to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	125.	 Mrs. Hettiarachchilage Muditha Piyadarshani to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	126.	 Mr. Nakandalage Don Niros Kumara to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	127.	 Mr. Mahinda Ranjan Delwala to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	128.	 Mrs. Galhinda Wattalage Gayanthika Prasangani 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Ratnapura;

	129.	 Mr. Wijekoon Mudiyanselage Nilanka Ruwan 
Kumara to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	130.	 Mrs. Nakkawita Kankanamalage Kamala 
Weerasinghe to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	131.	 Mrs. Amarathunga Wimala Jayasooriya Menike to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	132.	 Mr. Dissanayake Mudiyanselage Wimal Chandra to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	133.	 Mrs. Hapu Arachchi Vidanalage Ireka Shirani 
Senewirathna to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	134.	 Mr. Aluthagamage Sarath Weerasinghe to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

135.		 Mr. Kiribandarage Nihal Premasiri to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	136.Mr. Kalawane Vidanalage Podimahathmaya to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	137.	 Mr. Elela Pitakande Sisira Kumara Piyarathna to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	138.	 Mr. Halwala Hewage Rasika Prasad to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	139.	 Mr. Ukwaththa Arachchillaya Gunapala to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	140.	 Mr. Marapana Arachchillaya Rathnapala Marapana 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	141.	 Mrs. Koswatta Aluth Gedara Priyanka Premarathna 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2018'10'19

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 19.10.2018 1619

	142.	 Ven. Tharaperiye Gnanasiri Thero to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	143.	 Ven. Thissamaharamaye Indananda Thero to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	144.	 Mr. Jayalath Pedidurayalage Aberathna to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	145.	 Mr. Rathnayaka Mudiyanselage Wajirapani 
Rathnasena Siriwimalarathna to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	146.	 Mr. Kalu Lekamalage Nimalrathna to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	147.	 Mr. Hitihami Mudiyanselage Gunarathna Banda to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	148.	 Mr. Herath Mudiyanselage Premarathna to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	149.	 Mr. Harsha Dilhan Wickrama Arachchige to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	150.	 Mr. Thangarasa Thavanesan to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	151.	 Mrs. Nagaratnam Yogarani to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	152.	 Mrs. Nijabdeen Fathima Nahla to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	153.	 Mr. Hindurangalage Don Wilson to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	154.	 Mr. Weraherage Premarathna to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	155.	 Mr. Wijekoon Mudiyanselage Wijesinghe to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	156.	 Mr. Kiribanda Ge Jayathilaka to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	157.	 Mr. Akurugoda Hewa Gamage Wadasena to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	158.	 Mr. Govinnage Ashoka Pushpa Kumara to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	159.	 Mrs. Kande Ranasinghage Gnanawathi Gunasekara 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	160.	 Mr. Puncha Ge Buddhadasa to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	161.	 Mr. Pattagama Gamagedara Shantha Senevirathna 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	162.	 Mr. Balasooriya Mudiyanselage Bandulasena to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	163.	 Mr. Dahanaka Rallage Premawardana to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	164.	 Mr. Athapaththu Mudiyanselage Gnanathilaka to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	165.	 Mr. Abdul Azees Mohamed Marzuk to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;

	166.	 Mr. Mohomed Saleem Mohamed Hussain to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;

	167.	 Ven. Rekogama Siriniwasa Thero to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	168.	 Mr. Sivasubramaniam Ganeshamoorthi to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	169.	 Mr. Kandiah Rasanagakam to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	170.	 Mr. Iddamalgoda Arachchige Nandathilaka to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	171.	 Ven. Gajanayakagama Seewali Thero to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	172.	 Mr. Liyanage Kalinga Premachandra to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	173.	 Mrs. Weerasinghe Arachchilage Lalitha to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	174.	 Ven. Purijjala Pagngnasara Thero to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	175.	 Mrs. Godakumbura Durayalage Indrani to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	176.	 Mr. Liyanage Anjana Akalanka Liyanage to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	177.	 Mrs. Rajapaksha Mohottalalage Don Rathnaseeli 
Rajapaksha to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	178.	 Mrs. Hewagamage Manathunga Sushanthi 
Siriwardhana to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	179.	 Mrs. Ibrahim Sujatha Ranjani to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	180.	 Mrs. Mananage Inoka Thushari Piyasena to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	181.	 Mr. Kandabada Yasantha Indika Wijenayaka to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	182.	 Mrs. Pathirana Don Shanthilatha to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	183.	 Mrs. Weerarathna Jayasooriya Patabendige Lakshmi 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	184.	 Mrs. Mananage Deepani Pushpakumari to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	185.	 Mrs. Asiringalage Ramani Swarnalatha to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	186.	 Mrs. Alutha Gamaralalage Nishanthi to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	187.	 Mr. Kiriellage Thushara Chaminda Kiriella to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	188.	 Mr. Amarathunga Priyananda to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	189.	 Mrs. Edirisinghe Arachchillage Nishanthi 
Edirisinghe to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	190.	 Mr. Sannasgama Sudarshana Udaya Pubudu Kumara 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	191.	 Mrs. Priyanka Shanthi Heenatigala to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	192.	 Ven. Kuruvita Anuruddha Thero to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	193.	 Mrs. Udagankande Pathirannehelage Bandula 
Mallika Pathirathna to be a Justice of the Peace for 
the Whole Island;

	194.	 Mrs. Dassanayaka Ranasinghe Mudiyanselage Indra 
Dassanayaka to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;
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	195.	 Mr. Noragallage Dumendra Noragalla to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	196.	 Mr. Hewahalpawaththage Don Chandrasena to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	197.	 Mrs. Gendagala Arachchillage Pushpa Damayanthi 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	198.	 Mrs. Thembiligaswatta Lekamlage Pathmini Sandya 
Jayasundara Lekamge to be a Justice of the Peace for 
the Whole Island;

	199.	 Mrs. Mudiyanselage Ajantha Pathmini Wijethilaka 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	200.	 Mrs. Munihinge Sumithra Malani to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	201.	 Mrs. Ilankoon Mudiyanselage Nanda Kumari 
Ilankoon to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	202.	 Mr. Dawul Karage Premathilake to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	203.	 Mr. Muthtunayaka Pedige Channaka Pushpa Kumara 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	204.	 Mr. Sandra Durage Kamal Asiri De Silva to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	205.	 Mr. Gala Udakande Wathukarage Sunil Ananda to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	206.	 Mr. Ovitage Dammika Senadeera to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	207.	 Mr. Ahangama Liyanage Jayananda to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	208.	 Mr. Bandula Priyantha Wickramanayaka Karunarathna 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	209.	 Mr. Pathagama Magurugodage Lakshman Senavirathna 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	210.	 Mr. Demataheththa Gamaethige Sarath Kumara to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	211.	 Mr. Mallika Arachchilage Jayantha Padmakumara 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	212.	 Mr. Sandanam Wasantha Kumar to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	213.	 Mrs. Abagalayalage Sandya Kumuduni Amarasinghe 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	214.	 Mr. Dissanayake Mudiyanselage Sisira kumara to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	215.	 Mr. Kukule Kankanamalage Nihal Abeysiri to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

	216.	 Mr. Massenna Ampitiyawatte Gamini Aththanayaka 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Ratnapura;

	217.	 Mr. Wirahin Gamage Kithsiri Amaranath to be a 	
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	218.	 Mr. Kiththambahuge Don Sumathipala to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

	219.	 Mr. Rathnayaka Mudiyanselage Ajantha Rathnayaka 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	220.	 Mr. Rupahinge Susantha Pushpa Kumara Wijerathna 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	221.	 Mrs. Unagahawatta Mudiyanselage Ariyawathi to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	222.	 Mr. Withanage Nimalsiri to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Judicial Zone of Awissawella;

	223.	 Mr. Kariyawasam Hetti Gamage Indika Nilantha to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	224.	 Mr. Moremada Mudiyanselage Tikiribanda 
Moremada to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	225.	 Mr. Athukoralalage Mahinda Chandralal to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	226.	 Mr. Wickrama Pathirage Gnanasena to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	227.	 Mr. Wijesinghe Arachchige Saman Chalaka 
Wijesinghe to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	228.	 Mrs. Inoka Shaumya Arachchi to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	229.	 Mr. Kuruvita Gamladdalage Gayanath Thilakarathna 
Jayasekara to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	230.	 Mr. Jambugaswaththa Manannalage Shantha Anura 
Jambugaswaththa to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	231.	 Mr. Mawela Manannalage Dias Chandraweera to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	232.	 Mr. Wijethunga Lokupitumpage Don Nalin 
Wijethunga to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	233.	 Mr. Athapaththu Hewawasam Liyanage Malsiri 
Priyadarshana Athapaththu to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	234.	 Mr. Paluwththa Widanelage Nishantha Premarathna 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	235.	 Mr. Handungoda Koralalage Lakshman Kumarasinghe 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	236.	 Mr. Kobbewinne Manannalage Sirilal Wasantha to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	237.	 Mr. Loku Kankanamalage Francis Christy Lionel 
Peiris to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	238.	 Ven. Wiyalagoda Assaji Thero to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	239.	 Mr. Kumudu Priyankara Jayawickrama to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	240.	 Mrs. Donawakage Don Mala Kalyani Hemalatha to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	241.	 Mr. Weerasinghe Arachchige William Peiris to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	242.	 Mrs. Hapuarachchi Vidanalage Seetha Hapuarachchi 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
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	243.	 Mr. Amarakoon Arachchillage Nimal Amarakoon 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of 
Awissawella;

	244.	 Mr. Gamlath Ralalage Rohana to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	245.	 Mrs. Bamunuge Don Nayani Kanchana Darmadasa 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	246.	 Mr. Welikala Mudiyanselage Wickramarathna 
Bandara to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial 
Zone of Ratnapura;

	247.	 Mr. Liyanage Nandadasa to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	248.	 Mr. Indigahawela Gamage Chandrasena to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	249.	 Mrs. Sinhara Mudalige Somalatha Menike to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	250.	 Mr. Ampagala Ralalage Danawardhana to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	251.	 Mr. Kattadiwaththa Hewayalage Manjula Prasad to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	252.	 Mr. Kahandawa Arachchillage Don Jayasena to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	253.	 Mr. Kahatapitiya Arachchilage Kelum Sanjeewa 
Warnakulasooriya to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	254.	 Mr. Guruluwana Gama Ethiralalage Kapila 
Wansha Chandrathilaka to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	255.	 Mr. Goluwelle Gedara Piyasena to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	256.	 Mr. Hunkiri Mudiyanselaghe Tikiri Banda to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Nuwara 
Eliya;

	257.	 Mrs.Vidane Arachchilage Madhupani Samanlatha 
Senadheera to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	258.	 Mrs. Upasakage Padmakanthi Augusta Manel 
Piyasena to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	259.	 Mr. Kolambage Antony Quintus Fernando to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	260.	 Mr. Herath Mudiyaselage Priyantha Saman Kumara 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	261.	 Mr. Mahasinghe Kankanamalage Duminda 
Vishwajith Mahasinghe to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	262.	 Mr. Siththan Kumarawel to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	263.	 Mr. Rathnayake Mudiyanselage Weerasinghe 
Rathnayake to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	264.	 Mr. Gunasekara Pathiranage Dharmadasa to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	265.	 Mrs. Haththelle Arachchige Mala Sriyalatha to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	266.	 Mr. Noel Janath Weerasinghe to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	267.	 Mr. Arumugam Navarathnasami to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

	268.	 Mr. Harischandra Pathiranalage Rathnapala to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	269.	 Mr. Ekanayaka Mudiyanselage Samarakoon Banda 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	270.	 Mrs. Samarakoon Mudiyanselage Jayasiri 
Samarakoon to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Judicial Zone of Badulla;

	271.	 Mrs. Udagedara Sisil Karunarathna to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

	272.	 Mr. Ranga Viraj Wijerathna to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

	273.	 Mr. Chandrappatti Mudiyanselage Sandara Gedara 
Chandrasekara Banda to be a Justice of the Peace for 
the Whole Island;

	274.	 Mrs. Parana Liyanage Don Piyumi Kalpana 
Malwenna to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	275.	 Mr. Theekshana Malwenna to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Nuwara Eliya;

	276.	 Mr. Akurugoda Kaluarachchige to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Whole Island;

	277.	 Mr. Kariyapperuma Arachchige Shantha Kumara to 
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	278.	 Mr. Muthuwadura Sundarapala Silva to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	279.	 Ven. Makul Elle Nandasiri Thero to be a Justice of 
the Peace for the Whole Island;

	280.	 Mr. Palakutti Arachchige Pushpananda Perera to be 
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	281.	 Mr. Uditha Ajith Bandara Gunarathna to be a 
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

	282.	 Mr. Kuda Wahumpurage Harischandra to be a Justice 
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ratnapura;

	283.	 Mr. Nagiah Vaman to be a Justice of the Peace for the 
Whole Island;

	284.	 Mr. Thommadura Padmadasa to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Galle;

	285.	 Mr. Malala Irugal Bandaralage Ajith Priyantha 
Bandara to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole 
Island;

	286.	 Mr. Omalpage Ariyarathna to be a Justice of the 
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Tangalle;

	287.	 Mr. Sivarajah Niranjan to be a Justice of the Peace 
for the Whole Island;

	288.	 Mr. Rathnayaka Mudiyanselage Dinal Rathnayaka 
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

As the Justice of Peace.

	T halatha Atukorale,
	 Minister of Justice and Prison Reforms.

Ministry of Justice and Prison Reforms,
Colombo 12,
04th October, 2018.

10-1215
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Government Notifications
registrar  general’s  Department

My No. : RG/NB/11/2/25/2016/msgq/ie.

Notice  under  the  Land  Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120)

	 01.	I  hereby give notice under Section 04 of the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land 
Register folios, particulars of which appear in Column 1 of the Schedule hereto, affecting the Lands described in 
Column 2, there of which have been found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provisional folios 
and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of which are shown in Column 3 of the said Schedule.

	 02.	T he provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested therein at the office of the 
Registrar of Lands, Panadura, 19.10.2018 to 02.11.2018 between the hours of 10.00 a. m. to 3.00 p. m. on all working 
days.

	 03.	 Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the 
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any 
particulars alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing 
addressed to the undersigned which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the office of the Registrar 
General not later than 09.11.2018. The matter in respect of which the objection or claim in made must be clearly and 
fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence 
relies upon the support of it.

Schedule

	 Particulars of Damaged Folios of the	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
	 Land Registers

Folio No. 117 of volume 12	 All that defined of the land called	 01.	 Deed of Gift No. 125 written and
of Division “F” of the Land   		  “Eadandewatta” situated at Pallimulla  		  attested by S. P. Jayawardena, 
Registry, Panadura in		  in the Panadura Badda of Panadura 			  Notary Public on 29.05.1965.
Kalutara District.		T  hotamune in the District of Kalutara,			 
		  Western Province bounded on the,	 02.	 Deed of Gift No. 426 written and
				    attested by K. S. Casichetty,
		  North-East by	 :	Paddy Field 		  Notary Public on 03.12.1988.
		  South by	 :	The Road to Egoda		
				U    yana;		
		  West by	 : 	Illandarachchiyawatta;	
		  Extent 	 :	00A., 00R., 16P.		

	N . C. Vithanage,
	 Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department, 
No. 234/A3,
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla.
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registrar  general’s  Department

My No. : RG/NB/11/2/121/2017/msgq/ie.

Notice  under  the  Land  Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120)

	 01.	I  hereby give notice under Section 04 of the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land 
Register folios, particulars of which appear in Column 1 of the Schedule hereto, affecting the Lands described in 
Column 2, thereof which have been found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in Provisional folios 
and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of which are shown in Column 3 of the said Schedule.

	 02.	T he provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested there in at the office of the 
Registrar of Lands, Delkanda, 19.10.2018 to 02.11.2018 between the hours of 10.00 a. m. to 3.00 p. m. on all working 
days.

	 03.	 Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the 
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any 
particulars alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing 
addressed to the undersigned which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the office of the Registrar 
General not later than 09.11.2018. The matter in respect of which the objection or claim in made must be clearly and 
fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence 
relies upon the support of it.

Schedule

	 Particulars of Damaged Folios of the	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
	 Land Registers

Folio No. 185 of Volume 376 of	 All that divided and defined Lot No. ‘A’	 01.	 Deed of Transfer No. 1711 written
Division ‘M’ of the Land Registry  		 in Plan No. 2892 dated 07.04.1936 made 		  and attested by T. H. Gunarathna, 
Delkanda in Colombo District.		  by J. Rodrigo, Licensed Surveyor 			  Notary Public on 20.04.1937.
		  of the land called “Ketakelagahawatta”	
		  situated at Bellantara Palle Pattu of	 02.	F inal Decree No. 36553 written
		  Salpiti Korale in the District of 		  and attested by District Judge of 
		  Colombo, Western Province bounded		  Colombo on 16.09.1936.
		  on the,
			   03.	 Deed of Gift No. 3115 written
		  North by	 :	 Omattegewatta;		  and attested by A. C. Abeywardena,
		  East by	 :	 Lot ‘C’ allotted to 3,37, 50		  Notary Public on 07.11.1952.
				    and 51 defendants jointly;
		  South by	 :	 Gansabawa Road;	
		  West by	 :	 Lot ‘B’ allotted to 10, 26, 27,	
				    28, 29, 30, 31 and 51 
				    defendants jointly		
		  Extent	 :	 00A., 01R., 33.52P.		
								      
	N . C. Vithanage,
	 Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department, 
No. 234/A3,
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla.
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registrar  general’s  Department

My No. : RG/NB/11/2/87/2018/msgq/ie.

Notice  under  the  Land  Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120)

	 01.	I  hereby give notice under Section 04 of the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land 
Register folios, particulars of which appear in Column 1 of the Schedule hereto, affecting Land described in Column 
2, there of which have been found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provisional folios and relate 
to the connected deeds, particulars of which are shown in Column 3 of the said Schedule.

	 02.	T he provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested therein at the office of the 
Registrar of Lands, Colombo, 19.10.2018 to 02.11.2018 between the hours of 10.00 a. m. to 3.00 p. m. on all working 
days.

	 03.	 Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the 
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any 
particulars alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing 
addressed to the undersigned which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the office of the Registrar 
General not later than 09.11.2018. The matter in respect of which the objection or claim in made must be clearly and 
fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence 
relies upon the support of it.

Schedule

	 Particulars of Damaged Folios of the	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
	 Land Registers

Folio No.06, 05 of Volume 49	 All that divided and defined Lot No. ‘B’	 01.	 Deed of Gift No. 4895 written
of Division “Kirulapone’ of the   		  in Plan No. 395 dated 17.03.1959 made 		  and attested by C. R. De Alwis, 
Land Registry, Colombo in 		  by J. L. Martenstyn, Licensed Surveyor			  Notary Public on 06.05.1959.
Colombo District.		  of the land called “Delgahawatta and 			 
		  Munamalgahawatta” situated at	
		  Stratford Avenue in the District of 
		  Colombo, Western Province bounded 
		  on the,
				  
		  North by	 :	 Lot A;		
		  East  by	 :	 Stratford Avenue;		
		  South by	 :	 Lot D;	
		  West by	 :	 Lot A		
		
		  Extent	 :	 00A., 01R., 15P.		

	N . C. Vithanage,
	 Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department, 
No. 234/A3,
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla.
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registrar  general’s  Department

My No. : RG/NB/11/2/47/2018/msgq/ie.

Notice  under  the  Land  Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120)

	 01.	I  hereby give notice under Section 04 of the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land 
Register folios, particulars of which appear in Column 1 of the Schedule hereto, affecting Land described in Column 
2, there of which have been found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provisional folios and relate 
to the connected deeds, particulars of which are shown in Column 3 of the said Schedule.

	 02.	T he provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested therein at the office of the 
Registrar of Lands, Delkanda, 12.10.2018 to 26.10.2018 between the hours of 10.00 a. m. to 3.00 p. m. on all working 
days.

	 03.	 Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the 
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any 
particulars alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing 
addressed to the undersigned which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the office of the Registrar 
General not later than 02.11.2018. The matter in respect of which the objection or claim in made must be clearly and 
fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence 
relies upon the support of it.

Schedule

	 Particulars of Damaged Folios of the	 Particulars of Land	 Particulars of Deeds Registered
	 Land Registers

Folio No.268 Volume 708 of	 All that divided and defined Lot No. ‘G3’	 01.	 Deed of Transfer No. 1613 written
Division ‘M’ of the Land    		  of the land called “Delgahawatta” 		  and attested by M. Weeraratne,
Registry, Delkanda in  		  situated at Pagoda Palle Pattu of			  Notary Public on 01.12.1961.
Colombo District.		  Salpiti Korale in the District of 			 
		  Colombo, Western Province	 02.	 Deed of Tranfer No. 149 written
		  bounded on the,		  and attested by D. S. Rajapaksha,
				    Notary Public on 05.06.1972.

		  North by	 :	 Lot G2;		
		  East  by	 :	 Property of J. A. D. S. Perera;		
		  South by	 :	 Lot G4;	
		  West by	 :	 Lot G8.		
		
		  Extent	 :	 00A., 00R., 16.25P.		

	N . C. Vithanage,
	 Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department, 
No. 234/A3,
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla.
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the  regulation  of  walasmulla  sithtangallena  raja  maha  vihara esala 
maha perahara

I. R. K. Vitharana who is the Divisional Secretary of Walasmulla Divisional Secretariat Declares that following 
period is laid down as the effective period of Walasmulla Sithtangallena Raja Maha Vihara Under the regulation made by the 
Minister of Public Administration and Home Affairs in terms of Section 2 of pilgrimages Ordinance (chap 175).

Sithtangallena Raja Maha Vihara Esala Maha Perahara will be held from 20.10.2018 to 26.10.2018.

	I . R. K. Vitharana,
	 Divisional Secretary,
	 Walasmulla.

10-1246

Revenue and Expenditure Returns
UNIVERSITY OF KELANIYA  sri  Lanka

Financial Statements - Year 2013

Statement of Financial Performance for the Year ended 31st December
	 2013 	 2012

INCOME 	 Note 	 Rs. 	 Rs.
Government Grants
Government Grants for Recurrent Expenditure 2 1,567,000,000 1,255,880,000
Government Grants for Rehabilitation  & 18,805,911 12,479,325
 I mprovement of Assets
Grants for Mahapola - Mahapola  Trust Fund 57,044,250 56,754,503
Grants for Mahapola - University Grants Commission 9,226,000 11,203,700
Grants for Bursary 47,430,300 39,066,450
Amortization of Capital Grants 269,455,464 255,116,138

Other Income
1,968,961,925 1,630,500,116

Registration Fees (Undergraduate - Local) 3,466,055 1,540,600
Registration Fees (Undergraduate - Foreign) 26,521,690 4,418,548
Registration Fees (Post graduate) 1,011,850 607,200
Tuition Fees  (Undergraduate) 102,490 175,870
Tuition Fees (Post graduate) 3,552,822 3,381,487
Examination Fees  (Undergraduate) 949,826 789,070
Examination Fees (Post graduate)
Interest from Investments

Gross Interest 	 - 	 128,065,441.64
WHT 	 - 	 7,233,983.02
Net Interest 	 - 	 120,831,458.62

269,500

120,831,459

274,025

97,150,499
Interest from Loans 2,912,086 1,582,948
Sale of Publications 72,100 76,740
Rent from Properties 1,055,839 854,878
Library Fines 319,572 277,768
Medical fees 32,120 32,350
Ancillary Activities - Hostels 3,027,807 343,151
Sale of Old Stores 1,135,061 101,380
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Miscellaneous  Income 3 65,345,316 44,574,053
Income from External Examination 4 205,853,739 135,053,807
Income from Fee - levying Courses/Special  services 136,778,241 128,924,916
University Contribution Seminar fees 3,208,448 19,698,387

576,446,019 439,857,676

Total Income 2,545,407,944 2,070,357,792

EXPENSES
Personal Emoluments 5 1,326,719,589 1,097,957,442
Travelling Expenses 6 4,069,122 4,528,992
Supplies 7 84,235,223 65,664,237
Maintenance Expenses 8 17,142,468 9,748,666
Contractual Services 9 238,557,174 180,001,905
Other Recurrent 10 96,433,615 70,856,381
Depreciation 288,499,365 287,584,434
Provision for Gratuity 64,147,498 22,250,699
Expenditure on Fee - levying Courses/Special  services 66,239,851 63,635,712
Rehabilitation  & Improvement Expenses 18,805,911 12,479,325
Mahapola Scholarship - Mahapola Trust Fund 57,044,250 56,603,700
Mahapola Scholarship - University Grants Commission 9,226,000 11,203,700
Bursary 47,430,300 39,066,450

Total Expenses 2,318,550,366 1,921,581,642

Surplus /( Deficit) for the period 226,857,577 148,776,150

Unitversity of Kelaniya

Statement  of  Financial  Position

	 AS AT 31.12.2013	 AS AT 31.12.2012

ASSETS	 Note	 Rs.	 Rs.

Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents 11 69,241,685 148,782,451
Receivables 12 154,707,758 33,140,058
Inventories 13 30,839,723 33,698,794
Prepayments 14 1,938,480 1,416,925
Deposits & Advances 15 99,113,410 85,302,722
Sundry Debtors 16 155,358 991,672

Non - Current Assets
355,996,414 303,332,621

Investments 17 1,222,938,936 987,578,278
Property Plant & Equipments 18 3,556,309,666 3,182,699,586
Work in Progress 19 203,511,816 434,505,629

Total Assets 5,338,756,831 4,908,116,114

		  2013	 2012
	 Note	 Rs.	 Rs.
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 20 127,903,236 14,594,786
Accrued Expenses 21 66,963,227 51,606,192
Refundable Deposits 22 54,663,172 42,108,646

249,529,635 108,309,624
Non Current Liabilities

Provision for Retiring Gratuity 23 356,798,278 312,514,830
Provision for Contingent Liabilities 24 455,580 455,580

357,253,858 312,970,410

Reserves & Restricted Funds

University Funds 25 335,818,328 133,617,553
Endowment Funds 26 12,433,518 11,875,025
Research Grants 27 84,574,708 78,903,776
Funds received for special purpose 28 91,671,071 80,841,124
Other Reserves 29 26,124,121 19,979,602
Income Received in Advance 30 272,819,931 294,905,543

823,441,679 620,122,624

Capital

Deferred Capital Grants 31 2,383,580,901 2,574,731,374
Capital Grants Unspent 32 7,757,772 16,483,160

2,391,338,674 2,591,214,535
Accumulated Fund

Cabinet Approved Building project Fund                   33 395,621,724 62,165,273
Asset Revaluation Reserve 1,548,119,831 2,502,292,782
General Reserve (426,548,570) (1,288,959,134)

1,517,192,984 1,275,498,921
5,338,756,831 4,908,116,114

These financial statements are in compliance with the requirements of the Universities Act, No.16 of 1978 and other 
statutory Provisions.

U T M I D Tennakoon,
Bursar

The Council of the university is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements  signed for 
and on behalf of the Council.

Prof. Sunanda Maddumabandara,	 W. M. Karunarathne,
Vice-chancellor	 Registrar.

The Accounting Policies and Notes on Pages 06 through 21 form an integral part of these Financial statements.

Kelaniya.
24th November, 2014.

		  AS AT 31.12.2013	 AS AT 31.12.2012
	 Note	 Rs.	 Rs.
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st December

	 2013	 2012

Cash Flow From / (Used in ) Operating Activities

 	   Rs.	  	   Rs. 	

Surpluses for the year
Adjustments for
Amortization of Government Grants

226,857,577

(269,455,464)

148,776,150

(255,116,138)
Depreciation 288,499,365 287,584,434
Profit on Disposal of Property and Equipment - (421,981)
Provision for Gratuity 64,147,498 22,250,699
Interest Income (120,831,459) (86,748,588)
Donation received (818,843)
Other Adjustment 4,012,825 (11,859,316)

Operating Surplus before changes in working Capital 192,411,499 104,465,260

Increase / (Decrease) in Working Capital
Inventories

2,859,072 (5,549,175)
Debtors 836,313 (891,672)
Deposits & Advances (13,810,688) (56,392,537)
Prepayments & Deposits (521,555) (289,894)
Accounts Receivable (121,567,701) 12,342,859
Accounts Payable 113,308,451 (5,070,993)
Accrued Expenses 15,357,035 (5,560,728)
Refundable Deposits 12,554,525 7,729,185

Cash Generated from Operations 201,426,951 50,782,306

Gratuity Paid (19,864,050) (12,210,094)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 181,562,901 38,572,212

Cash Flow from / (Used In) Investing Activities

Acquisition of Property Plant & Equipment (264,798,698) (352,190,857)
Investments (235,360,658) (220,330,465)
Work in Progress (167,785,864) (146,646,616)
Proceeds from Disposal of Property Plant & Equipment - 441,000
Interest Received 120,831,459 86,748,588
Restricted Funds and Grants (36,493,061) 221,445,660
Net Cash used in investing Activities (583,606,823) (410,532,691)

Cash Flow from / (Used In) Financing Activities

Government grant for Capital Expenditure 280,500,000 253,000,000

Cash flows from external sources 42,003,156 93,329,932
Net Cash Flow From / (Used In) Financing Activities 322,503,156 346,329,932

UNIVERSITY OF KELANIYA
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Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash & cash Equivalents (79,540,765) (25,630,547)

Cash & Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 148,782,450 174,412,997
Cash & Cash equivalents at the end of the year 69,241,685 148,782,450

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Significant Accounting Policies

	 1.1	 General Policies

	 1.1.1	 Reporting Entity

		U  niversity of Kelaniya was incorporated under the University Act, No. 16 of 1978, and situated at Dalugama, 
Kelaniya.

	 1.1.2	 Principal activities and nature of operations

		T  his is a National University mainly operates on Government funds.

		T  he university primarily caters to local students in the fields of Humanities, Social Sciences, Sciences, Medicine, 
Commerce & Management. 

		T  he university is promoting higher studies and research.

	 1.1.3	 Basis of preparation

	 (a)	 Statement of compliance

		T  he financial Statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Financial Performance, Statements 
of changes in Net Assets / Equity, Cash Flow Statement and Notes to the Financial Statements.  These statements have 
been prepared in accordance with the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards (SLPSAS) issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and adopted by the University Grants Commission by its Financial Circular 
Letter No. 3/2011. The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those used in the previous financial year.

	 (b)	 Basis of measurement

		F  inancial statements have been prepared on historical costs basis and do not take into account changes in money values, 
except where it is stated. Cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

	 (c)	 Functional and presentation currency

		T  he financial statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is the University’s functional and presentation 
currency.

	 (d)	 Use of estimates and judgments

		T  he preparation and presentation of financial statements in conformity with SLPSAS requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and reported amounts of 
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates and judgmental decisions.

		
		T  he estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects on that period or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

	 2013	 2012
	 Rs.	 Rs.
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	 1.2	 Assets and the bases of their valuation

	 1.2.1	 Property, Plant & Equipment

	 (a)	 Recognition and Measurement

		  Property, Plant & Equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of Property, Plant & 
Equipment is the cost of purchase or construction together with any incidental expenses thereon.

	 (b)	 Cost

		T  he cost of property, plant & equipment comprises its purchase or construction cost and any directly contributable 
cost of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.

	 (c)	 Depreciation

		  Depreciation is charged to the income statement on the straight line basis at the following rates per annum in 
order to write off the cost of such assets over their estimated useful lives;

	 Buildings	 5% 
	F urniture & Equipment	 10% 
	 Lab & Teaching Equipment	 20% 
	 Motor Vehicles	 20% 
	 Water & Electricity Supply	 10% 
	F iber Glass Boat	 10% 
	 Library Books & Periodicals	 20% 
	 Cloaks	 20% 
	 Machinery	 20% 
	 Others	 20%

			   Depreciation is provided on pro rata basis on the assets purchased/constructed/disposed of during the year.

		  (d)	 Revaluation of the Property, Plant & Equipments

		T  he Lands, Buildings and Motor Vehicles of the University have been revalued and recognized to the accounts with 
effect from 01st January, 2008.

	 1.2.2	 Inventories

		I  nventories are valued at cost based on FIFO basis.

	 1.2.3	 Receivables

		  Receivables are stated at the amounts they are estimated to realize.

	 1.2.4	 Short term investments

	 (a)	 Investment in government securities
		I  nvestments in treasury bills, treasury bonds and repurchase agreements are stated at cost.

	 (b)	 Investment in fixed deposits
		I  nvestments in fixed deposits are stated at cost.
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	 1.2.5 	Cash & Cash Equivalents

		  Cash & cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and deposits at Bank.

	 1.3	 Liabilities & Provisions

		  All known liabilities as at the balance sheet date are included in the Financial Statements and adequate provisions are 
made for liabilities which are known to exist but the amount of which cannot be determined accurately.

		  Obligations payable on demand or within one year of the balance sheet date are treated as current liabilities in the 
balance sheet. Liabilities payable after one year from the balance sheet date are treated as non-current liabilities in the 
balance sheet.

	 1.3.1	 Accounting for grants

		  Grants that compensate the University for Expenses incurred are recognized as revenue in the income statement 
in the same period in which the expenses are recognized. Grants that compensate the University for the Cost of an 
asset are recognized in the income statement on a systematic basis over the useful life of the related asset.

	 1.3.2	 Employee Benefit

	 (a) 	Provision for retiring gratuity

		T  he university has adopted the benefit plan as required under the payment of Gratuity Act, No. 12 of 1983 for all 
eligible employees.

		  Defined benefit plans define an amount of benefit that an employee will receive on retirement usually dependent 
on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

		T  he liability recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation at the balance sheet date together with adjustment for unrecognized past service cost.

	 (b) 	Defined contribution plan

		  Obligations for contribution to a defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense in the income statement 
as incurred

	 1.3.3	T axation

		T  he university is exempt from Income Tax under Section 7(b) of the Inland Revenue Act, No. 10 of 2006.

	 1.3.4	 Deferred Taxation

		  Provision has not been made for deferred tax as the university is exempted from Income Tax under Section 7(b) 
of the Inland Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006.

	 1.3.5	 Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

		  All material commitments and contingent liabilities are considered and where necessary adjustments or disclosures 
are made in these Financial Statements.

	 1.4 	I ncome Statement

	 1.4.1	 Revenue recognition
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		  Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the university and that it 
can be reliably measured.

	 (a)	 Enrolment fees from students are recognized as revenue on receipt.

	 (b)	F ees on examinations, seminars, courses and other educational and activities are recognized as revenue on 
completion of such activity.

	 (c)	T he fees on fee-levying courses recognized to the income statement based on the stage of completion of each course 
as at the year end. When the determining stage of completion, it is considered the proportion that cost incurred to 
date bear to the estimated total costs of the transaction. Lecture fees and payments that relate to future periods are 
shown in the Statement of financial position as Income Received in Advance under the Reserve & Restricted Funds.

	 (d)	I nterest income is recognized on accrual basis.

	 (e)	 Revenue from grants is recognized when control of the contribution or right to receive the contribution is confirmed.

	 (f)	 Sponsorship related activities are recognized on receipt.

	 (g)	 Other income is recognized on accrual basis.

	 1.4.2	 Expenditure

	 (a) 	Expenses are recognized in the income statement on the basis of direct association between cost incurred and the 
earning of specific items of the income. All expenditure incurred in the running of the university and in maintaining 
the capital assets in a state of efficiency has been charged to revenue in arriving at the surplus/deficit for the year.

	 (b)	 Expenses on examinations, seminars, courses and other educational activities are recognized in the income 
statement on completion of such activity.

	 1.5	 Comparative Information

		T  he Comparative figures have been re-arranged where necessary to conform to the current year’s presentation.

	 1.6	 Events after the balance sheet date

		T  he materiality of events occurring after the balance sheet date has been considered and appropriate adjustments, 
wherever necessary, have been made in the accounts.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st December

		  2013 	 2012

	 Note 	 Rs. 	 Rs.

Government Grants for Recurrent Expenditure 	 2 		  - 

Personal Emoluments 		  1,378,000,000 	 1,071,500,000
Other Recurrent 		  189,000,000 	 184,380,000
		  1,567,000,000 	 1,255,880,000

Miscellaneous Income 	 3

Certificate Fees 		  1,533,513 	 1,430,292
Fines for Cloaks 		  1,250 	 9,950
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Photo Copying Charges 		  39,725 	 45,111
Cloaks Hiring 		  1,089,000 	 870,750
Hire of Vehicles 		  369,002 	 69,147
Registration Fees from Suppliers 		  292,900 	 201,400
Convocation Fee 		  7,611,120 	 5,527,670
Postgraduate Library Income 		  176,000 	 246,214
Application & Other Fee 		  5,478,201 	 2,196,018
Provident Fund Charges 		  1,702,435 	 2,364,476
Fine from Contractors 		  435,764 	 7,722,749
Library cards & Identity Cards 		  84,585 	 30,300
Dental Clinic Charges 		  26,660 	 28,970
Other miscellaneous Income 		  46,505,162 	 23,831,006
		  65,345,316 	 44,574,053

Income from External Examinations 	 4

Registration fees 		  14,008,148 	 73,845,911
Examination fees 		  120,385,605 	 30,146,428
Syllabus fees 		  10,605 	 7,160
Past papers fees 		  451,790 	 617,665
Certificate fees 		  526,966 	 601,120
Postage fees 		  48,680 	 155,620
Convocation income 		  36,600 	 8,545,803
Seminar income 		  68,659,341 	 10,117,635
BA Degree (Overseas)Singapore 		  1,692,214 	 417,629
Certificate Confirmation fees 		  - 	 3,615,760
ID Charges 		  29,200 	 4,847,280
Sundry income 		  4,590 	 2,135,797
		  205,853,739 	 135,053,807

Personal Emoluments 	
(a) Academic

Salaries & Wages 		  358,862,556 	 367,636,866
Provident Fund 		  72,566,852 	 49,895,577
Pension 		  23,358,844 	 14,249,544
E.T.F. 		  19,200,531 	 12,931,742
Acting Pay 		  42,379	  -
Academic Allowances 		  215,520,324 	 138,027,191
Other Allowances 		  159,463,480 	 94,273,539
Visiting Lecturers Fees 		  27,011,858 	 17,546,122
Cost of Living Allowance 		  61,209,417 	 48,103,434
		  937,236,239 	 742,664,016

(b) Non-Academic

Salaries & Wages 208,272,546 194,491,440
Provident Fund 28,738,926 32,346,018
Pension 13,312,727 13,539,260
E.T.F. 8,415,973 9,177,057
Acting Pay 358,514 415,171

		  2013 	 2012
	 Note 	 Rs. 	 Rs.

5
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Over Time 30,764,989 23,971,928
Holiday Payments 341,726 866,539
Other Allowances 37,468,773 28,742,610
Language Proficiency Allowance 473,024 974,929
Cost of Living Allowance 61,336,151 50,768,476

389,483,349 355,293,426
1,326,719,589 1,097,957,442

Travelling Expenses 6
Domestic 935,192 794,034
Foreign 3,133,930 3,734,959

4,069,122 4,528,992

Supplies 7
Stationery & Office Requisites 29,913,036 28,681,486
Fuel & Lubricants 14,139,396 13,163,328
Uniform & Tailoring Charges 2,921,331 1,627,927
Mechanical & Electrical Goods 3,028,378 704,305
Other Supplies 34,233,083 21,487,191

84,235,223 65,664,237

Maintenance Expenses 8
Vehicles 4,232,449 2,208,549
Plant, Machinery & Office Equipments 12,116,084 7,351,840
Building & Structures 202,881 13,915
Furniture 471,067 50,990
Other 119,987 123,372

17,142,468 9,748,666

Contractual Services 9
Transport 279,423 57,625
Telecommunication 23,436,879 16,992,627
Postal Charges 2,297,995 3,769,785
Electricity 88,879,597 71,846,207
Security Services 32,922,014 24,776,096
Water 24,790,518 23,556,350
Cleaning Services 19,978,655 12,197,242
Rent & Hire Charges 6,204,767 4,168,491
Rates and taxes to local authorities 3,432,477 7,305,575
Printing, Advertising etc. 27,012,300 8,531,351
Others 9,322,550 6,800,556

238,557,174 180,001,905

Other recurrent

Travel Grants to University Teachers 10 (1,900) -
Special Services - Council & Committees 2,197,905 1,005,622
Special Services - Professional & Other Fee 272,245 40,301
Workshops, Seminars 8,422,526 3,899,776
Academic Research 4,233,921 2,982,180
Staff Development 2,875,909 3,045,677

		  2013 	 2012
	 Note 	 Rs. 	 Rs.
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Grants to other organization 1,638,965 2,684
Holiday, Warrants & Season Tickets 1,990,100 2,289,620
Entertainment Expenses 2,121,931 1,617,826
Bank Charges 19,098 1,281
Awards & Indemnities 402,910 409,150
Contribution & Membership Fee 623,755 599,150
Convocation 3,682,562 9,640,258
Examination 64,124,859 42,134,073
Others - Newspapers, Magazines Etc. 1,858,856 3,188,783
Field Trips 1,969,973 -

96,433,615 70,856,381

Cash & Cash Equivalents 		  11 

(a) Petty Cash Imprest
  F  aculty of Medicine 	 12	 1,000 	 -
    External Examination 	 1,757 	 1,757
	 2,757 	 1,757 
(b) Treasury Funds

P/B Kelaniya (1515) - 055-1-001-1-0667549 	 13,779,387 	 12,918,654
P/B Kelaniya (2721) - 055-1-001-8-0667616 	 1,895,668 	 4,851,608
P/B Int Divi (150333) - 004-1-001-3-0210871 	 6,032,048 	 6,032,048
P/B Ragama (308) - 316-1-001-2-4564262 	 688,205 	 7,664

	 22,395,308 	 23,809,975

(c) Non Treasury Funds

P/B Kelaniya (4844) - 055-1-001-8-0668084 	 201,472 	 27,099,337
P/B Kelaniya (1517) - 055-1-001-5-0667552 	 224,145 	 334,315
P/B Kelaniya (3300) - 055-1-001-6-0667716 	 6,846,288 	 8,287,948
P/B Kelaniya (7782) - 055-1-001-8-0669229 	 20,505,103 	 22,444,535
P/B Ragama (309) DSU Project - 316-1-001-0-4564263 	 600,895 	 1,599,994
P/B.Ragama (2735) - 316-1-001-9-4564819 	 8,972,231 	 24,139,620
P/B NRFC 	 4,874,877 	 4,622,205
P/B.Keleniya- Confucius 055-1-002-2-0015067 	 2,955,278 	 118,187
P/B Kelaniya (1519) - 055-1-001-3-0667553 	 - 	 13,734,529
Student Society Bank A/C 	 642 	 642
P/B Kelaniya 055100180017238 	 272,619 	 272,619
Collection Account (II) 	 10,000 	 10,000
Cash in Transit 	 644,667 	 22,155,984
P/B Kelaniya 055 011420009867 Mahapola 	 735,403 	 150,803

	 46,843,620 	 124,970,719

	 69,241,685 	 148,782,451

Receivables 	 12

Interest 	 8,406,550 	 10,517,321
Reimbursements 	 787,038 	 735,050
Treasury fund 	 130,000,000 	 -
Mahapola Scholarship 	 4,626,600 	 4,246,900

		  2013 	 2012
	 Note 	 Rs. 	 Rs.
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Bursary 		  7,290,900 	 17,275,600
Others 		  - 	 365,187
Other Institutes 		  3,596,671 	 -
		  154,707,758 	 33,140,058

Inventories 	 13

Stationery 		  22,339,313 	 26,506,528
Maintenance 		  8,076,462 	 6,355,790
Others 		  423,948 	 836,476
		  30,839,723 	 33,698,794

Prepayments 	 14

Service Agreements 		  1,003,239 	 616,499
Vehicles License & Insurance 		  725,780 	 761,836
Others 		  209,461 	 38,590
		  1,938,480 	 1,416,925

Deposits & Advances	  15 

(a) Staff Loans & Advances
Distress Loans 		  85,217,261 	 65,200,631
Staff Loans 		  542,340 	 683,209
Transport Loans 		  694,126 	 654,869
Computer Loans 		  922,000 	 926,600
Special Distress Loans 		  166,219 	 212,728
Festival Advances 		  1,020,400 	 1,067,875
Salary Advances 		  203,171 	 400,131
Special Advances 		  34,000 	 38,989
Vice Chancellor's fund Loan 		  94,302 	 537,769
		  88,893,819 	 69,722,801
(b) Advances for Supplies & Services

Research Advance 		  1,859,696 	 2,283,151
International Conference Advance 		  1,709,258 	 204,178
Miscellaneous Advance 		  928,256 	 2,699,853
Statutory Boards & Local Authorities 		  205,639 	 205,639
Capital Advance 		  - 	 5,599,504
		  4,702,848 	 10,992,324
(c) Other Advances & Deposits

Fuel Deposit 		  510,000 	 10,000
Advance for Stamps 		  7,370 	 7,370
External Research Advance 		  1,400,030 	 103,112
Disability Project Advance 		  363,782 	 363,782
Department Development Fund Advance 		  109,564 	 - 
MSc Fisheries Advance 		  - 	 41,327
Generated Fund Advance 		  127,398 	 205,508
Confucius Institute Advance 		  2,415,600 	 3,318,999
Career Fair Advance 		  343,000 	 250,000
Advance for Gender Studies Unit 		  40,000 	 - 

		  2013 	 2012
	 Note 	 Rs. 	 Rs.
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Advance for Research Centre-Social Sciences 		  200,000 	 287,500
		  5,516,743 	 4,587,597
		
		  99,113,410 	 85,302,722

Sundry Debtors 		  16	
BMICH Security Deposit 			   98,000 	 100,000
Debtors External Exam Division 			   57,358 	 726,672
Salary over payments 			   - 	 165,000
			   155,358 	 991,672
Investments 		  17

Staff Security Deposits 			   59,863 	 56,768
Bonds & Agreement  Violations 			   59,395,290 	 38,702,792
Scholarship Fund 			   9,278,203 	 9,469,149
External Examination 			   723,364,320 	 643,673,523
Retentions Fund 			   408,363,837 	 289,349,043
Special Grants 			   22,477,423 	 6,327,004
			   1,222,938,936 	 987,578,278

Property Plant & Equipment 	 18

	 Balance	  Additions 	 Disposals 	 Balance
	 As at 			   As at
	 01.01.13 			   31.12.13
Cost 	 Rs. 	 Rs. 	 Rs. 	 Rs.

Lands, Buildings & Improvements 	 3,527,404,443 	 469,970,534 	 - 	 3,997,374,976
Furniture & Equipments 	 699,530,912 	 143,530,380 	 - 	 843,061,292
Lab & Teaching Equipments 	 231,038,642 	 22,531,863 	 - 	 253,570,505
Motor Vehicles 	 82,167,078 	 8,285,000 	 - 	 90,452,078
Water & Electricity Supply Scheme 	 43,318,693 	 4,670,473 	 - 	 47,989,166
Library Books & Periodicals 	 235,711,152 	 2,397,642 	 - 	 238,108,794
Cloaks 	 6,114,306 	 - 	 - 	 6,114,306
Machinery 	 29,240,432 	 3,752,860 	 - 	 32,993,292
Others 	 93,417,106 	 9,258,465 	 - 	 102,675,571

4,947,942,764 	 664,397,218 	 - 	 5,612,339,982

Balance 	 Charge for the 	 Disposals 	 Balance
As at 	 Year 		  As at

01.01.13 			   31.12.13
Depreciation 	 Rs. 	 Rs. 	 Rs. 	 Rs.

Lands, Buildings & Improvements 	 692,448,944 	 174,386,968 	 - 	 866,835,912
Furniture & Equipments 	 466,565,320 	 69,579,560 	 - 	 536,144,879
Lab & Teaching Equipments 	 198,742,417 	 12,144,420 	 - 	 210,886,837
Motor Vehicles 	 56,587,080 	 9,543,299 	 - 	 66,130,379
Water & Electricity Supply Scheme 	 38,031,426 	 1,362,257 	 - 	 39,393,683
Library Books & Periodicals 	 215,495,020 	 8,812,421 	 - 	 224,307,441
Cloaks 	 3,556,402 	 489,061 	 - 	 4,045,463

		  2013 	 2012
	 Note 	 Rs. 	 Rs.
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Machinery 	 26,030,458 	 3,219,471 	 - 	 29,249,929
Others 	 70,073,885 	 8,961,907 	 - 	 79,035,792

	 - 			   -
	 1,767,530,951 	 288,499,365 	 - 	 2,056,030,316

Written Down Value 	 3,180,411,813 			   3,556,309,666

Work in Progress 	 19

Open Air Theater-Ground No.02 		  - 	 10,495,043
New Building for the Works Division 		  9,917,609 	 6,588,728
Faculty of Commerce & Management  Building 		  - 	 215,269,750
Art Gallery Building(AIT) 	    	 3,912,122 	 - 
Social Science Building Stage 1 		  10,000,000 	 - 
Social Science Building-Stage 2 	    	 7,936,265 	 - 
Modern Cafeteria Building 		  - 	 19,090,087
New Library Building 		  - 	 128,255,167
Humanities - Building 		  42,234,958 	 20,237,040
Six Storied Exam Building 		  109,770,099 	 31,161,040
Water Sump (M/F) 		  - 	 3,408,774
Hostel for Medicine-2013		  2,557,050	 -
Science Faculty Building                                                                                   	 4,090,463	 -
Building for Modern Language		  8,964,973	 -
Five Storied Building Social Science		  4,128,276	 -

		  203,511,816 	 434,505,629

Accounts Payable
Staff development programme

20
968,315 557,305

Sundry Deposits 3,225,460 10,065,950
Stamp Deposits 64,200 64,200
Tax Payable 1,464,477 2,072,128
Cancel cheques 1,370,860 631,859
Staff security deposits 65,099 61,532
Capital Expenses 120,000,000 -
Others 744,824 1,141,811

127,903,236 14,594,786

Accrued Expenses 21
Audit Fee 1,550,080 1,000,080
Personal Emoluments 16,942,310 15,750,441
Travelling Expenses 113,208 76,681
Supplies Expenses 8,407,002 4,570,309
Stores Supplies 3,703,980 2,100,488
Maintenance Expenses 2,693,851 496,880
Contractual Services 27,712,581 16,552,866
Other Recurrent Expenses 5,826,215 10,174,573
Others 14,000 883,874

66,963,227 51,606,192

Balance 	 Charge for the 	 Disposals 	 Balance
As at 	 Year 		  As at

01.01.13 			   31.12.13
Depreciation 	 Rs. 	 Rs. 	 Rs. 	 Rs.
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Refundable Deposits
Tender Deposits

22
716,116 777,766

Security Deposits 42,978,556 38,858,380
Library Deposits 10,964,500 2,472,500
Others - Hostel 4,000 -

54,663,172 42,108,646

Provision for Retiring Gratuity 23
Balance as at 1st January 312,514,831 302,474,226
Charge  for the year  	 64,147,498  	 22,250,699

376,662,328 324,724,925
Payments made during the Year 19,864,050 12,210,094
Balance as at 31st December 356,798,278 312,514,831

Provision for Contingent Liabilities 	 24

President of Labour Tribunal 		  455,580 	 455,580
	 455,580 	 455,580

An application for writ field by letter University Sub Wardens Union and several others against the University Grants 
Commission and several others where the University is also made a party : Case no. CA (Writ) 422/2010

A party has filed action in the District Court of Marawila seeking a declaration that he is the owner of a property belonging 
to the University situated in Dummaladeniya in the District of Chilaw and the said action is Pending

Legal proceedings initiated by several parties against the University claiming ownership to state land given on long-term 
lease to the University , Where the Faculty of Medicine is situated. Is also pending.

There is an Appeal pending before the University Service appeals Board filed by on ex-employee against non extension 
of the service. Case No. USAB/803

There is an Appeal pending before the University Service appeals Board filed by an unsuccessful applicant to a Post of 
Senior Lecturer in University. Case No. USAB/832

There is an Appeal pending the High Court  of Colombo , Filed by the University  against an order made by the Labor 
Tribunal in LT Application No.31/88/2006. Appeal no. HCALT 9/2011

A sum of Rs.455,580/- has been deposited to the credit of the Labor Tribunal case as it is a legal requirement  to deposit 
the amount of Money ordered to be paid as compensation, when filing an appeal.

Case No.C.A. 39/2013 (writ) filed by Mrs.R.A.C. Nandanie with regard to her dismissal from the post of Assistant 
Statistician in the University. If  Mrs.Nandanie Succeeds her application , The University may have to Pay her Compensation 
in an Amount as decided by Court

University Funds 	 25

University Development Fund
University Enhancement Fund

5,379,353 3,315,729
69,617,381 -

MBBs Fund 29,030,928 24,151,374
Center for Distance and Continue Education Fund 125,000,000
Faculty Development Fund - Faculty of Commerce & Mgt. Studies 4,960,726 2,822,749
Faculty Development Fund - Faculty of Humanities 7,015,472 5,383,751
Faculty Development Fund - Faculty of Science 2,533,666 2,020,063
Faculty Development Fund - Faculty of Social Sciences 2,818,212 1,697,865

	 Rs.	 Rs.

	 Rs.	 Rs.
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Faculty Development Fund - Faculty of Graduate Studies 5,665,506 1,686,277
Faculty Development Fund - Faculty of Medicine 3,961,871 3,229,221
Research  Centre Development Fund  - Faculty of  Commerce & Mgt. Studies 1,974,758 622,545
Research Centre Development Fund -  Faculty of Humanities 685,436 189,185
Research Centre Development Fund  - Faculty of Science 385,148 84,020
Research Centre Development Fund  - Faculty of Social Sciences 2,217,254 80,003
Research Center Development Fund  - Faculty of Medicine 88,800 -
ICT Center Development Fund 1,237,151 240,738
Department Fund- Department of Microbiology 795,194 763,194
Department Fund - Department of Botany 53,549 53,549
Department Fund - Department of Mathematics 91,865 91,865
Department Fund - Department of Chemistry 859 53,859
Department Fund - Department of Industrial Management 88,540 -
Department Development Fund 71,454,573 87,069,479
Sports Development Fund 25,001 25,001
Science Faculty Exhibition Fund 2004 37,087 37,087
Student Trust fund 700,000

335,818,328 133,617,553

Endowment Funds

Prize Funds

26

26-1 4,239,691 4,953,694

Scholarship Funds 26-2 2,447,398 3,263,257
Income Balance - Prize Funds 26-3 3,730,592 2,711,635

Income Balance - Scholarship Funds 26-4 1,969,291 907,492
Other Funds 46,546 38,946

12,433,518 11,875,025

Prize Funds 26-1
2013.12.31 2012.12.31

Gift Fund-Botany 5,000 5,000
Medha Sri Ariyawanse Fund 2,500 2,500
P.A.P.A. Chandrasekara Scholarship Fund 2,833,944 2,833,944
Prof. F.R. Jayasuriya  Scholarship Fund 15,000 91,960
M.A.P Manthriratne Scholarship Fund 5,000 32,451
Dr. P.D. Kannangara Scholarship Fund 5,900 33,580
Scholarship Fund - Investment (ind.man) 108,347 108,347
Prof. D.J. Wijeratne Foundation  Fund 142,000 499,303
Rev.Pandith Mudukatuwe Sri Ganarama Fund 50,000 50,000
Rev. Dr. K. Anuruddha Scholarship Fund 50,000 50,000
Derick De Souza Memorial Scholarship Fund 36,000 36,000
Rev. K. Wangeesa Scholarship Fund 10,000 10,000
Budhadasa  Galappatthi Scholarship Fund 10,000 10,000
Rev. Sik Vin Sin Scholarship Fund 100,000 100,000
Botany Society Scholarship Fund 60,000 60,000
Prof. A.S. Disanayaka Fund 275,000 462,199
Prof.  Carlo Fonseka Scholarship Fund 106,000 143,410
Etsmen Kodak Scholarship Fund 50,000 50,000
Prof. S. B. P. Wickramasooriya Fund 75,000 75,000
Family Medicine Prize Fund 200,000 200,000
Prof. J. K. P.  Ariyaratne  Prize Fund 100,000 100,000

    Total 4,239,691 4,953,694

	 Rs.	 Rs.
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Scholarship Funds 26-2 22-A-2
2013.12.31 2012.12.31

P.P. Jayawardena Scholarship Fund 15,000 29,327
Perter Silva Scholarship Fund 5,000 5,000
Dr. Chithra Fernando Scholarship Fund 200,000 931,867
Hawanpola Sri Rathanasara Scholarship Fund 100,000 203,772
Linus Silva Scholarship Fund 10,000 10,000
Agnus Peduru Scholarship Fund 132,063 132,063
Mary's Friends Scholarship Fund 100,000 100,000
Rathnakara Scholarship Fund 100,000 100,000
Prof. H.H. Costa Memorial Scholarship Fund 100,000 100,000
Prof. H.H. Costa Memorial Scholarship Fund 100,000 100,000
S. Jayawardena Scholarship Fund 200,000 200,000
Linus Silva/Agnus Peduru Scholarship Fund 54,274 47,639
Prof. Shelton Gunaratne Memorial Scholarship Fund 1,181,062 1,153,589
Rajamanthree Scholarship Fund 150,000 150,000
Total 2,447,398 3,263,257

Income Balance - Scholarship Funds 	 26-3  22-A-3
	 2013.12.31 	 2012.12.31
Scholarship Fund - Interest (ind.man) 2,305 2,305
Gift Fund-Botany (Interest) 6,186 11,186
Prof. F.R. Jayasuriya  Scholarship Fund (Interest) (12,383) (94,256)
Medha Sri Ariyawanse Fund(Interest) 9,767 9,536
Rev. K. Wangeesa Scholarship Fund (Interest) 10,750 9,500
Budhadasa  Galappatthi Scholarship Fund (Interest) 900 -
Rev. Sik Vin Sin Scholarship Fund (Interest) 141,800 129,300
Rev. Dr. K. Anuruddha Scholarship Fund (Interest) 182,095 168,158
Budhadasa  Galappatthi Scholarship Fund (Interest) 18,800 18,800
Prof.  D.J. Wijeratne Foundation Fund (Interest) 297,207 -
Derick De Souza Memorial Scholarship Fund (Interest) 14,700 13,200
Botany Society Scholarship Fund (Interest) 46,600 44,100
P.A.P.A. Chandrasekara Scholarship Fund (Interest) 2,582,292 2,301,411
Prof.  Carlo Fonseka Scholarship Fund(Interest) 39,162 -
Prof. A.S. Disanayaka Fund (Interest) 180,493 -
Prof. S.B.P. Wickramasooriya Fund (Interest) 22,049 27,049
Etsmen Kodak Scholarship Fund (Interest) 33,220 27,470
Family Medicine Prize Fund (Interest) 59,750 20,875
Prof. J.K.P.  Ariyaratne  Prize Fund (Interest) 34,000 23,000
M.A.P Manthriratne Scholarship Fund (Interest) 31,507 -
Dr. P.D. Kannangara Scholarship Fund (Interest) 29,391 -
Total 3,730,592 2,711,634

	 2013.12.31 	 2012.12.31
Income Balance - Scholership Funds 	 26-4  22-A-4
Dr. Chithra Fernando Scholarship Fund(interest) 987,313 171,578
Perter Silva Scholarship Fund (Interest) 18,026 17,451
P.P. Jayawardena Scholarship Fund (Interest) 50,700 33,075
Linus Silva/Agnus Peduru Scholarship Fund (Interest) 4,450 3,200
Agnus Peduru Fund (interest) 23,250 22,500
Mary's Friends Scholarship Fund (Interest) 73,200 63,700
S. Jayawardena Scholarship Fund(Interest) 40,500 17,000
Rathnakara Scholarship Fund (Interest) 95,000 86,000
Prof. H.H. Costa Memorial Scholarship Fund (Interest) 112,750 103,750

	 Rs. 	 Rs. 
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Prof. Shelton Gunaratne Memorial Scholarship Fund (Interest) 417,657 335,239
Rajamanthree Scholarship Fund( Interest) 32,250 54,000
Hawanpola Sri Rathanasara Scholarship Fund(Interest) 114,195 -
Total 1 ,969,291 907,492

Other Funds
UGC Scholarship fund 11,200 3,600
Prizes Awarding Scholarship Funds 18,696 18,696
Donations for Scholarships 16,650 16,650

46,546 38,946

Research Grants

Grants received from National Science Foundation

27

27-1 4,426,598 12,991,417   
Grants received from University Grants Commission 27-2 7,560,603 (64,397)
Grants received from other institutes 27-3 45,900,536  41,025,131
University research grants
Other Grants

27-4 26,686,971
-

24,851,849
99,776

84,574,708 78,903,776

Grants received from National Science Foundation 	 27-1 3’ 12’:

	 31.12.2013 	 31.12.2012

Dr.B T S D Kannangara 	 592,973 	 592,973
Dr.B  Jayawardena 	 103,723 	 103,723
Dr.M D Amarasinghe 	 168,945 	 168,945
Dr.B.Jayawardena 	 150,077 	 150,077
Dr.L.D.Amarasinghe 	 311,021 	 311,021
Dr.Sriyani Dias 	 - 	 37,242
Prof J A Liyanage 	 112,586 	 262,352
Prof. P.A. Paranagama 	 212,133 	 317,522
Dr.A.A.L.Rathnathilaka 	 13,813 	 464,030
Dr.A.A.L.Rathnathilaka 	 249,474 	 368,174
Dr.D. M.M de Silva 	 275,836 	 119,401
Prof.Nelum Deshappriya 	 577,095 	 1,053,706
Ms.S P Senanayake 	 188,202 	 438,067
Prof. A. Pathirana 	 - 	 7,579,467
Prof. P.A. Paranagama 	 220,000 	 - 
Dr.S.P.Wickremasinghe	 283,133	 - 
Dr.U P K Epa 	 - 	 108,860
Prof.J.Liyanage 	 - 	 8,500
N.S.F.Grant (Medical Faculty) 	 967,587 	 907,357

	 4,426,598 	 12,991,417

Grants received from University Grants Commission 27-2
Dr.D S M de Silva 7,375,000 -
Mr.E A A D Edirisinghe 250,000 -
Prof. N.D. Silva (M/F) (81,479) (81,479)
Prof. H.I.Thabbrow  (M/F) 17,082 17,082

7,560,603 (64,397)

	 Rs. 	 Rs. 
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Grants received from other institutes
Dr.B.D.Nandadewa

27-3
                      - (36,910)

Prof.U.S.Amarasinghe 158,450 158,450
Dr.P.Paranagama 35,425 69,425
Dr. D.P.Jayawardena 52,210 52,210
Dr.K. Senevirathne 268,140 397,140
Prof.U.S.Amarasinghe 4,680,560 2,913,013
Prof.U.S.Amarasinghe 959,291 959,292
Prof.P A Paranagama 169,902 866,004
Dr.U.P.K.Epa 239,072 331,900
Prof.M Hettiarachchi 1,000,000 -
Prof. U.S.Amarasinghe
Prof.L.M.Darmasiri
Research Fund- W H O Medicine

576,980

3,471,602

-

4,433,712
Tropical Medicine (Proj) Grant 86,214 101,500
Other Research (2735)  Grant 17,173,279 12,966,629
Generated Fund -Faculty of Medicine 106,000 2,076,597
Ragama Health Studies Grant 457,015 370,883
Other Research Fund- Faculty of Medicine 4,379,606 3,034,559
Gastroenterology Fund ( M/F) 352,150 403,504
Reproductive Research Fund 8,475,293 8,674,547
Medical Faculty External Research Fund (529,974) (536,644)
H S R Pro.Dr.Wijewardena (9,182) (9,182)
Clinical Trial (CTU)Grant 3,798,503 3,798,502

45,900,536 41,025,131

University research grant
Research Fund-Humanities

27-4
4,485,160 4,485,160

Research Fund- Medicine 4,467,027 2,613,157
Research Fund- Science 2,517,634 2,457,634
Research Fund- Social Science 3,475,192 3,324,440
Research Fund- Commerce & Mgt. 4,807,860 4,807,860
Research Fund- Graduate studies 423,358 395,358
Research for Social Sciences 6,510,740 6,768,240

26,686,971 24,851,849
Other Grants

Other External research fund 	 - 	 99,776
	 - 	 99,776

Funds received for special purpose 28
Special Donations- Rev. Dia O Ci 5,423,868 5,423,868
Special Donations- Kong Meng San Phor Sarc See 
Monaste

1,026,890

Survey  on Usage of High Way 1,242,088 -
One Asia  Foundation 63,872 -
Disability project 1,211,419 811,419
IT Project 1,039,917 1,039,917
UGC  - QIG 8,745,434 13,728,938
Students Relief Fund 1,081,218 1,015,917
United Field Security Fund 81,287 78,185
Job Fair Fund 	 - 	 54,950
Vice Chancellor's Fund 4,522,966 2,077,556
Bond & Agreements Violation Fund 47,383,488 41,717,589
Interest of Bonds & Agreement  Violations 19,848,625 14,892,785

91,671,071 80,841,124
A sum of  Rs.48,439,863  has been due from Bond Violators as at 31.12.2013

	 Rs. 	 Rs. 
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Other Reserves
Art Association

29
- 7,430

Golden Jubilee - 2009 - 1,563,413
IRQUE project deposit - 144,681
ASAIHL Conference A/C - 38,072
Practical training  Botany  Department. - 6,000
Science Deposit - 147,987
Geography deposit - 31,743
Furniture & Equipment deposit - 21,673
Deposit for supplying Equipments - 30,000
Accounting professional sec(APS) 213,789 213,789
Staff development fund - UGC 6,939,745 4,192,756
Chemistry Conference - 2006 73,000 73,000
“Dharmaloka” hall deposit - 1,500
Presidency Exhibition fund 44,299 44,299
IRQUE workshop- Faculty of Science - 3,750
Exchange prog.with University of Beijing - 240,000
Career Guidance Unit deposit 958,280 70,330
Glass Blowing Unit deposit 339,758 333,718
National teachers training programme. - 118,890
International Conference Business & Information 1,451,219 862,791
International Conference of Archeology 351,926 283,146
International Conference-Social sciences 334,743 (285,211)
National Geography Conference 894,272 336,272
Library deposits for Main Library 5,807,595 6,097,322
Library deposits for Faculty Libraries 7,673,822 4,493,762
Centre for Gender Studies Deposit
Funds Received from Mahapola trust fund

306,273
735,403

908,493
-

26,124,121 19,979,602

Income Received in Advance

Fee - Levying Courses - Diploma

30

21,380,286 19,196,995
Fee - Levying Courses - Postgraduate 70,049,685 74,982,799
Fee - Levying Courses - Medicine 8,276,834 5,957,552
Fee - Levying Courses -Others 3,022,900 3,282,239
Other Internal Programmes 24,615,612 9,258,772
External Examination - Examination Fee 69,943,968 56,452,941
External Examination - Seminar Fee 75,280,645 125,774,245
Others-Telecommunication 250,000 -

272,819,931 294,905,543

Deferred Capital Grants 31

Capital Grant Account 1,995,435,850 2,175,552,624
Capital Contribution from Other Sources 383,355,279 370,148,204
Non Monetary Donations 4,789,771 29,030,547

2,383,580,901 2,574,731,374

Capital Grants Unspent
Acquisition of Fixed Assets

32
1,539,810 12,912,280

	 Rs. 	 Rs. 



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2018'10'19

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 19.10.2018 1647

Rehabilitation & Improvements
Building Grant 2,866,436 3,557,373
Others (Equipments, Vehicle etc...) 34,787 -

Construction Projects 1,965,953 13,507
Other Capital Projects 1,350,787 -

7,757,772 16,483,160

Cabinet Approved Building Project Fund 	 33
Six storied Examination Building 		  306,000,000.00
Building for Modern Language	  	 60,000,000.00 	
CDCE Building Fund 			   366,000,000 	 62,165,273
Restricted fund for Social Sciences 			   29,621,724 	 -

		  395,621,724 	 62,165,273

Statement of the Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts - 2013

CATEGORY Budget 2013

Rs.

Actual 2013

Rs.

Variance

%

INCOME
Government Grant
Government Grants for Recurrent Expenditure 1,613,973,000 1,567,000,000 (2.91)
Other Income 406,027,000 576,446,019 41.97
Total Income 2,020,000,000 2,143,446,019 6.11

EXPENSES

Personal Emoluments 1,391,000,000 1,390,867,088 (0.01)

Salaries and Wages 567,000,000 567,135,101 0.02

UPF Contribution 101,500,000 101,305,778 (0.19)
Pension 36,700,000 36,671,572 (0.08)

E.T.F. Contribution 27,600,000 27,616,504 0.06
Acting Pay 400,000 400,893 0.22

Visiting Lecture Fees 27,000,000 27,011,858 0.04
20%. Special Salary Allowance 93,000,000 92,654,952 (0.37)
Overtime 31,000,000 30,764,989 (0.76)

Holiday Payments 350,000 341,726 (2.36)
Academic Allowance 215,500,000 215,520,324 0.01

Equalization Allowance 600,000 660,518 10.09
Cost of Living Allowance 122,500,000 122,545,567 0.04
Other Allowances 5,500,000 5,473,460 (0.48)

Provision for Gratuity 63,350,000 64,147,498 1.26

Language Proficiency Allowance 500,000 473,024 (5.40)

25% Research Allowance 98,500,000 98,143,324 (0.36)

	 Rs. 	 Rs. 



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2018'10'19

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 19.10.2018
1648

CATEGORY Budget 2013

Rs.

Actual 2013

Rs.

Variance

%

Travelling Expenses 4,000,000 4,069,122 1.73
Domestic 1,000,000 935,192 (6.48)
Foreign 3,000,000 3,133,930 4.46

Supplies 84,830,000 84,235,223 (0.70)
Stationery and Office Requisites 30,000,000 29,913,036 (0.29)
Fuel & Lubricants 14,000,000 14,139,396 1.00
Uniforms 3,000,000 2,921,331 (2.62)
Mechanical & Electrical goods 3,030,000 3,028,378 (0.05)
Chemicals & Glassware 16,000,000 16,017,666 0.11

Medical Supplies 800,000 721,039 (9.87)

Other 18,000,000 17,494,377 (2.81)
Maintenance Expenses 17,090,000 17,142,468 0.31

Vehicles 4,250,000 4,232,449 (0.41)
Plant, Machinery and Equipments 12,000,000 12,116,084 0.97

Buildings and Structures 200,000 202,881 1.44
Furniture 500,000 471,067 (5.79)
Other 140,000 119,987 (14.30)
Contractual Services 239,350,000 238,557,175 (0.33)

Transport 300,000 279,423 (6.86)

Postal and Communication 25,700,000 25,734,874 0.14

Electricity &  Water 114,000,000 113,670,115 (0.29)
Rents and Local Taxes 10,000,000 9,637,244 (3.63)

Security Services 32,900,000 32,922,014 0.07
Cleaning Services 20,000,000 19,978,655 (0.11)
Printing Advertising etc., 27,000,000 27,012,300 0.05
University Sports Activities 850,000 842,720 (0.86)
Other 8,600,000 8,479,830 (1.40)
Other Recurrent 230,967,765 231,009,553 0.02
Travel grants to University Teachers
Special Services - Council & Committees 2,000,000 2,196,005 9.80

-Do-  Professional & Other Fees 300,000 272,245 (9.25)
Workshops, Seminars 8,500,000 8,422,526 (0.91)
Academic Research & Publications 3,250,000 3,233,921 (0.49)
Staff Development (Training for Teachers, Administrators
& Other Employees) 3,000,000 2,875,909 (4.14)
Postgraduate Research & Scholarships 1,000,000 1,000,000 -
Course Materials for Students & Learning Quality
Improvement 300,000 300,000 -
Industry Internships, Practical & Career Guidance 300,000 300,000 -
Students' Development Initiatives & Community
Relations 750,000 750,000 -
Student Welfare, Employee Welfare, Student Councils &
Social Harmony 500,000 500,000 -
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CAtegory Budget 2013
Rs.

Actual 2013
Rs.

Variance
%

Grants to other Organizations 1,600,000 1,638,965 2.44
Holiday Warrants Season Tickets 2,000,000 1,990,100 (0.50)
Entertainment Expenses 2,150,000 2,121,930 (1.31)
Bank Charges 17,765 19,098 7.50
Awards & Indemnities 400,000 402,910 0.73
Contributions & Membership Fees 625,000 623,755 (0.20)
Convocations 3,683,000 3,682,562 (0.01)
Examination Fees 64,592,000 64,124,859 (0.72)
Other

2,000,000 1,978,829 (1.06)Expenditure on Extension Projects
Expenditure on Postgraduate Courses 134,000,000 134,575,939 0.43
Total Expenses 1,967,237,765 1,965,880,629 (0.07)
10-925/1

UNIVERSITY  OF  KELANIYA

Financial Statements Year - 2014

Statement of Financial Performance for the Year ended 31st December
	
		  2014 	 2013

INCOME 	 Note 	 Rs.	  Rs.

Government Grants

Government Grants for Recurrent Expenditure 	 2 	 1,815,000,000 	 1,567,000,000
Government Grants for Rehabilitation  & Improvement 
  of Assets 	 47,323,516 	 18,805,911
Grants for Mahapola - Mahapola  Trust Fund 	 74,909,750 	 57,044,250
Grants for Mahapola - University Grants Commission 	 11,743,200 	 9,226,000
Grants for Bursary 	 55,593,900 	 47,430,300
Amortization of Capital Grants 	 192,222,038 	 269,455,464

2,196,792,404 	 1,968,961,925
Add: Other Income

Registration Fees (Undergraduate - Local) 	 5,805,890 	 3,466,055
Registration Fees (Undergraduate - Foreign) 	 46,078,604 	 26,521,690
Registration Fees (Post graduate) 	 972,500 	 1,011,850
Tuition Fees  (Undergraduate) 	 496,856 	 102,490
Tuition Fees (Post graduate) 	 4,271,997 	 3,552,822
Examination Fees  (Undergraduate) 	 1,709,176 	 949,826
Examination Fees (Post graduate) 	 294,500 	 269,500
Interest from Investments

Gross Interest 	    - 	 87,985,622
WHT 	 - 	 2,730,213
Net Interest 	   - 	 85,255,409 	 120,831,459

Interest from Loans 	 4,130,459 	 2,912,086
Sale of Publications 	 132,580 	 72,100
Rent from Properties 	 1,260,535 	 1,055,839
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Library Fines 		  306,071 	 319,572
Medical fees 		  19,130 	 32,120
Ancillary Activities - Hostels 		  3,297,197 	 3,027,807
Sale of Old Stores 		  1,752,369 	 1,135,061
Miscellaneous  Income 	 3 	 39,734,306 	 65,345,316
Income from External Examination 	 4 	 229,727,120 	 205,853,739
Income from Fee - levying Courses/Special  services 		  149,933,388 	 136,778,241
University Contribution Seminar fees 		  4,050,414 	 3,208,448

Total Income 		  2,776,020,903 	 2,545,407,944

LESS : EXPENSES
Personal Emolument	 5	 (1,496,043,531)	 (1,326,719,589) 
Travelling Expenses	 6	 (6,861,171)	 (4,069,122) 
Supplies	 7	 (67,412,518)	 (84,235,223) 
Maintenance Expenses	 8	 (19,942,281)	 (17,142,468) 
Contractual Services	 9	 (277,268,878)	 (238,557,174) 
Other Recurrent	 10	 (149,470,137)	 (96,433,615) 
Depreciation		  (311,945,281)	 (288,495,927) 
Amortization of Intangible assets		  (150,904)	 (3,438) 
Provision for Gratuity		  (43,983,911)	 (64,147,498) 
Expenditure on Fee - levying Courses/Special  services		  (91,110,510)	 (66,239,851) 
Rehabilitation  & Improvement Expenses		  (47,323,516)	 (18,805,911) 
Mahapola Scholarship - Mahapola Trust Fund		  (74,909,750)	 (57,044,250) 
Mahapola Scholarship - University Grants Commission		  (11,743,200)	 (9,226,000) 
Bursary		  (55,593,900)	 (47,430,300)
Total Expenses		  (2,653,759,487)	 (2,318,550,367) 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the period		  122,261,416	 226,857,577

Statement of Financial Position

		  As at	 As at
ASSETS	 Note	 31.12.2014 	 31.12.2013
		  Rs.	 Rs.

Non - Current Assets
Property Plant & Equipments 11 3,633,195,989 3,555,830,418
Work in Progress 12 504,525,148 203,511,816
Investments 13 1,780,055,304 1,222,938,936
Intangible Assets 14 808,796 479,248

5,918,585,237 4,982,760,418
Current Assets
Inventories 15 25,669,643 30,839,723
Receivables 16 258,000,466 154,707,758
Prepayments 17 2,107,636 1,938,480
Deposits & Advances 18 121,706,516 99,113,410
Sundry Debtors 19 2,837,102 155,358
Cash & Cash Equivalents 20  	 154,529,188 	  	 69,241,685 	

564,850,551 355,996,414
TOTAL  ASSETS 6,483,435,788 5,338,756,831

		  2014 	 2013

	 Note 	 Rs.	  Rs.
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EQUITY AND  LIABILITIES 

Accumulated Fund

Cabinet Approved Building Project Fund                                
Asset Revaluation Reserve

287,525,372 395,621,724
1,442,116,523 1,548,119,831

General Reserve (419,066,325) (426,548,571)

Capital
1,310,575,570 1,517,192,985

Deferred Capital Grants 22 2,883,197,143 2,383,580,901
Capital Grants Unspent 23 4,917,169 7,757,772

Reserves & Restricted Funds
2,888,114,311 2,391,338,674

University Funds 24 464,041,479 335,118,328
Endowment Funds 25 13,938,770 13,133,518
Research Grants 26 85,258,364 84,574,708
Funds Received for Special Purpose 27 107,721,884 91,671,071
Other Reserves 28 33,474,727 26,124,121
Income Received in Advance 29 839,910,875 272,819,932

Non Current Liabilities
1,544,346,099 823,441,679

Provision for Retiring Gratuity 30 370,301,762 356,798,278
Provision for Contingent Liabilities 31 - 455,580

370,301,762 357,253,858

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 32 201,048,347 127,903,236
Accrued Expenses 33 85,496,534 66,963,227
Refundable Deposits 34 83,553,165 54,663,172

370,098,046 249,529,635
6,483,435,788 5,338,756,831

These Financial Statements are in compliance with the requirements of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 and other 
Statutory Provisions.

U T M I D Tennakoon,
Bursar

The Council of the university is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements signed for 
and on behalf of the Council.

Senior Prof. Sunanda Madduma Bandara	 Prof. Lakshman Senevirathne

Vice-chancellor	 Council Member

The Accounting Policies and Notes on Pages 06 through 24 form an integral part of these Financial statements

Kelaniya.
July 21, 2015.

	 As at	 As at
	 31.12.2014	 13.12.2013
	 Rs.	 Rs.
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Cash  Flow  Statement  for  the  year  ended 31st December

	 2014	 2013
	 Rs.	 Rs.

Cash Flow From / (Used in ) Operating Activities
Surpluses for the year	 122,261,416	 226,857,577
Adjustments

Add:	 Depreciation 311,945,281 288,495,927
Amortization of Intangible Assets 150,904 3,438
Provision for Gratuity 43,983,911 64,147,498

Less:	 Amortization of Government Grants (192,222,038) (269,455,464)
Interest Income (85,255,409) (120,831,459)
Profit on Disposal of Property and Equipment (680,000) –  
Donation received (833,496) (818,843)

Operating Surplus before changes in working Capital 199,350,569 188,398,674
Increase / (Decrease) in working capital
Inventories 5,170,080 2,859,072
Debtors (2,681,743) 836,313
Deposits & Advances (22,593,106) (13,810,688)
Prepayments & Deposits (169,156) (521,555)
Accounts Receivable (103,292,708) (121,567,701)
Accounts Payable 73,145,111 113,308,451
Accrued Expenses 18,533,307 15,357,035
Refundable Deposits 28,889,993 12,554,525

Cash Generated from Operations 196,352,346 197,414,126

Gratuity Paid (30,911,003) (19,864,050)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 165,441,343 177,550,076

Cash Flow From / (Used In) Investing Activities
Acquisition of Property Plant & Equipment (375,591,151) (264,316,012)
Investments (557,116,368) (235,360,658)
Work in Progress (316,111,920) (167,785,864)
Intangible Assets (477,014) (482,686)
Proceeds from Disposal of Property Plant & Equpment 680,000 -
Interest Received 85,255,409 120,831,459
Restricted Funds and Grants 500,397,150 (32,480,236)
Net Cash used in investing Activities (662,963,894) (579,593,997)

Cash Flow From / (Used In) Financing Activities
Government grant for Capital Expenditure 522,676,484 280,500,000
Cash flows from external sources 60,133,571 42,003,156
Net Cash Flow From / (Used In) Financing Activities 582,810,055 322,503,156
Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents

85,287,504 (79,540,765)
Cash & Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 69,241,685 148,782,450

Cash & Cash equivalents at the end of the year 154,529,189 69,241,685



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2018'10'19

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 19.10.2018
1654

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Significant Accounting Policies

	 1.1	 General Policies

	 1.1.1	 Reporting Entity

		U  niversity of Kelaniya was incorporated under the University Act, No. 16 of 1978, and situated at Dalugama, 
Kelaniya.

	 1.1.2	 Principal Activities and nature of operations

		T  his is a national university mainly operates on government funds.

		T  he university primarily caters to local students in the fields of Humanities, Social Sciences, Sciences, 
Medicine, and Commerce & Management. 

		T  he university is promoting higher studies and research.

	 1.1.3	 Basis of preparation

	 (a)	 Statement of Compliance

		T  he Financial Statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Financial 
Performance, Statements of Changes in Net Assets / Equity, Cash Flow Statement and Notes to 
the Financial Statements. These statements have been prepared in accordance with the Sri Lanka 
Public Sector Accounting Standards (SLPSAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Sri Lanka and adopted by the University Grants Commission by its Financial Circular Letter  
No. 3/2011. The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those used in the previous financial year

	 (b)	 Basis of Measurement

		F  inancial statements have been prepared on historical costs basis and do not take into account changes in money 
values, except where it is stated. Cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for 
assets.

	 (c)	 Functional and Presentation Currency

		T  he Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is the University’s functional and 
presentation currency.

	 (d)	 Going Concern

		T  he financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.

	 (e)	 Use of Estimates and Judgments

		T  he preparation and presentation of financial statements in conformity with SLPSAS requires management 
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates and 
judgmental decisions.

		T  he estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects on that period or in the 
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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	 1.2	 Assets and the Bases of their Valuation

	 1.2.1	 Property, Plant & Equipment

	 (a)	 Recognition and Measurement

		  Property, Plant & Equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of Property, Plant & 
Equipment is the cost of purchase or construction together with any incidental expenses thereon.

	 (b)	 Cost

		T  he cost of property, plant & equipment comprises its purchase or construction cost and any directly 
contributable cost of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.

	 (c)	 Depreciation

		  Depreciation is charged to the income statement on the straight line basis at the following rates per annum in 
order to write off the cost of such assets over their estimated useful lives.

		  Buildings	 5% 
		F  urniture & Equipment	 10% 
		  Office Equipment	 20% 
		  Lab & Teaching Equipment	 20% 
		  Motor Vehicles	 20% 
		  Water & Electricity Supply	 10% 
		F  iber Glass Boat	 10% 
		  Library Books & Periodicals	 20% 
		  Cloaks	 20% 
		  Machinery	 20% 
		  Others	 20%

		  Depreciation is provided on pro rata basis on the assets purchased/constructed/disposed of during the year.

	 (d)	 Revaluation of the Property, Plant & Equipments

		T  he Lands, Buildings and Motor Vehicles of the University have been revalued and recognized to the 
accounts with effect from 01st January, 2008.

		  Revaluation Surplus may be transferred to the general reserve proportionately as the assets are used by the 
university. In such a case, the amount of the surplus transferred would be the difference between depreciation 
based on the revalued carrying amount of the assets and depreciation based on the assets’ original cost.

	 1.2.2	 Intangible Assets

	 (a)	  Computer Software 

	 (i)	 Basis of Recognition
		  An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits that are attributable to the 

asset will flow to the University and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

	 (ii)	 Subsequent Expenditure
		  Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits 

embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.
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	 (iii)	 Amortization
		  Amortization is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the 

software, from the date that it is available for use since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of 
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

		T  he estimated useful life of software is five years.

	 (iv)	 De-recognition
		  An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from it. 

The gain or loss arising from the de-recognition of such intangible assets is included in profit or loss when 
the item is derecognized.

	 1.2.3	 Inventories

		I  nventories are valued at cost based on FIFO basis.

	 1.2.4	 Receivables

		  Receivables are stated at the amounts they are estimated to realize.

	 1.2.5	 Short term investments

	 (a)	I nvestment in government securities

		I  nvestments in treasury bills, treasury bonds and repurchase agreements are stated at cost.

	 (b)	I nvestment in fixed deposits

		I  nvestments in fixed deposits are stated at cost.
		
	 1.2.6 	Cash and Cash Equivalents

		  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and deposits at Bank.

	 1.2	 Liabilities and Provisions

		  All known liabilities as at the balance sheet date are included in the Financial Statements and adequate provisions are 
made for liabilities which are known to exist but the amount of which cannot be determined accurately.

		  Obligations payable on demand or within one year of the balance sheet date are treated as current liabilities in the 
balance sheet. Liabilities payable after one year from the balance sheet date are treated as non-current liabilities in the 
balance sheet.

	 1.3.1	 Accounting for grants

		  Grants that compensate the University for Expenses incurred are recognized as revenue in the income statement 
in the same period in which the expenses are recognized. Grants that compensate the University for the Cost of 
an asset are recognized in the income statement on a systematic basis over the useful life of the related asset.

	 1.3.2	 Employee Benefit

	 (a) 	Provision for Retiring Gratuity

		T  he university has adopted the benefit plan as required under the payment of Gratuity Act, No. 12 of 1983 
for all eligible employees.

		  Defined benefit plans define an amount of benefit that an employee will receive on retirement usually 
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.
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		T  he liability recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date together with adjustment for unrecognized past service 
cost.

	 (b)  	Defined contribution plan

		  Obligations for contribution to a defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense in the income 
statement as incurred

	 1.3.3	T axation

		T  he university is exempt from Income Tax under Section 7(b) of the Inland Revenue Act, No. 10 of 2006.

	 1.3.4	 Deferred Taxation

		  Provision has not been made for deferred tax as the university is exempted from Income Tax under Section 
7(b) of the Inland Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006.

	 1.3.5	 Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

		  All  material  commitments  and  contingent  liabilities  are  considered  and  where necessary adjustments or 
disclosures are made in these Financial Statements.

	 1.3	I ncome Statement

	 1.4.1	 Revenue recognition

		  Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the university and 
that it can be reliably measured.

	 (a)	 Enrolment fees from students are recognized as revenue on receipt.

	 (b)	F ees on examinations, seminars, courses and other educational and activities are recognized as revenue on 
completion of such activity.

	 (c)	T he fees on fee-levying courses recognized to the income statement based on the stage of completion 
of each course as at the year end. Lecture fees and payments that relate to future periods are shown in the 
balance sheet as Income Received in Advance under the Reserve & Restricted Funds.

	 (d)	I nterest income is recognized on accrual basis.

	 (e)	 Revenue from grants is recognized when control of the contribution or right to receive the contribution is 
confirmed.

	 (f)	 Sponsorship related activities are recognized on receipt.

	 (g)	 Other income is recognized on accrual basis.

	 1.4.2	 Expenditure

	 (a)	 Expenses are recognized in the income statement on the basis of direct association between cost incurred 
and the earning of specific items of the income. All expenditure incurred in the running of the university and 
in maintaining the capital assets in a state of efficiency has been charged to revenue in arriving at the surplus/
deficit for the year.

	 (b)	 Expenses on examinations, seminars, courses and other educational activities are recognized in the income 
statement on completion of such activity.
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	 1.5	 Comparative Information

		T  he Comparative figures have been re-arranged where necessary to conform to the current year’s presentation.

	 1.6	 Events after the balance sheet date

		T  he materiality of events occurring after the balance sheet date has been considered and appropriate adjustments, 
wherever necessary, have been made in the accounts.

	 1.7	 Cash Flow Statement

		T  he cash flow statement has been prepared using the indirect method.

		  2014	 2013
	 Note	 Rs.	 Rs.

Government Grants for Recurrent Expenditure

Personal Emoluments 2 1,508,500,000 1,378,000,000
Other Recurrent 306,500,000 189,000,000

 	 1,815,000,000 	 1,567,000,000

Miscellaneous Income 3
Cloaks/Books/sale of products(Correct) -
Certificate Fees 1,525,861 1,533,513
Fines for Cloaks 386,850 1,250
Photo Copying Charges 214,100 39,725
Cloaks Hiring 679,855 1,089,000
Hire of Vehicles 424,592 369,002
Registration Fees from Suppliers 260,800 292,900
Convocation Fee 8,344,741 7,611,120
Postgraduate Library Income 226,100 176,000
Application & Other Fee 4,644,350 5,478,201
Provident Fund Charges 3,483,100 1,702,435
Fine from Contractors 1,387,795 435,764
Library cards & Identity Cards 94,465 84,585
Dental Clinic Charges 43,250 26,660
Other miscellaneous Income 18,018,447 46,505,162

 	 39,734,306 	 65,345,316

Income from External Examinations 4
Registration fees 64,306,114 14,008,148
Examination fees 83,717,147 120,385,605
Syllabus fees 7,493 10,605
Past papers fees 210,503 451,790
Certificate fees 526,966
Postage fees 147,893 48,680
Convocation income 9,195,630 36,600
Seminar income 69,647,234 68,659,341
BA Degree (Overseas)Singapore 1,781,966 1,692,214
Certificate Confirmation fees 705,653 -
ID Charges 3,980 29,200
Sundry income 3,507 4,590

 	 229,727,120 	 205,853,739
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Personal Emoluments 5
(a) Academic
Salaries & Wages 373,155,973 358,862,556
Provident Fund 77,224,499 72,566,852
Pension 26,761,754 23,358,844
E.T.F. 20,670,011 19,200,531
Acting Pay 11,848 42,379
Academic Allowances 252,776,369 215,520,324
Other Allowances 210,567,043 159,463,480
Visiting Lecturers Fees 26,641,336 27,011,858
Cost of Living Allowance 73,099,245 61,209,417

1,060,908,078 937,236,239

(b) Non-Academic

Salaries & Wages 210,219,167 208,272,546
Provident Fund 27,390,532 28,738,926
Pension 13,584,914 13,312,727
E.T.F. 8,194,958 8,415,973
Acting Pay 579,553 358,514
Special Allowances 15% 64,275,008 -
Research allowance 2,136,455 -
Over Time 31,135,045 30,764,989
Holiday Payments 330,567 341,726
Other Allowances 4,048,961 37,468,773
Language Proficiency Allowance 1,500 473,024
Cost of Living Allowance 73,238,792 61,336,151

435,135,453 389,483,349

 Total (a) + (b)	 1,496,043,531  	 1,326,719,589

Travelling Expenses
Domestic

6
874,385 935,192

Foreign 5,986,786 3,133,930
 	 6,861,171 4,069,122

Supplies 7
Stationery & Office Requisites 29,326,692 29,913,036
Fuel & Lubricants 13,977,694 14,139,396
Uniform & Tailoring Charges 2,899,962 2,921,331
Mechanical & Electrical Goods 918,183 3,028,378
Other Supplies 20,289,986 34,233,083

 	 67,412,518 84,235,223

Maintenance Expenses 8
Vehicles 5,291,691 4,232,449
Plant, Machinery & Office Equipment 14,121,166 12,116,084
Building & Structures 440,765 202,881
Furniture 38,980 471,067
Other 49,679 119,987

 	 19,942,281 17,142,468

		  2014	 2013
	 Note	 Rs.	 Rs.
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Contractual Services 9

Transport 55,389 279,423
Telecommunication 31,022,339 23,436,879
Postal Charges 4,137,609 2,297,995
Electricity 96,687,901 88,879,597
Security Services 35,688,983 32,922,014
Water 26,052,928 24,790,518
Cleaning Services 27,487,675 19,978,655
Rent & Hire Charges 8,250,293 6,204,767
Rates and taxes to local authorities 5,713,327 3,432,477
Printing, Advertising etc. 33,469,016 27,012,300
Others 8,703,418 9,322,550

 	 277,268,878 	 238,557,174

Other recurrent

Travel Grants to University Teachers

10

(1,900)
Special Services - Council & 
Committees

2,579,680 2,197,905

Special Services - Professional & 
Other Fee

226,238 272,245

Workshops, Seminars 6,786,430 8,422,526
Academic Research 3,091,332 4,233,921
Staff Development 1,835,444 2,875,909
Grants to other organization 36,962 1,638,965
Holiday, Warrants & Season Tickets 2,129,564 1,990,100
Entertainment Expenses 3,054,314 2,121,931
Bank Charges 500 19,098
Awards & Indemnities 126,800 402,910
Contribution & Membership Fee 2,085,349 623,755
Convocation 13,393,393 3,682,562
Examination 108,645,250 64,124,859
Others - Newspapers, Magazines etc. 1,936,617 1,858,856
Field Trips 3,454,167 1,969,973
Students Development Initiative 88,097 -

 149,470,137 96,433,615

Property Plant & Equipment 11

Balance Additions Disposals Balance

Cost

As at
01.01.14

 	 Rs. 	  Rs.  	 Rs. 	

As at
31.12.14

 Rs. 

Lands 654,759,142 654,759,142
Buildings & Improvements 3,342,615,834 112,032,191 - 3,454,648,026
Furniture & Equipments 843,061,292 184,095,897 - 1,027,157,190
Lab & Teaching Equipments 253,570,505 20,926,986 - 274,497,491
Motor Vehicles 90,452,078 13,463,959 337,866 103,578,171
Water & Electricity Supply Scheme 47,989,166 282,800 - 48,271,966
Library Books & Periodicals 238,108,794 23,912,894 482,686 261,539,003

		  2014	 2013
	 Note	 Rs.	 Rs.
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Cloaks 6,114,306 - - 6,114,306
Machinery 32,993,292 6,791,691 - 39,784,983
Others 102,675,571 28,270,946 - 130,946,517

	 5,612,339,981 	 389,777,365  	 820,552	 6,001,296,794	
				  

Depreciation

Buildings & Improvements	 866,835,912	 171,151,050	 1,305,056	 1,036,681,906
Furniture & Equipments 536,144,879 91,981,446 - 628,126,325
Lab & Teaching Equipments 210,886,837 15,843,945 - 226,730,783
Motor Vehicles 66,130,379 4,147,032 337,866 69,939,546
Water & Electricity Supply Scheme 39,393,683 1,615,328 - 41,009,011
Library Books & Periodicals 224,307,441 7,679,987 96,537 231,890,891
Cloaks 4,045,463 489,061 - 4,534,523
Machinery 29,249,929 12,211,783 - 41,461,712
Others 79,035,792 8,690,317 - 87,726,109

     2,056,030,316 	 313,809,950 1,739,460 2,368,100,806

Written Down Value 3,556,309,666 3,633,195,989

Note:- Fully depreciated 22 no of motor vehicles have been used for operating activities during the year 2014. The gross 
carrying value of these motor vehicles are Rs. 19,647,530 as at 31.12.2014.

	 Balance	 Charge for	 Disposals	 Balance
	 As at	 the Year		  As at
	 01.01.14			   31.12.14
	 Rs. 	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	

Work in Progress
New Building for the Works Division

12
                   - 9,917,609

Art Gallery Building(AIT)                    - 3,912,122
Social Science Building Stage 1 10,000,000 10,000,000
Social Science Building-Stage 2 6,667,409 7,936,265
Humanities - Building 97,478,566 42,234,958
Six Storied Exam Building 180,610,929 109,770,099
Hostel for Medicine-2013 69,077,735 2,557,050
Science Faculty Building 33,113,249 4,090,463
Building for Modern Language 37,141,310 8,964,973
Five Storied Building Social Science 22,323,731 4,128,276
3 Storied Pre Cast Building 15,753,204 -
Multi Purpose Building 24,014,460 -
ICTC Building 125,000 -
Sewerage Treatment Plant 5,669,348 -
Sarasavi Madura New Girls Hostel 1,017,351 -
Tissue Culture Centre (Gampaha Botanical Garden) 1,532,857 -

 	 504,525,148 	 203,511,816

Investments 13
Staff Security Deposits 56,628 59,863
Bonds & Agreement Violations 71,585,100 59,395,290
Scholarship Fund 9,267,240 9,278,203
External Examination 1,227,166,925 723,364,320
Retentions Fund 431,725,000 408,363,837
Special Grants 40,254,411 22,477,423

 	 1,780,055,304  	 1,222,938,936
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Prepayments
Service Agreements

17 
1,252,694 1,003,239

Vehicles License & Insurance 704,684 725,780
Others 150,257 209,461

 	 2,107,636 	 1,938,480

Deposits & Advances 18

(a) Staff Loans & Advances

Distress Loans 101,878,250 85,217,261
Staff Loans 572,975 542,340
Transport Loans 433,476 694,126
Computer Loans 2,248,264 922,000
Special Distress Loans 103,698 166,219
Festival Advances 976,900 1,020,400
Salary Advances 232,941 203,171
Special Advances 38,250 34,000
Vice Chancellor's fund Loan 70,122 94,302

 	 106,554,876 	 88,893,819

(b) Advances for Supplies & Services

Research Advance 1,714,025 1,859,696
International Conference Advance 877,932 1,709,258
Miscellaneous Advance 4,848,814 928,256
Statutory Boards & Local Authorities 205,639 205,639
Capital Advance 4,133,436

 	 11,779,845 	 4,702,848

Intangible Assets     14
Intangible Assets 959,700 482,686
Less: Depreciation (150,904) (3,438)

 	 808,796 	 479,248

Inventories     15
Stationery 14,855,912 22,339,313
Maintenance 10,707,957 8,076,462
Others 105,774 423,948

 	 25,669,643 	 30,839,723

Receivables     16

Interest 17,209,913 8,406,550
Reimbursements 4,690,624 787,038
UGC 6,916,760 -
Treasury fund 189,610,060 130,000,000
Mahapola Scholarship 5,636,050 4,626,600
Bursary 32,424,800 7,290,900
Other Institutes (HETC Project) 1,512,259 3,596,671

 	 258,000,466 

		  2014	 2013
	 Note	 Rs.	 Rs.

154,707,758

-
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(c) Other Advances & Deposits

Fuel Deposit 510,000 510,000
Advance for Stamps 7,370 7,370
External Research Advance 1,257,326 1,400,030
Disability Project Advance 16,052 363,782
Department Development Fund Advance 92,064 109,564
Advance for Special Degree 532,464 -
Generated Fund Advance 201,296 127,398
Confucius Institute Advance 448,625 2,415,600
Career Fair Advance 56,600 343,000
Advance for Gender Studies Unit - 40,000
Advance for Research Centre-Social Sciences 250,000 200,000

 	 3,371,795 	 5,516,743
Total (a) + (b) + (c) 121,706,516 99,113,410

Sundry Debtors 19
BMICH Security Deposit 25,249 98,000
Debtors External Exam Division 2,811,852 57,358

 	 2,837,102 	 155,358

Cash & Cash Equivalents 	     20
(a) Petty Cash Imprest
Faculty of Medicine - 1,000
External Examination 1,757 1,757

 	 1,757 2,757

(b) Treasury Funds

P/B Kelaniya (1515) - 055-1-001-1-0667549 4,818,682 13,779,387
P/B Kelaniya (2721) - 055-1-001-8-0667616 403,536 1,895,668
P/B Int Divi (150333) - 004-1-001-3-0210871 31,948 6,032,048
P/B Ragama (308) - 316-1-001-2-4564262 2,863,872 688,205

 	 8,118,039 22,395,308

(c) Non Treasury Funds

P/B Kelaniya (4844) - 055-1-001-8-0668084 33,713,382 201,472
P/B Kelaniya (1517) - 055-1-001-5-0667552 445,045 224,145
P/B Kelaniya (3300) - 055-1-001-6-0667716 2,151,963 6,846,288
P/B Kelaniya (7782) - 055-1-001-8-0669229 62,148,545 20,505,103
P/B Ragama (309) DSU Project - 316-1-001-0-4564263 182,263 600,895
P/B.Ragama (2735) - 316-1-001-9-4564819 31,812,165 8,972,231
P/B NRFC 5,022,694 4,874,877
P/B.Keleniya- Confucius 055-1-002-2-0015067 9,722,834 2,955,278
Student Society Bank A/C 642 642
P/B Kelaniya 055100180017238 800,259 272,619
Collection Account (II) 10,000 10,000
Cash in Transit - 644,667
P/B Kelaniya 055 011420009867 Mahapola 399,603 735,403

 146,409,393 46,843,620

 T otal (a) + (b) + (c) 154,529,188 69,241,685

			   2014	 2013
	 Note		 Rs.	 Rs.
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Cabinet Approved Building Project Fund 	 21

Six storied Examination Building
Building for Modern Language
CDCE Building Fund 266,982,834 366,000,000
Restricted fund for Social Sciences 20,542,538 29,621,724

 	 287,525,372 	 395,621,724

Deferred Capital Grants 	 22
Capital Grant Account 2,385,509,878 1,995,435,850
Capital Contribution from Other Sources 495,111,889 383,355,279
Non Monetary Donations 2,575,376 4,789,771

 	 2,883,197,143 	 2,383,580,901

Capital Grants Unspent
Acquisition of Fixed Assets

23
(261,327) 1,539,810

Rehabilitation & Improvements
Building Grant 5,175,745 2,866,436
Others ( Equipment, Vehicle, etc...) -      34,787

Construction Projects - 1,965,953
Other Capital Projects 2,751 1,350,787

 	    4,917,169 	 7,757,772

University Funds 	 24
University Development Fund 5,752,440 5,379,353
University Enhancement Fund 137,316,722 69,617,381
Medical Faculty Enhancement Fund 568,392 -
MBBs Fund 49,459,135 29,030,928
Center for Distance and Continue Education Fund 148,109,967 125,000,000
Faculty Development Fund - Faculty of Commerce & Mgt. Stud 4,125,384 4,960,726
Faculty Development Fund - Faculty of Humanities 8,272,181 7,015,472
Faculty Development Fund - Faculty of Science 3,345,935 2,533,666
Faculty Development Fund - Faculty of Social Sciences 5,905,110 2,818,212
Faculty Development Fund - Faculty of Graduate Studies 9,987,552 5,665,506
Faculty Development Fund - Faculty of Medicine 5,616,342 3,961,871
Research Centre Development Fund - Faculty of Commerce 4,048,876 1,974,758
Research Centre Development Fund -  Faculty of Humanities 1,053,524 685,436
Research Centre Development Fund - Faculty of Science 726,767 385,148
Research Centre Development Fund - Faculty of Social Scienc 5,374,522 2,217,254
Research Center Development Fund - Faculty of Medicine 144,863 88,800
ICT Center Development Fund 4,044,990 1,237,151
Department Fund- Department of Microbiology 795,194 795,194
Department Fund - Department of Botany 53,549 53,549
Department Fund - Department of Mathematics 91,865 91,865
Department Fund - Department of Chemistry 279,459 859 
Department Fund - Department of Industrial Management 88,540 88,540
Department Development Fund 62,217,762 71,454,573
Sports Development Fund 25,001 25,001
Science Faculty Exhibition Fund 2004 37,087 37,087
Research Service Center fund 257,453 -

			   2014	 2013
	 Note		 Rs.	 Rs.
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Ola Leaf Library Fund 578,084 -
Department Development Fund 999,350
University Welfare Fund 2,000,000
Research Council Fund 965,045 -
CCCDD Building Fund (M/F) 1,800,390 -

 	 464,041,479  	 335,118,328
Endowment Funds

Prize Funds

25

25-1 4,239,691 4,239,691
Scholarship Funds 25-2 3,247,398 3,147,399
Income Balance - Prize Funds 25-3 4,046,855 3,730,592
Income Balance - Scholarship Funds 25-4 2,358,280 1,969,291
Other Funds 46,546 46,546

 	 13,938,770 	 13,133,518

Prize Funds
Gift Fund-Botany

25-1
5,000 5,000

Medha Sri Ariyawanse Fund 2,500 2,500
P.A.P.A. Chandrasekara Scholarship Fund 2,833,944 2,833,944
Prof. F.R. Jayasuriya Scholarship Fund 15,000 15,000
M.A.P Manthriratne Scholarship Fund 5,000 5,000
Dr. P.D. Kannangara Scholarship Fund 5,900 5,900
Scholarship Fund - Investment(ind.man) 108,347 108,347
Prof. D.J. Wijeratne Foundation Fund 142,000 142,000
Rev.Pandith Mudukatuwe Sri Ganarama Fund 50,000 50,000
Rev. Dr. K. Anuruddha Scholarship Fund 50,000 50,000
Derick De Souza Memorial Scholarship Fund 36,000 36,000
Rev. K. Wangeesa Scholarship Fund 10,000 10,000
Budhadasa Galappatthi Scholarship Fund 10,000 10,000
Rev. Sik Vin Sin Scholarship Fund 100,000 100,000
Botany Society Scholarship Fund 60,000 60,000
Prof. A.S. Disanayaka Fund 275,000 275,000
Prof. Carlo Fonseka Scholarship Fund 106,000 106,000
Etsmen Kodak Scholarship Fund 50,000 50,000
Prof. S.B.P. Wickramasooriya Fund 75,000 75,000
Family Medicine Prize Fund 200,000 200,000
Prof. J.K.P. Ariyaratne Prize Fund 100,000 100,000
Total  	 4,239,691 	 4,239,691

Scholarship Funds	 25-2

P.P. Jayawardena Scholarship Fund 15,000 15,000
Perter Silva Scholarship Fund 5,000 5,000
Dr. Chithra Fernando Scholarship Fund 200,000 200,000
Hawanpola Sri Rathanasara Scholarship Fund 100,000 100,000
Linus Silva Scholarship Fund 10,000 10,000
Agnus Peduru Scholarship Fund 132,063 132,063
Mary's Friends Scholarship Fund 100,000 100,000
Rathnakara Scholarship Fund 100,000 100,000
Prof. H.H. Costa Memorial Scholarship Fund 300,000 200,000
S. Jayawardena Scholarship Fund 200,000 200,000
Linus Silva/Agnus Peduru Scholarship Fund 54,274 54,274

			   2014	 2013
	 Note		 Rs.	 Rs.
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Student Trust Fund - (HRM) 700,000 700,000
Prof. Shelton Gunaratne Memorial Scholarship Fund 1,181,062 1,181,062
Rajamanthree Scholarship Fund 150,000 150,000
Total  	 3,247,398 	 3,147,399

Income Balance - Prize Funds	 25-3
Scholarship Fund - Interest (ind.man) 2,305 2,305
Gift Fund-Botany (Interest) 5,165 6,186
Prof. F.R. Jayasuriya Scholarship Fund (Interest) (7,238) (12,383)
Medha Sri Ariyawanse Fund(Interest) 10,089 9,767
Rev. K. Wangeesa Scholarship Fund (Interest) 11,750 10,750
Budhadasa Galappatthi Scholarship Fund (Interest) - 900
Rev. Sik Vin Sin Scholarship Fund (Interest) 152,300 141,800
Rev. Dr. K. Anuruddha Scholarship Fund (Interest) 193,245 182,095
Budhadasa Galappatthi Scholarship Fund (Interest) 20,950 18,800
Prof. D.J. Wijeratne Foundation Fund (Interest) 281,030 297,207
Derick De Souza Memorial Scholarship Fund (Interest) 15,960 14,700
Botany Society Scholarship Fund (Interest) 52,900 46,600
P.A.P.A. Chandrasekara Scholarship Fund (Interest) 2,809,606 2,582,292
Prof. Carlo Fonseka Scholarship Fund(Interest) 52,702 39,162
Prof. A.S. Disanayaka Fund (Interest) 205,693 180,493
Prof. S.B.P. Wickramasooriya Fund (Interest) 24,174 22,049
Etsmen Kodak Scholarship Fund (Interest) 37,820 33,220
Family Medicine Prize Fund (Interest) 73,200 59,750
Prof. J.K.P. Ariyaratne Prize Fund (Interest) 38,300 34,000
M.A.P Manthriratne Scholarship Fund (Interest) 35,706 31,507
Dr. P.D. Kannangara Scholarship Fund (Interest) 31,196 29,391
Total  	 4,046,855 	 3,730,592

Income Balance - Scholarship Funds	 25-4
Dr. Chithra Fernando Scholarship Fund(interest) 1,114,280 987,313
Perter Silva Scholarship Fund (Interest) 18,509 18,026
P.P. Jayawardena Scholarship Fund (Interest) 54,078 50,700
Linus Silva/Agnus Peduru Scholarship Fund (Interest) 12,475 4,450
Agnus Peduru Fund (interest) 23,000 23,250
Mary's Friends Scholarship Fund (Interest) 85,700 73,200
S. Jayawardena Scholarship Fund(Interest) 55,200 40,500
Rathnakara Scholarship Fund (Interest) 107,500 95,000
Prof. H.H. Costa Memorial Scholarship Fund (Interest) 116,667 112,750
Prof. Shelton Gunaratne Memorial Scholarship Fund (Interest) 548,506 417,657
Rajamanthree Scholarship Fund( Interest) 51,000 32,250
Hawanpola Sri Rathanasara Scholarship Fund(Interest) 125,154 114,195
Student Trust Fund (HRM) 46,212
Total  	 2,358,280 	 1,969,291

Other Funds 25-5
UGC Scholarship fund 11,200 11,200
Prizes Awarding Scholarship Funds 18,696 18,696
Donations for Scholarships 16,650 16,650

 	 46,546 	 46,546

			   2014	 2013
	 Note		 Rs.	 Rs.
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Research Grants
Grants received from NSF

26
26-1 3,260,924 4,426,598

Grants received from UGC 26-2 2,533,034 7,560,603
Grants received from other institutes 26-3 54,883,382 45,900,536
University research grants 26-4 24,581,024 26,686,971

 	 85,258,364 	 84,574,708

			   2014	 2013
	 Note		 Rs.	 Rs.

Grants received from NSF 26-1

Dr.B T S D Kannangara 592,973 592,973
Dr.B Jayawardena 103,723 103,723
Dr.M D Amarasinghe 168,945 168,945
Dr.B.Jayawardena 150,077 150,077
Dr.L.D.Amarasinghe - 311,021
Prof J A Liyanage - 112,586
Prof. P.A. Paranagama 189,333 212,133
Dr.A.A.L.Rathnathilaka 13,813 13,813
Dr.A.A.L.Rathnathilaka 87,842 249,474
Dr.D. M.M de Silva 230,227 275,836
Prof.Nelum Deshappriya 494,471 577,095
Ms.S P Senanayake 195,406 188,202
Prof. P.A. Paranagama 5,950 220,000
Dr.S.P.Wickremasinghe 184,416 283,133
N.S.F.Grant (Medical Faculty) 843,749 967,587

 	 3,260,924 	 4,426,598

Grants received from UGC 26-2
Dr.D S M de Silva 1,610,586 7,375,000
Mr.E A A D Edirisinghe - 250,000
Prof. N.D. Silva (M/F) 22,941 (81,479)
DR. NH Manamperi 882,425 -
Prof. H.I.Thabbrow (M/F) 17,082 17,082

 	 2,533,034 	 7,560,603

Grants received from other institutes 26-3
-Dr.B.D.Nandadewa

Prof.U.S.Amarasinghe 54,030 158,450
Dr.P.Paranagama 33,425 35,425
Dr. D.P.Jayawardena 52,210 52,210
Dr.K. Senevirathne 248,140 268,140
Prof.U.S.Amarasinghe 4,255,759 4,680,560
Prof.U.S.Amarasinghe 308,246 959,291
Prof.P A Paranagama 109,107 169,902
Dr.U.P.K.Epa	 -	 239,072
Prof.M Hettiarachchi	 592,872	 1,000,000
Prof. U.S.Amarasinghe	 -	 576,980
Prof.L.M.Darmasiri
Research Fund- W H O Medicine	 1,665,487	 3,471,602
Tropical Medicine (Proj) Grant	 74,193	 86,214
Other Research (2735) Grant	 24,533,111	 17,173,279
Generated Fund -Faculty of Medicine	 -	 106,000
Ragama Health Studies Grant	 578,056	 457,015
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Other Research Fund- Faculty of Medicine	 5,175,379	 4,379,606
Gastroenterology Fund ( M/F)	 190,449	 352,150
Reproductive Research Fund	 8,725,339	 8,475,293
Medical Faculty External Research Fund 	 92,053	 (529,974)
H S R Pro.Dr.Wijewardena	 (128,074)	 (9,182)
Clinical Trial (CTU) Grant	 3,798,503	 3,798,503
Customer Protection on NSB Savings	 446,720	 - 
Tissue Culture Research	 3,419,378	 -
HETC Project (Mr Anura Dissanayake)	 658,997	 -

 	 54,883,382  	 45,900,536

			   2014	 2013
	 Note		 Rs.	 Rs.

University research grant 26-4
Research Fund-Humanities 4,485,160 4,485,160
Research Fund- Medicine 2,477,081 4,467,027
Research Fund- Science 2,517,634 2,517,634
Research Fund- Social Science 3,500,192 3,475,192
Research Fund- Commerce & Mgt. 4,807,860 4,807,860
Research Fund- Graduate studies 432,358 423,358
Research for Social Sciences 6,360,740 6,510,740

 	 24,581,024 	 26,686,971

Funds received for special purpose
Special Donations- Rev. Dia O Ci 5,423,868 5,423,868
Special Donations- Kong Meng San Phor Sarc See Monaste 1,026,890 1,026,890
Survey on Usage of High Way 661,648 1,242,088
One Asia Foundation 563,806 63,872
Disability project 52,270 1,211,419
IT Project 39,917 1,039,917
UGC - QIG 8,745,434 8,745,434
Students Relief Fund 1,146,032 1,081,218
United Field Security Fund 82,441 81,287
Vice Chancellor's Fund 7,667,830 4,522,966
Bond & Agreements Violation Fund 56,290,898 47,383,488
(*) Interest of Bonds & Agreement Violations 26,020,852

107,721,884
19,848,625
91,671,071

(*) A sum of Rs. 44,354,996.51 has been due from Bond Violators as at 31.12.2014
Other Reserves

Accounting professional sec(APS)

28

213,789 213,789
Staff development fund - UGC 7,418,994 6,939,745
Chemistry Conference - 2006 73,000 73,000
Presidency Exhibition fund 44,299 44,299
U.P.F. Payable 3,257
Career Guidance Unit deposit 741,478 958,280
Glass Blowing Unit deposit 398,758 339,758
International Conference of Archeology 301,926 351,926
International Conference-Social sciences 732,364 334,743
International Conference Business & Information 1,262,797 1,451,219
National Geography Conference 902,772 894,272
Library deposit for Main Library 6,960,622 5,807,595
Library deposit for Faculty Libraries 8,764,142 7,673,822

27
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Centre for Gender Studies Deposit 15,924 306,273
Funds Received from Mahapola trust fund 399,603 735,403
International Conference - Future Museum 200,000
International Symposium 25,400
Felicitation Ceremony 455,650
Project for Special Degree 642,110
Seed Programme 2,822,089
International Conference of Medicine 789,504 -
BSc Physiotherapy 306,250

 	 33,474,727 	 26,124,121

Income Received in Advance 29
Fee - Levying Courses - Diploma 28,577,510 21,380,286
Fee - Levying Courses - Postgraduate 100,865,549 70,049,685
Fee - Levying Courses - Medicine 8,755,842 8,276,834
Fee - Levying Courses -Others 5,437,009 3,022,900
Other Internal Programmes 23,233,967 24,615,612
External Examination - Examination Fee 643,950,243 69,943,968
External Examination - Seminar Fee 28,585,755 75,280,646
Others-Telecommunication/ Hostel 505,000 250,000

 	 839,910,875 	 272,819,932

Provision for Retiring Gratuity 30

Balance as at 1st January 356,798,278 312,514,831
Add :- Charge for the year 44,414,486 64,147,498

401,212,764 376,662,328
Less :- Payments made during the Year (30,911,003) (19,864,050)
Balance as at 31st December  	 370,301,762 	 356,798,278

Provision for Contingent Liabilities 31
President of Labour Tribunal - 455,580

 	 - 	 455,58

			   2014	 2013
	 Note		 Rs.	 Rs.

Contingent Liabilities

Actions (Case No. DMR-05959/09 and DmR-0572/08) were filed in the District Court to recover monies, being the value 
of the bonds executed in favour of the University by former teachers who had violated the terms of the agreement entered 
into by them with the University.

The Council decided at its 415th meeting held on 10.06.2014 to accept the proposed settlement of Dr. D.P.W. Jayawardene 
on payment of the Rs.1,000,000/- out of Rs.1,113,600/- which was due in case No. DMR 05959/09.

The amount of Rs. 322,289.72 out of the Rs. 900,377.39 was paid on 26.12.2013 and balance of Rs.578,087.97 is to be 
recovered from the University provident Fund as a matter of settlement. Accordingly the steps are being taken to recover 
the same.

Actions (Case No. 1538/L and 1225/L) were filed by third parties against the University claiming ownership to the lands, 
belonging to the University and the said actions are pending. As it is uncertain with regard to payment of compensation, the 
liability, if any, for the University cannot be decided reliably.
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As all the cases, filed in the court of appeal relate to administration, financial provision cannot be decided reliably, till the 
cases are concluded.
As the High Court Appeal No.HCALT9/2011 filed by the University of Kelaniya against the Labour Tribunal Case 
No.31/66/2006 was dismissed delivering the order on 17.06.2014, the Council decided to comply the original order of the 
learned president of Labour Tribunal, Consenting to release the sum of Rs. 455,580/- to Mrs. M.I.N Fernandopulle, already 
deposited in Labour Tribunal, by way compensation as the said Labour Tribunal order. The said money has already been 
released to Mrs. M.I.N Fernandopulle by Labour tribunal.

If case No. 39/2013 (Writ) is decided against the University, compensation will have to be paid to the petitioner by the 
University. However, the amount cannot be ascertained until the judgment is delivered.

Staff development programme 270,471 968,315
Sundry Deposits 5,165,893 3,225,460
Stamp Deposits 64,200 64,200
Tax Payable 4,223,082 1,464,477
Cancelled cheques 759,686 1,370,860
Staff security deposits 61,062 65,099
Capital Expenses 179,610,060 120,000,000
Others 10,893,892 744,824
UPF Payable 201,048,347 127,903,236

			   2014	 2013
	 Note		 Rs.	 Rs.

Accounts Payable	 32

Accrued Expenses
Audit Fee

33

Personal Emoluments
Travelling Expenses
Supplies Expenses
Stores Supplies
Maintenance Expenses
Contractual Services
Other Recurrent Expenses
Others

	 1,084,708	 1,550,080
	 649,013	 16,942,310
	 -	 113,208
	 -	 8,407,002
	 -	 3,703,980
	 684,325	 2,693,851
	 651,526	 27,712,581
	 18,378,683	 5,826,215
	 64,048,279	 14,000
	 85,496,534	 66,963,227

Refundable Deposits 34
Tender Deposits 658,900 716,116
Security Deposits 63,299,265 42,978,556
Library Deposits 19,554,500 10,964,500
Others - Hostel 40,500 4,000

 	 83,553,165 	 54,663,172

Category Budget 2014
Rs.

Actual 2014
Rs.

%

INCOME

Government Grant 1,815,000,000 1,815,000,000 -

Government Grants for Recurrent Expenditure 1,815,000,000 1,815,000,000 -
Other Income 343,468,500 580,061,894 68.88
Total Income 2,158,468,500 2,395,061,894 10.96

Statement of the Comparison of Budget Actual Amounts - 2014
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Category Budget 2014
Rs.

Actual 2014
Rs.

%

EXPENSES

Personal Emoluments 1,540,455,000 1,540,445,628 (0.00)

Salaries and Wages 583,352,000 583,351,252 (0.00)

UPF Contribution 104,616,000 104,615,031 (0.00)

Pension 8% 40,347,000 40,346,668 (0.00)

E.T.F. 3% Contribution 28,865,000 28,864,969 (0.00)
Acting Pay 592,000 591,401 (0.10)

Visiting Lecture Fees 26,642,000 26,641,336 (0.00)

20%. Special Salary Allowance 167,907,000 167,906,097 (0.00)

Overtime 31,146,000 31,145,045 (0.00)

Holiday Payments 331,000 330,567 (0.13)

Other Allowances 10,182,000 10,181,990 (0.00)

Academic Allowance 252,777,000 252,776,369 (0.00)

Equalization Allowance 990,000 989,846 (0.02)

Cost of Living Allowance 146,339,000 146,338,038 (0.00)
Provision for Gratuity 44,415,000 44,414,486 (0.00)

Language Allowance 2,000 1,500 (25.00)
25% Research Allowance 101,952,000 101,951,034 (0.00)

Travelling Expenses 6,862,000 6,861,171 (0.01)

Domestic 875,000 874,385 (0.07)

Foreign 5,987,000 5,986,786 (0.00)

Supplies 73,198,000 73,194,160 (0.01)

Stationery and Office Requisites 29,327,000 29,326,692 (0.00)
Fuel & Lubricants 13,978,000 13,977,694 (0.00)

Uniforms 2,900,000 2,899,962 (0.00)
Mechanical & Electrical goods 919,000 918,183 (0.09)

Chemicals & Glassware 9,120,000 9,118,590 (0.02)
Medical Supplies 1,282,000 1,281,133 (0.07)

Other 15,672,000 15,671,904 (0.00)
Maintenance Expenses 19,944,000 19,942,281 (0.01)

Vehicles 5,292,000 5,291,691 (0.01)
Plant, Machinery and Equipments 14,122,000 14,121,166 (0.01)
Buildings and Structures 441,000 440,765 (0.05)
Furniture 39,000 38,980 (0.05)
Other 50,000 49,679 (0.64)
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Contractual Services 277,161,000 277,157,211 (0.00)

Transport 56,000 55,389 (1.09)

Postal and Communication 35,160,000 35,159,948 (0.00)

Electricity &  Water 122,741,000 122,740,829 (0.00)

Rents and Local Taxes 5,714,000 5,713,327 (0.01)

Security Services 8,251,000 8,250,293 (0.01)

Cleaning Services 35,689,000 35,688,983 (0.00)

Printing Advertising etc., 27,488,000 27,487,675 (0.00)

University Sports Activities 33,470,000 33,469,016 (0.00)

Other 8,592,000 8,591,751 (0.00)

Other Recurrent 240,848,500 236,826,246 (1.67)

Special Services - Council & Committees 2,580,000 2,579,680 (0.01)

- Do -   Professional & Other Fees 227,000 226,238

Workshops, Seminars 6,371,000 6,370,430 (0.01)

Staff Development (Training for Teachers,
Administrators &  Other Employees) 1,836,000 1,835,444 (0.03)

Industry Internships, Practical & Career Guidance 1,500,000 1,500,000 -

Students' Development Initiatives & Community
Relations 89,000 88,097 (1.02)

University Sports Activities 112,000 111,667 (0.30)

Student Welfare, Employee Welfare, Student
Councils & Social Harmony 1,000,000 1,000,000 -

Grants to other Organizations 37,000 36,962 (0.10)
Holiday Warrants Season Tickets 2,130,000 2,129,564 (0.02)

Entertainment Expenses 3,055,000 3,054,314 (0.02)
Bank Charges 500 500 -
Awards & Indemnities 127,000 126,800 (0.16)

Contributions & Membership Fees 2,086,000 2,085,349 (0.03)

Convocations 13,400,000 13,396,493 (0.03)

Examination Fees 108,650,000 108,642,150 (0.01)

Expenditure on Extension Projects
91,120,000 91,110,510 (0.01)

Expenditure on Postgraduate Courses

Others-Including Academic Research 2,528,000 2,527,949 (0.00)

Total Expenses 2,158,468,500 2,154,426,697 1.70
Surplus /( Deficit) for the period

	 Category	 Budget 2014	 Actual 2014	 %
		  Rs.	 Rs.

10-925/2
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UNIVERSITY  OF  KELANIYA

Financial Statements Year - 2015 

Statement of Financial Performance for the Year ended 31st December, 2015

	 2015	 2014

INCOME 
Government Grants

Note  	 Rs. 	  	 Rs. 	

Government Grants for Recurrent Expenditure 2 2,244,000,000 1,815,000,000
Government Grants for Rehabilitation and Improvement of Assets 46,613,665 47,323,516
Grants for Mahapola 152,106,700 86,652,950
Grants for Bursary 53,649,400 55,593,900
Amortization of Capital Grants 241,172,997 192,222,038

Add: Other Income
2,737,542,762 2,196,792,404

Tution and other fees 3 57,227,140 59,629,524
Interest Income 4 103,347,663 89,385,868
Other Internal Income 5 57,189,142 46,502,187
Income from External Examination 6 488,987,050 229,727,120
Income from Fee - levying Courses/Special services 187,800,086 149,933,388
University Contribution Seminar fees 1,603,090 4,050,414

896,154,171 579,228,499
Total Income 3,633,696,933 2,776,020,903

LESS : EXPENSES

Personal Emoluments 7 (1,907,705,039) (1,496,043,531)
Travelling Expenses 8 (4,745,616) (6,861,171)
Supplies 9 (78,827,519) (67,412,518)
Maintenance Expenses 10 (24,512,536) (19,942,281)
Contractual Services 11 (274,324,686) (277,268,878)
Other Recurrent 12 (103,392,476) (149,470,137)
Depreciation (368,181,104) (311,945,281)
Amortization of Intangible assets (294,109) (150,904)
Provision for Gratuity (36,444,118) (43,983,911)
Expenditure on Fee - levying Courses/Special services (108,095,213) (91,110,510)
Rehabilitation and Improvement Expenses (46,613,664) (47,323,516)
Mahapola Scholarship (152,106,700) (86,652,950)
Bursary (53,649,400) (55,593,900)
Total Expenses (3,158,892,179) (2,653,759,487)
Surplus /( Deficit) for the period 474,804,754 122,261,416
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Statement of Financial Position

	 As at 31.12.2015	 As at 31.12.2014

ASSETS
Non - Current Assets

    Note 	  	 Rs. 	  	 Rs. 	

Property Plant and Equipments 13 4,197,488,457 3,633,195,989
Work in Progress 14 499,069,156 504,525,148
Investments 15 1,807,935,551 1,780,055,304
Intangible Assets 16 3,001,912 808,796

6,507,495,076 5,918,585,237
Current Assets
Inventories 17 29,471,678 25,669,643
Receivables 18 31,191,991 258,000,466
Prepayments 19 6,969,770 2,107,636
Deposits and  Advances 20 274,325,592 121,706,516
Sundry Debtors 25,249 2,837,102
Cash and Cash Equivalents 21 396,851,048 154,529,188

738,835,328 564,850,551

TOTAL ASSETS 7,246,330,404 6,483,435,788

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Accumulated Fund
Cabinet Approved Building Project Fund 22 187,131,904 287,525,372
Asset Revaluation Reserve 1,336,263,213 1,442,116,523
General Reserve (313,876,458) (419,066,325)

Capital
1,209,518,659 1,310,575,570

Deferred Capital Grants 23 3,561,168,986 2,883,197,143
Capital Grants Unspent 24 140,054,591 4,917,169
Reserves & Restricted Funds 3,701,223,578 2,888,114,311
University Funds 25 827,270,187 464,041,479
Endowment Funds 26 14,363,571 13,938,770
Research Grants 27 74,896,838 85,258,364
Funds Received for Special Purpose 28 123,282,544 107,721,884
Other Reserves 29 42,126,739 33,471,470
Income Received in Advance 30 672,779,424 839,910,875

Non Current Liabilities
1,754,719,303 1,544,342,842

Provision for Retiring Gratuity 31 385,251,704 370,301,762
Provision for Contingent Liabilities 32 500,000 -

385,751,704 370,301,762

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 33 10,255,179 201,051,604
Accrued Expenses 34 102,892,961 85,496,534
Refundable Deposits 35 81,969,021 83,553,165

195,117,161 370,101,303
7,246,330,404 6,483,435,788
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These Financial Statements are in compliance with the requirements of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 and other 
Statutory Provisions.

U T M I D Tennakoon,
Bursar.

The Council of the university is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements signed for and 
on behalf of the Council.

Prof. Sunanda Madduma Bandara,	 Prof. Lakshman Senevirathne,
Vice-Chancellor.	 Council Member.

The Accounting Policies and Notes on Pages 06 through 23 form an integral part of these Financial statements.

Kelaniya,
27th May, 2016.
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Cash Flow Statement
For the Year ended 31st December	

	 2015	 2014
	 Rs.	 Rs.

Cash Flow From / (Used in ) Operating Activities
Surpluses for the year                                                                                    474,804,754                 122,261,416

Adjustments
Add:   Depreciation                                                                                         368,181,104                 311,945,281

Amortization of Intangible Assets	 294,109	 150,904
Provision for Gratuity	 36,444,118	 43,983,911
Provision for Contingent Liabilities	  500,000	 -

Less:   Amortization of Government Grants                                             (241,172,997)               (192,222,038) 
Interest Income                                                                                    (98,936,720)                 (85,255,409) 
Profit on Disposal of Property  and Equipment                                              -                             (680,000) 
Donation received                                                                                                -                             (833,496)

Operating Surplus before changes in working Capital                             540,114,367                 199,350,569

Increase / (Decrease) in Working Capital
Inventories                                                                                                           (3,802,035)                     5,170,080
Debtors                                                                                                                  2,811,852                     (2,681,743) 
Deposits  & Advances                                                                                    (152,619,076)                 (22,593,106) 
Prepayments & Deposits                                                                                   (4,862,134)                       (169,156) 
Accounts Receivable                                                                                       226,808,475                (103,292,708) 
Accounts Payable                                                                                           (190,796,426)                  73,148,368
Accrued Expenses                                                                                              17,396,428                    18,533,307
Refundable Deposits                                                                                          (1,584,144)                  28,889,993

Cash Generated from Operations                                                                433,467,308                 196,355,603

Gratuity Paid                                                                                                     (21,494,175)                 (30,911,003) 

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities                                                    411,973,133                 165,444,601
Cash Flow from / (Used In) Investing Activities

Acquisition of Property Plant & Equipment                                              (478,098,849)               (375,591,151) 
Investments                                                                                                       (27,880,247)               (557,116,368) 
Work in Progress                                                                                            (222,214,379)               (316,111,920) 
Intangible assets                                                                                                 (2,487,224)                       (477,014) 
Proceeds from Disposal of Property Plant & Equipment                                          -                              680,000
Interest Received                                                                                               98,936,720                    85,255,409
Restricted Funds  and Grants                                                                       (265,091,740)                500,393,892
Net Cash used in investing Activities                                                          (896,835,718)               (662,967,152)

Cash Flow from / (Used In) Financing Activities

Government grant for Capital Expenditure                                                653,386,335                 522,676,484
Cash flows from external sources                                                                   73,798,110                    60,133,571
Net Cash Flow From / (Used In) Financing Activities                                727,184,445                 582,810,055

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents                              242,321,860                    85,287,504



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2018'10'19

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 19.10.2018
1678

Cash & Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year                             154,529,189                    69,241,685
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year                                  396,851,048                 154,529,189

Notes of the Financial Statments

1	 Significant Accounting Policies

1.1	 General Policies

1.1.1	 Reporting Entity

University of Kelaniya was incorporated under the University Act, No. 16 of 1978, and situated 
at Dalugama, Kelaniya.

1.1.2	 Principal activities and nature of operations

This is a national university mainly operates on government funds.

The  university primarily caters  to  local  students in  the  fields of  Humanities, Social
Sciences, Sciences, Medicine, Commerce & Management. 
The university is promoting higher studies and research.

1.1.3	 Basis of preparation

(a)	 Statement of compliance

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Financial 
Performance, Statements of changes in Net Assets / Equity, Cash Flow Statement and Notes 
to the Financial Statements.   These statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards (SLPSAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Sri Lanka and adopted by the University Grants Commission by its Financial 
Circular Letter No. 3/2011 and 3/2014. The accounting policies adopted are consistent with 
those used in the previous financial year.

(b)	 Basis of measurement

Financial statements have been prepared on historical costs basis and do not take into account 
changes in money values, except where it is stated.  Cost is based on the fair value of the 
consideration given in exchange for assets.

(c)	 Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is the University’s
functional and presentation currency.

(d)	 Going Concern
	 The Financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.

	 (e)	 Use of Estimates and judgments

		T  he preparation and presentation of financial statements in conformity with SLPSAS requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the 
accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates and judgmental decisions.

	 2015	 2014
	 Rs.	 Rs.
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The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects on that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects 
both current and future periods.

1.2	 Assets and the bases of their valuation

1.2.1	 Property, Plant & Equipment

(a)	 Recognition and Measurement

Property, Plant & Equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost 
of Property, Plant & Equipment is the cost of purchase or construction together with any 
incidental expenses thereon.

(b)	 Cost

The cost of property, plant & equipment comprises its purchase or construction cost and 
any directly contributable cost of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.

(c)	 Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on the straight line basis at the following rates 
per annum in order to write off the cost of such assets over their estimated useful lives.

Buildings	 5% 
Furniture & Equipment	 10%
Office Equipment	 20% 
Lab & Teaching Equipment	 20% 
Motor Vehicles	 20% 
Water & Electricity Supply	 10% 
Fiber Glass Boat	 10% 
Library Books & Periodicals	 20% 
Cloaks	 20% 
Machinery	 20% 
Others	 20%

Depreciation is  provided on  pro  rata  basis  on  the  assets purchased/constructed/disposed 
of during the year.

(d)	 Revaluation of the Property, Plant & Equipments

The Lands, Buildings and Motor Vehicles of the University have been revalued and recognized 
to the accounts with effect from 01st January 2008.

Revaluation Surplus may be transferred to the general reserve proportionately as the assets 
are used by the University. In such a case, the amount of the surplus transferred would be 
the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the assets and 
depreciation based on the assets’ original cost.

1.2.2	 Intangible Assets

(a)	 Computer Software

	 (i)	 Basis of Recognition
		  An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits that are 

attributable to the asset will flow to the University and the cost of the asset can be measured 
reliably.

	 (ii)	 Subsequent Expenditure
		  Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalized only when it increases the future 

economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is 
expensed as incurred.
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	 (iii)	 Amortization
		  Amortization is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful 

life of the software, from the date that it is available for use since this most closely reflects 
the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

		T  he estimated useful life of software is five years.

	 (iv)	 De-recognition
		  An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are 

expected from it. The gain or loss arising from the de-recognition of such intangible assets 
is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognized.

1.2.3	 Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost based on FIFO basis.

1.2.4	 Receivables

Receivables are stated at the amounts they are estimated to realize.

1.2.5	 Short term investments

(a)	 Investment in government securities

Investments in treasury bills, treasury bonds and repurchase agreements are stated at cost.

(b)	 Investment in fixed deposits

Investments in fixed deposits are stated at cost.

1.2.5	 Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and deposits at Bank.
1.3	 Liabilities & Provisions

All known liabilities as at the balance sheet date are included in the Financial Statements and  
adequate provisions are  made for  liabilities which  are  known to  exist but  the amount of 
which cannot be determined accurately.

Obligations payable on demand or within one year of the balance sheet date are treated as 
current liabilities in the balance sheet. Liabilities payable after one year from the balance sheet 
date are treated as non-current liabilities in the balance sheet.

1.3.1	 Accounting for Grants

Grants that compensate the University for Expenses incurred are recognized as revenue in 
the income statement in the same period in which the expenses are recognized. Grants that 
compensate the University for the Cost of an asset are recognized in the income statement 
on a systematic basis over the useful life of the related asset.

1.3.2	 Employee Benefit

(a)	 Provision for Retiring Gratuity

The university has adopted the benefit plan as required under the payment of Gratuity Act, 
 No. 12 of 1983 for all eligible employees.
Defined benefit plans define an amount of benefit that an employee will receive on retirement 
usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date together with adjustment for 
unrecognized past service cost.

As per provisions of the Employee Gratuity Payment Act, provisions for gratuity should be 
made and deposited annually in the relevant gratuity account and payment should be made 
promptly to employees when they become eligible which specified in the paragraph No. 3.5 of 
the Public Finance Circular No. 02/2013 (issued on 13.09.2013).
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Establishment of Internal Fund equal to the amount of the Gratuity Provisions and invest the 
same.

(b)	 Defined contribution plan

Obligations  for  contribution  to  a  defined  contribution  plans  are  recognized  as  an expense 
in the income statement as incurred

1.3.3	 Taxation

The university is exempt from Income Tax under Section 7(b) of the Inland Revenue Act,  
No. 10 of 2006.

1.3.4	 Deferred Taxation

Provision has not been made for deferred tax as the university is exempted from Income Tax 
under Section 7(b) of the Inland Revenue Act, No. 10 of 2006.

1.3.5	 Capital commitments and contingent liabilities
All material commitments and contingent liabilities are considered and where necessary 
adjustments or disclosures are made in these Financial Statements.

1.4	I ncome Statement

1.4.1	 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 
the university and that it can be reliably measured.

	 (a)	 Enrolment fees from students are recognized as revenue on receipt.
	 (b)	F ees  on  examinations,  seminars,  courses  and  other  educational  and  activities  are 

recognized as revenue on completion of such activity.
	 (c)	T he fees on fee-levying courses recognized to the income statement based on the stage 

of completion of each course as at the year end. Lecture fees and payments that relate to 
future periods are shown in the balance sheet as Income Received in Advance under the 
Reserve & Restricted Funds.

	 (d)	I nterest income is recognized on accrual basis.
	 (e)	 Revenue from grants is recognized when control of the contribution or right to receive the 

contribution is confirmed.
	 (f)	 Sponsorship related activities are recognized on receipt.
	 (g)	 Other income is recognized on accrual basis.

1.4.2	 Expenditure

	 (a)	 Expenses are recognized in the income statement on the basis of direct association 
between cost incurred and the earning of specific items of the income. All expenditure 
incurred in the running of the university and in maintaining the capital assets in a state of 
efficiency has been charged to revenue in arriving at the surplus/deficit for the year.

	 (b)	 Expenses  on  examinations,  seminars,  courses  and  other  educational  activities  are 
recognized in the income statement on completion of such activity.

1.5 Comparative Information

The Comparative figures have been re-arranged where necessary to conform to the current year’s presentation.

1.6 Events after the balance sheet date

The materiality of events occurring after the balance sheet date has been considered and appropriate adjustments, 
wherever necessary, have been made in the accounts.

1.7 Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using the indirect method.
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Government Grants for Recurrent Expenditure
Personal Emoluments

2
     1,914,000,000 1,508,500,000

Other Recurrent         330,000,000 	    306,500,000
     2,244,000,000 1,815,000,000

Tuition and Other Fees 3
Registration Fees (Undergraduate - Local) 4,352,175 5,805,890
Registration Fees (Undergraduate - Foreign) 42,666,899 46,078,604
Registration Fees (Post graduate) 1,466,295 972,500
Tuition Fees  (Undergraduate) 1,714,309 496,856
Tuition Fees (Post graduate) 4,500,446 4,271,997
Examination Fees  (Undergraduate) 2,427,337 1,709,176
Examination Fees (Post graduate)                    99,680           294,500

            57,227,140      59,629,524

Interest Income 4
Interest from Investments

Gross Interest 	 - 		  99,566,689 	 87,985,622
WHT	 -		  (629,969) 	 (2,730,213) 
Net Interest 	 - 		  98,936,720 	 85,255,409

Interest from Loans	  		  4,410,943 	 4,130,459 	
			   4,410,943 	 4,130,459

Total Interest Income 			   103,347,663 	 89,385,868

Other Internal Income 		  5

Sale of Publications 			   190,340 	 132,580
Rent from Properties 			   2,289,685 	 1,260,535
Library Fines 			   355,350 	 306,071
Medical fees 			   22,710 	 19,130
Ancillary Activities - Hostels 			   3,402,122 	 3,297,197
Sale of Old Stores 			   643,265 	 1,752,369
Miscellaneous Income		  5-1	 50,285,671      	 39,734,306 	
			   57,189,142 	 46,502,187

Miscellaneous Income 		  5-1
Certificate Fees 			   1,953,834 	 1,525,861
Fines for Cloaks 			   17,860 	 386,850
Photo Copying Charges 			   - 	 214,100
Cloaks Hiring 			   310,650 	 679,855
Hire of Vehicles 			   189,798 	 424,592
Registration Fees from Suppliers 			   281,150 	 260,800
Convocation Fee 			   10,485,250 	 8,344,741
Postgraduate Library Income 			   325,000 	 226,100
Application & Other Fee 			   4,499,250 	 4,644,350
Provident Fund Charges 			   2,899,144 	 3,483,100
Fine from Contractors 			   547,565 	 1,387,795
Library cards & Identity Cards 			   96,575 	 94,465
Dental Clinic Charges 			   38,300 	 43,250

Other miscellaneous Income	  		  28,641,295      	 18,018,447 	
 	 50,285,671  	 39,734,306

	 As at 31.12.2015		  2015	 2014
		  Note	 Rs.	 Rs.
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Income from External Examinations

Registration fees

6

158,951,747 64,306,114

Examination fees 35,704,909 83,717,147
Syllabus fees 8,457 7,493
Past papers fees 154,311 210,503
Certificate fees 2,555,673
Postage fees 224,840 147,893
Convocation income 5,880 9,195,630
Seminar income 153,262,810 69,647,234
BA Degree (Overseas)Singapore 1,781,966
Certificate Confirmation fees 28,518 705,653
ID Charges 20,580 3,980
Sundry income 138,069,325  	 3,507

488,987,050 229,727,120
Personal Emoluments 7
(a) Academic

Salaries & Wages 377,011,440 373,155,973
Provident Fund 89,481,315 77,224,499
Pension 32,815,062 26,761,754
E.T.F. 24,486,391 20,670,011
Acting Pay 34,271 11,848
Academic Allowances 359,990,628 252,776,369
Other Allowances 332,112,809 210,567,043
Visiting Lecturers Fees 35,369,489 26,641,336
Cost of Living Allowance  	 75,413,615 	 73,099,245

 	 1,326,715,020      1,060,908,078
(b) Non-Academic
Salaries & Wages 213,110,818 210,219,167
Provident Fund 27,480,173 27,390,532
Pension 14,321,501 13,584,914
E.T.F. 8,360,914 8,194,958
Acting Pay 392,697 579,553
Special Allowances 15% 201,661,055 64,275,008
Research allowance 3,873,432 2,136,455
Over Time 31,343,443 31,135,045
Holiday Payments 797,885 330,567
Other Allowances 6,269,510 4,048,961
Language Proficiency Allowance 	 - 	 1,500
Cost of Living Allowance 	 73,378,592 	 73,238,792

580,990,020 435,135,453
Total (a)+(b) 1,907,705,039 1,496,043,531

Travelling Expenses 8
Domestic 904,965 874,385
Foreign  	 3,840,651  	 5,986,786

4,745,616 6,861,171

	 As at 31.12.2015		  2015	 2014
		  Note	 Rs.	 Rs.
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Supplies
Stationery & Office Requisites 32,816,921 29,326,692
Fuel & Lubricants 9,691,797 13,977,694
Uniform & Tailoring Charges 2,747,491 2,899,962
Mechanical & Electrical Goods 3,938,541 918,183

Chemical & Glassware 11,868,803 3,336,948
Medical Supplies 773,256 1,281,133
Other Supplies 16,990,710 15,671,904

78,827,519 67,412,518

Maintenance Expenses 10
Vehicles 7,506,637 5,291,691
Plant, Machinery & Office Equipment 15,998,239 14,121,166
Building & Structures 960,854 440,765
Furniture 41,705 38,980
Other  	 5,100 	 49,679

24,512,536 19,942,281

Contractual Services 11
Transport 20,995 55,389
Telecommunication 36,367,347 31,022,339
Postal Charges 5,879,568 4,137,609
Electricity 90,900,525 96,687,901
Security Services 33,340,643 35,688,983
Water 28,499,877 26,052,928
Cleaning Services 26,943,614 27,487,675
Rent & Hire Charges 8,400,070 8,250,293
Rates and taxes to local authorities 4,507,061 5,713,327
Printing, Advertising etc. 26,279,075 33,469,016
Sports Activities 1,508,894 111,667
Others  11,677,017 8,591,751

274,324,686 277,268,878

Other recurrent 12
Special Services - Council & Committees 2,388,001 2,579,680
Special Services - Professional & Other Fee 85,500 226,238
Workshops, Seminars 7,885,316 6,786,430
Academic Research 3,967,276 3,091,332
Staff Development 3,460,840 1,835,444
Grants to other organization 1,856,791 36,962
Holiday, Warrants & Season Tickets 2,369,805 2,129,564
Entertainment Expenses 2,015,722 3,054,314
Bank Charges 2,566 500
Awards & Indemnities 157,570 126,800
Contribution & Membership Fee 2,214,842 2,085,349
Convocation 6,248,750 13,393,393
Examination 65,629,067 108,645,250
Others - Newspapers, Magazines etc. 2,051,725 1,936,617
Field Trips 3,033,138 3,454,167
Students Development Initiative  	 25,568 	 88,097

103,392,476 149,470,137
As at 31.12.2015 Note
Property Plant & Equipment 13
Cost Balance Additions Disposals Balance

As at As at
01.01.15

 	 Rs. 	  	 Rs. 	  Rs. 
31.12.2015

 	 Rs. 	
Lands 654,759,142       - 654,759,142
Buildings & Improvements 3,454,648,026 624,435,488 4,079,083,513

	 As at 31.12.2015		  2015	 2014
		  Note	 Rs.	 Rs.
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Furniture & Equipments 1,027,157,190 138,841,245 1,165,998,435
Lab & Teaching Equipment 274,497,491 34,964,932 309,462,423
Motor Vehicles 103,578,171 19,777,824 123,355,995
Water & Electricity Supply Scheme 48,271,966 3,366,034 51,638,000
Library Books & Periodicals 261,539,003 32,276,183 293,815,186
Cloaks 6,114,306 - 6,114,306
Machinery 39,784,983 999,489 40,784,472
Others 130,946,517 77,812,377 208,758,894

6,001,296,794 932,473,572 - 6,933,770,366

Depreciation

Buildings & Improvements 1,036,681,906 195,008,838 1,231,690,744
Furniture & Equipment 628,126,325 105,079,866 733,206,191
Lab & Teaching Equipment 226,730,783 19,065,527 245,796,310
Motor Vehicles 69,939,546 10,745,093 80,684,639
Water & Electricity Supply Scheme 41,009,011 1,195,377 42,204,387
Library Books & Periodicals 231,890,891 12,712,099 244,602,990
Cloaks 4,534,523 489,061 5,023,584
Machinery 41,461,712 4,991,658 46,453,370
Others  	 87,726,109  	 18,893,585  106,619,694 

2,368,100,806 368,181,103 2,736,281,909.05
Written Down Value 3,633,195,989 4,197,488,457

Note:

Fully depreciated 29 no of motor vehicles have been used for operating activities during the year 2015. The gross carrying 
value of these motor vehicles are Rs: 55,196,030 as at 31.12.2015.

		  2015	 2014
	 Note	 Rs.	 Rs.

Work in Progress 	 14

Social Science Building Stage 1 	 10,000,000 	 10,000,000
Social Science Building-Stage 2 	 6,667,409 	 6,667,409
Humanities - Building 	 - 	 97,478,566
Six Storied Exam Building 	 251,039,343 	 180,610,929
Hostel for Medicine-2013 	 - 	 69,077,735
Science Faculty Building 	 115,238,203 	 33,113,249
Building for Modern Language 	 - 	 37,141,310
Five Storied Building Social Science 	 51,731,461 	 22,323,731
3 Storied Pre Cast Building 	 - 	 15,753,204
Multi Purpose Building 	 64,087,740 	 24,014,460
ICTC Building 	 125,000 	 125,000
Sewerage Treatment Plant 	 - 	 5,669,348
Sarasavi Madura New Girls Hostel 	 - 	 1,017,351

	 Balance	 Additions	 Disposals	 Balance
	 As at			   As at
	 01.01.2015			   31.12.2015
	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs. 	 Rs.

-
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Tissue Culture Centre (Gampaha Botanical Garden) 	 - 	 1,532,857
Multi Purpose Building- Faculty of Medicine	  	 180,000      	 - 	

499,069,156 	 504,525,148

Investments 	 15

Staff Security Deposits 	 59,224 	 56,628
Bonds & Agreement  Violations 	 78,555,058 	 71,585,100
Scholarship Fund 	 10,702,858 	 9,267,240
External Examination 	 1,350,000,000 	 1,227,166,925
Retentions Fund 	 304,063,459 	 431,725,000
Special Grants	  	 64,554,951      	 40,254,411 	

     1,807,935,551  	 1,780,055,304

Intangible Assets 	 16

Intangible Assets 	 3,446,924 	 959,700
Less: Amortization	  	 (445,013)     	 (150,904) 

3,001,912 	 808,796

Inventories 	 17

Stationery 	 21,680,905 	 14,855,912
Maintenance 	 7,582,195 	 10,707,957
Others	  	 208,578      	 105,774 	

29,471,678 	 25,669,643

Receivables 	 18

Interest 	 4,413,463 	 17,203,213
Reimbursement from Ministry of Justice 	 6,007,649 	 4,690,240
Property Loan 	 384 	 384
UGC 	 - 	 6,916,760
Treasury fund 	 - 	 189,610,060
Mahapola Scholarship 	 14,849,650 	 5,603,550
Bursary 	 4,390,200 	 32,464,000
Receivable from other Institute 	 1,530,646
Other Institutes(HETC Project)	  	 - 	   	 1,512,259 	

31,191,991 	 258,000,466

Prepayments

Service Agreements

19

1,240,874 1,252,694
Vehicles License & Insurance 1,974,692 704,684
Others  	 3,754,204 	 150,257

6,969,770 2,107,636
Deposits & Advances 20
(a) Staff Loans & Advances

Distress Loans 100,119,339 101,878,250
Staff Loans 549,389 572,975
Transport Loans 4,784,992 433,476

		  2015	 2014
	 Note	 Rs.	 Rs.
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Computer Loans 3,008,792 2,248,264
Special Distress Loans 101,274 103,698
Festival Advances 806,900 976,900
Salary Advances 104,741 232,941
Special Advances 37,100 38,250
Vice Chancellor's fund Loan  	 -  	 70,122 

109,512,527 106,554,876

(b) Advances for Supplies & Services

Research Advance 1,854,710 1,714,025
International Conference Advance 7,871,467 877,932
Miscellaneous Advance 7,336,964 4,848,814
Statutory Boards & Local Authorities 205,639 205,639
Capital Advance  	 143,542,609 	 4,133,436 

160,811,388 11,779,845

(c) Other Advances & Deposits

Fuel Deposit 510,000 510,000
Advance for Stamps 7,370 7,370
External Research Advance 484,273 1,257,326
Disability Project Advance 16,052 16,052
Department Development Fund Advance 453,104 92,064
Advance for Special Degree 325,000 532,464
Generated Fund Advance 103,794 201,296
Confucius Institute Advance 823,159 448,625
Career Fair Advance 265,000 56,600
N.S.F.Grant Advance (M/F) 2,326 -
Advance for Research Centre-Social Sciences 480,000 250,000
Advance for Canter for Gender Studies 15,000
Advance for Seeds Programme  	 516,600  	

4,001,677 3,371,795

Total (a)+(b)+(c) 274,325,592 121,706,516

Cash and Cash Equivalents                                                      21
Petty Cash Imprest 24,732 1,757
Treasury Funds 7,659,501 8,118,039
Non Treasury Funds  	 389,166,816  146,409,393

 	 396,851,048 154,529,188

Cabinet Approved Building Project Fund 	    22

CDCE Building Fund 		  178,087,207 	 266,982,834
Restricted fund for Social Sciences	  	 9,044,697      	 20,542,538 	
		  187,131,904 	 287,525,372
Deferred Capital Grants 	    23

Capital Grant Account 		  2,732,023,659 	 2,385,509,878
Capital Contribution from Other Sources 		  611,553,273 	 495,111,889
Non Monetary Donations 		  217,592,055 	 2,575,376
		  3,561,168,986 	 2,883,197,143

Capital Grants Unspent 	    24
Acquisition of Fixed Assets 			   (261,327) 

		  2015	 2014
	 Note	 Rs.	 Rs.
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Rehabilitation & Improvements
    Building Grant 		  1,401,616 	 5,175,745
    Others ( Equipment, Vehicle, etc.) 			   - 
Construction Projects 		    34,985,868 	 - 
Human Capital Development Projects	  	 103,667,107      	 2,751 	
 		  140,054,591	 4,917,169

University Funds 	 25

University Development Fund 		  183,578,282 	 5,752,440
University Enhancement Fund 		  - 	 137,316,722
Medical Faculty Enhancement Fund 		  568,392 	 568,392
MBBS Fund 		  67,695,892 	 49,459,135
Center for Distance and Continue Education Fund 		  116,101,115 	 148,109,967
Faculty Development Funds 		  142,189,705 	 37,252,504
Research Center  Development Funds 		  19,485,515 	 11,348,551
Department Funds 		  6,969,842 	 5,353,597
Sports Development Fund 		  25,001 	 25,001
Science Faculty Exhibition Fund 		  37,087 	 37,087
Research Service Center Fund 		  4,239,355 	 257,453
Ola Leaf Library Fund 		  1,193,803 	 578,084
Department Development Fund 		  67,320,084 	 63,217,112
University Welfare Fund 		  2,000,000 	 2,000,000
Research Council Fund 		  5,919,639 	 965,045
CCCDD Building Fund - Medicine 		  2,517,521 	 1,800,390
Green Environmental Fund 		  228,955 	 - 
Gratuity Fund 		  7,200,000 	 - 
International Fellowships Fund 		    50,000,000 	 - 
Innovation Center 		    10,000,000 	 - 
Solar Research Center 		    20,000,000 	 - 
Staff and Official Training 		    20,000,000 	 - 
Faculty Infrastructure and Equipment Development	  	 100,000,000      	 - 	
		  827,270,187 	 464,041,479

Endowment Funds 26
Prize Funds 26-1 4,239,631 4,239,691
Scholarship Funds 26-2 3,247,398 3,247,398
Income Balance - Prize Funds 26-3 4,253,252 4,046,855
Income Balance - Scholarship Funds 26-4 2,576,744 2,358,280
Other Funds 26-5  46,546  46,546

14,363,571 13,938,770

Prize Funds 26-1
Gift Fund-Botany 5,000 5,000
Medha Sri Ariyawanse Fund 2,500 2,500
P.A.P.A. Chandrasekara Scholarship Fund 2,833,944 2,833,944
Prof. F.R. Jayasuriya  Scholarship Fund 15,000 15,000
M.A.P Manthriratne Scholarship Fund 5,000 5,000
Dr. P.D. Kannangara Scholarship Fund 5,900 5,900
Scholarship Fund - Investment(ind.man) 108,347 108,347
Prof. D.J. Wijeratne Foundation  Fund 142,000 142,000
Rev.Pandith Mudukatuwe Sri Ganarama Fund 50,000 50,000
Rev. Dr. K. Anuruddha Scholarship Fund 50,000 50,000
Derick De Souza Memorial Scholarship Fund 36,000 36,000

		  2015	 2014
	 Note	 Rs.	 Rs.
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Rev. K. Wangeesa Scholarship Fund 10,000 10,000
Budhadasa  Galappatthi Scholarship Fund 10,000 10,000
Rev. Sik Vin Sin Scholarship Fund 100,000 100,000
Botany Society Scholarship Fund 60,000 60,000
Prof. A.S. Disanayaka Fund 275,000 275,000
Prof.  Carlo Fonseka Scholarship Fund 106,000 106,000
Etsmen Kodak Scholarship Fund 50,000 50,000
Prof. S.B.P. Wickramasooriya Fund 75,000 75,000
Family Medicine Prize Fund 200,000 200,000
Prof. J.K.P.  Ariyaratne  Prize Fund  	 99,940 	 100,000 
Total 4,239,631 4,239,691

Scholarship Funds 26-2
P.P. Jayawardena Scholarship Fund 15,000 15,000
Perter Silva Scholarship Fund 5,000 5,000
Dr. Chithra Fernando Scholarship Fund 200,000 200,000
Hawanpola Sri Rathanasara Scholarship Fund 100,000 100,000
Linus Silva Scholarship Fund 10,000 10,000
Agnus Peduru Scholarship Fund 132,063 132,063
Mary's Friends Scholarship Fund 100,000 100,000
Rathnakara Scholarship Fund 100,000 100,000
Prof. H.H. Costa Memorial Scholarship Fund 300,000 300,000
S. Jayawardena Scholarship Fund 200,000 200,000
Linus Silva/Agnus Peduru Scholarship Fund 54,274 54,274
Student Trust Fund - (HRM) 700,000 700,000
Prof. Shelton Gunaratne Memorial Scholarship Fund 1,181,062 1,181,062
Rajamanthree Scholarship Fund 	 150,000 	 150,000 
Total 3,247,398 3,247,398

Income Balance - Prize Funds

Scholarship Fund - Interest (ind.man)

26-3

2,305 2,305
Gift Fund-Botany (Interest) 4,230 5,165
Prof. F.R. Jayasuriya  Scholarship Fund (Interest) (1,490) (7,238)
Medha Sri Ariyawanse Fund(Interest) 10,273 10,089
Rev. K. Wangeesa Scholarship Fund (Interest) 12,384 11,750
Rev. Sik Vin Sin Scholarship Fund (Interest) 159,613 152,300
Rev. Dr. K. Anuruddha Scholarship Fund (Interest) 200,311 193,245
Budhadasa  Galappatthi Scholarship Fund (Interest) 21,750 20,950
Prof.  D.J. Wijeratne Foundation Fund (Interest) 255,465 281,030
Derick De Souza Memorial Scholarship Fund (Interest) 16,838 15,960
Botany Society Scholarship Fund (Interest) 47,288 52,900
P.A.P.A. Chandrasekara Scholarship Fund (Interest) 2,986,804 2,809,606
Prof.  Carlo Fonseka Scholarship Fund(Interest) 62,772 52,702
Prof. A.S. Disanayaka Fund (Interest) 219,938 205,693
Prof. S.B.P. Wickramasooriya Fund (Interest) 16,924 24,174
Etsmen Kodak Scholarship Fund (Interest) 36,389 37,820
Family Medicine Prize Fund (Interest) 83,994 73,200
Prof. J.K.P.  Ariyaratne  Prize Fund (Interest) 45,613 38,300
M.A.P Manthriratne Scholarship Fund (Interest) 38,759 35,706
Dr. P.D. Kannangara Scholarship Fund (Interest)  33,094  31,196
Total 4,253,252 4,046,855

Income Balance - Scholarship Funds 26-4
Dr. Chithra Fernando Scholarship Fund(interest) 1,205,696 1,114,280
Perter Silva Scholarship Fund (Interest) 18,854 18,509

		  2015	 2014
	 Note	 Rs.	 Rs.
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P.P. Jayawardena Scholarship Fund (Interest)      26-4 56,508 54,078
Linus Silva/Agnus Peduru Scholarship Fund (Interest) 20,539 12,475
Agnus Peduru Fund (interest) 26,656 23,000
Mary's Friends Scholarship Fund (Interest) 93,700 85,700
S. Jayawardena Scholarship Fund (Interest) 63,325 55,200
Rathnakara Scholarship Fund (Interest) 115,500 107,500
Prof. H.H. Costa Memorial Scholarship Fund (Interest) 122,130 116,667
Prof. Shelton Gunaratne Memorial Scholarship Fund 
(Interest)

577,538 548,506

Rajamanthree Scholarship Fund( Interest) 63,000 51,000
Hawanpola Sri Rathanasara Scholarship Fund (Interest) 136,586 125,154
Student Trust Fund (HRM)  	 76,712  46,212
Total 2,576,744 2,358,280

Other Funds    26-5
UGC Scholarship fund 11,200 11,200
Prizes Awarding Scholarship Funds 18,696 18,696
Donations for Scholarships  	 16,650  16,650

46,546 46,546
Research Grants 	 27

Grants received from NSF 	 6,926,293 	 3,260,924
Grants received from UGC 	 1,996,527 	 2,533,034
Grants received from other institutes 	 41,469,803 	 54,883,382
University research grants	 24,504,215      	 24,581,024 	

 	 74,896,838  	 85,258,364

Funds received for special purpose                                  28
Special Donations- Rev. Dia O Ci 	 5,423,868 	 5,423,868
Special Donations- Kong Meng San Phor Sarc See Monaste 	 1,026,890 	 1,026,890
Survey  on Usage of High Way 	 586,648 	 661,648
One Asia  Foundation 	 459,806 	 563,806
Disability project 	 52,270 	 52,270
IT Project 	 39,917 	 39,917
UGC  - QIG 	 8,460,434 	 8,745,434
Students Relief Fund 	 1,211,057 	 1,146,032
United Field Security Fund 	 - 	 82,441
Vice Chancellor’s Fund 	 11,170,732 	 7,667,830
Bond and Agreements Violation Fund 	 63,566,877 	 56,290,898
Interest of Bonds and Agreement  Violations (*) 	 31,284,047 	 26,020,852
	 123,282,544 	 107,721,884 

(*) A sum of Rs.61,933,497.74 has been due from Bond Violators as at 31.12.2015

Other Reserves 	 29
Accounting professional sec(APS) 	 213,789 	 213,789
Staff development fund - UGC 	 5,563,078 	 7,418,994
Presidency Exhibition fund 	 44,299 	 44,299
Career Guidance Unit deposit 	 1,040,455 	 741,478
Glass Blowing Unit deposit 	 398,758 	 398,758
Library deposit for Main Library 	 7,468,959 	 6,960,622
Library deposit for Faculty Libraries 	 10,564,470 	 8,764,142
Centre for Gender Studies Deposit 	 1,011,830 	 15,924

		  2015	 2014
	 Note	 Rs.	 Rs.
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Funds Received from Mahapola trust fund 	 77,903 	 399,603
Felicitation Ceremony 	 455,650 	 455,650
Project for Special Degree 	 700,133 	 642,110
Seed Programme 	 4,613,631 	 2,822,089
BSc Physiotherapy 	 482,969 	 306,250
International Conferences	  	 9,490,816      	 4,287,764 	

42,126,739 	 33,471,470

Income Received in Advance 	 30

Fee - Levying Courses - Diploma & Certificates 	 45,421,946 	 28,577,510
Fee - Levying Courses - Postgraduate 	 129,743,382 	 100,865,549
Fee - Levying Courses - Medicine 	 7,592,238 	 8,755,842
Fee - Levying Courses -Others 	 6,438,363 	 5,437,009
Other Internal Programmes 	 28,832,206 	 23,233,967
External Examination - Examination Fee 	 416,319,124 	 643,950,243
External Examination - Seminar Fee 	 28,355,315 	 28,585,755
Telecommunication/ Hostel 	 - 	 505,000
Others	  	 10,076,850      	 - 	

672,779,424 	 839,910,875

Provision for Retiring Gratuity 	 31

Balance as at 1st January 	 370,301,762 	 356,798,278
Add: Charge  for the year	  	 36,444,118      	 44,414,486 	

406,745,879 	 401,212,764
Less:  Payments made during the Year 	  	  (21,494,175) 	  (30,911,003)  
Balance as at 31st December 		  385,251,704 	 370,301,762

Provision for Contingent Liabilities 	 32

President of Labour Tribunal	  	 500,000      	 - 	
 	 500,000  	 -

Contingent Liabilities

No. of cases pending and its value:

Nine (9) cases (including cases filed in 2015)-value of six cases cannot be ascertained.  The rest is as follows:

	I ) 	 District Court Case No: 1538/L- Rs. 4,005,000 and  District Court Case No: 1225/L- Rs. 1,000,000

		T  his value is only for the purpose of stamp duty.  The University  is not expected to pay this money

	II )	 Supreme Court (Special Leave to Appeal) No: 191/15 -

		T  his is the application for leave to appeal from the judgement in CA(Writ) 39/13 . Value cannot be ascertained 
yet.

		  2015	 2014
	 Note	 Rs.	 Rs.
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Cases where the University may have to pay (damages) and financial provisions for such payments:

CA(Writ) 39/13 - In this case, the University has to pay back-wages to the petitioner up to the date of reinstatement 
together with a sum of Rs. 500,000/=.  Since an appeal is filed against this judgement, the exact amount of money 
payable cannot be ascertained yet.  However, if judgement is entered against the University, the amount of money that 
the University shall have to pay to the Petitioner by way of back-wages may exceed Rupees one Million.

Accounts Payable

Staff development programme

33

1,298,313 270,471
Sundry Deposits 3,216,024 5,165,893
Stamp Deposits 64,200 64,200
Tax Payable 231,186 4,223,082
Cancel cheques 1,529,296 759,686
Staff security deposits 64,269 61,062
Capital Expenses - 179,610,060
U.P.F. Payable - 3,257
N.B.T.Payable 156,970 -
E.S.C.Payable 215,924 -
Others  3,478,997  10,893,892

 10,255,179 201,051,604

Accrued Expenses	 34

Audit Fee		  1,034,708	 1,084,708
Personal Emoluments		  22,556,847	 649,013
Travelling Expenses		  118,002	 - 
Supplies Expenses		  2,435,289	 -
Stores Supplies		  5,843,834
Maintenance Expenses		  7,538,973	 684,325
Contractual Services		  34,685,465	 651,526
Other Recurrent Expenses		  22,061,421	 18,378,683
Others		  1,142,740	 64,048,279
Accrued Expenses of Fee levying Courses                                                     5,475,683                                       

 	 102,892,961  	 85,496,534

Refundable Deposits	 35
Tender Deposits                                                                                                    446,400	 658,900
Security Deposits		  54,046,121	 63,299,265
Library Deposits		  27,476,500	 19,554,500
Others - Hostel 		  -	 40,500  

81,969,021 	 83,553,165

	 Note	 2015	 2014
		  Rs.	 Rs.
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STATEMENT OF THE COMPARISON OF  BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS - 2015

Category/Object Title Revised Budget 2015

Rs.

Actual 2015

Rs.

%

Government Grant

Government Grants for Recurrent Expenditure 2,244,000,000 2,244,000,000 -

Other Income 288,061,000 896,154,171 (211.10)

Total Income 2,532,061,000 3,140,154,171 (24.02)

EXPENSES

Personal Emoluments 1,914,000,000 1,944,149,156 (1.58)

Personal Emoluments - Academic 1,345,000,000 1,355,809,409 (0.80)

Personal Emoluments -Non Academic 569,000,000 588,339,747 (3.40)

Travelling Expenses 5,000,000 4,745,616 5.09
Domestic 1,000,000 904,965 9.50
Foreign 4,000,000 3,840,651 3.98

Supplies 82,900,000 78,827,519 4.91

Stationery and Office Requisites 36,700,000 32,816,921 10.58

Fuel & Lubricants 9,700,000 9,691,797 0.08

Uniforms 2,800,000 2,747,491 1.88

Mechanical & Electrical goods 4,000,000 3,938,541 1.54

Chemicals & Glassware 11,900,000 11,868,803 0.26

Medical Supplies 800,000 773,256 3.34
Other 17,000,000 16,990,710 0.05

Maintenance Expenditure 24,405,000 24,512,535 (0.44)

Vehicles 7,400,000 7,506,637 (1.44)

Plant, Machinery and Equipments 16,000,000 15,998,239 0.01

Buildings and Structures 960,000 960,854 (0.09)

Furniture 40,000 41,705 (4.26)

Other 5,000 5,100 (2.00)

Contractual Services 291,221,000 272,815,796 6.32

Transport 21,000 21,000 -

Postal and Communication 42,200,000 42,246,914 (0.11)
Electricity &  Water 122,150,000 119,400,402 2.25
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Category/Object Title Revised Budget 2015

Rs.

Actual 2015

Rs.

%

Rates and Local Taxes 4,300,000 4,507,061 (4.82)

Rental and Hire Chargers 8,400,000 8,400,070 (0.00)
Security Services 33,500,000 33,340,643 0.48
Cleaning Services 27,300,000 26,943,614 1.31
Printing Advertising etc., 42,050,000 26,279,075 37.51
Other 11,300,000 11,677,017 (3.34)

Other Recurrent Expenditure 214,535,000 212,996,584 0.72

Travel grants to University Teachers
Special Services - Council & Committees 2,400,000 2,388,001 0.50

-Do-            Professional & Other Fees 85,000 85,500 (0.59)
Workshops, Seminars 7,900,000 7,885,316 0.19

Academic Research & Publications 3,500,000 3,642,111 (4.06)
Staff Development (Training for Teachers, Administrators
& Other Employees)

3,500,000 3,460,840 1.12

Postgraduate Research & Scholarships 500,000 325,165 34.97
Course Materials for Students & Learning Quality
Improvement

1,500,000 1,500,000 -

Industry Internships, practical & career guidance 783,000 783,000 -
Students’ Development Initiatives & Community Relations 26,000 26,000 -

University Sports Activities 550,000 1,508,894 (174.34)

Student welfare, employee welfare, student councils &
social harmony

750,000 750,000 -

Corporate planning, Governance and Outreach
Grants to other Organizations 1,900,000 1,856,791 2.27
Interest subsidy on property loan
Holiday Warrants Season Tickets 2,400,000 2,369,805 1.26
Entertainment Expenses 2,100,000 2,015,722 4.01
Bank Charges

Awards & Indemnities 160,000 157,570 1.52

Contributions & Membership Fees 2,200,000 2,214,842 (0.67)

Convocations 6,300,000 6,248,750 0.81

Examination Expenses 66,900,000 65,629,067 1.90

Expenditure on Extension Projects
108,981,000 108,095,213 0.81

Expenditure on Postgraduate Courses

Other 2,100,000 2,053,997 2.19

Total Expenditure 2,532,061,000 2,538,047,206 (0.24)

10-925/3
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Miscellaneous Departmental Notices
the  DFCC  Bank  PLC

Notice of Resolution passed by the DFFC Bank 
PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by 

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

In terms of Section 08 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 it is hereby notified 
that the following Resolution was unanimously passed on 
the 27th September, 2018 by the Board of Directors of 
DFCC Bank PLC.

board resolution

Whereas Kurubule Gamage Indula Gamage of Ampara has 
made default in payments due on Mortgage Bond Nos. 785 
and 813 dated 03rd October, 2016 and 28th February, 2017 
respectively both attested by Sasika N. S. De Silva, Notary 
Public in favour of DFCC Bank PLC. (successor to DFCC 
Vardhana Bank PLC).

And whereas there is as at 31st July, 2018 due and 
owing from the said Kurubule Gamage Indula Gamage 
to the DFCC Bank PLC on the aforesaid Mortgage Bond  
Nos. 785 and 813 a sum of Rupees Seven Million Five 
Hundred Eighty-three Thousand Seven Hundred and Fifty-
nine and Cents Fourteen (Rs. 7,583,759.14) together with 
interest thereon from 01st August, 2018 to date of Sale on 
a sum of Rupees Four Million One Hundred Ninety-nine 
Thousand Nine Hundred Eighty-two (Rs. 4,199,982.00)  at 
the rate of Eight per centum (8.0%) per annum above the 
Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) rounded 
upwards to the nearest higher 0.5% per annum and on a 
sum of Rupees Three Million One Hundred Eighty-eight 
Thousand and Eight Hundred and Seventy-six and Cents 
Seventy-nine (Rs. 3,188,876.79) at an interest rate of Twenty 
Eight Per Centum (28%) per annum.

And whereas the Board of Directors of the DFCC Bank 
PLC under the powers vested in them by the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 
do hereby resolve that the land, building and premises 
described below mortgaged to DFCC Bank PLC by the 
aforesaid Mortgage Bond Nos785 and 813 by Kurubule 
Gamage Indula Gamage be sold by Public Auction by I. W. 
Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer of Kandy for the recovery 
of the said sum of Rupees Seven Million Five Hundred 
Eighty-three Thousand Seven Hundred and Fifty-nine and 
Cents Fourteen (Rs. 7,583,759.14) together with interest 
thereon from 01st August, 2018 to date of Sale on a sum of 
Rupees Four Million One Hundred Ninety-nine Thousand 
Nine Hundred Eighty-two (Rs. 4,199,982.00)  at the rate 
of Eight per centum (8.0%) per annum above the Average 

Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) rounded upwards to 
the nearest higher 0.5% per annum and on a sum of Rupees 
Three Million One Hundred Eighty-eight Thousand and 
Eight Hundred and Seventy-six and Cents Seventy-nine  
(Rs. 3,188,876.79) at an interest rate of Twenty Eight 
Per Centum (28%) per annum or  any portion thereof 
remaining unpaid at the time of Sale together with the cost 
of advertising and selling the said land and premises and 
all monies expended and costs and other charges incurred 
by the DFCC Bank PLC in accordance with the covenants 
of the aforesaid Mortgage Bonds in terms of Section 13 of 
the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,  
No. 04 of 1990.

Description of the Property Mortgaged 
by Mortgage Bond NOs. 785 and 813

An allotment of land depicted as Lot A in Plan No. 
15/2010 dated 10.02.2010 made by K. G. Amaradewa, 
Licensed Surveyor being a resurvey of Lot 44 in Plan No. 
PP/AM/1223 dated 06.12.1986 surveyed by Superintendent 
of Surveyor on behalf of the Surveyor situated at Zone B 
in Grama Niladhari's Division of Jayawardhanapura within 
the Urban Council and Divisional Secretariat Division of 
Ampara in Wewgampattu in the District of Ampara, Eastern 
Province and which said Lot B is bounded on the :

North by	 -	 Lot 37 in PP/AM/1223,
East by	 -	 Land and Buddangala Road,
South by	 -	 Lot 45 in PP/AM/1223,
West by	 -	 Lot 43 in PP/AM/1223.

Containing in extent Nought Decimal Nought Five Five 
Nought Hectares (0.0550 Hec) or Twenty One Decimal 
Seven Perches (0A., 0R., 21.7P.) together with everything 
standing thereon and registered in the Ampara Land Registry 
and together with the Right of Way over along the roads in 
the said plan.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary,
	 DFCC Bank PLC.

10-1199

the  DFCC Bank PLC

Notice of Resolution passed by the DFFC Bank 
PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by 

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990

In terms of Section 08 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified 
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that the following Resolution was unanimously passed on 
the 27th September, 2018 by the Board of Directors of 
DFCC Bank PLC.

board resolution

Whereas Rathnayake Mudiyanselage Madduma Bandara 
of Kiribathgoda has made default in payments due on 
Mortgage Bond No. 28166 dated 17.02.2012 attested by  
R. M. N. W. Rajakaruna Notary Public and Mortgage Bond 
No. 1063 dated 30.09.2016 attested by Ruwanthi Fonseka, 
Notary Public all in favour of DFCC Bank PLC. (successor 
to DFCC Vardhana Bank PLC).

And whereas there is as at 28th February, 2018 due and 
owing from the said Rathnayake Mudiyanselage Madduma 
Bandara to the DFCC Bank PLC on the aforesaid Mortgage 
Bond Nos. 28166 and 1063 a sum of Rupees Six Million 
Three Hundred Eleven Thousand and Six Hundred Forty and 
Cents Forty-two (Rs. 6,311,640.42) together with interest 
thereon from 01st March, 2018 to date of Sale on a sum of 
Rupees Five Million Seventy-two Thousand Eight Hundred 
and Seventy-six and Cents Ninety-three (Rs. 5,072,876.93)  
at the rate of Seven Decimal Five per centum (7.5%) per 
annum above the Weighted Average Prime Lending Rate 
(AWPR) which will be revised every three months on the 
first day of business in the months of January, April, July 
and October each year and a sum of Rupees Six Hundred 
Fourteen Thousand and Five Hundred Fifty-seven and Cents 
Thirty-five (Rs. 614,557.35) at the rate of Eight Decimal 
Five per centum (8.5%) per annum above the Weighted 
Average Prime Lending Rate (AWPR SPOT) which will 
be revised every month on the first business day of each 
month. (Subject to a floor rate of Eighteen Decimal Five Per 
Centum (18.5%) per annum).

And whereas the Board of Directors of the DFCC Bank 
PLC under the powers vested in them by the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 do 
hereby resolve that the land and premises described below 
mortgaged to DFCC Bank PLC by the aforesaid Mortgage 
Bond Nos. 28166 and 1063 by Rathnayake Mudiyanselage 
Madduma Bandara be sold by Public Auction by Thusith 
Karunaratne, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for the 
recovery of the said sum of Rupees Six Million Three 
Hundred Eleven Thousand and Six Hundred Forty and 
Cents Forty-two (Rs. 6,311,640.42) together with interest 
thereon from 01st March, 2018 to the date of Sale on a 
sum of Rupees Five Million Seventy-two Thousand Eight 
Hundred and Seventy-six and Cents Ninety-three (Rs. 
5,072,876.93) at the rate of Seven Decimal Five per centum 
(7.5%) per annum above the Weighted Average Prime 
Lending Rate (AWPR) which will be revised every three 
months on the first day of business in the months of January, 
April, July and October each year and on a sum of Rupees 

Six Hundred Fourteen Thousand and Five Hundred Fifty-
seven and Cents Thirty-five (Rs. 614,557.35) at the rate of 
Eight Decimal Five per centum (8.5%) per annum above 
the Weighted Average Prime Lending Rate (AWPR SPOT) 
which will be revised every month on the first business day 
of each month. (Subject to a floor rate of Eighteen Decimal 
Five Per Centum (18.5%) per annum) or  any portion thereof 
remaining unpaid at the time of Sale together with the cost 
of advertising and selling the said land and premises and 
all monies expended and costs and other charges incurred 
by the DFCC Bank PLC in accordance with the covenants 
of the aforesaid Mortgage Bonds in terms of Section 13 of 
the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,  
No. 4 of 1990.

Description of the Property Mortgaged 
by Mortgage Bond NOs. 28166 and 1063

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot A depicted in Plan No. 5215A dated 15.12.2011 made 
by S. P. R. Pathiraja, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
Kongahawatta situated at Dalugama in Adikari Pattu 
of Siyane Korale in the District of Gampaha Western 
Province and which said Lot A is bounded on the North by 
Lots Land of P. D. M. Lal Priyantha (bearing Assessment  
No. 14 of Nursing Home Road) and part of same land, 
East by part of same land and Land of B. Akmeemana  
(bearing Assessment No. 16  of  Kandy Road), South by Land of  
Y. K. R. Palihakkara (bearing Assessment No. 15/2 of 
Nursing Home Road), West by Road and containing in 
extent Twenty Perches (0A., 0R., 20.0P.) and together with 
the buildings, trees, plantations and everything else standing 
thereon.

Together with the right to use the road reservations marked 
Lot 7 and Lot 12 depicted in Plan No. 2140 dated 05.09.1977 
made by H. Anil Peiris, Licensed Surveyor.

Said Lot A is a resurvey of the following allotment of land:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 08 depicted in Plan No. 2140 dated 05.09.1977 made 
by H. Anil Peiris, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
Kongahawatta situated at Dalugama in Adikari Pattu of 
Siyane Korale in the District of Gampaha Western Province 
and which said Lot 8 is bounded on the North by Lots 6 and 
7, East by property of M. J. V. Dias, South by Lot 9, West 
by Lots 7 and 12 and containing in extent Twenty Perches 
(0A., 0R., 20.0P.) and together with the buildings, trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon registered 
at the Colombo Land Registry.
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Held and possessed under and by virtue of Deed  
No. 1190 dated 17.02.2012 attested by P. D. C. Wijesuriya, 
Notary Public.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary,
	 DFCC Bank PLC.

10-1198

commercial  bank of ceylon  plc

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC (Registration 
No. PQ 116) under Section 4 of the Recovery of 

Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,  
No. 04 of 1990

Loan Account No. : 1580415.
Jainul Abdeen Fuard Marikkar,
Fuard Marikkar Mohamed Feroz.

At a meeting held on 30th July, 2018 the Board of Directors 
of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC resolved specially and 
unanimously as follows:

Whereas Jainul Abdeen Fuard Marikkar and Fuard 
Marikkar Mohamed Feroz as the Obligors and Jainul 
Abdeen Fuard Marikkar as the Mortgagor have made 
default in the payment due on Bond Nos. 10083 dated 
27th August, 2012 and 10150 dated 16th July, 2013 both 
attested by A. O. R. Fernando, Notary Public of Kandy in 
favour of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC and there is 
now due and owing to the Commercial Bank of Ceylon 
PLC as at 1st May, 2018 a sum of Rupees Eight Million 
One Hundred and Sixty-eight Thousand Four Hundred 
and Eighteen and Cents Eighty-two (Rs. 8,168,418.82) on 
the said Bonds and the Board of Directors of Commercial 
Bank of Ceylon PLC under the powers vested by 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 4 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the property and 
premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto and 
mortgaged to the Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC by 
the said Bond Nos. 10083 and 10150 be sold by Public 
Auction by Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer 
of No. 369/1, Dutugemunu Mawatha, Lewella Road, 
Mawilmada, Kandy for the recovery of the said sum 
of Rupees Eight Million One Hundred and Sixty-eight 
Thousand Four Hundred and Eighteen and Cents Eighty-
two (Rs. 8,168,418.82) with further interest on a sum of 
Rs. 7,624,000.00 at 15.5% per annum from 02nd May, 
2018 to date of sale together with Costs of  Advertising 

and any other charges incurred less payments (if any) 
since received.

The Schedule 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 2 of Nugadandawe hena (now watta) depicted in Plan  
No. 364 dated 22nd July, 2006 made by S. A. Dissanayake,  
L. S. of Kandy bearing Assessment No. 249/1 (part) 
Katugastota Road (being part of land shown in Plan  
No. 158 dated 3rd March, 1954 by R. M. D. Silva, L.S. and 
part of Lot 1 in Plan No. 1709 dated 07.02.2003 by S. M. K. 
B. Mawalagedara, L.S. prepared in connection with D. C. 
Kandy Case No. 15313) situated at Palle Mahaiyawa within 
Grama Niladhari Division of Pitakandagama - 250 Divisional 
Secretariat Division of Gangawata Korale within the 
Municipal Limits of Kandy in the District of Kandy Central 
Province and which said Lot 2 is being bounded according to 
the said Plan No. 364 on the North by Road and drain marked 
Lot 1 in the same plan, on the East by Nugadande Hena (Part 
of) Garden Assessment No. 249/1 (part) Katugastota Road, 
on the South by Lot 3 above as access in the same Plan and 
on the West by Road containing in extent Twelve Perches  
(0A., 0R., 12P.) together with the right of way over and along 
the said allotment marked Lot 3 in common and together 
with the building bearing Asst. No. 249/1 and everything 
standing thereon and Registered in folio A 438/211 at the 
Land Registry Kandy.

Which said Land has since been resurveyed described as 
follows :

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 in Plan No. 3523 dated 26.03.2007 made by Susiri 
Ekanayake, L. S. out of the land called ‘Nugadandawe 
Hena’ (now watta) situated at Palle Mahaiyawa within 
Pitakandagama - 250 Grama Niladhari Division within the  
Municipal Limits of Kandy in the District of Kandy Central 
Province containing in extent Twelve Perches (0A., 0R., 
12P.) and is bounded on the North-east by Ela separating 
Nugadande Kumbura claimed by Central Finance Company, 
on the South-east by part of Nugadande Hena Asst. 249/1, 
Katugastota Road, on the South and South-west by Road 
leading to Houses and on the North-west by Road from 
Houses to Katugastota Road together with everything 
standing thereon.

	 Mrs. Ranjani Gamage,
	 Company Secretary.

10-1172



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2018'10'19

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 19.10.2018
1698

Sampath  Bank  PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

S. Sriharan and S. S. Nitharshini.
A/C No. : 0170 5000 6611.

At a meeting held on 30.08.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Sriramachandran Sriharan and 
Sriramachandran Sri Nitharshini in the Democratic 
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligors and the 
and Sriramachandran Sri Nitharshini as the Mortgagor 
have made default in the repayment of the credit facilities 
granted against the security of the property and premises 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged 
and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bonds No. 3813 
dated 31st January, 2017 and 3899 dated 22nd May, 
2017 both attested by P. A. Punethanayagam of Vavuniya 
Notary Public in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding 
Company Registration No. PQ 144 and having its 
Registered Office at No. 110, Sir James Peiris Mawatha, 
Colombo 02 and there is now due and owing  on the 
said Bonds bearing Nos. 3813 and 3899 to Sampath 
Bank PLC aforesaid as at 26th July, 2018 a sum of 
Rupees Twenty-six Million Six Hundred and Fifty-five 
Thousand Seven Hundred and Twenty-six and Cents 
Thirty-five Only (Rs. 26,655,726.35) of lawful money 
of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding on the 
said Bonds and the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank 
PLC aforesaid under the  powers vested by the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 
1990 do hereby resolve that the property and premises 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged 
to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security for the said 
credit facilities by the said Bonds bearing Nos. 3813 and 
3899 to be sold in public auction by P. K. E. Senapathi, 
Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for the recovery of the 
said sum of Rupees Twenty-six Million Six Hundred and 
Fifty-five Thousand Seven Hundred and Twenty-six and 
Cents Thirty-five Only (Rs. 26,655,726.35) together with 
further interest on a sum of Rupees Nineteen Million Four 
Hundred and Forty Thousand Six Hundred and Twenty-
six and Cents Forty-two only (Rs. 19,440,626.42) at  the 
rate of Sixteen decimal Five per centum (16.5%) per 
annum from 27th July, 2018 to date of satisfaction of the 
total debt due upon the said Bonds bearing Nos. 3813 and 

3899 together with costs of advertising and other charges 
incurred less payments (if any) since received.

The schedule

All divided and defined allotment of the land called 
“Maharambaikkulam” depicted as Lot No. 02 in Plan 
No. 25293 dated 16th September, 2005 prepared by  
S. Visuvaratnam, Licensed Surveyor and as Lot No. 01 in 
Plan No. 3086 dated 27th January, 2017 prepared by K. V. 
Sivakumaran, Licensed Surveyor and containing in extent 
Zero Decimal One Zero One Two Hectares (0.1012 Hec) 
or One Rood (0A., 1R., 0P.) situated at Maharambaikkulam 
Village, Maharambaikkulam 215A Grama Niladhari's 
Division, Vavuniya Divisional Secretariat within the 
Vavuniya South Tamil Pradeshiya Sabha Limits, Vavuniya 
District Northerm Province and bounded as follows ;

North	: by Path,
East	 : by Lot 03 in Plan No. 25293 aforesaid,
South	: by Lot 01 in Plan No. 25293 aforesaid,
West	 : by Lot 01 in Plan No. 25293 aforesaid.

The whole within the said boundaries. Registered in 
Volume/ Folio LDO A 32/13 at the Land Registry, Vavuniya.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1208

Sampath  Bank  PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

Nithika Sadya Bekariya.
A/C No. : 0031 1000 6801.

At a meeting held on 30.08.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Wijesinghe Pathiranage Priyanka Nishantha 
being the Sole Proprietor of the business carried on in 
the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka under 
the name and style of “Nithika Sadya Bekariya” as the 
Obligor has made default in the repayment of the credit 
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facilities granted against the security of the property and 
premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond  
No. 2719 dated 31st March, 2017 attested Y. N. 
Delpechitra of Colombo Notary Public in favour of 
Sampath Bank PLC holding Company Registration  
No. PQ 144 and having its Registered Office at No. 110, Sir 
James Peiris Mawatha, Colombo 02 and there is now due 
and owing  on the said Bond No. 2719 to Sampath Bank 
PLC aforesaid as at 07th August, 2018 a sum of Rupees  
Twenty-seven Million Seven Hundred and Seventy-
one Thousand Ninety-five and Cents Twenty-three only  
(Rs. 27,771,095.23) of lawful money of Sri Lanka 
being the total amount outstanding on the said Bond 
and the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank PLC 
under the  powers vested by the Recovery of Loans 
by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do 
hereby resolve that the property and premises morefully 
described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged to Sampath 
Bank PLC aforesaid as security for the said credit 
facilities by the said Bonds No. 2719 to be sold in public 
auction by P. K. E. Senapathi, Licensed Auctioneer of 
Colombo for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees  
Twenty-seven Million Seven Hundred and Seventy-
one Thousand Ninety-five and Cents Twenty-three only  
(Rs. 27,771,095.23) together with further interest on a 
sum of Rupees Twenty-six Million One Hundred and 
Twenty-four Thousand Eight Hundred and Eighty-
nine and Cent Thirty-four only (Rs. 26,124,889.34) 
at an interest rate of Sixteen decimal Five per centum 
(16.5%) per annum from 08th August, 2018 to date of 
satisfaction of the total debt due upon the said Bonds  
No. 2719 together with costs of advertising and other 
charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot Y depicted in Plan No. 487 dated 17th October, 2010 
made by C. Padukka, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Godaporagahalanda” together with the trees, plantations 
and everything else standing thereon bearing Assessment 
No. 460, Bandaragama Road situated at Makandana Village 
within the Grama Niladhari Division of Makandana East - 
539 in the Divisional Secretariat of Kesbewa within the Urban 
Council Limits of Kesbewa in Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale 
in the District of Colombo Western Province and which said 
Lot Y is bounded on the North by land claimed by heirs 
of M. Gunarathna, on the East by Road and Lot 2 in Plan  
No. 439, on the South by Lot 2 in Plan No. 439 and on 
the West by land claimed by heirs of M. Gunarathne and 
containing in extent Seventeen Decimal Two Eight Perches 
(0A., 0R., 17.28P.) according to the said Plan No. 487 and 

registered in Volume/ Folio C 734/25 at the Land Registry, 
Delkanda.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1212/1

Sampath Bank PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

M. G. R. S. Ferdinandez.
A/C No. : 0052 5000 2809.

At a meeting held on 27.09.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Maggona Gurunnanselage Rukman Senan 
Ferdinandez in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri 
Lanka as the Obligor has made default in the repayment 
of the credit facilities granted against the security of the 
property and premises morefully described in the Schedule 
hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage 
Bonds Nos. 1709 dated 28th October, 2014, 1995 dated 
12th May, 2015 both attested by C. G. Abeywickrama 
and 3160 dated 29th December, 2017 attested by Y. N. 
Delpachithre of Colombo Notaries Public in favour 
of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company Registration  
No. PQ 144 and having its Registered Office at  
No. 110, Sir James Peiris Mawatha, Colombo 02 and 
there is now due and owing  on the said Bond bearing  
Nos. 1709, 1995 and 3160 to Sampath Bank PLC 
aforesaid as at 12th September, 2018 a sum of Rupees  
Thirty Million Five Hundred and Twenty-nine Thousand 
Ten and Cents Forty-three Only (Rs. 30,529,010.43) 
of lawful money of Sri Lanka being the total amount 
outstanding on the said Bonds and the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid under the  powers vested 
by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the property 
and premises morefully described in the Schedule 
hereto mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as 
security for the said credit facilities by the said Bonds  
Nos. 1709, 1995 and 3160 to be sold in public auction 
by P. K. E. Senapathi, Licensed Auctioneer of Kandy for 
the recovery of the said sum of Rupees  Thirty Million 
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Five Hundred and Twenty-nine Thousand Ten and Cents 
Forty-three Only (Rs. 30,529,010.43) together with 
further interest on a sum of Rupees Eight Million Four 
Hundred and Eighty Thousand Three Hundred and Forty-
three and Cents Ninety-one only (Rs. 8,480,343.91) at 
the rate of Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate + Four 
decimal Five per centum (4.5%) per annum (Floor rate of 
16.5%) further interest on a sum of Rupees Nine Million 
One Hundred and Thirty Thousand Eight Hundred and 
Sixty-eight and Cents Fifty-nine only (Rs. 9,130,868.59) 
at the rate of Fifteen per centum (15%) per annum further 
interest on a sum of Rupees Four Million Eight Hundred 
Thousand Only (Rs. 4,800,000.00) at the rate of Average 
Weighted Prime Lending Rate + Three decimal Five per 
centum (3.5%) per annum (Floor rate of 12%) and further 
interest on a sum of Rupees Six Million Eight Hundred 
and Twelve Thousand Only (Rs. 6,812,000.00) at the 
rate of Sixteen decimal Five per centum (16.5%) per 
annum from 13th September, 2018 to date of Satisfaction 
of the total debt due upon the said Bonds bearing  
Nos. 1709, 1995 and 3160 together with costs of 
advertising and other charges incurred less payments (if 
any) since received.

The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 3B depicted in Plan No. 2568 dated 28th June, 2014 
made by P. M. Sunil, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Sambuddhi Eriyagahawatta” together with the trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon bearing 
Assessment No. 1035, Avissawella Road situated at Kottawa 
within the Grama Niladhari Division of Kottawa East 496A 
in the Divisional Secretariat of Maharagama and within 
the Urban Council Limits of Maharagama in Palle Pattu 
of Hewagam Korale in the District of Colombo Western 
Province and which said Lot 3B is bounded on the North by 
Lot 3A hereof, on the East by Lot A4 in Plan No. 887 hereof, 
on the South by Lot 3C hereof and on the West by Lot 6 in 
Plan No. 1921 (Road 10ft. wide) and containing in extent 
Fifteen Perches  (0A., 0R., 15P.) according to the said Plan 
No. 2568 and registered in Volume/ Folio C 166/91 at the 
Land Registry, Homagama.

Together with the right of way in over and along Lot 
6 (Reservation for a Road 10 feet wide) depicted in Plan  
No. 1921 dated 14th January, 1985 made by  
D. Kapugeekiyana, Licensed Surveyor.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1212/2

Sampath Bank PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

New Asiri Lanka Car Sales.
A/C No. : 0040 1000 4522.

At a meeting held on 27.09.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Singappuli Arachchige Mandhira Kalpanie 
Panchali Perera and Singappuli Arachchige Danuka 
Nuwan Perera being the Partners of the business carried 
on  in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka 
under the name, style and firm of “New Asiri Lanka Car 
Sales” as the Obligors and the said Singappuli Arachchige 
Mandhira Kalpanie Panchali Perera as the Mortgagor 
have made default in the repayment of the credit facilities 
granted against the security of the property and premises 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged 
and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bonds Nos. 3890 
dated 03rd March, 2014 attested by R. G. D. Sunari and 
1293 dated 21st March, 2017 attested by T. Karunathilake 
both of Colombo Notary Public in favour of Sampath 
Bank PLC holding Company Registration No. PQ 144 
and there is now due and owing on the said Bonds Nos. 
3890 and 1293 to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 15th 
August, 2018 a sum of Rupees  Fifty-nine Million Two 
Hundred and Eleven Thousand Nine Hundred and Fifty-
eight and Cents Seventy-six only (Rs. 59,211,958.76) 
of lawful money of Sri Lanka being the total amount 
outstanding on the said Bonds and the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under the  powers vested by the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the property 
and premises morefully described in the Schedule 
hereto mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as 
security for the said credit facilities by the said Bonds 
Nos. 3890 and 1293 to be sold in public auction by  
P. K. E. Senapathi, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo 
for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees  Fifty-nine 
Million Two Hundred and Eleven Thousand Nine 
Hundred and Fifty-eight and Cents Seventy-six Only  
(Rs. 59,211,958.76) together with further interest on a 
sum of Rupees Forty Million only (Rs. 40,000,000.00) 
at the rate of Sixteen decimal Five per centum (16.5%) 
per annum, further interest on a sum of Rupees Sixteen 
Million Five Hundred and Ninety-nine Thousand 
Five Hundred and Thirty and Cents Twenty-one only  
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(Rs. 16,599,530.21) at the rate of Average Weighted 
Prime Lending Rate + Four per centum (4%) per annum 
from 16th August, 2018 to date of satisfaction of the total 
debt due upon the said Bonds bearing Nos. 3890 and 
1293 together with costs of advertising and other charges 
incurred less payments (if any) since received.

The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
X depicted in Plan No. 7838 dated 04th January, 2014 made 
by Cyril Wickramage, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Puswellahena” together with the soils, tress, plantations, 
buildings and everything else standing thereon bearing 
Assessment No. 173/1, Borella Road situated at Depanama 
Grama Niladhari Division in 529A, Pannipitiya South 
within the Urban Council Limits of Maharagama Divisional 
Secretariat of Maharagama in Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale 
in the District of Colombo Western Province and which 
said Lot X is bounded on the North by Puswellahena (Part) 
(Lot A2 in Plan No. 204B), on the East by Lot A1 in Plan  
No. 204B and Lots 1B and 1C (15 ft. wide Road) in Plan  
No. 238B, on the South by Lot 4 in Plan No. 173 
(Puswellaheana (part) and Lots 1D, 3B and 4 in Plan No. 
238B and on the West by lands of Late Arnolis and others 
and containing in extent One Rood Ten Decimal Two 
Perches  (0A., 1R., 10.2P.) or 0.1270 Ha according to the 
said Plan No. 7838.

Which said Lot X is a resurvey of land described below :-

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 3A depicted in Plan No. 238B dated 10th February, 1992 
made by P. Felix Dias, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Puswellahena” together with the soils, tress, plantations, 
buildings and everything else standing thereon situated at 
Depanama aforesaid and which said Lot 3A is bounded on 
the North by Lot A in Plan No. 204C), on the East by Lots 
1B, 1C (Reservation for Road 15 feet wide) and 4 hereof, on 
the South by Lots 3B, 4 and Lot 4 in Plan No. 173 of D. J. 
Nanayakkara, Licensed Surveyor and on the West by State 
playground and property of heirs of Arnolis Mudalali and 
containing in extent One Rood Ten Decimal Two Naught 
Perches  (0A., 1R., 10.20P.) or 0.1270 Ha according to 
the said Plan No. 238B and registered in Volume/ Folio B 
190/51 at the Land Registry, Delkanda.

Together with the right of ways on over and along :-

	 1.	 Lot 2 (Reservation for 10 feet wide Road) depicted 
in Plan No. 173 dated 09th June, 1957 made by D. J. 
Nanayakkara, Licensed Surveyor.

	 2.	 Lot 2 (Reservation for 10 feet wide Road) depicted in 
Plan No. 283A dated 24th September, 1991 made by 
P. Felix, Licensed Surveyor.

	 3.	 Lot 1C (Reservation for 15 feet wide Road) depicted 
in Plan No. 283B dated 10th February, 1992 made by 
P. Felix, Licensed Surveyor.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1212/3

Sampath Bank PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

1. Sunwin Enterprises
2. D. D. S. Dhanapala and G. A. U. De Alwis
A/C Nos. : 0173 1000 2062 and 0173 5000 2650.

At a meeting held on 30.08.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Don Devaka Susil Dhanapala and Galhenage 
Amitha Udayani De Alwis in the Democratic Socialist 
Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligors have made default 
in the repayment of the credit facility grated against the 
security of the property and premises morefully described 
in the Schedule hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by 
the Mortgage Bond No. 2190 dated 19th September, 
2016 attested by G. N. M. Kodagoda of Colombo Notary 
Public in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company 
Registration No. PQ 144.

And whereas Don Devaka Susil Dhanapala and 
Amitha Udayani De Alwis being the Partners of the 
business carried on in the Democratic Socialist Republic 
of Sri Lanka under the name, style and firm of “Sunwin 
Enterprises” as the Obligors have made default in the 
repayment of the credit facility grated against the security 
of the property and premises morefully described in the 
Schedule hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the 
Mortgage Bond No. 2192 dated 19th September, 2016 
attested by G. N. M. Kodagoda of Colombo Notary 
Public in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company 
Registration No. PQ 144.

And there is now due and owing on the said Bonds 
Nos. 2190 and 2192 to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 
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02nd August, 2018 a sum of Rupees Twelve Million Six 
Hundred and Four Thousand Five Hundred and Ninety-
seven and Cents Eighteen Only (Rs. 12,604,597.18) 
of lawful money of Sri Lanka being the total amount 
outstanding on the said Bonds and the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under the powers vested by the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the property and 
premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security for 
the said credit facilities by the said Bonds Nos. 2190 and 
2192 to be sold in public auction by P. K. E. Senapathi, 
Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for the recovery of the 
said sum of Rupees Twelve Million Six Hundred and 
Four Thousand Five Hundred and Ninety-seven and 
Cents Eighteen Only (Rs. 12,604,597.18) together with 
further interest on a sum of Rupees Two Million Twenty-
two Thousand Ninety-nine and Cents Thirty-seven Only 
(Rs. 2,022,099.37) at the rate of Thirteen decimal Five 
per centum (13.5%) per annum, further interest on a sum 
of Rupees Nine Million Three Hundred Thousand Only  
(Rs. 9,300,000.00) at the rate of Fifteen per centum (15%) 
per annum from 03rd August, 2018 to date of satisfaction 
of the total debt due upon the said Bonds bearing  
Nos. 2190 and 2192 together with costs of advertising 
and other charges incurred less payments (if any) since 
received.

The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
A depicted in Plan No. 07/2007 dated 19th January, 2007 
made by B. Ranatunge, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Delgahawatta” together with the soil, tress, plantations, 
buildings and everything else standing thereon situated at 
Gothatuwa in the Grama Niladhari Division of No. 513B- 
Elhena in Divisional Secretariat Division of Kolonnawa and 
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Kotikawatta - Mulleriyawa in 
Ambatalen Pahala Aluthkuru Korale South in the District 
of Colombo Western Province and which said Lot A is 
bounded on the North by Lot 1A in Plan No. 4526, on the 
East by Morawitiya Lane, on the South by 10ft. wide Road 
and on the West by Path and containing in extent Eleven 
decimal Two Naught Perches (0A., 0R., 11.20P.) according 
to the said Plan No. 07/2007.

Which said Lot A is a resurvey of the land described as 
follows :-

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
1B depicted in Plan No. 4526 dated 18th December, 1986 
made by G. L. B. Nanayakkara, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called “Delgahawatta” together with the soil, tress, 
plantations, buildings and everything else standing thereon 
situated at Gothatuwa aforesaid and which said Lot 1B is 
bounded on the North by Land of K. Chandrasiri Perera 

and others, on the East by Morawitiya Road, on the South 
by 10 ft. wide Road and on the West by Path and land of 
Yasapala Perera and containing in extent Eleven decimal 
Eight Perches (0A., 0R., 11.8P.) according to the said Plan 
No. 4526 and registered in Volume/ Folio F 215/27 at the 
Land Registry Colombo.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1212/4

Sampath Bank PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

Southern Aviation Services (Private) Limited.
A/C No. : 0031 1000 6925.

At a meeting held on 26.07.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Southern Aviation Services (Private) Limited 
a company duly incorporated under the Companies Laws 
of Sri Lanka bearing Registration No. PV 90937 in the 
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligor 
and Pahalage Samith Chandana Abeygunawardena as the 
Mortgagor have made default in the repayment of the 
credit facility granted against the security of the property 
and premises morefully described in the Schedule 
hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage 
Bond No. 2067 dated 29th January, 2016 attested by  
Y. N. Delpechitra of Colombo Notary Public in favour 
of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company Registration  
No. PQ 144 and there is now due and owing on the said 
Bond No. 2067 to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 
22nd June, 2018 a sum of Rupees Twelve Million Seven 
Hundred and Ninety-nine Thousand Three Hundred and 
Twenty-five and Cents Twenty only (Rs. 12,799,325.20) 
of lawful money of Sri Lanka being the total amount 
outstanding on the said Bond and the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under the powers vested by the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the property 
and premises morefully described in the Schedule 
hereto mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC by the said 
Bond bearing No. 2067 to be sold in public auction by  
I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer of Kandy for the 
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recovery of the said sum of Rupees Twelve Million Seven 
Hundred and Ninety-nine Thousand Three Hundred and 
Twenty-five and Cents Twenty Only (Rs. 12,799,325.20) 
together with further interest on a sum of Rupees Twelve 
Million Only (Rs. 12,000,000) at the rate of Eleven per 
centum (11%) per annum from 23rd June, 2018 to date 
of satisfaction of the total debt due upon the said Bond 
bearing No. 2067 together with costs of advertising 
and other charges incurred less payments (if any) since 
received.

The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
95 depicted in Plan No. 2002/207 dated 17th October, 2002 
made by I. T. Madola, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Elabodawatta, Dawatagahawatta, Kurundugahawatta, 
Magulkarandagahawatta and Gorakagahawatta alias 
Molewatta” together with building, soil, trees, plantations 
and everything standing thereon bearing Assessment 
No. 41/22, Adnews Road situated at 03rd Division of 
Periyamulla within the Grama Niladhari Division of 
Periyamulla within the Divisional Secretariat of Negombo 
within the Municipal Council Limits of Negombo in Dasiya 
Pattuwa of Aluthkuru Korale (A) in the District of Gampaha 
Western Province and which said Lot 95 is bounded on 
the North by Lot R2, on the East by Lot R5, on the South 
by Lot 96, on the West by Lot 97 and containing in extent 
Eight Perches (0A., 0R., 8P.) according to the said Plan  
No. 2000/207 and registered in Volume/ Folio G 57/73 at the 
Land Registry,Negombo.

Together with the right of way in over and along Lots R1, 
R2 and R5 depicted in the said Plan No. 2002/207.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1212/5

Sampath Bank PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

1. Thirani Beauty Center and 2. H. G. Peiris and S. T. D. 
Peiris.

A/C Nos. : 0017 1000 0189 and 0017 1000 0189.

At a meeting held on  26.07.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Halpawattege Geethal Ranjan Peiris and 
Sellapperumage Deepa Thirani Peiris in the Democratic 
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligors have 
made default in the repayment of the credit facilities 
granted against the security of the property and premises 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged 
and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond No. 971 
dated 19th July, 2013 attested by Y. N. Delpachithre of 
Colombo Notary Public in favour of Sampath Bank PLC 
holding Company Registration No. PQ 144.

And whereas Halpawattege Geethal Ranjan Peiris 
and Sellapperumage Deepa Thirani Peiris being the 
Partners of the business carried on in the Democratic 
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka under the name, style 
and firm of “Thirani Beauty Centre” as the Obligors have 
made default in the repayment of the credit facilities 
granted against the security of the property and premises 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged 
and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond No. 1363 dated 
27th May, 2014 both attested by Y. N. Delpachithre of 
Colombo Notary Public in favour of Sampath Bank PLC 
holding Company Registration No. PQ 144.

 And there is now due and owing on the said Bonds 
Nos. 971 and 1363 to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid 
as at 22nd June, 2018 a sum of Rupees Forty-nine 
Million Nine Hundred and Sixty-eight Thousand Three 
Hundred and Sixteen and Cents Twenty-eight Only  
(Rs. 49,968,316.28) of lawful money of Sri Lanka being 
the total amount outstanding on the said Bonds and 
the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank PLC under 
the powers vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve 
that the property and premises morefully described in 
the Schedule hereto mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC 
aforesaid as security for the said credit facilities by 
the said Bonds Nos. 971 and 1363 to be sold in public 
auction by I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer of 
Kandy for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Forty-
nine Million Nine Hundred and Sixty-eight Thousand 
Three Hundred and Sixteen and Cents Twenty-eight only  
(Rs. 49,968,316.28) together with further interest on a 
sum of Rupees Forty-three Million Two Hundred and 
Thirty-one Thousand Two Hundred and Ten and Cents 
Ninety-two only (Rs. 43,231,210.92) at the rate of 
Eleven per centum (11%) per annum, further interest on 
a sum of Rupees Eight Hundred and Fourteen Thousand 
One Hundred and Thirteen and Cents Seventy-nine only 
(Rs. 814,113.79) at the rate of Twelve per centum (12%) 
per annum, further interest on a further sum of Rupees 
Two Million Nine Hundred Thousand Four Hundred and 
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Ninety-eight and Cents Sixty-five (Rs. 2,900,498.65) 
at the rate of Eleven decimal Five per centum (11.5%) 
per annum, and further interest on a sum of Rupees 
Four Hundred and Ninety-eight Thousand Only  
(Rs. 498,000.00) at the rate of Thirteen per centum (13%) 
per annum from 23rd June, 2018 to date of satisfaction 
of the total debt due upon the said Bonds bearing  
Nos. 971 and 1363 together with costs of advertising 
and other charges incurred less payments (if any) since 
received.

The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot A depicted in Plan No. 4145 dated 12th May, 2013 
made by S. G. Ranasinghe, Licensed Surveyor, together 
with the soil, trees, plantation, buildings and everything else 
standing thereon bearing Assessment No. 19 and 19 - 1/1, 
Kinross Avenue situated at Bambalapitiya within the Grama 
Niladhari Divison of Thimbirigasyaya within the Divisional 
Secretariat of Thimbirigasyaya (Havelock Town) Municipal 
Council Limits of Colombo in Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale 
within the District of Colombo, Western Province and 
which is said Lot A is bounded on the North by Kinross 
Avenue, on the East by Premises bearing Assmt. No. 17, 
Kinross Avenue, on the South by Premises bearing Assmt.  
Nos. 16 and 18, Ridgeway Place, and on the West by 
Premises bearing Assmt. No. 21, Kinross Avenue and 
containing in the extent Nineteen Decimal Two Seven 
Perches (0A., 0R., 19.27P.) according to the said Plan  
No. 4145 and registered under Volume/ Folio E 14/113 at 
the Colombo Land Registry.

Which is Lot A being a recent resurvey of the land 
morefully described below :

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 09 depicted in Plan No. 3750 dated 03rd February, 1941 
made by E. M. Anthonisz, Licensed Surveyor, together with 
the soils, trees, plantation, buildings and everything else 
standing thereon bearing Assessment No. 19 and 19 - 1/1, 
Kinross Avenue situated at Bambalapitiya aforesaid and 
which is said Lot 09 is bounded on the North by Kinross 
Avenue, on the East by Lot No. 08 in the said Plan No. 3750, 
on the South by Premises bearing Premises baring Assmt. 
No. 16 Ridgeway Place and on the West by Lot No. 10 in 
the said Plan No. 3750 and containing in the extent Ninteen 
Decimal Two Seven Perches (0A., 0R., 19.27P.) according 
to the said Plan No. 3750.

Together with a full and free right and liberty to use 
the private sewer (including the right to connect therewith 
drainage and sewage pipes) leading from the allotments of 
land marked Lot No. 8 on the said Plan No. 3750 through the 
allotments of land marked Lots Nos. 8, 9, 12, 13, 16, 17, 10, 

11, 14, 15, 18 and 19, on the said Plan No. 3750 to the main 
or public sewer constructed along the Eastern Boundary of 
the said allotment of land marked Lot No. 19, on the said 
Plan No. 3750 for the passage and conveyance of sewage 
water and matter from the  buildings to be constructed and 
said along the Eastern Boundary of the said allotment of 
land marked Lot No. 19, on the said Plan No. 3750.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1212/6

Sampath  Bank  PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

Asiri Holding International (Private) Limited.
A/C No. : 0142 1000 4840.

At a meeting held on 27.09.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Asiri Holding International (Private) Limited 
in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the 
Obligor has made default in the repayment of the credit 
facilities granted against the security of the properties 
and premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bonds 
Nos. 3714 dated 19th September, 2017 attested by  
N. M. Nagodawithana, of Gampaha Notary Public 182 
dated 27th September, 2017 attested by H. C. Lakmini 
of Colombo Notary Public, 3809, 3815, 3817, 3819 
and 3821 all dated 06th December, 2017 all attested by  
N. M. nagodawithana of Gampaha Notary Public 
in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company 
Registration No. PQ 144 and there is now due and owing 
on the said Bonds Nos. 3714, 182, 3809, 3815, 3817, 
3819 and 3821 to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 04th 
September, 2018 a sum of Rupees Sixty-eight Million 
Eighty-six Thousand Five Hundred and Fifty-nine and 
Cents Twenty-two Only (Rs. 68,086,559.22) of lawful 
money of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding 
on the said Bonds and the Board of Directors of Sampath 



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2018'10'19

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 19.10.2018 1705

Bank PLC under the powers vested by the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 
1990 do hereby resolve that the property and premises 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged 
to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security for the said 
credit facilities by the said Bonds Nos. 3714, 182, 3809, 
3815, 3817, 3819 and 3821 to be sold in public auction 
by P. K. E. Senapathi, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo 
for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Sixty-eight 
Million Eighty-six Thousand Five Hundred and Fifty-
nine and Cents Twenty-two Only (Rs. 68,086,559.22) 
together with further interest on a sum of Rupees Sixty 
Million Seven Hundred and Eighty-three Thousand 
Two Hundred and Ninety and Cents Forty-two Only  
(Rs. 60,783,290.42) at the rate of Sixteen decimal Five 
per centum (16.5%) per annum from 05th September, 
2018 to date of satisfaction of the total debt due upon 
the said Bonds bearing Nos. 3714, 182, 3809, 3815, 
3817, 3819 and 3821 together with costs of advertising 
and other charges incurred less payments (if any) since 
received.

The schedule

1.1  All that divided and defined allotment of land 
marked Lot 16 in Plan No. 3328 dated 09th June, 2014 
made by A. A. P. J. Perera, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called “Kongahawatta” together with the buildings, soils, 
trees, plantations and everything standing thereon bearing 
Assessment No. 19/1, Feo Mawatha situated at Kandana 
Village within the Grama Niladhari Divison of No. 184, 
Kandana West, Divisional Secretariat and Pradeshiya Sabha 
Limits of Ja-Ela in Ragam Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale in the 
District of Gampaha Western Province and which said Lot 
16 is bounded on the North by St. Fiyo Mawatha, on the 
East by Lot 15 in Plan No. 1515, on the South by land of  
W. M. A. S. Silva and on the West by Lot 17 in Plan  
No. 1515 and containing in extent Twenty Three Perches 
(0A., 0R., 23P.) according to the said Plan No. 3328.

Which said Lot 16 is a resurvey of the land described 
below ;

All that divided and defined allotments of land marked 
Lot 16 in Plan No. 1515 dated 20th February, 1970 made by 
B. P. W. Gunawardene, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Kongahawatta” situated at Kandana Village aforesaid and 
which said Lot 16 is bounded on the North by Lot 14, on 
the East by Lot 15, on the South by land of B. Perera and on 
the West by Lot 17 and containing in extent Twenty Three 
Perches (0A., 0R., 23P.) according to the said Plan No. 1515 
and registered in Volume/Folio J 365/8 at the Land Registry, 
Gampaha.

1.2  All that divided and defined allotment of land 
marked Lot 17 depicted in Plan No. 3328 dated 09th June, 
2014 made by A. A. P. J. Perera, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called “Kongahawatta” together with the buildings, 
soils, trees, plantations and  everything standing thereon 
situated at Kandana Village aforesaid and which said Lot 17 
is bounded on the North by St. Fiyo Mawatha, on the East 
by Lot 16 in Plan No. 1515, on the South by land of W. M. 
A. S. Silva and on the West by the land of L. Fernando and 
D. N. L. Fernando and the land of B. E. Perera and S. S. 
Jayathilake Perera and containing in extent Twenty Perches 
(0A., 0R., 20P.) according to the said Plan No. 3328.

Which said Lot 17 is a resurvey of the land described 
below ;

All that divided and defined allotments of land marked 
Lot 17 in Plan No. 1515 dated 20th February, 1970 made by 
B. P. W. Gunawardena, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Kongahawatta” situated at Kandana Village aforesaid and 
which said Lot 17 is bounded on the North by Lot 14, on 
the East by Lot 15, on the South by land now of B. Perera 
and on the West by Lot 18 and containing in extent Twenty 
Perches (0A., 0R., 20P.) according to the said Plan No. 1515 
and registered in Volume/Folio J 365/9 at the Land Registry, 
Gampaha.

Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bonds Nos. 3714 and 3817.

2.  All that divided and defined allotments of land marked 
Lot X in Plan No. 5022 dated 09th November, 2016 made by 
M. L. M. Razmi, Licensed Surveyor (erroneously registered 
as N. S. Premarathne) of the land called Disagewata, Gama 
Mestrigekoratuwa alias Gamamahage Koratuwa together 
with the buildings, soils, plantations and everything standing 
thereon bearing Assessment No. 31/8, Weragampitiya 
Pansala Road situated at Uyanwatta Village within the Grama 
Niladhari Division of No. 417G, Uyanwatta, Divisional 
Secretariat and Municipal Council Limits of Matara in the 
District of Matara Southern Province and which said Lot X 
is bounded on the North by Sohon Koratuwa, on the East 
by Ganithagewatta, on the South by Lots 6 and 7 in Plan 
No. 3139 (more correctly Lots 6, 7, 18 and 12 in the said 
Plan No. 3139) and on the West by Lot 18 in Plan No. 3139 
(more correctly Lot 18 and Disagewatta (Housing Scheme) 
and containing in extent One Rood (0A., 1R., 0P.) according 
to the said Plan No. 5022 and registered in Volume/Folio  
A 752/29 at the Land Registry, Matara.

Together with the right of way and other connected rights 
over and along Lot 18 in Plan No. 3139 dated 28th July, 
1989 made by M. S Premarathne, Licensed Surveyor.

Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bonds Nos. 182 and 3819.

3.  All that divided and defined allotments of land 
marked Lot 1A depicted in Plan No. 98/2009 dated 12th 
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June, 2009 made by D. C. M. S. Wimalaratne, Licensed 
Surveyor of the land called “Hikgahawatta, Millagahawatta, 
Millagahakumbura or Deniya and Delgahawatta and 
another land called Delgahawatta” together with the soil, 
trees, plantations, buildings and everything standing thereon 
bearing Assessment No. 29, Sudharshanarama, 1st Lane 
situated at Talawatuhenpita North Village within the Grama 
Niladhari Division of Thalawatuhenpita North, Divisional 
Secretariat and the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Kelaniya in 
Adikari Pattu of Siyane Korale in the District of Gampaha 
Western Province and which said Lot 1A is bounded on 
the North by land of H. S. Perera, on the East by Road and 
Lot 1B, on the South by Lot 1B and Road and on the West 
by land of H. S. Perera and containing in extent Fourteen 
decimal Two Naught Perches (0A., 0R., 14.20P.) according 
to the said Plan No. 98/2009 and registered in Volume/ Folio 
G 70/113 at the Land Registry, Colombo.

Together with the right of way and other connected rights 
in over under and along Lot 34 and 38 in Plan No. 1710 
dated 18th April, 1977 made by L. S. Fernando, Licensed 
Surveyor.

Mortgagor and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bonds Nos. 3821.

4.  All that divided and defined allotments of land marked 
Lot A2/1 depicted in Plan No. 873/2012 dated 06th August, 
2014 made by W. R. M. Fernando, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called “Delgahawatta and Hikgahawatta” together with 
the soil, trees, plantations, buildings and everything standing 
thereon bearing Assessment No. 29, Sudharshanarama, 
1st Lane situated at Talawatuhenpita North Village within 
the Grama Niladhari Division of Thalawatuhenpita North, 
Divisional Secretariat and the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of 
Kelaniya in Adikari Pattu of Siyane Korale in the District 
of Gampaha Western Province and which said Lot A2/1 
is bounded on the North by remaining portion of Lot A2 
in Plan No. 604/2006, on the East by Perera Mawatha, on 
the South by Lot 1A in Plan No. 98/2009 dated 12th June, 
2009 made by D. C. M. S. Wimalaratne, Licensed Surveyor 
and on the West by remaining portion of Lot A2 in Plan  
No. 604/2006 and containing in extent Eight Perches  
(0A., 0R., 8P.) according to the said Plan No. 873/2012 and 
registered in Volume/ Folio G 10/118 at the Land Registry, 
Colombo.

Together with the right of way and other connected rights 
in over and under and along Lot 21 and 22 in Plan No. 
1470/P dated 25th August, 1995 made by M. M. P. Danston, 
Licensed Surveyor.

Mortgagor and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bonds Nos. 3815.

5.  All that divided and defined allotments of land marked 
Lot A2/3 depicted in Plan No. 143/2016 dated 05th February, 

2016 made by W. R. M. Fernando, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called “Delgahawatta and Hikgahawatta” together with 
the soil, trees, plantations, buildings and everything standing 
thereon bearing Assessment No. 29/A, Sudharshanarama, 
1st Lane situated at Talawatuhenpita North Village within 
the Grama Niladhari Division of Thalawatuhenpita North, 
Divisional Secretariat and the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of 
Kelaniya Adikari Pattu of Siyane Korale in the District of 
Gampaha Western Province and which said Lot A2/3 is 
bounded on the North by Pradeshiya Sabha Road, on the 
East by Perera Mawatha, on the South by Lot A2/1 in Plan 
No. 873/2012 dated 06th August, 2012 made by W. R. M. 
Fernando and on the West by remaining portion of Lot A2 
in Plan No. 604/2006 and containing in extent Ten Perches 
(0A., 0R., 10P.) according to the said Plan No. 143/2016 and 
registered in Volume/ Folio G 175/17 at the Land Registry, 
Colombo.

Together with the right of way and other connected 
rights in over under and along Lots 21 and 28 in Plan  
No. 1470/P dated 25th August, 1995 made by M. M. P. 
Danston, Licensed Surveyor.

Mortgagor and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bonds Nos. 3809.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1212/7

Sampath  Bank  PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

Nikila Natural Fresh Fruit Distributor.
A/C No. : 0207 1000 0914.

At a meeting held on 27.09.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Panthihage Vajira Chandana Dabare being 
the Sole Proprietor of the business carried on in the 
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka under the 
name and style of “Nikila Natural Fresh Fruit Distributor” 
as the Obligor has made default in the repayment of the 
credit facility granted against the security of the property 
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and premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bonds 
Nos. 17 dated 09th and 12th March, 2018 attested by K. 
A. S. Kulasinghe and 2968 dated 20th June, 2016 attested 
by N. M. Nagodavithana of Gampaha Notary Public 
in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company 
Registration No. PQ 144 and having its Registered 
Office at No. 110, Sir James Peiris Mawatha, Colombo 
02 and there is now due and owing on the said Bonds 
Nos. 17 and 2968 to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as 
at 10th September, 2018 a sum of Rupees Five Million 
Six Hundred and Fifty-six Thousand Five Hundred and 
Fifty-nine and Cents Forty-two only (Rs. 5,656,559.42) 
of lawful money of Sri Lanka being the total amount 
outstanding on the said Bonds and the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under the powers vested by the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 04 of 1990, do hereby resolve that the property and 
premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security 
for the said credit facilities by the said Bonds Nos. 17 and 
2968 to be sold in public auction by P. K. E. Senapathi, 
Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for the recovery of the 
said sum of Rupees Five Million Six Hundred and Fifty-
six Thousand Five Hundred and Fifty-nine and Cents 
Forty-two only (Rs. 5,656,559.42) together with further 
interest on a sum of Rupees Five Million Three Hundred 
and Twenty-three Thousand Nine Hundred and Fifty-four 
and Cents Fifty only (Rs. 5,323,954.50) at an interest rate 
of Sixteen decimal Five per centum (16.5%) per annum 
from 11th September, 2018 to date of satisfaction of the 
total debt due upon the said Bonds bearing Nos. 17 and 
2968 together with costs of advertising and other charges 
incurred less payments (if any) since received.

The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 2E depicted in Plan No. 4696 dated 29th June, 2007 
made by L. K. C. N. Epasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called “Gorakagahawatta alias Siyambalagahawatta 
and Gorakagahawatta alias Millagahawatta” together with 
the trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon 
bearing Assessment No. 120 - Dewala Road situated at 
Makola North within the Grama Niladhari Division of 
271B - Makola North Pahala, Divisional Secretariat and 
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Biyagama in Adikari Pattu of 
Siyane Korale in the District of Gampaha Western Province 
and which said Lot 2E is bounded on the North by Lot 2D 
hereof, on the East by Lot 2F hereof, on the South by Dewala 
Road and on the West by land claimed by Milson Kuruppu 
and containing in extent Twenty Two decimal Six Naught 
Perches (0A., 0R., 22.60P.) according to the said Plan  
No. 4696 and registered in Volume/Folio N 322/31 at the 
Land Registry Gampaha.

Together with the right of ways over under and along Lot 
2F depicted in the said Plan No. 4696 and Lot 3 (15 ft. wide 
road) depicted in Plan No. 5166 dated 20th November, 1972 
made by V. F. J. Perera, Licensed Surveyor.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1212/8

Sampath  Bank PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990

Sherifdeen Holdings (Private) Limited.
A/C No. : 0011 1000 9980.

At a meeting held on 27.09.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank Limited it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Sherifdeen Holdings (Private) Limited in the 
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligor 
and Faizal Mohomed Sherifdeen as the Mortgagor has 
made default in the repayment of the credit facility 
granted against the security of the property and premises 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged 
and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bonds Nos. 1605 
dated 22nd, July, 2015 and 2196 dated 22nd September, 
2016 both attested by G. N. M. Kodagoda of Colombo 
Notary Public in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding 
Company Registration No. PQ 144 and there is now due 
and owing on the said Bonds Nos. 1605 and 2196 to 
Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 03rd September, 2018 
a sum of Rupees One Hundred Million Eight Hundred 
and Four Thousand Four Hundred and Ninety-seven and 
Cents Ninety-three Only (Rs. 100,804,497.93) of lawful 
money of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding 
on the said Bonds and the Board of Directors of Sampath 
Bank PLC under the powers vested by the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 
1990, do hereby resolve that the property and premises 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged 
to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security for the said 
credit facility by the said Bonds Nos. 1605 and 2196 to 
be sold in public auction by I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed 
Auctioneer of Kandy for the recovery of the said sum of 
Rupees One Hundred Million Eight Hundred and Four 
Thousand Four Hundred and Ninety-seven and Cents 
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Ninety-three Only (Rs. 100,804,497.93) together with 
further interest on a sum of Rupees Eighty-eight Million 
Six Hundred Thousand Only (Rs. 88,600,000.00) at the 
rate of  Sixteen decimal Five per centum (16.5%) per 
annum from 04th September, 2018 to date of satisfaction 
of the total debt due upon the said Bonds bearing Nos. 
1605 and 2196 together with costs of advertising and 
other charges incurred less payments (if any) since 
received.

The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 1152 dated 06th October, 2003 
made by P. H. T. De. Silva, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called “The Glen” together with soil, trees, plantations and 
everything standing thereon bearing Assessment No. 58, 
situated at Gregory Road presently of Saranankara Road, 
Kandy within the Grama Niladhari Division of Malwatte 
within the Municipal Council Limits of Kandy and the 
Divisional Secretariat of Kandy in the District of Kandy 
Central Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the 
North by Live and Wire Fence, land claimed by Mr. Kande 
Kumbura and Mr. Karandawela, on the East by Road (Lot 
02 in Plan No. 1096 dated 02nd April, 1988 made by Aelian 
Rajapakse, Licensed Surveyor), on the South by retaining 
wall and on the West by Ela and containing in extent Thirty 
Two Perches (0A., 0R., 32P.) according to said Plan No. 
1152.

Together with the right of way under and along Lot 2 
depicted in Plan No. 1096 dated 02nd April, 1988 made by 
Aelian Rajapakse, Licensed Surveyor.

Which said Lot 1 is a resurvey of the land described 
below :-

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
2B depicted in Plan No. 40A dated 21st April, 1957 made by 
S. M. Talwatte, Licensed Surveyor of the land called “The 
Glen” together with soil, trees, plantations, buildings and 
everything else standing thereon bearing Assessment No. 
34/1 , now bearing Assessment No. 58, situated at Gregory 
Road presently of Saranankara Road, Kandy aforesaid and 
which said Lot 2B is bounded on the North by Lot 01, on 
the East by Lot No. 2A and approach Road to Saranankara 
Road, on the South by Lot 2C and approach Road and on the 
West by Water Course and containing in extent Twenty Eight 
Perches (0A., 0R., 28P.) according to the said Plan No. 40A. 
Registered in Volume/Folio A 367/57 and carried over to  
A 495/129 at the Land Registry, Kandy.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1212/9

Sampath Bank PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990

Keerthi Stores.
A/C No. : 0045 1000 0418.

At a meeting held on 27.09.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank Limited it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Maddumage Keerthi Kumara being the Sole 
Proprietor of the business carried on in the Democratic 
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka under the name and style 
of “Keerthi Stores” as the Obligor has made default in 
the repayment of the credit facilities granted against 
the securities of the property and premises morefgully 
described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged and 
hypothecated by the Mortgage Bonds Nos. 3699 dated 
17th December, 2012 attested by R. Alahendara, 1306 
dated 18th July, 2014 and 1639 dated 26th August, 2015 
both attested by G. N. M. Kodagoda, 2876 dated 18th 
April, 2017 attested by C. G. Abeywickrama, 1183 dated 
13th December, 2013 attested by G. N. M. Kodagoda of 
Colombo, Notary Public and 3311 dated 22nd March, 
2018 attested by C. G. Abeywickarma of Colombo 
Notaries Public in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding 
Company Registration No. PQ 144 and having its 
Registered Office at No. 110, Sir James Peiris Mawatha, 
Colombo 02 and there is now due and owing on the said 
Bonds Nos. 3699, 1306, 1639, 2876, 1183, and 3311 to 
Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 04th September, 2018 
a sum of Rupees Eight-four Million Nine Hundred and 
Thirty-three Thousand One Hundred and Fifteen and 
Cents Seventy-seven only (Rs. 84,933,115.77)  of lawful 
money of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding 
on the said Bonds and the Board of Directors of Sampath 
Bank PLC under the powers vested by the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 
1990 do hereby resolve that the properties and premises 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged 
to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security for the said 
credit facilities by the said Bonds Nos. 3699, 1306, 
1639, 2876, 1183 and 3311 to be sold in public auction 
by P. K. E. Senapahti, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo 
for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Eighty-four 
Million Nine Hundred and Thirty-three Thousand One 
Hundred and Fifteen and Cents Seventy-seven only  
(Rs. 84,933,115.77) together with further interest on 
a sum of Rupees Eighty-two Million Four Hundred 
Thousand only (Rs. 82,400,000.00) at an interest rate 



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2018'10'19

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 19.10.2018 1709

of  Sixteen decimal Five per centum (16.5%) per annum 
from 05th September, 2018 to date of satisfaction of the 
total debt due upon the said Bonds Nos. 3699, 1306, 1639, 
2876, 1183 and 3311 together with costs of advertising 
and other charges incurred less payments (if any) since 
received.

The schedule

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot A3 depicted in Plan No. 3133 dated 20th June, 2006 
made by H. Rajapakse, Licensed Surveyor, of the land called 
“Kajugahawatta” together with building, soil, trees, plantations 
and everything else standing thereon bearing Assessment  
No. 528, Kolonnawa Road, situated at Wellampitiya within 
the Grama Niladhari Division of Kolonnawa (G. N. Div  
No. 04) and within the Divisional Secretariat and Urban 
Council Limits of Kolonnawa, in Ambatalen Pahala 
Aluthkuru Korale South, within the District of Colombo, 
Western Province and which said Lot A3 is bounded on the 
North by Kolonnawa Road and Premises bearing Assessment 
No. 534, Kolonnawa Road, on the East by Premises bearing 
Assessment No. 534, Kolonnawa Road, on the South by 
Salawatta Road, and Lot A2 in Plan No. 1267 and on the 
West by Lot A2 in Plan No. 1267 and Kolonnawa Road, 
and containing in the extent Six Decimal Five Five Perches 
(0A., 0R., 6.55P.) according to the said Plan No. 3133.

Which said Lot A3 depicted in Plan No. 3133 is a 
resurvey of the land described as follow ;

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot A3 depicted in Plan No. 1267 dated 17th April, 1964 
made by S. Jegadiyan, Licensed Surveyor, of the land 
called “Kajugahawatta”, together with building, soil, trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon bearing 
Assessment No. 258/B, Kolonnawa Road situated at 
Wellampitiya aforesaid and which said Lot A3 is bounded 
on the North-east by Premises bearing Assessment No. 260, 
Kolonnawa Road, on the South-east by Salawatta Road, 
on the South-west by Lot A2 and on the North-west by 
Kolonnawa Road, and containing in the extent Six Decimal 
Five Five Perches (0A., 0R., 6.55P.) according to said Plan 
No. 1267 and registered under Volume/ Folio F 77/87 at 
Land Registry of Colombo.

Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bond Nos. 1183 and 3311.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land 
marked Lot A depicted in Plan No. 3022 dated 27th July, 
1994 (endorsement dated 28th July, 2015) both made by 
Saliya Wickramasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called “Kajugahawatta”, together with building, soil, 
trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon 

bearing Assessment No. 579, Kolonnawa Road situated 
at Wellampitiya within the Grama Niladhari Division  
No. 512B- Singhapura and within the Divisional Secretariat 
and Urban Council Limits of Kolonnawa, in Ambatalen 
Pahala Aluthkuru Korale South, within the District of 
Colombo, Western Province and which said Lot A is bounded 
on the North by Lot 1 in Plan No. 3193 made by V. A. L. 
Senaratne, Licensed Surveyor, on the East by Kolonnawa 
Road and Lot 1 in Plan No. 3193 made by V. A. L. Senaratne 
Licensed Surveyor, on the South by Land of Piyadasa, Land 
of Jayasinghe and Deepal Perera, and on the West by Land 
of S. F. Rizwi and Land of J. M. Nazim, and containing in 
the extent Twenty Decimal One Naught Perches (0A., 0R., 
20.10P.) as per Plan No. 3022 and Registered at Colombo 
Land Registry in Volume/ Folio F 03/122.

Mortgaged and hypothecated by under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bonds Nos. 3699, 1306, 1639 and 2876.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1212/10

Sampath Bank PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

H. A. A. Kumara.
A/C No. : 0023 5002 8636.

At a meeting held on 30.08.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Hetti Arachchilage Ajith Kumara in the 
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the 
Obligor has made default in the repayment of the credit 
facilities granted against the security of the property and 
premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond 
No. 1202 dated 16th June, 2014 attested by E. M. N. 
D. Dassanayake of Kurunegala Noatry Public in favour 
of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company Registration  
No. PQ 144 and having its Registered Office at  
No. 110, Sir James Peiris Mawatha, Colombo 02 and 
there is now due and owing  on the said Bond bearing 
No. 1202 to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 30th July, 
2018 a sum of Rupees Seven Million Eight Hundred 
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and Ninety-nine Thousand Six Hundred and Eighty-four 
and Cents Forty-two Only (Rs. 7,899,684.42) of lawful 
money of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding 
on the said Bond and the Board of Directors of Sampath 
Bank PLC aforesaid under the  powers vested by the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the property and 
premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security 
for the said credit facilities by the said Bond bearing  
No. 1202 to be sold in public auction by I. W. Jayasooriya, 
Licensed Auctioneer of Kandy for the recovery of the 
said sum of Rupees Seven Million Eight Hundred and 
Ninety-nine Thousand Six Hundred and Eighty-four and 
Cents Forty-two Only (Rs. 7,899,684.42) together with 
further interest on a sum of Rupees Two Million only 
(Rs. 2,000,000.00) at  the rate of Ten decimal Five per 
centum (10.5%) per annum and further interest on a sum 
of Rupees Five Million Seven Hundred and Ninety-nine 
Thousand Five Hundred and One and Cents Sixty-nine 
only (Rs. 5,799,501.69) at the rate of Average Weighted 
Prime Lending Rate + Two per centum (2%) per annum 
from 31st July, 2018 to date of  satisfaction of the total 
debt due upon the said Bond bearing No. 1202 together 
with costs of advertising and other charges incurred less 
payments (if any) since received.

The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 depicted in Plan No. 7496/A dated 23rd July, 2010 
made by D. Prasad Wimalasena, Licensed Surveyor of 
the land called “Henemulla Estate” together with the soil, 
trees, plantations, buildings and everything else standing 
thereon situated at Henemulla Village of Grama Niladhari's 
Division No. 1167 - Koshena in the Divisional Secretariat 
of Kuliyapitiya (West) within the Pradeshiya Sabha 
Limits of Kuliyapitiya in Katugampola Korale (North) of 
Katugampola Hatpattu in the District of Kurunegala North 
Western Province and which said Lot 01 is bounded on the 
North by land claimed by the heirs of Deegalle Appuhamy 
and others, Tank Bund, Tank (State) and Estate Road, on the 
East by Estate Road and Pahalawatte claimed by the heirs of 
Bandirala and others, on the South by Lot 2 and Estate Road 
(15 ft. wide) and on the West by Estate Road (15ft. wide), Lot 
01 in Plan No. 7496, Tank (State) and by Land claimed by 
the heirs of Deegalle Appuhamy and others and containing in 
extent Twenty Five Acres and Twenty decimal Five Perches  
(25A., 0R., 20.5P.) or 10.1690 Hectares according to the 
said Plan No. 7496/A and registered in Volume/ Folio  
K 250/214 at the Land Registry, Kuliyapitiya.

Together with the right to use and maintain the 15 ft. wide 
Road Reservations depicted in the said Plan No. 7496/A.

Together with the right to use and maintain the Road 
ways in common as described below ;

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
“Lot X” (Road reservation) depicted in Plan No. 7496 dated 
15th December, 2009 made by D. Prasad Wimalasena, 
Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Henemulla Estate” 
together with the soil, trees, plantations, buildings and 
everything else standing thereon situated at Henemulla 
Village aforesaid and which said “Lot X” is bounded on the 
North by Lots 1 and 4 hereof, on the East by Lot 4 hereof, 
on the South by Estate Road, Lot 3, Road marked Lot Y 
(12ft. wide) and Lot 02 hereof and on the West by land 
claimed by Kamala Mihiri Wickramanayake and containing 
in extent Two Roods and Twenty Five decimal Four Perches 
(0A., 2R., 25.4P.) according to the said Plan No. 7496 and 
registered in Volume/ Folio K 249/212 at the Land Registry, 
Kuliyapitiya.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land (Road 
reservation - 25ft. wide) depicted in Plan No. 7496/B dated 
07th August, 2010 made by D. Prasad Wimalasena, Licensed 
Surveyor of the land called “Henemulla Estate” together 
with the soil, trees, plantations, buildings and everything else 
standing thereon situated at Henemulla Village aforesaid and 
which said land is bounded on the North by Lot 5 hereof, on 
the East by Road marked as Lot X in Plan No. 7496, on 
the South by land claimed by E. B. Gunaratne and on the 
West by Pradeshiya Sabha Road and containing in extent 
Nineteen decimal Six Perches (0A., 0R., 19.6P.) according 
to the said Plan No. 7496/B and registered in Volume/ Folio 
K 256/199 at the Land Registry, Kuliyapitiya.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1205/1

Sampath Bank PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

T. S. D. Constructions and Engineering (Private) 
Limited.
A/C No. : 0187 1000 0200.

At a meeting held on 27.09.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas T. S. D. Constructions and Engineering 
(Private) Limited in the Democratic Socialist Republic 
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of Sri Lanka as the Obligor and Mutha Meregngna 
Ramya Sri Thilakarathne as the Mortgagor has made 
default in the repayment of the credit facility granted 
against the security of the property and premises 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged 
and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond No. 3865 dated 
04th June, 2013 attested by A. J. Bandara of  Kurunegala 
Notary Public in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding 
Company Registration No. PQ 144 and there is now 
due and owing on the said Bond No. 3865 to Sampath 
Bank PLC aforesaid as at 05th September, 2018 a sum 
of Rupees Nineteen Million eight Hundred and Eighty-
three Thousand Nine Hundred and Seventy-six and Cents 
Seventy-seven only (Rs. 19,883,976.77) of lawful money 
of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding on the 
said Bond and the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank 
PLC under the  powers vested by the Recovery of Loans 
by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do 
hereby resolve that the property and premises morefully 
described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged to Sampath 
Bank PLC aforesaid as security for the said credit facility 
by the said Bond No. 3865 to be sold in public auction 
by I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer of Kandy 
for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Nineteen 
Million Eight Hundred and Eighty-three Thousand Nine 
Hundred and Seventy-six and Cents Seventy-seven only  
(Rs. 19,883,976.77) together with further interest on a 
sum of Rupees Nineteen Million Thirty-eight Thousand 
Only (Rs. 19,038,000.00) at  the rate of Twelve per 
centum (12%) per annum from 06th September, 2018 to 
date of satisfaction of the total debt due upon the said 
Bond bearing No. 3865 together with costs of advertising 
and other charges incurred less payments (if any) since 
received.

The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 depicted in Plan No. 5041 dated 04th January, 2008 
made by P. B. Dissanayake, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called “Walawwe Watta” together with the soil, trees, 
plantation and all the buildings and everything is standing 
thereon bearing Assessment No. 48, 48-1/1, Illuppugedara 
Road situated at Vilgoda Village within the Urban Council 
Limits and the Divisional Secretariat of Kurunegala and 
Grama Niladhari Division of No. 838 - Illuppugedara in 
Thiragandahaya Korale of Weuda Villi Hatpattuwa in the 
District of Kurunegala North Western Province and which 
said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by land of Damayanthi 
Perera, on the East by land of S. P. R. Perera, on the South 
by Road from Sumangala Mawatha to Illuppugedara Road 
and on the West by Land of 1 LM Naim and containing in 
extent One Rood and Four decimal Six Perches (0A., 1R., 

4.6P.) according to the said Plan No. 5041 and registered in 
Volume/ Folio G 32/102 at the Land Registry Kurunegala.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1205/2

Sampath Bank PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

R. P. M. S. P. Kumara.
A/C No. : 0132 5000 3190.

At a meeting held on 27.09.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Rajapakse Pedige Manchula Sri Pradeep 
Kumara alias Rajapakshe Pedige Manjula Sri Pradeep 
Kumara in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri 
Lanka as the Obligor has made default in the repayment 
of the credit facility granted against the securities of 
the properties and premises morefully described in 
the Schedule hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by 
the Mortgage Bonds Nos. 3829 dated 06th December, 
2016, 4409 dated 31st July 2017, 5122 dated 12th June, 
2018 and 4871 dated 21st February, 2018 all attested by  
K. A. D. Subasinghe of Negombo Notary Public in favour 
of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company Registration  
No. PQ 144 and having its Registered Office at No. 
110, Sir James Peiris Mawatha, Colombo 02 and there 
is now due and owing  on the said Bonds bearing 
Nos. 3829, 4409 , 5122 and 4871 to Sampath Bank 
PLC aforesaid as at 06th September, 2018 a sum of 
Rupees Twenty-nine Million Fifty-two Thousand Two 
Hundred and Twelve and Cents Seventy-one Only (Rs. 
29,052,212.71) of lawful money of Sri Lanka being 
the total amount outstanding on the said Bonds and the 
Board of Directors of Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid 
under the  powers vested by the Recovery of Loans 
by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do 
hereby resolve that the property and premises morefully 
described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged to Nos. 3829, 
4409 , 5122 and 4871 to be sold in public auction by  
P. K. E. Senapathi, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo 
for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Twenty-
nine Million Fifty-two Thousand Two Hundred and 
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Twelve and Cents Seventy-one Only (Rs. 29,052,212.71) 
together with further interest on a sum of Rupees Twenty-
seven Million nine Hundred and Fifty Thousand Only  
(Rs. 27,950,000.00) at  the rate of Sixteen decimal Five 
per centum (16.5%) per annum from 07th September, 
2018 to date of satisfaction of the total debt due upon 
the said Bonds bearing Nos. 3829, 4409, 5122 and 
4871together with costs of advertising and other charges 
incurred less payments (if any) since received.

The schedule

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 2 depicted in Plan No. 14382 dated 22nd August, 2014 
made by M. J. Gomez, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Dunkannawa Estate” together with buildings, soil, trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon situated 
at Dunkannawa Village in the Grama Niladhari Division 
of Dunkannawa within the Divisional Secretariat and the 
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Nattandiya, in Meda Palatha 
of Pitigal Korale South, in the District of Puttalam, North 
Western Province  and which said Lot 2 is bounded on the 
North by Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. PP Pu 885 and Lot 
2 depicted in the said Plan No. 3232 made by W. L. H. 
Fernando, Licensed Surveyor, on the East by Lot 2 in the said 
Plan No. 3232, Ela and Reservation along Ela, on the South 
by Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 14239 made by M. J. Gomez, 
Licensed Surveyor, and on the West by Lot 3 depicted in 
Plan No. 1620 made by P. Sinnathamby, Licensed Surveyor 
and containing in the extent Three Roods and Thirty Seven 
Perches (0A., 3R., 37P.) according to said Plan No. 14382.

Which said Lot 2 depicted in PlanNo. 14382 is a resurvey 
of the following Land ;

 All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 2 depicted in Plan No. 14239 dated 05th June, 2014 
made by M. J. Gomez, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Dunkannawa Estate” together with building, soil, trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon situated 
at Dunkannawa Village aforesaid and which said Lot 2 
is bounded on the North by Wire fence separating Lot 1 
depicted in Plan No. PP Pu 885 and Lot 2 depicted in the 
said Plan No. 3232, on the East by Lot 2 depicted in the said 
Plan No. 3232, Ela and Reservation along Ela, on the South 
by Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 14239 aforesaid, and on the 
West by Wire fence separating Lot 3 depicted in Plan No. 
1620 aforesaid and containing in the extent Three Roods and 
Thirty Seven Perches (0A., 3R., 37P.) according to said Plan 
No. 14239 and registered under Volume/Folio J 239/68 at 
the Marawila Land Registry.

Together with the right of way in over, under and along 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 14382 aforesaid.

Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bonds Nos. 3829, 4409 and 5122.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 5 depicted in Plan No. 3360 dated 25th July, 2000 made 
by W. L. H. Fernando, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Dunkannawa Estate” together with building, soil, trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon situated 
at Dunkannawa Village in the Grama Niladhari Division 
of Dunkannawa within the Divisional Secretariat and the 
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Nattandiya, in Meda Palatha 
of Pitigal Korale South, in the District of Puttalam, North 
Western Province  and which said Lot 5 is bounded on the 
North by Lot 1 hereof, on the East by Lots 3 and 4 hereof 
, on the South by Lot 6 hereof and Lot 6 (Reservation 
for road 11ft. wide) depicted in Plan No. 3357 made by  
W. L. H. Fernando, Licensed Surveyor, and on the West 
by Stream, and containing extent Nineteen Decimal Two 
Naught Perches (0A., 0R., 19.20P.) according to said Plan  
No. 3360 and registered under Volume/ Folio J 147/254 at 
the Marawila Land Registry.

Together with the right of way in over, under and along 
Lot 5 (Reservation for Road - 6m wide) and Lot 6 (Road - 
11ft. wide) both depicted in Plan No. 3357 made by W. L. H. 
Fernando, Licensed Surveyor.

Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bonds No. 4871.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1205/3

Sampath Bank PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

K. A. Piyal.
A/C No. : 0113 5000 4760.

At a meeting held on 27.09.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Kulasinghe Arachchige Piyal in the 
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the 
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Obligor has made default in the repayment of the credit 
facility granted against the security of the property and 
premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond 
No. 3039 dated 24th August, 2017 attested by T. M. 
M. Tennakoon of Wellawaya Notary Public in favour 
of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company Registration  
No. PQ 144 and having its Registered Office at No. 110, 
Sir James Peiris Mawatha, Colombo 02 and there is now 
due and owing  on the said Bond bearing No. 3039 to 
Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 10th September, 
2018 a sum of Rupees Eleven Million Nine Hundred 
and Ninety-three Thousand Three Hundred and Thirty-
two and Cents Sixty-seven Only (Rs. 11,993,332.67) 
of lawful money of Sri Lanka being the total amount 
outstanding on the said Bond and the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid under the  powers vested 
by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the property 
and premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security 
for the said credit facility by the said Bond No. 3039 to 
be sold in public auction by I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed 
Auctioneer of Kandy for the recovery of the said sum 
of Rupees Eleven Million Nine Hundred and Ninety-
three Thousand Three Hundred and Thirty-two and 
Cents Sixty-seven Only (Rs. 11,993,332.67) together 
with further interest on a sum of Rupees Eleven Million 
One Hundred Fotry-two Thousand Six Hundred Only 
(Rs. 11,142,600.00) at  the rate of Fourteen per centum 
(14%) per annum from 11th September, 2018 to date 
of satisfaction of the total debt due upon the said Bond 
bearing No. 3039 together with costs of advertising 
and other charges incurred less payments (if any) since 
received.

The schedule

 All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 969 dated 20th January, 1996 
made by P. W. Nandasena, Licensed Surveyor (re-surveyed 
and boundaries confirmed on 02nd May, 2014 by P. W. 
Nandasena Surveyor), of the land called “WYE Estate”, 
together with building, soil, trees, plantations and everything 
else standing thereon situated at Metipimbiya Village 
within the Grama Niladhari Division No. 67 - C Ambegoda 
in Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Haputale the Divisional 
Secretariat of Bandarawela, in Mahapalata Korale in the 
District of Badulla, Uva Province and which said Lot 1 is 
bounded on the North by V. C. Road, on the East by Balance 
portion of the same land (Lot No. 1 in Plan No. 566), on 
the South by Kandura, and on the West by Kandura, and 

containing in the extent Ten Perches (0A., 0R., 10P.) as per 
said Plan No. 969 Registered under Volume/ Folio V 06/112 
at the Badulla Land Registry.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1205/4

Sampath  Bank PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

Meeriyakanda Plantation (Private) Limited.
A/C No. : 0058 1000 1145.

At a meeting held on 27.09.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Meeriyakanda Plantation (Private) Limited 
in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the 
Obligor has made default in the repayment of the credit 
facility granted against the security of the property and 
premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond 
No. 2968 dated 06th and 10th January, 2017 attested 
by K. S. N. De Silva of Galle Notary Public in favour 
of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company Registration 
No. PQ 144 and there is now due and owing on the said 
Bond No. 2968 to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 
03rd April, 2018 a sum of Rupees Fifty-eight Million 
Seventy-one Thousand Six Hundred and Sixty-five and 
Cents Seventy-six only (Rs. 58,071,665.76) of lawful 
money of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding 
on the said Bond and the Board of Directors of Sampath 
Bank PLC under the powers vested by the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 
1990 do hereby resolve that the property and premises 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged 
to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security for the 
said credit facility by the said Bond No. 2968 to be 
sold in public auction by P. K. E. Senapathi, Licensed 
Auctioneer of Colombo for the recovery of the said sum 
of Rupees Fifty-eight Million Seventy-one Thousand 
Six Hundred and Sixty-five and Cents Seventy-six Only  
(Rs. 58,071,665.76) together with further interest on 
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a sum of Rupees Fifty-four Million Eight Hundred 
Thousand Only (Rs. 54,800,000.00) at  the rate of 
Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate + Four decimal 
Five per centum  (4.5%) per annum (Floor rate of 16.5%) 
per annum from 04th April, 2018 to date of satisfaction 
of the total debt due upon the said Bond bearing  
No. 2968 together with costs of advertising and other 
charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 2012 dated 24th and 25th January 
2006 made by A. R. Weerasuriya, Licensed Surveyor (and 
an endorsement dated 29th December, 2016 made by  
A. R. Weerasuriya, Licensed Surveyor), of the land called 
“Cheenawatta alias Kekiribokka Watta” together with 
building, soil, trees, plantations and everything else standing 
thereon situated at China Garden within the Grama Niladhari 
Division No. 96G - China Garden and within the Divisional 
Secretariat and Municipal Council Limits of Galle, in Four 
Gravets of Galle, within the District of Galle, Southern 
Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by 
Kekiribokka Watta and Portion of land called Kambamana, 
on the East by Hotel Bonkafe, on the South by Gamini Road, 
and on the West by pavilian Hotel and Space between same 
building and containing in the extent Eighteen Decimal Four 
Eight Perches (0A., 0R., 18.48P.) or 0.04674 Hectares as per 
said Plan No. 2012 and Registered at Galle District Land 
Registry under reference Q 164/20.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1207/1

Sampath Bank PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

Civi Mec Construction (Private) Limited.
A/C No. : 0127 1000 2477.

At a meeting held on 27.09.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Civi-Mec Construction (Private) Limited in 
the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the 

Obligor has made default in the repayment of the credit 
facilities granted against the security of the property 
and premises morefully described in the Schedule 
hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage 
Bond No. 1392 dated 13th November, 2014 attested by  
G. N. M. Kodagoda of Colombo Notary Public in favour 
of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company Registration 
No. PQ 144 and there is now due and owing on the 
said Bond No. 1392 to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid 
as at 11th September, 2018 a sum of Rupees One 
Hundred and Thirty-three Million Two Hundred and 
Ten Thousand Eight Hundred and Thirteen and Cents 
Forty-five only (Rs. 133,210,813.45) of lawful money 
of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding on the 
said Bond and the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank 
PLC under the powers vested by the Recovery of Loans 
by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do 
hereby resolve that the property and premises morefully 
described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged to Sampath 
Bank PLC aforesaid as security for the said credit 
facilities by the said Bond No. 1392 to be sold in public 
auction by P. K. E. Senapathi, Licensed Auctioneer of 
Colombo for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees One 
Hundred and Thirty-three Million Two Hundred and Ten 
Thousand Eight Hundred and Thirteen and Cents Forty-
five only (Rs. 133,210,813.45) together with further 
interest on a sum of Rupees One Hundred and Twenty-
six Million Eight Hundred and Fifty-eight Thousand 
Three Hundred and Fifteen and Cents Ninety-three only 
(Rs. 126,858,315.93) at  the rate of Average Weighted 
Prime Lending Rate + Two per centum  (2%) per annum 
from 12th September, 2018 to date of satisfaction of the 
total debt due upon the said Bond No. 1392 together 
with costs of advertising and other charges incurred less 
payments (if any) since received.

The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 5969 in Registration Plan No. 1 - Dehiwala depicted 
in Plan No. 5359A dated 31st January, 2014 made by  
K. V. M. W. Samaranayaka, Licensed Surveyor, of the land 
called known as “Alutwatta”, bearing Assessment No. 12 
and 14, Ramanathan Avenue, situated at Dehiwala in Ward 
No. 8, Dehiwala West within the Municipal Council Limits 
of Dehiwala - Mount Lavinia within the Grama Niladhari 
Division of Dehiwala West an Divisional Secretariat 
Division of Dehiwala, in the Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale, in 
the District of Colombo, Western Province and which said 
Lot 5969 is bounded on the North by Lots 1526, 2704 and 
2706 (Assessment Nos. 8C, 8B and 8 Ramanathan Avenue), 
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on the East by Ramanathan Avenue, on the South by Initium 
Road, and on the West by Lot 3906 (Assessment Nos. 34 
and 34A, Initium Road) and Lot 1225, and containing in 
extent One Rood and Three Decimal Four  Seven Perches 
(0A., 1R., 3.47P.) according to the said Plan No. 5359A.

Which said Lot 5969 in Registration Plan No. 1 - Dehiwala 
depicted in Plan No. 5359A is being and amalgamation of 
Lots 5969 and 5970 depicted in Plan No. 5359 are morefully 
described below ;

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 5969 depicted in Plan No. 5359 dated 21st April, 2013 
made by K. V. M. W. Samaranayaka, Licensed Surveyor, of 
the land called known as “Alutwatta”, bearing Assessment 
No. 12, Ramanathan Avenue, situated at Dehiwala in Ward 
No. 8, Dehiwala West aforesaid and which said Lot 5969 
is bounded on the North by Lots 1526, 2704 and 2706 
(Assessment Nos. 8C, 8B and 8 Ramanathan Avenue), on 
the East by Ramanathan Avenue, on the South by Lot 5970 
and Lot 3906 (Assessment Nos. 34 and 34A, Initium Road), 
and on the West by Lot 3906 (Assessment Nos. 34 and 
34A, Initium Road) and Lot 1225, and containing in extent 
Twenty Decimal Three Zero Perches (0A., 0R., 20.30P.)  
according to the said Plan No. 5359 and said Lot 5969 is 
registered in Volume/ Folio Dehi 112/32 and 33 at Dehiwala 
Land Registry.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 5970 depicted in Plan No. 5359 dated 21st April, 2013 
made by K. V. M. W. Samaranayaka, Licensed Surveyor, of 
the land called known as “Alutwatta”, bearing Assessment 
No. 14, Ramanathan Avenue, situated at Dehiwala in Ward 
No. 8, Dehiwala West aforesaid and which said Lot 5970 
is bounded on the North by Lots 5969, on the East by 
Ramanathan Avenue, on the South by Initium Road, and on 
the West by Lot 3906 (Assessment Nos. 34 and 34A, Initium 
Road), and containing in extent Twenty Three Decimal One 
Seven Perches (0A., 0R., 23.17P.)  according to the said Plan 
No. 5359 and Lot 5970 is registered in Volume/ Folio Dehi 
112/34 and 35 at Dehiwala Land Registry.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1207/2

Sampath  Bank  PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

K D E Serendib Food Products (Private) Limited.
A/C No. : 0002 1003 6946.

At a meeting held on 27.09.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas K D E Serendib Food Products (Private) 
Limited in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka 
as the Obligor has made default in the repayment of the 
credit facilities granted against the security of the property 
and premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bonds  
Nos. 4439 dated 22nd June, 2018 attested by  
R. Alahendra and 1455 dated 06th April, 2017 attested 
by C. G. Bandara of Colombo Notary Public in favour 
of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company Registration  
No. PQ 144 and there is now due and owing on the 
said Bonds Nos. 4439 and 1455 to Sampath Bank PLC 
aforesaid as at 18th September, 2018 a sum of Rupees 
Seven Hundred and Forty-seven Million Ninety-five 
Thousand Seven Hundred and Cents Thirty-seven only 
(Rs. 747,095,700.37) of lawful money of Sri Lanka 
being the total amount outstanding on the said Bonds 
and the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank PLC under 
the powers vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve 
that the property and premises morefully described in 
the Schedule hereto mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC 
aforesaid as security for the said credit facilities by the 
said Bonds Nos. 4439 and 1455 to be sold in public 
auction by P. K. E. Senapathi, Licensed Auctioneer of 
Colombo for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees 
Seven Hundred and Forty-seven Million Ninety-five 
Thousand Seven Hundred and Cents Thirty-seven only 
(Rs. 747,095,700.37) together with further interest on a 
sum of Rupees Seven Hundred and Eighteen Million Four 
Hundred and Thirty-three Thousand Four Hundred Only 
(Rs. 718,433,400.00) at  the rate of Average Weighted 
Prime Lending Rate + Two per centum  (2%) per annum 
from 19th September, 2018 to date of satisfaction of the 
total debt due upon the said Bonds bearing Nos. 4439 and 
1455 together with costs of advertising and other charges 
incurred less payments (if any) since received.
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The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot A depicted in Plan No. 2014/9/125 dated 18th June, 
2014 made by S. Balendiran, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called “Deduru Oya Estate”, together with the soil, 
trees, plantations, buildings and machinery  permanently 
fixed as described below and machinery to be fixed and 
everything else standing thereon situated at Urapotta Village 
in Kiniyama Korale of Katugampola Hatpattu in the Grama 
Niladhari Division of 1458 - Urapotta within the Divisional 
Secretariat of Bingiriya and Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of 
Bingiriya in Katugampola Hath Pattu in Kiniyama Korale in 
the Kurunegala District, North Western Province and which 
said Lot A is bounded on the North by Gadolwake (FVP 
1422), Road and Land claimed by C. T. Appuhamy, on the 
East by Land claimed by C. T. Appuhamy and state land 
(Live Stock Farm), on the South by State land (Live Stock 
Farm), and on the West by Road (Pradeshiya Sabha) and 
Gadolwake (FVP 1422), and containing in extent Fifty Acres 
(50A., 0R., 0P.) according to the said Plan No. 2014/9/125.

Which said Lot A in Plan No. 2014/9/125 is a resurvey 
of the following :-

Al that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 5073 dated 15th October, 2003 
made by W. Lakshman, H. Fernando, Licensed Surveyor of 
the land called “Deduru Oya Estate”, together with the soil, 
trees, plantations, buildings and everything else standing 
thereon situated at Urapotta Village aforesaid and which 
said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Gadolwake (FVP 
1422), and Land claimed by C. T. Appuhamy and others, on 
the East by Land claimed by C. T. Appuhamy and state land 
(Live Stock Farm), on the South by State land (Live Stock 
Farm), and on the West by Road (Pradeshiya Sabha) and  
containing in extent Fifty Acres (50A., 0R., 0P.) according 
to the said Plan No. 5073 and registered under Volume/ 
Folio H 47/11 at the Kuliyapitiya Land Registry.

The machinery permanently installed and fastened at the 
aforesaid premises herein before referred to :

	 No.	 Name	 Qty	 Serial/Equipment No.

	 01.	 Dryer	 1	 -
	 02.	 Dryer Hoper	 1	 -
	 03.	 Exhaust Duct Line	 1	 -
	  	    from Dryer
	 04.	 Oil Expeller	 1	 -
	 05.	 Oil Filter	 2	 -
	 06.	 Semi - Automated 	 1	 -
		  F  illing Machine
	 07.	 Boiler	 1	F VPL -15-2202

	 08.	 Boiler Steam Lines		  -
	 09.	 Ventilation System	 1	 -
	 10.	 Weight Bridge	 1	 -
	 11.	 Washing Tanks	 4	 -
	 12.	 Splitting Tanks	 6	 -
	 13.	 Storage Tanks-Under	 1	 -
		    ground
	 14.	T emporary Storage 	 1	 -
		T  anks-Under ground
	 15.	 Oil Tanker - 12.5 ton	 1	 -
	 16.	 Gas Dryer	 2	 -
	 17.	 Cutting Machine	 2	 -
	 18.	 Expeller	 2	 -
	 19.	F ilter	 2	 -
	 20.	 SS Table	 2	 -
	 21.	 SS Trolleys	 2	 -

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1207/3

Sampath   Bank  PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

Ramas International (Private) Limited.
A/C No. : 0041 1000 0540.

At a meeting held on 27.09.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Ramas International (Private) Limited in 
the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the 
Obligor and Sarathchandra Ramanayake and Shereen 
Ramanayake as the Mortgagors have made default in 
the repayment of the credit facilities granted against the 
security of the property and premises morefully described 
in the Schedule hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by 
the Mortgage Bond Nos. 1610 dated 14th November, 
2013 and 1818 dated 26th June, 2014 both attested by  
K L M D Kithsiri of Rathnapura Notary Public in favour 
of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company Registration 
No. PQ 144.

	 No.	 Name	 Qty	 Serial/Equipment No.
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And whereas Ramas International (Private) Limited 
in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as 
the Obligor and Sarathchandra Ramanayake as the 
Mortgagor have made default in the repayment of the 
credit facilities granted against the security of the property 
and premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bonds 
Nos. 2224 dated 11th December, 2015  attested by K. 
L. M. D. Kithsiri of Rathnapura Notary Public in favour 
of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company Registration  
No. PQ 144.

And whereas Ramas International (Private) Limited 
in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the 
Obligor has made default in the repayment of the credit 
facility granted against the security of the machineries 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged 
and hypothecated by the Machinery Mortgage Bond  
Nos. SBL/MAL/2013/001 dated 14th November, 2013 
and SBL/MAL/2014/001 dated 14th October, 2014 
in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company 
Registration No. PQ 144.

 And whereas there is now due and owing on the 
said Bond Nos. 1610, 1818, 2224 and Machinery 
Mortgage Bonds Nos. SBL/MAL/2013/001 and SBL/
MAL/2014/001 respectively to Sampath Bank PLC 
aforesaid as at 11th September, 2018 a sum of Rupees 
Two Hundred and Sixty Million Five Hundred and Thirty 
Thousand Three Hundred and Ninety-three and Cents 
Ninety Only (Rs. 260,530,393.90) of lawful money of 
Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding on the 
said Bonds and the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank 
PLC under the powers vested by the Recovery of Loans 
by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do 
hereby resolve that the properties and premises morefully 
described in the Schedules hereto mortgaged to Sampath 
Bank PLC aforesaid as securities for the said credit 
facilities by the said Bonds Nos. 1610, 1818, 2224 and 
Machinery Mortgage Bonds Nos. SBL/MAC/2013/001 
and SBL/MAC/2014/001 to be sold in public auction 
by P. K. E. Senapathi, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo 
for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Two Hundred 
and Sixty Million Five Hundred and Thirty Thousand 
Three Hundred and Ninety-three and Cents Ninety Only  
(Rs. 260,530,393.90) together with further interest 
on a sum of Rupees One Hundred and Thirty Million 
Two Hundred and Ninety-six Thousand Only  
(Rs. 130,296,000) at  the rate of Eleven decimal Five per 
centum (11.5%) per annum further interest on a further sum 
of Rupees Thirty-two Million Thirty-four Thousand only  
(Rs. 32,034,000) at the rate of Sixteen decimal Five per 
centum (16.5%) per annum further interest on a further 
sum of Rupees Twenty-four Million Twenty Thousand 
Six Hundred and Sixty-one and Cents Forty-six Only 

(Rs. 24,020,661.46) at the rate of Average Weighted 
Prime Lending Rate + One decimal Five Naught Per 
Centum (1.50%) per annum further interest on a sum of 
Rupees Thirty Million Only (Rs. 30,000,000) at the rate 
of Average Weighted Prime Weighted Prime Lending 
Rate + Two Per Centum (2%) (Floor rate of 9%) per 
annum, further interest on a further sum of Rupees 
Thirteen Million Eighty-four Thousand Two Hundred 
Only (Rs. 13,084,200) at the rate of Eleven decimal 
Five per centum (11.5%) per annum and further interest 
on a sum of Rupees Seven Million One Hundred and 
Eighty-seven Thousand Only (Rs. 7,187,000) at the 
rate of Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate + Two 
per centum (2%) (Floor rate of 8%) per annum from 
12th September, 2018 to date of satisfaction of the 
total debt due upon the said Bonds bearing Nos. Bonds  
Nos. 1610, 1818, 2224 and Machinery Mortgage Bonds 
Nos. SBL/MAC/2013/001 and SBL/MAC/2013/001 
together with costs of advertising and other charges 
incurred less payments (if any) since received.

The schedule

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 depicted in Plan No. 1951 dated 04th December, 
2009 made by E. E. Wijesooriya, Licensed Surveyor, of the 
land called “Kawuduelbatahenyaya Kiulehenyaya, Part of 
Millakandagawa Elagawa Deniya alias Ambagahadeniya 
Pareren Uda Pette Kotasa (Part)”, together with the soil, 
trees, plantations, buildings and everything else standing 
thereon situated at Thapassara Kanda Village in the 
Grama Niladhari Division of Thapassara Kanda within 
the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits  and Divisional Secretariat of 
Kalawana, in Meda Pattu of Kukulu Korale, in the District 
of Ratnapura, Sabaragamuwa Province and which said 
Lot 01 is bounded on the North by Lot 2A in Plan No. 
5351 made by S. Ramakrishnan, Licensed Surveyor and 
reservation along Kiulehena ela and Part of the same land, 
on the East by Reservation along Kiulahena ela, Part of the 
same land, Lot 02 hereof and Lot 3B2 in Plan No. 3523 made 
by M. W. Ramanayake, Licensed Surveyor, on the South by 
Par of the same land, Lot 2 hereof and Lot 3B2 in Plan No. 
3523 made by M. W. Ramanayake, Licensed Surveyor, Lots 
02C and 02D in Plan No. 5351 made by S. Ramakrishnan, 
Licensed Surveyor, and on the West by Lots 02C, 02D and 
02A in Plan No. 5351 made by S. Ramakrishnan, Licensed 
Surveyor, and containing in the extent Five Acre Thirteen 
Decimal Six Perches (5A., 0R., 13.6P.) according to said 
Plan No. 1951 and registered under Volume/ Folio P 11/102 
at the Ratnapura Land Registry.

Together with the right of way over and along ;

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 02 depicted in Plan No. 1951 dated 04th December, 
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2009 made by E. E. Wijesooriya, Licensed Surveyor, of the 
land called “Kawuduelbatahenyaya Kiulehenyaya, Part of 
Millakandagawa Elagawa Deniya alias Ambagahadeniya 
Pareren Uda Pette Kotasa (Part)”, together with the soil, 
trees, plantations, buildings and everything else standing 
thereon situated at Thapassara Kanda Village in the 
Grama Niladhari Division of Thapassara Kanda within 
the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits  and Divisional Secretariat of 
Kalawana, in Meda Pattu of Kukulu Korale, in the District 
of Ratnapura, Sabaragamuwa Province and which said 
Lot 02 is bounded on the North by Lot 1 hereof and Part 
of the same land Lots 3 and 5 in Plan No. 4035 made by 
M. Samarasekara, Licensed Surveyor, on the East by Lots 
03 and 05 in Plan No. 4035 made by M. Samarasekara, 
Licensed Surveyor Odokkawe Deniya, Lot 03 hereof and 
Rubber Estate, on the South by Odokkuwediniya Lot 03 
hereof, Rubber Estate, Lot 06 in Plan No. 4035 made by 
M. Samarasekara, Licensed Surveyor and Part of the same 
land,  and on the West by Lot 06 in Plan No. 4035 made by 
M. Samarasekara, Licensed Surveyor, Part of the same land 
and Lot 01 hereof, and containing in the extent One Rood 
Thirteen Perches (0A., 1R., 13P.) according to said Plan No. 
1951 and registered under Volume/ Folio P 11/103 at the 
Ratnapura Land Registry.

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 03 depicted in Plan No. 1951 dated 04th December, 
2009 made by E. E. Wijesooriya, Licensed Surveyor, of the 
land called “Kawuduelbatahenyaya Kiulehenyaya, Part of 
Millakandagawa Elagawa Deniya alias Ambagahadeniya 
Pareren Uda Pette Kotasa (Part)”, together with the soil, 
trees, plantations, buildings and everything else standing 
thereon situated at Thapassara Kanda Village in the 
Grama Niladhari Division of Thapassara Kanda within 
the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits  and Divisional Secretariat of 
Kalawana, in Meda Pattu of Kukulu Korale, in the District of 
Ratnapura, Sabaragamuwa Province and which said Lot 03 
is bounded on the North by Lot 2 hereof Odokkuwedeniya 
and Millakandagamuwa elgawa Deniya, on the East by 
Odokkuwedeniya and Millakandagamuwa elgawa Deniya 
and Main Road, on the South by Main Road and Rubber 
Estate and on the West by Rubber Estate, Lot 06 in Plan 
No. 4035 made by M. Samarasekara, Licensed Surveyor 
and Lot 2 hereof, and containing in the extent One Rood 
Seven Decimal Nine Two Five Perches (0A., 1R., 7.925P.) 
according to said Plan No. 1951 and registered under 
Volume/ Folio P 11/104 at the Ratnapura Land Registry.

Together with the Machinery :

			   Description

	 No.	 Units	 Loaf Room	 Serial No.	 Capacity
			 
	 01	 05	 80ft* 6ft Trough (Type 1)	 GI 2296, GI 2291,
				    GI 2206, GI 2290

	 02	 02	 80ft* 6ft Trough (Type 2)	 Not Identified	 1200 kg

	 03	 02	 80ft* 5ft Trough (Type 3)		  2000kg

	 04	 01	 95ft* 5ft Trough (Type 4)	 2289	 1188kg

	 05	 03	 95ft* 6ft Trough (Type 5)		  1428kg

	 06	 01	 100ft* 6ft Trough (Type 6)	 1167	 1500kg

	 07	 01	 100ft* 6.5ft Trough (Type 7)	 1167	 1625kg

	 08	 01	 75ft* 12ft Trough (Type 8)	 Not Identified	 2000kg

	 09	 01	 Leaf Elevator (Type 1)

	 10	 02	 Leaf Elevator (Type 2)		  2000kg

			   Roller Room

	 11	 01	 47" Walker Tea Rollers	 Si 119	 300kg

	 12	 05	 47" CCC Tea Roller	 4047, 4842, 4852,
				    4843, 4844
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	 13	 02	 Humidifier

	 14	 03	 Rolle Breakers

			   Drier Room

	 15	 01	 Drier (Type 1)	 Not Identified	 250kg/h

	 16	 01	 Drier (Type 2)	 D 1265	 280kg/h

			   Sifting Room

	 17	 05	 Michisifter (Type 1)

	 18	 03	 Michisifter (Type 2)

	 19	 03	 Middleton Sifter

	 20	 02	F ibermet (Type 1)

	 21	 01	F ibermet (Type 2)

	 22	 01	 3T Machine	 91-GI-7-327

	 23	 03	 Winnowers	 91-GI-7-327

	 24	 01	 Secvec Electric Color Sorter	 203581	 350kg/h

	 25	 01	 Chota Sifter with Conveyor	 Not Identified

	 26	 01	 Dust Fan (Type 1)

	 27	 05	 Dust Fan (Type 2)

	 28	 01	 Double Packer

	 29	 01	 Super Senvec Color Separator	 0-92330	 250L

	 30	 02	 Senvec Color Separator	 142895

	 31	 02	T erry Nipper Breaker

	 32	 01	 Pekoe Cutter

	 33	 01	 Electronic Scale (Type 1)- E 1205	 114950208	 300kg/h

	 34	 01	 Electronic Scale (Type 2)- Avery		  300kg/g

			   Description

	 No.	 Units	 Loaf Room	 Serial No.	 Capacity
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	 35	 01	 Manual Scale (Type 1) - Avery		  250kg/h
	
	 36	 05	 Manual Scale (Type 2) - Avery		  250kg/h

	 37	 01	 Generator - 1306-9-TAG3	 2684	 300kva

	 38	 01	 Capacitor Bank		  250kva

	 39	 01	 Wigh Bridge - Avery Weight tronic		  17ton

	 40	 01	 Panel Board		  250kva

	 41	 01	F ire Wood Splitter

	 42	 01	T ea Breaker (Type 1) - STB 900

	 43	 01	T ea Breaker (Type 1) - STB 1200

	 44	 01	 Electrical Distribution System with out 
			   Capacitor Bank and Panel Board.

Mortgaged and hypothecate under and by virtue of Mortgage Bonds Nos. 1610 and 1818.

2   I. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 01 depicted in Plan No. 2015/751 dated 18th November, 2015 
made by K. W. S. K. Wicknaraja, Licensed Surveyor, of the land called “Indigahahenawatta and Angurukokkawalahena”, 
together with building, soil, trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon situated at Weddagala Village in the 
Grama Niladhari Division of Kudumeeriya within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits and Divisional Secretariat of Kalawana in 
Uda Pattu of Kukulu Korale, in the District of Ratnapura, Sabaragamuwa Province and which said Lot 01 is bounded on the 
North by Lot 1241 in F. V. P. No. 01, on the East by Lot 1241 in F. V. P. No. 01, on the South by Lot 1241 in F. V. P. No. 01, 
and on the West by Lot 1241 in F. V. P. No. 01, and containing in the extent Two Roods  (0A., 2R., 0P.) according to said 
Plan No. 2015/751 and registered in P 53/101 at the Land Registry of Ratnapura.

II. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 02 depicted in Plan No. 2015/751 dated 18th November, 2015 
made by K. W. S. K. Wicknaraja, Licensed Surveyor, of the land called “Indigahahenawatta and Angurukokkawalahena”, 
together with building, soil, trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon situated at Weddagala Village in the 
Grama Niladhari Division of Kudumeeriya within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits and Divisional Secretariat Division of 
Kalawana in Uda Pattu of Kukulu Korale, in the District of Ratnapura, Sabaragamuwa Province and which said Lot 02 is 
bounded on the North by Lots 1242 and 1241 in F. V. P. No. 01 and Road (P.S.), on the East by Lots 1241 and 513 in F. V. 
P. No. 01, on the South by Lots 1241, 513, 514, 517, 516, 1240, 1246 and 1242 in F. V. P. No. 01, and on the West by Lots 
514, 517, 516, 1240, 1246 and 1242 in F. V. P. No. 01, and containing in the extent Five Acres Two Roods  (5A., 2R., 0P.) 
according to said Plan No. 2015/751 and registered in P 53/102 at the Land Registry of Ratnapura.

III. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 03 depicted in Plan No. 2015/751 dated 18th November, 2015 
made by K. W. S. K. Wicknaraja, Licensed Surveyor, of the land called “Indigahahenawatta and Angurukokkawalahena”, 
together with building, soil, trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon situated at Weddagala Village in the 
Grama Niladhari Division of Kudumeeriya within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits and Divisional Secretariat Division of 
Kalawana in Uda Pattu of Kukulu Korale, in the District of Ratnapura, Sabaragamuwa Province and which said Lot 03 is 
bounded on the North by Lots 1241 in F. V. P. No. 01 and Lot 02 hereof, on the East by Lots 02 hereof, on the South by 
Lots 02 and 04 hereof, and on the West by Lot 04 hereof and Road (P.S), and containing in the extent Twenty Four Perches   
(0A., 0R., 24P.) according to said Plan No. 2015/751 and registered in P 53/103 at the Land Registry of Ratnapura.

			   Description

	 No.	 Units	 Loaf Room	 Serial No.	 Capacity
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IV. All that divided and defined allotment of land 
marked Lot 05 depicted in Plan No. 2015/751 dated 18th 
November, 2015 made by K. W. S. K. Wicknaraja, Licensed 
Surveyor, of the land called “Indigahahenawatta and 
Angurukokkawalahena”, together with building, soil, trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon situated 
at Weddagala Village in the Grama Niladhari Division of 
Kudumeeriya within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits and 
Divisional Secretariat Division of Kalawana in Uda Pattu of 
Kukulu Korale, in the District of Ratnapura, Sabaragamuwa 
Province and which said Lot 05 is bounded on the North by 
Lots 02 and 04 hereof, on the East by Lots 02 and 04 hereof, 
on the South by Lot 02 hereof, and on the West by Lot 02 
hereof, and containing in the extent Three Roods Twenty 
Six Perches  (0A., 3R., 26P.) according to said Plan No. 
2015/751 and registered in P 53/105 at the Land Registry 
of Ratnapura.

Together with the right of way over and along :-

 All that divided and defined allotment of land 
marked Lot 04 depicted in Plan No. 2015/751 dated 18th 
November, 2015 made by K. W. S. K. Wicknaraja, Licensed 
Surveyor, of the land called “Indigahahenawatta and 
Angurukokkawalahena”, together with building, soil, trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon situated 
at Weddagala Village aforesaid and which said Lot 04 is 
bounded on the North by Road and Lot 03 hereof, on the 
East by Lot 03 hereof, on the South by Lots 02 and 05 hereof, 
and on the West by Lots 05 and 02 hereof, and containing 
in the extent Six Perches  (0A., 0R., 6P.) according to said 
Plan No. 2015/751 and registered in P 53/104 at the Land 
Registry of Ratnapura.

Which said Lots 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 being resurvey, subdivision 
and amalgamation of the lands morefully described below ;

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 518 depicted in Village Plan No. 946 authenticated by 
Surveyor General, of the land together with building, soil, 
trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon 
situated at Weddagala Village in the Grama Niladhari 
Division of Kudumeeriya within the Pradeshiya Sabha 
Limits and Divisional Secretariat of Kalawana in Uda 
Pattu of Kukulu Korale, in the District of Ratnapura, 
Sabaragamuwa Province and which said Lot 518 is bounded 
on the North by Lot 1241, 1242, 1243, 753 and 499 hereof, 
on the East by Lots 499, 1243 and 513 hereof, on the South 
by Lots 513, 514, 516, 517, 1240 and 1246 hereof, and 
on the West by Lots 514, 516, 517, 1240, 1246 and 1242 
hereof, and containing in the extent Six Acres One Rood 
and Sixteen Perches  (6A., 1R., 16P.) according to said 
Village Plan No. 946 and registered in C 228/58 at the Land 
Registry of Ratnapura.

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
1243 depicted in Village Plan No. 946 Surveyor General, 
of the land together with building, soil, trees, plantations 
and everything else standing thereon situated at Weddagala 
Village in the Grama Niladhari Division of Kudumeeriya 
within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits and Divisional 
Secretariat of Kalawana in Uda Pattu of Kukulu Korale, 
in the District of Ratnapura, Sabaragamuwa Province and 
which said Lot 1243 is bounded on the North by Lot 499 
hereof, on the East by 1244 and 1241 hereof, on the South 
by Lots 1241, 513 and 518 hereof, and on the West by Lots 
513 and 518 hereof, and containing in the extent One Rood  
(0A., 1R., 0P.) according to said Village Plan No. 946 and 
registered in C 228/59 at the Land Registry of Ratnapura.

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1244 depicted in Village Plan No. 946 Surveyor 
General, of the land together with building, soil, trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon situated 
at Weddagala Village in the Grama Niladhari Division of 
Kudumeeriya within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits and 
Divisional Secretariat Division of Kalawana in Uda Pattu of 
Kukulu Korale, in the District of Ratnapura, Sabaragamuwa 
Province and which said Lot 1244 is bounded on the North 
by Lots 1241 and 499 hereof, on the East by 1241 hereof, on 
the South by Lot 1241 hereof, and on the West by Lot 1241 
hereof, and containing in the extent Two Rood  (0A., 2R., 
0P.) according to said Village Plan No. 946 and registered in 
C 228/60 at the Land Registry of Ratnapura.

Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bond bearing No. 2224.

3. All and singular the movable plant machinery and 
equipment hereinafter fully described which will be kept 
in and upon factory premises of Kalawana Tea Factory, 
Manana, Kalawana within the District of Rathnapura, 
Sabaragamuwa Province or any other place or places where 
the same may be removed and kept lie stored or installed.

Description of Equipments

Vendor Model	 :	 Jiexun Tea Colour Separator
	
Customer Model	 :	 DCS 5000C (640)

Description of Goods	 :	 Jiexun Tea Color Separator 
Machine - Model DCS 5000C 
(640)

		  Complete with bucket conveyor 
system, High Frequency Electro 
Magnetic Vibrator, Complete 
Discharge Conveyor, 11 Kw, 
Screw Compressors including 
1000 Lit. Air Stock Tank, 3 
CBM Air Drier, 3Kw Isolator 
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Transformer/Voltage Stabilizer, 
Drain Catch (Water Separator) 
Standard Accessories and spare 
parts.

S/N No.	 :	 D 56450 - SI005

Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Machinery Mortgage Bond No. SBL/MAC/2013/001.

4. All and singular the movable plant, machinery and 
equipment hereinafter fully described which will be kept 
in and upon premises of Kalawana Tea Factory, Manana, 
Kalawana within the District of Ratnapura, Sabaragamuwa 
Province or any other place or places where the same may 
be removed and kept lie stored or installed.

Description of Equipments

Vendor Model	 :	 Conquest 450 KGS MT/ H 
Drying Chamber

	
Description of Goods	 :	 Conquest 450 KGS MT/ H 

Drying Chamber Complete with 
Shola 16 CM 5 Pass Heater

S/N No.	 :	 Conquest Drier - TIGP - 
II/20504 of Year 2014-15

		  Shola 16 CM 5 Pass Heater - 
TIGL/ 16 CM/ SPL - 04/14-15.

Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Machinery Mortgage Bond No. SBL/MAC/2014/001.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1207/4

Sampath Bank PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

Happy Cook Lanka Food (Private) Limited.
A/C No. : 0024 1000 7878.

At a meeting held on 27.09.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Happy Cook Lanka Food (Private) Limited 
in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the 
Obligor and Brook Boutique (Private) Limited as the 
Mortgagor has made default in the repayment of the credit 
facilities granted against the security of the property and 
premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bonds 
Nos. 103 dated 13th July, 2017 attested by H. C. Lakmini 
of Colombo Notary Public and 3676 dated 18th August, 
2017 attested by N. M. Nagodavithana of Gampaha 
Notary Public in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding 
Company Registration No. PQ 144 and there is now 
due and owing on the said Bonds Nos. 103 and 3676 
to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 10th September, 
2018 a sum of Rupees Two Hundred and Nine Million 
Sixty-seven Thousand Three Hundred and Ten and Cents 
Ninety-three only (Rs. 209,067,310.93) of lawful money 
of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding on the 
said Bonds and the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank 
PLC under the powers vested by the Recovery of Loans 
by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do 
hereby resolve that the property and premises morefully 
described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged to Sampath 
Bank PLC aforesaid as security for the said credit facilities 
by the said Bonds Nos. 103 and 3676 to be sold in public 
auction by P. K. E. Senapathi, Licensed Auctioneer of 
Colombo for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees 
Two Hundred and Nine Million Sixty-seven Thousand 
Three Hundred and Ten and Cents Ninety-three only  
(Rs. 209,067,310.93) together with further interest on 
a sum of Rupees Ninety-six Million Two Hundred and 
Sixty-four Thousand Five Hundred and Ten and Cents 
Ninety-six Only (Rs. 96,264,510.96) at the rate of Average 
Weighted Prime Lending Rate + Four per centum  (4%) 
and further interest on a sum of Rupees One Hundred 
Million Only (Rs. 100,000,000.00) at the rate of Sixteen 
decimal Two Five per centum (16.25%) per annum from 
04th September, 2018 to date of  satisfaction of the total 
debt due upon the said Bonds bearing Nos. 103 and 3676  
together with costs of advertising and other charges 
incurred less payments (if any) since received.

The schedule

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 depicted in Plan No. 1076 dated 21st November, 
2016 made by H. W. Asoka Jayalal, Licensed Surveyor 
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of the land called  “Danzil Estate” together with the trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon situated 
at Watawana and Polgahangoda Villages within the Grama 
Niladhari Division of No. 409 - Madahapola, Divisional 
Secretariat and Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Polpithigama in 
Hiriyala Hathpattu of Ihala Otota Korale in the District of 
Kurunegala, North Western Province and which said Lot 1 
is bounded on the North by Lot 06 of Plan No. 912 dated 
14th January, 1991 made by W. P. G. D. D. Jayawardene, 
Licensed Surveyor and Polgahangoda Village F. V. P. 2625, 
on the East by Polgahangoda Village F. V. P. No. 2625, on 
the South by Reservation along Talwatta Oya and on the 
West by Lot 6 in Plan No. 912 and containing in extent 
Twenty Five Acres Three Roods and Twelve Perches  
(25A., 03R., 12P.) according to the said Plan No. 1076.

Which said Lot 1 is a re-survey of Lot 1 depicted in 
PlanNo. 107/95 dated 26th November, 1995 made by G. W. 
D. S. Goonarathne, Licensed Surveyor in turn is a resurvey 
of the land described below ;

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 7 depicted in Plan No. 912 dated 14th January, 1991 
(more correctly 13th January, 1991) made by W. P. G. D. 
D. Jayawardena, Licensed Surveyor of the land called  
“Danzil Estate” together with the trees, plantations and 
everything else standing thereon situated at Watawana and 
Polgahangoda Villages aforesaid and which said Lot 7 is 
bounded on the North by Polgahangoda Village F. V. P.  
No. 2625, on the East by Polgahangoda Village F. V. P. 
No. 2625, on the South by Lot 19 in F. V. P. 2626A and on 
the West by Lot 06 and containing in extent Twenty Five 
Acres Three Roods and Twelve Perches (25A., 03R., 12P.) 
according to the said Plan No. 912 and registered in Volume/ 
Folio M 48/30 at the Land Registry Kurunegala.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 2 depicted in Plan No. 1076 dated 21st November, 2016 
made by H. W. Asoka Jayalal, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called  “Danzil Estate” together with the trees, plantations 
and everything else standing thereon situated at Watawana 
and Polgahangoda Villages aforesaid and which said Lot 2 
is bounded on the North by Reservation along Talwatta Oya, 
on the East by Talwatta Oya and Watawana Village in F. V. 
P. No. 2626, on the South by Watawana Village in F. V. P.  
No. 2626 and Road (PS) to Omaragolla and on the West 
by Road to Omaragolla and Lot 9 in Plan No. 912 and 
containing in the extent Twenty Two Acres Three Perches 
(22A., 0R.,3P.) according to the said Plan No. 1076.

Which said Lot 2 is a re-survey of Lot 2 depicted in Plan 
No. 107/95 dated 26th November, 1995 made by G. W. D. 
S. Goonarathne, Licensed Surveyor in turn is a resurvey of 
the land described below ;

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 8 depicted in Plan No. 912 dated 14th January, 1991 
(more correctly 13th January, 1991) made by W. P. G. D. 
D. Jayawardena, Licensed Surveyor of the land called  
“Danzil Estate” together with the trees, plantations and 
everything else standing thereon situated at Watawana and 
Polgahangoda Villages aforesaid and which said Lot 8 is 
bounded on the North by Lot 30 in  F. V. P. 2626A, on the 
East by Watawana Village (part of F. V. P. No. 2626), on the 
South by Lot 32 in F. V. P. 2626A and on the West by Lot 09 
and containing in extent Twenty Two Acres Three Perches 
(22A., 0R., 3P.) according to the said Plan No. 912 and 
registered in Volume/ Folio M 48/31 at the Land Registry 
Kurunegala.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1207/5

Sampath  Bank  PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

Richwin International (Private) Limited.
A/C No. : 0024 1000 9121.

At a meeting held on 27.09.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Richwin International (Private) Limited in 
the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the 
Obligor has made default in the repayment of the credit 
facility granted against the security of the property and 
premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond 
No. 3495 dated 28th February, 2017 attested by N. M. 
Nagodawithana of Gampaha Notary Public in favour 
of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company Registration 
No. PQ 144 and there is now due and owing on the said 
Bond No. 3495 to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 
10th September, 2018 a sum of Rupees Twenty-three 
Million One Hundred and Twenty-four Thousand Seven 
Hundred and Forty-two and Cents Seventy-six Only  
(Rs. 23,124,742.76) of lawful money of Sri Lanka 
being the total amount outstanding on the said Bond 
and the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank PLC 
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under the powers vested by the Recovery of Loans 
by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do 
hereby resolve that the property and premises morefully 
described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged to Sampath 
Bank PLC aforesaid as security for the said credit facility 
by the said Bond No. 3495 to be sold in public auction by  
P. K. E. Senapathi, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for 
the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Twenty-three 
Million One Hundred and Twenty-four Thousand Seven 
Hundred and Forty-two and Cents Seventy-six Only  
(Rs. 23,124,742.76) together with further interest on a 
sum of Rupees Twenty Million Only (Rs. 20,000,000.00) 
at the rate of Average Weight Prime Lending Rate + Four 
decimal five per centum  (4.5%) per annum (Floor rate of 
16%) from 11th September, 2018 to date of satisfaction 
of the total debt due upon the said Bonds bearing  
Nos. 3495  together with costs of advertising and other 
charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot X depicted in Plan No. 10241 dated 19th October, 2016 
made by S. G. Gunatilake, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called  “Mahawatta” together with the soil, trees, plantations 
and everything else standing thereon bearing Assessment 
No. 68 - Sanchi Arachchi Gardens in Kehelwatta Ward  
No. 18, situated at Sanchi Arachchi Gardens, within the 
Grama Niladhari Division of Kehelwatta, Divisional 
Secretariat and Municipal Council Limits of Colombo 
in the District of Colombo Western Province and which 
said Lot X is bounded on the North by reservation along 
Sanchi Arachchi Gardens, on the East by premises bearing 
Assessment Nos. 20, 22 and 23 (Sanchi Arachchi Gardens), 
on the South by Lot 1 in Plan No. 254 and on the West by 
Lot 1 in Plan No. 254 and containing in extent Five decimal 
One Naught Perches (0A., 0R., 5.10P.) according to the said 
Plan No. 10241.

Which said Lot X is a re-survey of the land moefully 
described below ;

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
X depicted in Plan No. 183/1990 dated 02nd July, 1990 made 
by Sugath Samarawickrema, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called  “Mahawatta” situated at Sanchi Arachchi Gardens 
aforesaid and which said Lot X is bounded on the North by 
reservation along Sanchi Arachchi Gardens (Road), on the 
East by property now belonging to Colombo Municipality 
bearing Assessment Nos. 20, 22 and 23, on the South by 
Lots B and D in Plan No. 2951 and on the West by Lot B 
Plan No. 2951 and containing in extent Five decimal One 
Naught Perches (0A., 0R., 5.10P.) according to the said Plan 

No. 183/1990 and registered in Volume/ Folio D 171/84 at 
the Land Registry Colombo.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1207/6

Sampath Bank PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

V. Langeswaran and T. Marimuthu Nee T. Langeswaran.
A/C No. : 0169 5000 2402.

At a meeting held on 27.09.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Thulasi Marimuthu nee Thulasi Langeswaran 
and Velautham Langeswaran in the Democratic Socialist 
Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligors and  the said 
Thulasi Marimuthu nee Thulasi Langeswaran as the 
Mortgagor have made default in the repayment of the 
credit facilities granted against the security of the property 
and premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bonds  
No. 2427 dated 09th May, 2017 and 2628 dated 23rd 
May, 2018 both attested by G. N. M. Kodagoda of 
Colombo Notary Public in favour of Sampath Bank PLC 
holding Company Registration No. PQ 144 and having its 
Registered Office at No. 110, Sir James Peiris Mawatha, 
Colombo 02 and there is now due and owing  on the 
said Bonds bearing Nos. 2427 and 2628 to Sampath 
Bank PLC aforesaid as at 14th August, 2018 a sum of 
Rupees Thirty Million Nine Hundred and Seventy-
eight Thousand One Hundred and Eighty-one and Cents 
Eighty-two only  (Rs. 30,978,181.82) of lawful money 
of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding on the 
said Bonds and the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank 
PLC aforesaid under the  powers vested by the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 
1990 do hereby resolve that the property and premises 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged 
to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security for the said 
credit facilities by the said Bonds bearing Nos. 2427 and 
2628 to be sold in public auction by P. K. E. Senapathi, 
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Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for the recovery of 
the said sum of Rupees Thirty Million Nine Hundred 
and Seventy-eight Thousand One Hundred and Eighty-
one and Cents Eighty-two only  (Rs. 30,978,181.82)  
together with further interest on a sum of Rupees Thirty 
Million Only (Rs. 30,000,000.00) at  the rate of Sixteen 
decimal Five per centum (16.5%) per annum from 15th 
August, 2018 to date of satisfaction of the total debt due 
upon the said Bonds bearing Nos. 2427 and 2628 together 
with costs of advertising and other charges incurred less 
payments (if any) since received.

The schedule

All that Residential Condominium Parcel No. C. Pa 
7B (on the Seventh Floor) in the said Condominium Plan  
No. 11145 dated 27th November, 2008 made by  
K. Selvaratnam Registered Licensed Surveyor bearing 
Assessment No. 754/77/4, Golden Crescent Kollupitiya 
Road in Bambalapitiya Colombo 00400 consisting of 
Sitting and Dinning Area, Master Bed Room and Two other 
Bed rooms, Store Room, Pantry and Two Toilets situated 
at Kollupitiya Road in the Grama Niladhari's Division of 
Bambalapitiya (in Bambalapitiya Ward No. 38) in the 
Divisional Secretariat of Thimbirigasyaya in Palle Pattu of 
Salpiti Korale within the Municipality and the District of 
Colombo Western Province and wich said Condominium 
Parcel No. C. Pa 7B (on the Seventh Floor)

Depicted in the said Condominium Plan No. 11145 is 
bounded as follows :-

North	 :	 by Centre of Wall between this 
Condominium Parcel and CE 1, CE 15 
and CE 16,

East	 :	 by Centre of Wall between this 
Condominium Parcel an Condominium 
Parcel 7A, CE 38, CE 14 and CE 28,

South	 :	 by Centre of wall between this 
Condominium Parcel and CE38, CE5, 
CE14, CE28, Condominium Parcel 7D 
and CE4,

West	 :	 by Centre of Wall between this 
Condominium Parcel and CE 4, CE27 and 
CE1,

Zenith	 :	 by Centre of the concrete floor of 
Condominium Parcel 8B above,

Nadir	 :	 by Centre of concrete floor of this 
Condominium Parcel above C. Pa 6B.

Containing a Floor area of 148.60 Sq. M (1,600 Sq. Ft.)

The undivided share value of this Condominium Parcel in 
Common Elements of the Condominium Property is 2.97%.

Immediate Common access to this Condominium Parcel 
is CE 38.

Registered in Volume/ Folio Con E90/72 at the Colombo 
Land Registry.

2. All that parking Lot marked as Accessory Parcel A. 
Pa. 7B depicted in the said Condominium Plan No. 11145 
dated 27th November, 2008 made by K. Selvaratnam, 
Registered Licensed Surveyor, the Basement of the building 
called Golden Crescent situated along Adamaly Place of 
Bambalapitiya aforesaid and bounded on North by A. Pa. 
8B, on the East by CE11, on the South by CE 11, on the West 
by CE 11, on the Nadir by Basement itself and on the Zenith 
by open space above

Containing a Floor area of : 11.90 Sq. m (128 Sq. ft)

Common Elements

Statutory Common Elements of the Condominium 
Property and Accessory Parcels are as provided in section 26 
of the Apartment ownership Law, No. 11 of 1973 as ameded 
by Section 12 of the (Amendment) Act, No. 45 of 1982 and 
apartment ownership (Amendment) Act, No. 39 of 2003 :

	 (a)	T he land on which the buildings stands, including 
the open spaces appurtenant to the Condominium 
Property.

	 (b)	T he Foundation, Columns, Girders, Beams, 
Supporters, Main Walls and Roof of the Building.

	 (c)	I nstallation for Central Services such as electricity, 
telephone, radio, rediffusion, television, water pipe, 
water tanks, sump for water, over head water tanks, 
pump house, ducts, sewerage line, man holes and 
garbage disposals.

	 (d)	 All other parts and facilities of the property necessary 
for or convenient to its existence, maintenance and 
safety or normally in common use.

Definition and Description of Common Element the 
Areas of which are shown on Plan of 4 to 28

CE 1	 (a)	I t is a land and open space at the front and along 
the Northern Boundary.

	 (b)	T he open space is for ventilation.
	 (c)	T he land is for use in common by all 

Condominium Parcels as an access, driveway 
and Parking.

CE 2	 (a)	I t is a land and open space along the Eastern 
Boundary.

	 (b)	 The open space is for ventilation.
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	 (c)	T he land is for use in common by all 
Condominium Parcels.

CE 3	 (a)	I t is a land and open space at the rear and along 
the Southern Boundary.

	 (b)	T he open space is for ventilation.
	 (c)	T he land is for use in common by all 

Condominium Parcels as an access, driveway 
and Parking.

CE 4	 (a)	I t is a land and open space and along the 
Western Boundary.

	 (b)	T he open space is for ventilation.
	 (c)	T he land is for use in common by all 

Condominium Parcels as an access and 
Parking.

CE 5	 (a)	I t is a Lift leading to all Floors.
	 (b)	I t is for use in common.

CE 6	 (a)	I t is a Stairway leading to all Floors.
	 (b)	I t is for use in common.

CE 7	 (a)	I t is a Lift leading to all Floors.
	 (b)	I t is for use in common.

CE 8	 (a)	I t is a Lift leading to all Floors.
	 (b)	I t is for use in common.

CE 9	 (a)	I t is a covered area in the Ground Floor with 
Transformer Room, Meter Room, toilet Panel 
Room, space for Generator Room, Garbage 
Bins, Lobby and Security Room.

	 (b)	T he land is for use in common as an access, 
driveway and parking.

CE 10	 (a)	I t is a Ramp to Basement.
	 (b)	I t is for use in common.

CE 11	 (a)	I t is a covered area in Basement.
	 (b)	T he land is for use in common access, driveway 

and parking.

CE 12	 (a)	I t is a Office.
	 (b)	I t is for use in common.

CE 13	 (a)	I t is a Office.
	 (b)	I t is for use in common.

CE 14	 (a)	I t is a duct.
	 (b)	I t is appurtenant to Condominium Property.

CE 15	 (a)	I t is a duct.
	 (b)	I t is appurtenant to Condominium Property.

CE 16	 (a)	I t is a Lift leading to all Floors.
	 (b)	I t is for use in common.

CE 17	 (a)	I t is a duct.
	 (b)	I t is appurtenant to Condominium Property.

CE 18	 (a)	I t is a duct.
	 (b)	I t is appurtenant to Condominium Property.

CE 19	 (a)	I t is a lobby in the Mezzanine Floor.
	 (b)	I t is for use in common.

CE 20	 (a)	I t is a duct.
	 (b)	I t is appurtenant to Condominium Property.

CE 21	 (a)	I t is a duct.
	 (b)	I t is appurtenant to Condominium Property.

CE 22	 (a)	I t is a duct.
	 (b)	I t is appurtenant to Condominium Property.

CE 23	 (a)	I t is a duct.
	 (b)	I t is appurtenant to Condominium Property.

CE 24	(a)	I t is a duct.
	 (b)	I t is appurtenant to Condominium Property.

CE 25	(a)	I t is a duct.
	 (b)	I t is appurtenant to Condominium Property.

CE 26	(a)	I t is a duct.
	 (b)	I t is appurtenant to Condominium Property.

CE 27	(a)	I t is a duct.
	 (b)	I t is appurtenant to Condominium Property.

CE 28	(a)	I t is a duct.
	 (b)	I t is appurtenant to Condominium Property.

CE 29	(a)	I t is a duct.
	 (b)	I t is appurtenant to Condominium Property.

CE 30	(a)	I t is a duct.
	 (b)	I t is appurtenant to Condominium Property.

CE 31	(a)	I t is a duct.
	 (b)	I t is appurtenant to Condominium Property.

CE 32	(a)	I t is a lobby in the First Floor.
	 (b)	I t is for use in common.
	 (c)	I t is an immediate common area access to 

Condominium Parcel 1A, 1B, 1C and 1D 
respectively.
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CE 33	(a)	 It is a lobby in the Second Floor.
	 (b)	I t is for use in common.
	 (c)	I t is an immediate common area access to 

Condominium Parcel 2A, 2B, 2C and 2D.

CE 34	(a)	I t is a lobby in the Third Floor.
	 (b)	I t is for use in common.
	 (c)	I t is an immediate common area access to 

Condominium Parcel 3A, 3B, 3C and 3D 
respectively.

CE 35	(a)	I t is a lobby in the Fourth Floor.
	 (b)	I t is for use in common.
	 (c)	I t is an immediate common area access to 

Condominium Parcel 4A, 4B, 4C and 4D 
respectively.

CE 36	(a)	I t is a lobby in the Fifth Floor.
	 (b)	I t is for use in common.
	 (c)	I t is an immediate common area access to 

Condominium Parcel 5A, 5B, 5C and 5D 
respectively.

CE 37	(a)	I t is a lobby in the Sixth Floor.
	 (b)	I t is for use in common.
	 (c)	I t is an immediate common area access to 

Condominium Parcel 6A, 6B, 6C and 6D 
respectively.

CE 38	(a)	I t is a lobby in the Seventh Floor.
	 (b)	I t is for use in common.
	 (c)	I t is an immediate common area access to 

Condominium Parcel 7A, 7B, 7C and 7D 
respectively.

CE 39	(a)	I t is a lobby in the Eighth Floor.
	 (b)	I t is for use in common.
	 (c)	I t is an immediate common area access to 

Condominium Parcel 8A, 8B, 8C and 8D.

CE 40	(a)	I t is a lobby in the Ninth Floor.
	 (b)	I t is for use in common.
	 (c)	I t is an immediate common area access to 

Condominium Parcel 9PH.

CE 41	(a)	I t is a Gym.
	 (b)	I t is for use in common.

CE 42	(a)	I t is an open terrace.
	 (b)	I t is for the use by Condominium Parcel 9PH.

CE 43	(a)	I t is an open terrace.
	 (b)	I t is for the use by Condominium Parcel 9PH.

CE 44	(a)	I t is a Roof Deck on the top of the building with 
pool, water tank and lift and machine room.

	 (b)	I t is for use in common.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1210/1

Sampath Bank PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

N. Vamadevan, S. Vamadevan and S. Kirubakaran.
A/C No. : 1170 5700 0268.

At a meeting held on 27.09.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Narththanarega Vamadevan, Shanmuganathan 
Vamadevan and Selvarasa Kirubakaran in the Democratic 
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligors and 
the said Selvarasa Kirubakaran as the Mortgagor have 
made default in the repayment of the credit facility 
granted against the security of the property and premises 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged 
and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond No. 718 dated 
03rd March, 2016 attested by A. V. Arunakirinathan of 
Vavuniya Notary Public in favour of Sampath Bank PLC 
holding Company Registration No. PQ 144.

And Whereas Narththanarega Vamadevan, 
Shanmuganathan Vamadevan and Selvarasa Kirubakaran 
in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the 
Obligors and the said Narththanarega Vamadevan as the 
Mortgagor have made default in the repayment of the 
credit facility granted against the security of the property 
and premises morefully described in the Schedule 
hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage 
Bond No. 720 dated 03rd March, 2016 attested by A. V. 
Arunakirinathan of Vavuniya Notary Public in favour 
of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company Registration  
No. PQ 144.

And  there is now due and owing  on the said Bonds 
bearing Nos. 718 and 720 to Sampath Bank PLC 
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aforesaid as at 06th September, 2018 a sum of Rupees 
Six Million Six Hundred and Forty-eight Thousand 
Three Hundred and Seventy-six and Cents  Forty-two 
Only (Rs. 6,648,376.42) of lawful money of Sri Lanka 
being the total amount outstanding on the said Bonds and 
the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid 
under the  powers vested by the Recovery of Loans 
by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do 
hereby resolve that the properties and premises morefully 
described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged to Sampath 
Bank PLC aforesaid as security for the said credit 
facility by the said Bonds bearing Nos. 718 and 720 to 
be sold in public auction by I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed 
Auctioneer of Kandy for the recovery of the said sum 
of Rupees Six Million Six Hundred and Forty-eight 
Thousand Three Hundred and Seventy-six and Cents  
Forty-two Only (Rs. 6,648,376.42) together with further 
interest on a sum of Rupees Six Million Two Hundred 
and Sixty-five Thousand Four Hundred and Three and 
Cents Twenty-three Only (Rs. 6,265,403.23) at  the rate 
of Sixteen decimal Five per centum (16.5%) per annum 
from 07th September, 2018 to date of satisfaction of the 
total debt due upon the said Bonds bearing Nos. 718 and 
720 together with costs of advertising and other charges 
incurred less payments (if any) since received.

The schedule

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 3 depicted in Plan No. 805 dated 12th November, 2011 
made by R. Nadesan, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Maharambaikkulakadu” together with the trees, plantations, 
buildings and everything else standing thereon situated 
at Maharambaikulam, in the Grama Niladhari Division 
of Maharambaikulam within the Pradeshiya Saba Limits 
of Vavuniya South Tamil, in the Divisional Secretariat of 
Vavuniya in the District of Vavuniya Northern Province and 
which said Lot 3 is bounded on the North by lane and Lot 02 
hereof, on the East by Lots 02 and 04 hereof, on the South 
by Lots 04 and 05 hereof and on the West by Lot 05 hereof 
and lane and containing in extent Twenty Six Decimal Zero 
Nine Four Three Perches (0A., 0R., 26.0943P.) according 
to the said Plan No. 805 and registered in LDO 63/45 and 
carried over to LDO A02/91 at the Land Registry Vavuniya.

Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bond No. 718.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 5 depicted in Plan No. 805 dated 12th November, 2011 
made by R. Nadesan, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Maharambaikkulakadu” together with the trees, plantations, 
buildings and everything else standing thereon situated 
at Maharambaikulam, in the Grama Niladhari Division 
Maharambaikulam within the Pradeshiya Saba Limits 

of Vavuniya South Tamil, in the Divisional Secretariat of 
Vavuniya in the District of Vavuniya Northern Province and 
which said Lot 5 is bounded on the North by Lane, Lots 03 
and 04 hereof, on the East by Lots 03 and 04 hereof, property 
claimed by Singarasa and Lot 08 hereof, on the South by the 
property claimed by Singarasa, Lots 08 and 07 hereof and 
on the West by Lot 08 and 07 hereof and lane and containing 
in extent Thirty Four decimal Nine Nine Zero One Perches 
(0A., 0R., 34.9901P.) according to the said Plan No. 805 and 
registered in Volume/ Folio LDO 63/47 and carried over to 
LDO A 02/90 at the Land Registry Vavuniya. 

Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bond No. 720.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1210/2

Sampath  Bank  PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

A. J. F. Fareeha and A. L. Asanar.
A/C No. : 0121 5000 3154.

At a meeting held on 27.09.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Ahamed Junaid Fathima Fareeha and 
Ahamed Lebbe Asanar in the Democratic Socialist 
Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligors and the said 
Ahamed Junaid Fathima Fareeha as the Mortgagor have 
made default in the repayment of the credit facilities 
granted against the security of the property and premises 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged 
and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bonds Nos. 5163 
dated 13th October, 2011 and 7738 dated 13th August, 
2014 both attested by V. Kanagarathnam of Batticaloa 
Notary Public, 4409 dated 20th October, 2016 and 4762 
dated 31st August, 2017 both attested by F. M. Natheer 
of Kalmunai Notary Public in favour of Sampath Bank 
PLC holding Company Registration No. PQ 144 and 
having its Registered Office at No. 110, Sir James Peiris 
Mawatha, Colombo 02.

And whereas Ahamed Junaid Fathima Fareeha and 
Ahamed Lebbe Asanar in the Democratic Socialist 
Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligors have made default 
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in the repayment of the credit facilities granted against the 
security of the property and premises morefully described 
in the Schedule hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by 
the Mortgage Bonds Nos. 4480 dated 16th February, 
2017, 4764 dated 31st August, 2017 and 4854 dated 
29th December, 2017 all attested by F. M. Natheer of 
Kalmunai  Notary Public in favour of Sampath Bank 
PLC holding Company Registration No. PQ 144 and 
having its Registered Office at No. 110, Sir James Peiris 
Mawatha, Colombo 02.

And whereas Ahamed Junaid Fathima Fareeha and 
Ahamed Lebbe Asanar in the Democratic Socialist 
Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligors and the said 
Ahamed Lebbe Asanar as the Mortgagor have made 
default in the repayment of the credit facilities granted 
against the security of the property and premises 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged 
and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond No. 4852 
dated 29th December, 2017 attested by F. M. Natheer 
of Kalmunai  Notary Public in favour of Sampath Bank 
PLC holding Company Registration No. PQ 144 and 
having its Registered Office at No. 110, Sir James Peiris 
Mawatha, Colombo 02.

And whereas Ahamed Junaid Fathima Fareeha and 
Ahamed Lebbe Asanar in the Democratic Socialist 
Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligors have made default 
in the repayment of the credit facilities granted against 
the security of the machineries morefully described in 
the Schedule hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by 
the Machinery Mortgage Bond dated 29th December, 
2017 in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company 
Registration No. PQ 144 and having its Registered Office 
at No. 110, Sir James Peiris Mawatha, Colombo 02.

And  there is now due and owing  on the said Bonds 
bearing Nos. 5163, 7738, 4409, 4762, 4480, 4764, 
4854 and 4852 and the Machinery Mortgage dated 29th 
December, 2017 to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 
06th September, 2018 a sum of Rupees Fifty-three Million 
Five Hundred and Seventy-nine Thousand Fifty-eight and 
Cents Ninety Only (Rs. 53,579,058.90) of lawful money 
of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding on the 
said Bonds and the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank 
PLC aforesaid under the  powers vested by the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 
1990 do hereby resolve that the property, premises and 
machineries morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security 
for the said credit facilities by the said Bonds bearing 
Nos. 5163, 7738, 4409, 4762, 4480, 4764, 4854 and 4852 
and the Machinery Mortgage dated 29th December, 2017 
to be sold in public auction by I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed 
Auctioneer of Kandy for the recovery of the said sum of 

Rupees Fifty-three Million Five Hundred and Seventy-
nine Thousand Fifty-eight and Cents Ninety Only  
(Rs. 53,579,058.90) together with further interest on a 
sum of Rupees Thirty-three Million Two Hundred and 
Fifteen Thousand Only (Rs. 33,215,000.00) at  the rate of 
Fifteen decimal Five per centum (15.5%) per annum and 
further interest on a sum of Rupees Seven Million Seven 
Hundred and Fifty-six Thousand Seven Hundred and 
Twenty-nine and Cents Forty Only (Rs. 7,756,729.40) 
at the rate of Sixteen decimal Five per centum (16.5%) 
per annum and further interest on a sum of Rupees Nine 
Million One Hundred and Thirty-five Thousand Only 
(Rs. 9,135,000.00) at the rate of Fifteen decimal Five 
per Centum (15.5%) per annum from 07th September, 
2018 to date of satisfaction of the total debt due upon 
the said Bonds Nos. 5163, 7738, 4409, 4762, 4480, 
4764, 4854 and 4852 and the Machinery Mortgage dated 
29th December, 2017 together with costs of advertising 
and other charges incurred less payments (if any) since 
received.

The schedule

1. An allotment of land called “Munthiriyadithundu 
Valavu” depicted in Plan No. AMN/11/ET/1145 dated 
05th August, 2011 made by W. M. Najuvudeen, Licensed 
Surveyor situated at Puliyadi Cross Road, in the Village of 
Eravur, in Ward No. 2 in the Grama Niladhari Division of 
Eravur 06A, in the Divisional Secretariat of Eravur Town 
within the Urban Council Limits of Eravur, in Batticaloa 
District, in Eastern Province and bounded on the North 
by property of A. J. F. Faseeha, on the East by property of 
A. M. Musthafa and wife, South by Cross Road leading to 
Puliyadi Road and on the West by Path and containing in 
extent of 0.0179 Hectare, or Seven decimal Naught Eight 
Perches  (7.08P.) whole of this together with the house, well 
and all rights and everything standing thereon and registered 
in Volume/Folio A 213/250 at the Land Registry, Batticaloa.

Which is according to recent Survey Plan  
No. AMN/16/ET/6628 dated 29th June, 2016 made by A. 
M. Najuvudeen, Licensed Surveyor, more fully described as 
follows:

All allotment of land called “Munthiriyadithundu 
Valavu” depicted in Plan No. AMN/16/ET/6628 dated 
29th June, 2016 made by A. M. Najuvudeen, Licensed 
Surveyor situated at Puliyadi Cross Road, in the Village of 
Eravur aforesaid and bounded on the North by property of  
A. J. F. Faseeha, on the East by the property of A. M. 
Musthafa and wife, South by Cross Road leading to Puliyadi 
Road and on the West by Path and containing in extent of 
0.0179 Hectares, or Seven decimal Naught Eight Perches  
(7.08P.) whole of this together with the house, well and all 
rights and everything standing thereon.



I fldgi : (I) fPoh ‑ YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ‑ 2018'10'19

PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 19.10.2018
1730

Mortgaged and hypothecated by Mortgage Bonds  
Nos. 5163, 7738, 4409 and 4762.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land situated 
in Eravur Pattu in Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Eravur in 
the Grama Niladhari Division Meera Kenni in Divisional 
Secretariat of Eravur Batticaloa District, in Eastern Province 
containing in extent on the Western side 139 feet from 
that Northern end towards Eastern end 195 from that end 
towards Southern 45 feet from that end towards Eastern end 
24 feet from that end towards Southern end 87 feet from 
that end towards Western end 11 feet from that end towards 
Southern end 11 feet from that end towards Western end 197 
feet and bounded on the North by land claimed by Ismail 
Seenimugamathu and others, East by land claimed by Yahya 
and land from South by land claimed by Ahamad Lebbe 
Nagoora and A. L. Hasan, on the West by land claimed by 
H. M. Hamas whole of this together with everything and 
which is registered in C 0077/135 (C 0098/144) at the Land 
Registry, Batticaloa.

Which is according to recent Survey Plan No. AMN/
EP/7387 dated 02nd January, 2017 made by A. M. 
Najuvudeen, Licensed Surveyor and more fully described 
as follows:

All allotment of land situated at Meerakerni in the Village 
Meerakerni in the Grama Niladhari Division of Meera 
Kerni, in the Divisional Secretariat of Eravur Pattu, within 
the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Eravur Pattu in the District 
of Batticaloa in Eastern Province and bounded on the North 
by land of I. Seeni Mohomed and others, on the East by 
lands of Yahya and others and Lane Front, on the South by 
land A. L. Asanar, and on the West by Kerni and containing 
in extent Two Roods Twenty Eight decimal Three Three 
Perches (0A., 2R., 28.33P.) whole of this together with 
everything standing thereon.

Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bonds bearing Nos. 4480, 4764 and 4854.

3.1	 An allotment of land depicted as Lot 1 in Surveyor 
Plan No. AMN/16/EP/6529 dated 06th June, 2016 made 

by A. M. Najuvudeen, Licensed Surveyor and situated 
at Aiyankerni in the Village of Aiyankerni, in the Grama 
Niladhari Division of Meerakerni, within the Pradeshiya 
Sabha Limits of Eravur Pattu in the Divisional Secretariat 
of Eravur Pattu in Batticaloa District Eastern Province and 
bounded on the North by property of M. Thambylebbe and 
path, on the East property of A. Ahamedlebbe, on the South 
by Kerni and on the West by Kerni and containing in extent 
0.5654 or One Acre One Rood and Twenty Three decimal 
Five Perches (1A., 1R., 23.5P.) and registered in Volume/ 
Folio C 008/137 at the Land Registry Batticaloa.

3.2	 An allotment of land in 6473 kandam, and situated 
at Aiyankerni in the Village of Aiyankerni in the Grama 
Niladhari Division of Iyankerni - Meerakerni within the 
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Eravur Pattu in the Divisional 
Secretariat of Eravur Pattu in Batticaloa District in Eastern 
Province and bounded on the North and West by property 
of heirs of Mohamed Sali on the East by land of M. I. M. 
Mukthar and on the South by Kerni and containing in extent 
0.5654 or One Acre One Rood and Twenty Three and One 
Third Perches (1A., 1R., 23 1/3P.) and registered in Volume/ 
Folio C 0031/80 at the Land Registry, Batticaloa.

3.3	 An allotment of land depicted as Lot 1 in Survey 
Plan No. 2017/1026A dated 06th December, 2017 made by K. 
Kathatharan, Licensed Surveyor and situated at Aiyankerni, 
in the Village of Aiyankerni in the Grama Niladhari Division 
of Meerakerni 193E within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of 
Eravur Pattu (Chenkalady) in the Divisional Secretariat of 
Eravur Pattu in Batticaloa District in Eastern Province and 
bounded on the North by property of A. L. Asanar, on the 
East by land of N. Ahamed Lebbe, Ajwath, Mannaff and 
others, on the South by Thona and Kerni, and on the West by 
Thona and Kerni and presently land claimed by M. Saleem 
and others and containing in extent 0.5654 or One Acre 
Three Roods and Nineteen decimal Six Five Five Perches 
(1A., 3R., 19.65P.) whole of this together with everything 
standing thereon.

Mortgaged and hypothecated under and by virtue of 
Mortgage Bond bearing No. 4852.

4.
Description Market Value (Rs.) FSV (Rs.)

1. Steam Dryer and Elevator 4.300 Mn. 4.000 Mn.
2. Paddy Cleaner 0.045 Mn. 0.040 Mn.
3. Huller Mill (02 Nos.) 0.450 Mn. 0.400 Mn.
4. Rice Polisher with Motor 0.300 Mn. 0.250 Mn.
5. Three Layer Hull separator 0.375 Mn. 0.325 Mn.
6. Rice colour sorter 3.750 Mn. 3.450 Mn.
7. Fabricated elevators (16 Nos.) 0.700 Mn. 0.600 Mn.
8. Steam Generator 2.500 Mn. 2.300 Mn.
9. White Rice Grader and Choiceness 0.550 Mn. 0.450 Mn.
10. Dingxin machine (Polisher) 1.325 Mn. 1.250 Mn.
11. Panel Board + Wiring Installation 0.275 Mn. 0.200 Mn.
12. Electricity Supply and controlling Unit 0.300 Mn. 0.250Mn.
13. Digital Weighing Machine 0.025 Mn. 0.025 Mn.
14. Extra Machineries 0.050 Mn. 0.040 Mn.

14.975 Mn. 13.575 Mn.
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Mortgaged and hypothecated by Machinery Mortgage 
dated 29th December, 2017.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1210/3

Sampath Bank PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by  the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC under Section 04 of the 

Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 
Act, No. 04 of 1990 amended by No. 01 of 2011 and 

No. 19 of 2011

Bobby Industries (Private) Limited.
A/C No. : 0170 1000 1250.

At a meeting held on 27.09.2018 by the Board of Directors 
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and 
unanimously:

Whereas Bobby Industries (Private) Limited in 
the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the 
Obligor and Fathima Shaffnah Razak as the Mortgagor 
has made default in the repayment of the credit facilities 
granted against the security of the property and premises 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged 
and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond No. 3082 
dated 11th January, 2018 attested by A. W. S. Kalhari of 
Kandy Notary Public in favour of Sampath Bank PLC 
holding Company Registration No. PQ 144 and there 
is now due and owing on the said Bond No. 3082 to 
Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 06th September, 2018 
a sum of Rupees Seventy-four Million Three Hundred 
and Eighty-nine Thousand Six Hundred and Nineteen 
and Cents Sixteen Only (Rs. 74,389,619.16) of lawful 
money of Sri Lanka being the total amount outstanding 
on the said Bond and the Board of Directors of Sampath 
Bank PLC under the powers vested by the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 
1990 do hereby resolve that the property and premises 
morefully described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged 
to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security for the said 
credit facilities by the said Bond No. 3082 to be sold by 
public auction by I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer 
of Kandy for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees 
Seventy-four Million Three Hundred and Eighty-nine 
Thousand Six Hundred and Nineteen and Cents Sixteen 
Only (Rs. 74,389,619.16) together with further interest 
on a sum of Rupees Sixty-eight Million Two Hundred 

Thousand Only (Rs. 68,200,000.00) at  the rate of Sixteen 
decimal Five per centum (16.5%) per annum from 07th 
September, 2018 to date of satisfaction of the total debt 
due upon the said Bond bearing No. 3082 together with 
costs of advertising and other charges incurred less 
payments (if any) since received.

The schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 5921 dated 18th October, 2014 
made by A. J. Bandara, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Moragiriye Mukalana now Watta” situated at Kondadeniya 
Village within the Grama Niladhari Division Kondadeniya 
within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Harispattuwa 
of Kulugammanasiyapattu and within the Divisional 
Secretariat of Harispattuwa, in the District of Kandy, 
Central Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the 
North by Moragirihena and Lot 5 in Plan No. 5720 made 
by M. T. Frank Dias Licensed Surveyor, on the East by Lot 
05 in Plan No. 5720 made by M. T. Frank Dias Licensed 
Surveyor, on the South by Main Road, Lots 01 and 02 in 
Plan No. 5720 made by M. T. Frank Dias Licensed Surveyor 
and Dambagolle Gedara Watta of S. A. Majid, and on the 
West by Lot 01 in Plan No. 5720 made by M. T. Frank Dias 
Licensed Surveyor and Dambagolle Gedara Watta of S. A. 
Majid, and containing in the extent One Acre One Rood and 
Thirty Six Decimal Five Perches (1A., 1R., 36.5P.)  together 
with soil, trees, plantations, buildings and everything 
else standing thereon and registered under Volume/ Folio  
T 60/42 at the Land Registry of Kandy.

By order of the Board,

	 Company Secretary.

10-1210/4

commercial bank of ceylon  plc

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC (Registration 
No. PQ 116) under Section 4 of the recovery of 

loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,  
No. 04 of 1990

Loan Account Nos. : 1744096 and 2166223.
F and F Traders.

At a meeting held on 30th July, 2018 the Board of Directors 
of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC resolved specially and 
unanimously as follows:
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Whereas Jainul Abdeen Fuard Marikkar and Fuard 
Marikkar Mohamed Feroz carrying on a Partnership 
business under the name, style and firm of F and F 
Traders as Obligors and Jainul Abdeen Fuard Marikkar 
as the Mortgagor have made default in the payment due 
on Bond Nos. 9974 dated 21st July, 2011 attested by A. 
O. R. Fernando, Notary Public of Kandy, 1642 dated 17th 
September, 2015 and 1844 dated 22nd June, 2016 both 
attested by K. V. A. D. C. K. Vipulasena, Notary Public of 
Kandy in favour of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC and 
there is now due and owing to the Commercial Bank of 
Ceylon PLC as at 1st May, 2018 a sum of Rupees Forty-
nine Million Twenty-two Thousand Seventy and Cents 
Forty-one (Rs. 49,022,070.41) on the said Bonds and the 
Board of Directors of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 
under the powers vested by Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 do hereby resolve 
that the property and premises morefully described in 
the Schedule hereto and mortgaged to the Commercial 
Bank of Ceylon PLC by the said Bond Nos. 9974, 
1642 and 1844 be sold by Public Auction by Mr. I. W. 
Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer of 369/1, Dutugemunu 
Mawatha, Lewella, Road, Mawilmada, Kandy for the 
recovery of the said sum of Rupees Forty-nine Million 
Twenty-two Thousand Seventy and Cents Forty-one 
(Rs. 49,022,070.41) with further interest on a sum of  
Rs. 5,400,000.00 at 15.5% per annum and on a sum of 
Rs. 40,000,000.00 at 16.5% per annum from 02nd May, 
2018 to date of sale together with Costs of  Advertising 
and any other charges incurred less payments (if any) 
since received.

The Schedule 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 2 of Nugadandawe hena (now Watta) depicted in Plan  
No. 364 dated 22.07.2006 made by S. A. Dissanayake, 
Licensed Surveyor of Kandy bearing Assessment No. 249/1 
(part) Katugastota Road (being part of land shown in Plan 
No. 158 dated 03.03.1954 by R. M. D. Silva, Licensed 
Surveyor and part of Lot 1 in Plan No. 1709 dated 07.02.2003 
by S. M. K. B. Mawalagedera, Licensed Surveyor prepared 
in connection with D. C. Kandy Case No. 15313) situated 
at Palle Mahaiyawa within Grama Niladhari Division of 
Pitakandagama - 250 Divisional Secretary's Division of 
Gangawata Korale of Kandy and within the Municipal 
Council Limits of Kandy in the District of Kandy Central 
Province and which said Lot 2 is being bounded on the 
North by Road and drain marked Lot 1 in the same plan, on 
the East by Nugadande Hena (Part of) Garden Assessment 
No. 249/1 (part) Katugastota Road, on the South by Lot 3 as 
access in the same Plan and on the West by Road containing 
in extent Twelve Perches (0A., 0R., 12P.) together with the 
right of way over and along the allotment marked Lot 3 in 
common and together with the building bearing Assessment 

No. 249/1 and everything standing thereon and Registered 
under Volume/folio A 438/224 at the Kandy Land Registry.

According to a recent survey the above land is described 
as follows :

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 in Plan No. 3523 dated 26.03.2007 made by 
Susiri Ekanayake, Licensed Surveyor out of the land 
called ‘Nugadandawe Hena’ (now Watta) situated at 
Palle Mahaiyawa within Grama Niladhari Division of 
Pitakandagama - 250 Divisional Secretary's Division of 
Gangawata Korale of Kandy and within the Municipal 
Limits of Kandy in the District of Kandy Central Province 
and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North-east by 
Ela separating Nugadande Kumbura claimed by Central 
Finance Company, on the South-east by part of Nugadande 
Hena Assessment No.  249/1, Katugastota Road, on the 
South and South-west by Road leading to Houses and on 
the North-west by Road from Houses to Katugastota Road 
and containing in extent Twelve Perches (0A., 0R., 12P.) 
together with everything standing thereon.

Together with the Right of way over and along the 
said allotment marked Lot 3 in common together with the 
building bearing Assessment No. 249/1.

	 Mrs. Ranjani Gamage,
	 Company Secretary.

10-1173

commercial bank of ceylon  plc

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC (Registration 
No. PQ 116) under Section 4 of the recovery of 

loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,  
No. 04 of 1990

Loan Account No. : 1825279.
Moragammana Gedara Lionel Jayasekara.

At a meeting held on 29th June, 2018 the Board of Directors 
of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC resolved specially and 
unanimously as follows:

Whereas Moragammana Gedara Lionel Jayasekara as the 
Obligor has made default in the payment due on Bond 
No. 12322 dated 28th November, 2014 attested by I. G. 
Munasinghe, Notary Public of Dambulla in favour of 
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC and there is now due and 
owing to the Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC as at 24th 
April, 2018 a sum of Rupees Nine Million Seven Hundred 
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and Fifty-five Thousand Six Hundred and Nineteen and 
Cents Ninety-three (Rs. 9,755,619.93) on the said Bond 
and the Board of Directors of Commercial Bank of Ceylon 
PLC under the powers vested by Recovery of Loans by 
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 do hereby 
resolve that the property and premises morefully described 
in the Schedule hereto and mortgaged to the Commercial 
Bank of Ceylon PLC by the said Bond No. 12322 be 
sold by Public Auction by Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed 
Auctioneer of No. 369/1, Dutugemunu Mawatha, Lewella 
Road, Mawilmada, Kandy for the recovery of the said sum 
of Rupees Nine Million Seven Hundred and Fifty-five 
Thousand Six Hundred and Nineteen and Cents Ninety-
three (Rs. 9,755,619.93) with further interest on a sum of 
Rs. 9,106,200.00 at 10.5% per annum from 25th April, 2018 
to date of sale together with Costs of  Advertising and any 
other charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

The Schedule 

(1) All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 832/2014 dated 1st October, 
2014 made by W. A. M. D. Wijesinghe, Licensed Surveyor 
of the land called Kehelelleyaya together with the buildings, 
tress, plantations, soil and everything else standing thereon 
situated at Pilihudugolla Village within the Grama Niladhari 
Division of Kehelelle yaya 410 A and the Divisional 
Secretary's Division of Naula and the Pradeshiya Sabha 
limits of Naula in the District of Matale Central Province and 
which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Lot 3 in Plan 
No. 7321 made by W. D. Dassanayake, L.S., on the East by 
Lot 05 in Plan No. 7321 made by W. D. Dassanayake, L.S., 
on the South by Land claimed by M. G. Lional Jayasekara 
and on the West by Main Road and containing in extent 
Thirty Decimal Four Perches (0A., 0R., 30.4P.) according to 
the said Plan No. 832/2014.

Which said Lot 1 in Plan No. 832/2014 being a resurvey 
of the land described below :-

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 4 depicted in Plan No. 7321 dated 27.10.2002 made by 
W. D. Dassanayake, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
Kehelelleyaya Hene Yayehena alias Kehelelleyaya together 
with the buildings, tress, plantations, soil and everything else 
standing thereon situated at Pilihudugolla Village and which 
said Lot 4 is bounded on the North by Lot No. 03 in Plan  
No. 7321 made by W. D. Dassanayake, L.S., on the East by 
Lot 05 in Plan No. 7321 made by W. D. Dassanayake, L. S., 
on the South by Land claimed by Lalitha Steven and others 
and on the West by Main Road and containing in extent 
Thirty Decimal Four Nought Perches (0A., 0R., 30.40P.) 
according to the said Plan No. 7321 and Registered under  
D 514/159 at the Land Registry, Matale.

(2) All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 833/2014 dated 1st October, 
2014 made by W. A. M. D. Wijesinghe, Licensed Surveyor 
of the land called Kehelelleyaya together with the buildings, 
tress, plantations, soil and everything else standing thereon 
situated at Pilihudugolla Village within the Grama Niladhari 
Division of Kehelelle yaya 410 A and the Divisional 
Secretary's Division of Naula and the Pradeshiya Sabha 
limits of Naula in the District of Matale Central Province 
and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Lot 08 (4m 
wide Road) in Plan No. 7321 made by W. D. Dassanayake, 
L.S., on the East by Lot 07 in Plan No. 7321 made by W. 
D. Dassanayake, L.S., on the South by Land claimed by 
M. G. Lional Jayasekara and on the West by Lot 05 in Plan  
No. 7321 made by W. D. Dissanayake, L.S. and containing 
in extent Three Roods Nine Decimal Six Naught Perches 
(0A., 3R., 09.60P.) or 0.3280 Hectares according to the said 
Plan No. 833/2014.

Which said Lot 1 in Plan No. 833/2014 being a resurvey 
of the land described below :-

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 6 depicted in Plan No. 7321 dated 27.10.2002 made by 
W. D. Dassanayake, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
Kehelelleyaya Hena Yayehena alias Kehelelleyaya together 
with the buildings, trees, plantations, soil and everything 
else standing thereon situated at Pilihudugolla Village and 
which said Lot 6 is bounded on the North by Lot No. 08  
(4m wide Road) in Plan No. 7321 made by W. D. 
Dassanayake, L.S., on the East by Lot 07 in Plan No. 7321 
made by W. D. Dassanayake, L.S., on the South by Land 
claimed by Lalitha Steven and others and on the West by Lot 
05 in Plan No. 7321 made by W. D. Dassanayake, L.S. and 
containing in extent Three Roods Nine Decimal Six Naught 
Perches (0A., 3R., 9.60P.) and according to the said Plan  
No. 7321 and Registered under D 514/235 at the Land 
Registry, Matale.

	
	 Mrs. Ranjani Gamage,
	 Company Secretary.

29th June, 2018

10-1171

commercial bank of ceylon  plc

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC (Registration 
No. PQ 116) under Section 4 of the recovery of 

loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,  
No. 04 of 1990

Loan Account No. : 2137885.
Janaka Prasanna Premachandra.
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At a meeting held on 31st August, 2018 the Board of 
Directors of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC resolved 
specially and unanimously as follows:

Whereas Janaka Prasanna Premachandra as the Obligor has 
made default in the payment due on Bond No. 2102 dated 
23rd June, 2017 attested by K. V. A. D. C. K. Vipulasena, 
Notary Public of Kandy in favour of Commercial Bank 
of Ceylon PLC and there is now due and owing to the 
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC as at 20th July, 2018 a 
sum of Rupees Thirty-one Million Two Hundred Thousand 
Eight Hundred and Sixty-seven and Cents Eleven  
(Rs. 31,200,867.11) on the said Bond and the Board of 
Directors of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC under the 
powers vested by Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the 
property and premises morefully described in the Schedule 
hereto and mortgaged to the Commercial Bank of Ceylon 
PLC by the said Bond No. 2102 be sold by Public Auction 
by Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer of 369/1, 
Dutugemunu Mawatha, Lewella Road, Mawilmada, Kandy 
for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Thirty-one 
Million Two Hundred Thousand Eight Hundred and Sixty-
seven and Cents Eleven (Rs. 31,200,867.11) with further 
interest on a sum of Rs. 29,700,000.00 at 15.5% per annum 
from 21st July, 2018 to date of sale together with Costs of  
Advertising and any other charges incurred less payments 
(if any) since received.

The Schedule 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 in Plan No. 2518A dated 08th December, 2001 made 
by G. Heenkenda, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Kirillagoda Watta” and “Karawgaha Hena” and Part of 
Property being Asst. No. 249/10, Katugastota situated at 
Mahaiyawa in Grama Niladhari Division of Mahaiyawa - 
239  within the Divisional Secretariat Division of Gangawata 
Korale within the Municipal Council Limits of Kandy in the 
District of Kandy Central Province and which said Lot 01 
is bounded on the North by Road marked Lot 03 in Plan 
No. 773, on the East by Lot 2 in the said Plan and Part of 
Orukotudiwela Lot 1 in Plan No. 1309 made by R. M. A. 
B. Wickramasinghe, Licensed Surveyor, on the South by 
Lot 03 and 04 in the said Plan and on the West by Part of 
same Land Lot 03 in Plan No. 1464 made by G. Heenkenda, 
Licensed Surveyor and Part of same Land Lot 18 in Plan  
No. 400 and containing in extent Two Roods and Twenty 
Three Decimal Six Seven Perches (0A., 2R., 23.67P.) 
together with the trees, plantations and everything thereon 
and right to use Road access shown in the said Plan  
No. 2518A.

Which said Lot 01 is a part and parcel of the following 
Lands ;

(6) All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 in Survey Plan No. 773 dated 28th November, 
1987 made by G. Heenkenda, Licensed Surveyor from and 
out of all that land called “Kirillagoda Watta” situated at 
Mahaiyawa aforesaid and which said Lot 01 is bounded on 
the North by Lot 03 (Road and Reservation) in the same 
Plan, on the East by Land of Mr. H. B. Ratwatta and Lot 2 
(Encrochment) in the same plan, on the South by Land of 
Jamis and on the West by Remaining portion of same land 
marked Lot 18 in Plan No. 400 and containing in extent Two 
Roods and Five Decimal Two Perches (0A., 2R., 5.20P.) 
together with the trees, plantations and everything thereon 
and Registered in A 215/260 in the Land Registry Office, 
Kandy.

(7) All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 in Survey Plan No. 1962 dated 25th September, 
2000 made by G. Heenkenda, Licensed Surveyor from 
and out of all that land called “Karawgaha Hena” situated 
at Mahaiyawa aforesaid and which said Lot 01 is bounded 
on the North-east by Kiralagoda Watta in Plan No. 773, 
Asst. No. 249/10, Katugastota Road marked Lot 2 in Plan  
No. 1653 and Orukotudiwella marked Lot 01 in Plan  
No. 1309, South-East by Remaining portion of same 
land, South-west by Remaining portion of same land in 
Plan No. 1203 A and on the North-west by Lot 01 in Plan  
No. 2068 containing in extent Thirteen Perches (0A., 0R., 
13P.) together with the trees, plantations and everything 
thereon and Registered in A 315/214 in the Land Registry 
Office, Kandy.

(8) All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 in Survey Plan No. 2068 dated 15th October, 1997 
made by G. Heenkenda, Licensed Surveyor from and out 
of all that land called “Karawgaha Tenna, Delange - Ange 
Hena, Leemagahatenne Hena and Paradehiyawatta” situated 
at Mahaiyawa aforesaid and which said Lot 01 is bounded 
on the North-east by Kiralagoda Watta marked Lot 1 in 
Plan No. 773, on the South-East by Remaining portion of 
same land marked Lot 1 in Plan No. 1962, on the South-
west by Remaining portion of same land marked Lot 3 
in Plan No. 1203 A and on the North-west by Remaining 
portion of same land containing in extent Fourteen Decimal 
Seven Five Perches (0A., 0R., 14.75P.) together with the 
trees, plantations and everything thereon and Registered in  
A 289/78 in the Land Registry Office, Kandy.

(9) All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 02 in Survey Plan No. 1653 dated 09th April, 1994 made 
by G. Heenkenda, Licensed Surveyor (Asst. No. 249/10 
(Part) Katugastota Road situated at Mahaiyawa aforesaid 
and which said Lot 02 is bounded on the North by Lot 01 
of same land, on the East by Part of Orukotudiwela - Lot 
1 in Plan No. 1309 made by R. M. A. E. Wickramasinghe, 
Licensed Surveyor, South by land of Jamis and on the West 
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by Krillagoda Watta Lot 14 in Plan No. 400 made by N. S. L. 
Fernando, Licensed Surveyor and containing in extent Seven 
Decimal Nine Two Perches (0A., 0R., 7.92P.) together with 
the trees, plantations and everything thereon and Registered 
in A 275/18 in the Land Registry Office, Kandy.

(10) All that divided and defined allotment of land 
marked Lot 2 in Survey Plan No. 773 dated 28th November, 
1987 made by G. Heenkenda, Licensed Surveyor from and 
out of all that land called “Kirilagoda Watta” situated at 
Mahaiyawa aforesaid and which said Lot 02 is bounded on 
the North and West by Lot 01 of the same land, on the East by 
land belongs to H. B. Ratwatte and on the South by land of 
Jamis and containing in extent Four Decimal Eight Perches 
(0A., 0R., 4.80P.) together with the trees, plantations and 
everything thereon and Registered in A 323/123 in the Land 
Registry Office, Kandy.

All that Right of Way over and along the following 
allotments of land being rood ways ;

3) All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 19 in Survey Plan No. 400 dated 20th November, 
1987 made by N. S. L. Fernando, Licensed Surveyor 
sumperimportion dated 23.05.1996 made by W. K. M. M. 
Welivita, Licensed Surveyor on his Plan No. 2505 dated 
26.03.1986 from and out of all that land called “Kirillagoda 
Watta” situated at Mahaiyawa aforesaid and which said 
Lot 19 is bounded on the North by Portion of same land 
belonging to Dr. S. Ratwatta, on the East by Portion of same 
land of Mr. D. S. C. Ratwatta and Lot 09 in the said Plan, on 
the South by Lot 11 and 12 in same Plan and on the West by 
Remaining portion of same land and Lot 9 and containing 
in extent Two Roods and Nine Decimal Nine Perches   
(0A., 2R., 9.9P.) and registered in A 210/206 in the Land 
Registry Office, Kandy.

4) All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 03 (Road and Reservation) in Survey Plan No. 773 dated 
28th November, 1987 made by G. Heenkenda, Licensed 
Surveyor from and out of all that land called “Kirillagoda 
Watta” situated at Mahaiyawa aforesaid and which said Lot 
03 is bounded on the North by Road and reservation marked 
Lot 19 in Plan No. 400 made by N. S. L. Fernando, Licensed 
Surveyor and Part of the same land, on the East by Land of 
Mr. H. B. Ratwatta, on the South by Lot 01 in the same Plan 
and on the West by Remaining portion of same land (Lot 
18 in Plan No. 400) and containing in extent Twenty Three 
Perches  (0A., 0R., 23.00P.) and registered in A 210/207 in 
the Land Registry Office, Kandy.

	 Mrs. Ranjani Gamage,
	 Company Secretary.

10-1170

commercial bank of ceylon  plc

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC (Registration 
No. PQ 116) under Section 4 of the recovery of 

loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,  
No. 04 of 1990

Loan Account Nos. : 1055993, 1801360 and 1923263.
Shan Chem.

At a meeting held on 27th March, 2018 the Board of 
Directors of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC resolved 
specially and unanimously as follows:

Whereas Ratnayake Mudiyanselage Siripala carrying 
on business as the Sole Proprietor under the name and 
style of “Shan Chem” as the Obligor has made default 
in the payment due on Bond Nos. 19768 dated 19th 
December, 2011 and 23183 dated 1st October, 2014 
both attested by G. A. C. P. Ganepola, Notary Public of 
Gampaha and 4320 dated 20th August, 2015 attested by 
W. L. Jayaweera, Notary Public of Colombo in favour 
of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC and there is now 
due and owing to the Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 
as at 22nd February, 2018 a sum of Rupees Fourteen 
Million Seventy-eight Thousand Nine Hundred and 
Seventy-four and Cents Fifty (Rs. 14,078,974.50) on the 
said Bonds and the Board of Directors of Commercial 
Bank of Ceylon PLC under the powers vested by 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, 
No. 4 of 1990 do hereby resolve that the property and 
premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
and mortgaged to the Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 
by the said Bond Nos. 19768, 23183 and 4320 be sold 
by Public Auction by Mr. L. B. Senanayake, Licensed 
Auctioneer of Thrivanka & Senanayake Auctioneers of 
No. 200, 2nd Floor, Hulftsdorp Street, Colombo 12 for 
the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Fourteen Million 
Seventy-eight Thousand Nine Hundred and Seventy-four 
and Cents Fifty (Rs. 14,078,974.50) with further interest 
on a sum of Rs. 12,060,360.06 at 14% per annum from 
23rd February, 2018 to date of sale and together with 
Costs of Advertising and any other charges incurred less 
payments (if any) since received.

The Schedule 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 02 depicted Plan No. 8266 dated 11th November, 2000 
made by L. J. Liyanage, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called “Dunugalpitilanda” together with the buildings and 
everything else standing thereon situated at Ihala Imbulgoda 
in the Grama Niladhari Division of Ihala Imbulgoda and 
Divisional Secretary's Division of Gampaha within the 
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Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Gampaha in Meda Pattu of 
Siyane Korale in the District of Gampaha Western Province 
and Lot 02 is bounded on the North-East by Main Road, 
on the South-East by Land claimed by G. D. Premarathne, 
on the South-West by Pradeshiya Sabha Road and on the 
North-West by Lot 01 and containing in extent Thirty Nine 
Decimal One Perches (0A., 0R., 39.1P.) according to the 
said Plan No. 8266 and registered under Volume/Folio  
P 231/93 at the Gampaha Land Registry.

	 Mrs. Ranjani Gamage,
	 Company Secretary.

27th March, 2018

10-1151

Pan  Asia  Banking  Corporation  PLC
Ja - Ela  Branch

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
the Bank Under Section 4 of the recovery of Loans 

by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 

Name of the Customer	 :	 Central Homes and Real 
Estate Company (Private) Limited.
Address of the Property	:	 Balagalla, Kotadeniyawa.

			 
At a meeting of the Board of Directors of Pan Asia Banking 
Corporation PLC held on 27.06.2018 it was resolved 
specially and unanimously as follows;

Whereas Central Homes and Real Estate Company (Private) 
Limited as the Obligor has made default in payment due 
on Mortgage Bond No. 398 dated 31.07.2013 attested 
by D. D. J. S. Mayadunne, Notary Public in favour of  
Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC bearing Registration  
No. PQ 48.

And whereas there is now due and owing to the Pan 
Asia Banking Corporation PLC (hereinafter sometimes 
called as “ the Bank”) a sum of Rupees One Million 
One Hundred and Eighty-six Thousand and Six Hundred 
Twenty-four and Cents Three  (Rs. 1,186,624.03) on 
account of principal and interest upto 06.06.2018, 
together with interest on a sum of Rs. 1,122,544.58 from 
07.06.2018 at the rate of 22.5% per annum till the date of 
payment on the said Mortgage Bond No. 398.

It is hereby resolved :

that in terms of Section 4 of the Recovery of loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, I. W. Jayasuriya, 
Licensed Auctioneer of No. 369/1, Dutugemunu Mawatha, 

Mawilmada, Kandy be authorized and empowered to sell 
by public auction, the property mortgaged to the Bank by 
Central Homes and Real Estate Company (Private) Limited 
as Obligor by Mortgage Bond No. 398, morefully described 
in the Schedule hereto and for the recovery of the said 
sum of Rupees One Million One Hundred and Eighty-six 
Thousand and Six Hundred Twenty-four and Cents Three  
(Rs. 1,186,624.03) together with the interest as aforesaid 
from the aforesaid date, to the date of sale and costs and 
monies recoverable under Section 13 of the said Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 
less payments (if any) since received;

The Schedule 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 depicted in Plan No. 5531 dated 17th July, 2013 
made by P. D. N. Peiris, Licensed Surveyor (being  a 
resurvey and amalgamation of Lots 3, 4, 5 and 6 depicted 
in plan No. 3010 dated 07th April, 1996 made by W. D. 
Nandana Senevirathne, Licensed Surveyor) of the land 
called Balagalla Group together with the buildings, trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon situated 
at Balagalla within the Limits of the Kotadeniyawa Sub - 
office of the Diuvlapitiya Pradeshiya Sabha in the Grama 
Niladhari Division of 50- Balagalla West, in the Divulapitiya 
Divisional Secretary's Division and in the Yatigaha Pattu of 
Hapitigam Korale in the District of Gampaha (within the 
Registration Division of Negombo) Western Province and 
which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Road 20 feed 
wide (Lot 2 in plan No. 3010 made by W. D. N. Senevirathne, 
Licensed Surveyor ) and Land of H. A. Hemathilaka, on the 
East by Land of H. K. Chandrasena and Edward Jayasiri, 
on the South by Land of L. P. Jayasinghe and on the West 
by Road (Pradeshiya Sabha) and containing in extent Three 
Acres One Rood and Twenty Four Decimal Naught Three 
Perches (3A., 1R., 24.03P.) according to the said Plan  
No. 5531 and registered at Negombo Land Registry.

Together with the full and free Common Right of Way and 
other connected rights with others having similar rights in 
over along and under the 6M wide Road Reservation of 
land marked Lot 2 depicted in Plan No. 3010 dated 07th 
April, 1996 made by W. D. Nandana Senevirathne, Licensed 
Surveyor and Registered at the Negombo Land Registry.

By order of Directors,

	D evika Halwathura,
	 Manager- Recoveries.

10-1139
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bank of ceylon

Notice under Section 21 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Chapter 397) as amended by Act,  

No. 34 of 1968 and Law, No. 10 of 1974 
	
At a meeting held on 07.09.2018 the Board of Directors of 
this Bank resolved specially and unanimously:

1. That a sum of Rupees Seven Hundred Two Million Six 
Hundred Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety-seven and 
cents Fifty-five (Rs. 702,608,797.55) and Rupees Fifty-nine 
Million Nine Hundred Forty-one Thousand Nine Hundred 
Fifty-two and cents Ninety-one (Rs. 59,941,952.91) as at 
19.06.2018 due from the Kandyan Arts Super Complex 
Private Limited of No. 833, Peradeniya Road, Kandy or 
No. 835, Peradeniya Road, Kandy on account of principal 
and interest up to 19.06.2018 together with further interest 
on Rupees Six Hundred Sixty-four Million Eight Hundred 
Eighty-two Thousand (Rs. 664,882,000) at the rate of 
Twelve decimal Five (12.5%) per centum per annum and 
further interest on Rupees Fifty-nine Million Eight Hundred 
Sixty-eight Thousand Six Hundred Forty-one and cents 
Thirty (Rs. 59,868,641.30) at the rate of Four (4%) per 
centum per annum from 20.06.2018 till the date of payment 
on aforesaid loan facilities due on Mortgage Bond No. 227 
dated 29.03.2011 attested by Mr. E. W. S. B. Ekanayake, 
Notary Public, Mortgage Bond No. 685 dated 17.01.2013 
attested by Mr. E. W. S. B. Ekanayake, Notary Public, 
Mortgage Bond No. 794 dated 06.11.2013 attested by 
Mr. E. W. S. B. Ekanayake, Notary Public and Mortgage 
Bond No. 921 dated 09.09.2014 attested by Mr. E. W. S. 
B. Ekanayake, Notary Public and Mortgage Bond No. 460 
dated 04.09.2017 attested by Mrs. H. M. N. S. Upuldeniya, 
Notary Public.

2. That in terms of Section 19 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Cap. 397) and its amendments M/s T & H 
Auction of No. 50/3, Vihara Mawatha, Kolonnawa be 
authorized and empowered to sell by public auction, the 
property mortgaged to the Bank of Ceylon and described 
in the Schedule hereunder for the recovery of the said sum 
of Rupees Seven Hundred Two Million Six Hundred Eight 
Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety-seven and cents Fifty-five 
(Rs. 702,608,797.55) and Rupees Fifty-nine Million Nine 
Hundred Forty-one Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty-two and 
cents Ninety-one (Rs. 59,941,952.91) as at 19.06.2018 due 
on the Mortgage Bond No. 227 dated 29.03.2011 attested 
by Mr. E. W. S. B. Ekanayake, Notary Public, Mortgage 
Bond No. 685 dated 17.01.2013 attested by Mr. E. W. S. 
B. Ekanayake, Notary Public, Mortgage Bond 794 dated 
06.11.2013 attested by Mr. E. W. S. B. Ekanayake, Notary 
Public and Mortgage Bond No. 921 dated 09.09.2014 
attested by Mr. E. W. S. B. Ekanayake, Notary Public and 
Mortgage Bond No. 460 dated 04.09.2017 attested by  

Mrs. H. M. N. S. Upuldeniya, Notary Public together with 
interest as aforesaid from 20.06.2018 to date of sale and 
costs and monies recoverable under Section 26 of the said 
Bank of Ceylon Ordinance and that the Chief Manager, of 
Kandy Super Grade Branch of Bank of Ceylon, to publish 
notice of this resolution in terms of Section 21 of the said 
Bank of Ceylon Ordinance.

The Schedule 

All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted 
as Lot 1 in Plan No. 360A dated 11.11.2003 made by P. G. 
S. K. Jayaratne, Licensed Surveyor out of the land called 
Hataraliyadde Kumbura now Watte situated at Peradeniya 
Road, Gatambe Grama Niladari Division within the 
Municipality Limits of Kandy in Gangawata Korale in the 
District of Kandy Central Province and bounded on the North-
east by premises bearing Assessment No. 831, 829 and 825, 
on the South-east by Railway Reservation and Lot 2 and 3 
in the aforesaid Plan No. 360A, on the South-west by path 
leading to William Gopallawa Mawatha and on the North-
west by Sirimavo Bandaranayake Mawatha containing in 
extent One Rood and Thirty-three Perches (0A., 1R., 33P.) 
or 0.18464 Hectares together with everything standing 
thereon. Registered in A 519/54 at Kandy Land Registry.

All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted 
as Lot 2 in Plan No. 360A dated 11.11.2003 made by P. G. 
S. K. Jayaratne, Licensed Surveyor out of the land called 
Hataraliyadde Kumbura now Watte situated at Peradeniya 
Road Gatambe Grama Niladari Division within the 
Municipality Limits of Kandy in Gangawata Korale in the 
District of Kandy Central Province and bounded on the 
North-east by Lot 1 in the aforesaid Plan No. 360A, on the 
South-east by Railway reservation, on the South-west by 
more correctly Lot 3 and Drain (but registered as Lot 2) and 
on the North-west by Lot 1 in the aforesaid Plan containing 
in extent Four Perches (0A., 0R., 4P.) or 0.01012 Hectares 
together with everything standing thereon. Registered in  
A 519/55 at Kandy Land Registry.

By order of the Board of Directors of the Bank of Ceylon,

	 Mr. S. K. Gajanayake, 
	 Chief Manager.

Bank of Ceylon,
Kandy Super Grade Branch.

10-1218
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bank of ceylon

Notice under Section 21 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Chapter 397) as amended by Act,  

No. 34 of 1968 and Law, No. 10 of 1974 and Act, 
No. 54 of 2000 

	
mortgaged Property situated at No. 06, Aramaya 
Road, Dematagoda, Colombo 09 and Angampitiya, Meepe, 
Padukka for the liabilities of Shanbe Jeans Corporation (Pvt) 
Limited No. 06, Aramaya Road, Dematagoda, Colombo 09.

At the meeting held on 23rd August, 2018 the Board of 
Directors of this Bank resolved specially and unanimously.

That a sum of US Dollars One Hundred Fifty-one 
Thousand Nine Hundred Seventy-seven and cents Forty-
eight only (USD 151,977.48) on account of the Permanent 
Overdraft is due from Shanbe Jeans Corporations (Pvt) 
Limited of No. 06, Aramaya Road, Dematagoda, Colombo 
09 and on account of principal and interest up to 06.08.2018 
together with interest on Permanent Overdraft Facility of 
US Dollars One Hundred and Fifty Thousand only (USD 
150,000) at the rate of Six decimal Nine Eight Percent 
(6.98%) per annum from 07.08.2018 till date of payment on 
Mortgage Bond No. 359 dated 07.09.2016 attested by J. C. 
Mahaarachchi, Notary Public and Mortgage Bond No. 360 
dated 07.09.2016 attested by J. C. Mahaarachchi, Notary 
Public and sum of US Dollars One Million One Hundred 
Ninety Thousand Nine Hundred Eleven and cents Eight 
only (USD 1,190,911.08) on account of Term Loan is due 
from Shanbe Jeans Corporation (Pvt) Limited of No. 06, 
Aramaya Road, Dematagoda, Colombo 09 and on account of 
principal and interest up to 06.08.2018 together with interest 
on Term Loan of US Dollars One Million One Hundred 
Twenty-four Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety-seven only 
(USD 1,124,997) at the rate of Thirteen decimal Three 
Three Percent (13.33%) per annum and till date of payment 
on Mortgage Bond No. 359 dated 07.09.2016 attested by  
J. C. Mahaarachchi, Notary Public.

That in terms of Section 19 and 28 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Cap. 397) and its amendments M/s T & H 
Auctioneers the Reputed Pioneer chartered Auctioneers as 
at No. 50/3, Vihara Mawatha, Kolonnawa be authorized 
and empowered to sell by public auction the properties 
mortgaged to the Bank of Ceylon and described in the 
Schedules hereunder for the recovery of the said sum of US 
Dollars One Million Three Hundred Forty-two Thousand 
Eight Hundred Eighty-eight and cents Fifty-six only (USD 
1,342,888.56) is due on the said Bond No. 359 dated 
07.09.2016 attested by J. C. Mahaarachchi, Notary Public 
and Mortgage Bond No. 360 dated 07.09.2016 attested  

J. C. Mahaarachchi, Notary Public together with interest 
as aforesaid from 07.08.2018 to date of sale, and costs and 
monies recoverable under Section 26 of the said Bank of 
Ceylon Ordinance and that the Chief Manager of Recovery 
Corporate of the Bank of Ceylon to publish notice of this 
resolution in terms of Section 21 of the said Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance.

The Schedule  referred to in mortgage 
bond No. 359 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 5549 dated 08.11.1996 made 
by J. P. I. Abeykone, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
Medagodawatta situated at Angampitiya within the Grama 
Niladari Division of No. 454A, Angampitiya and Divisional 
Secretariat of Padukka within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits 
of Seethawaka in Meda Pattu of Hewagam Korale in the 
District of Colombo Western Province and bounded on the 
North by road and lands claimed by R. P. Karunawathie and 
L. S. Perera, on the East by Lands claimed by L. S. Perera 
and V. D. Sugathan Singho, on the South by State Land and 
Cemetary and on the West by Lots 6, 7 and 8 in Plan No. 995 
and containing in extent Two Acres One Rood and Eighteen 
Perches (2A., 1R., 18P.) together with the buildings, trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon and 
registered in A 19/57 at the Land Registry, Awissawella.

the  Schedule referred to in mortgage 
bond No. 360 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 1351 dated 07.09.1989 made by  
K. Nadarajah, Licensed Surveyor, bearing Assessment No. 6, 
Aramaya Place situated along Aramaya Place and Aramaya 
Road in Ward No. 29, Dematagoda within the Grama 
Niladari Division of No. 176, Dematagoda and Divisional 
Secretariat of Thimbirigasyaya within the Municipal Council 
Limits of Colombo in the District of Colombo Western 
Province and bounded on the North by premises bearing 
Assessment Nos. 8, Aramaya Place and 89, Aramaya Road, 
on the East by Aramaya Road, on the South by premises 
bearing Assessment Nos. 81 and 79, Aramaya Road and on 
the West by Aramaya Place and containing in extent One 
Rood and Ten decimal Nought Nine Perches (0A., 1R., 
10.09P.) together with the buildings, trees, plantations and 
everything else standing thereon registered in A 991/244 at 
the Land Registry, Colombo.

Which said allotment of Land is a resurvey of the Land 
described below:
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All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 3 depicted in Plan No. 1260 dated 31.01.1954 made by 
H. W. Fernando, Licensed Surveyor, bearing Assessment 
No. 6, Aramaya Place situated along Aramaya Place and 
Aramaya Road aforesaid and bounded on the North by Lots 
4, 5 and 35, on the East by Aramaya Road, on the South 
by Lots 1 and 2 and on the West by Lot 25 and containing 
in extent One Rood Eighteen decimal Six Five Perches  
(0A., 1R., 18.65P.) together with the buildings, trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon and 
registered in A 991/259 at the Land Registry, Colombo.

	 Chief Manager,
	 (Recovery-Corporate).

Bank of Ceylon,
Recovery Corporate Unit,
No. 4, Bank of Ceylon Mawatha,
Colombo 01.

10-1219

People’s  Bank  Matale  Brach (002)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
People's Bank under section 29D of the

People's Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 which has been 
amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

This is to announce that under the section 29D of People’s 
Bank Act, No. 29 which has been amended by the Act, 
No. 32 of 1986, at a meeting of the Board of Directors 
of the People’s Bank held on 29.06.2018 it was resolved 
unanimously.

Whereas Rohan Gamini Pelendagama, 
Rathnawibhushana Arachchige Kusumawathi and 
Malani Indralatha Pelendagama as the obligors have 
made default in payments due on mortgage Bonds; one 
No. 1811 dated 18.11.2015 attested by Ms. Rajapaksha 
Gedara Gayani Kanjula Rajapaksha, Notary Public of 
Matale and another Bond No. 11027 dated 08.09.2016 
attested by Ms. Sriyanjani Kumari Abeykoon, Notary 
Public of Matale in favour of People’s Bank and now due 
and owing to the People’s Bank orderly, a sum of Rupees 
One Million Eight hundred thousand (Rs. 1,800,000) 
and a sum of Rupees Three Million Three Hundred and 
Seventy Thousand (Rs. 3,370,000.00) on the said Bonds 
and the Board of Directors of People’s Bank Under the 
power vested by provisions of the Section 29D of the Bank 
Act, No. 29 of 1961 do hereby resolve that the properties 
and premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto 
mortgaged to the People’s Bank by the said Bonds, 

i.e. No. 1811 and 11027 be sold by Public Auctions by 
Shockman and Samarawickrama Company, Licensed 
Auctioneer of Kandy for recovery of said sum of Rupees 
One Million Eight Hundred Thousand (Rs. 1,800,000.00) 
together with further interest from 22.10.2017 at the rate 
of 12.36% (Twelve and Decimal Three Six Percent) per 
annum together with other charges incurred less payment 
(if any) since received and also said sum of Rupees 
Three Million Three Hundred and Seventy Thousand 
(Rs.3,370,000.00) together with further interest from 
14.11.2017 at rate of 17.5% (Seventeen and Decimal 
Five Percent) per annum together with other charges 
incurred less payment (if any) since received.

The Schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
No. 33 depicted in the Plan No. P.P. M. A. 660 in the field 
Sheet No. 54/4/1 (I 20/5) prepared by the Survey General 
and now kept under his custody and from and out of land 
called C-Janapadaya (Colony) situated at Wariyapola in 
Elwala Grama Niladhari's Division of Medasiya Paththuwa 
in the Divisional Secretary's Division of Ukuwela in Matale 
District of Central Province and registered in the Folio  
No. L D O F 02/53 at the District Land Registry of Matale 
and said allotment No. 33 is bounded. 

On the North by Lot Nos. 32 and 31;
On the East by Lot No. 01 (road);
On the South by Lot No. 34;
On the West by

And containing in extent 0.111 Hectare (Decimal One 
One and One) together with buildings and everything else 
standing thereon.

The aforesaid allotment of land has been re-surveyed and 
shown in the new Plan No. 4287 dated 11.06.211 made by 
Mr. K. O. Perera Licensed Surveyor and depicted as follows.

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
Nos. 01, 02 and 03 depicted in the said Plan No. 4287 from 
and out of land called Wariyapola Janapadaya (Colony) 
situated at Medasiyapaththuwa of Matale in Matale District 
of Central Province and bounded.

On the North by the land claimed the ownership by A. A. 
Ranmenike and L. A. Sumanawathi;

On the East by  the road running from the main road upto 
the house;

On the South by the land claimed by ownership by Nimal 
Kadagoda;

On the West by Railway reservation
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Containing in extent 0.111 Hectare (Decimal One One 
and One Hectare) and registered in the Folio LDO /F03/30 
at the District Land Registry of Matale.

By order of the Board of Directors,

	N alin Pathiranage.

Regional Manager,
People's Bank,
Regional Office,
No. 02, Meewaththakumbura Road,
Matale.

10-1179

hatton  national  bank  plc
Anuradhapura  branch

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Hatton National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 

Act, No. 04 of 1990

Mallawa Arachchilage Don Gamini Chandrasiri and 
Jayantha Jayakodiarachchi.

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National 
Bank PLC held on 30th August, 2018 it was resolved 
specially and unanimously.

Whereas Mallawa Arachchilage Don Gamini 
Chandrasiri and Jayantha Jayakodiarachchi as the 
Obligors  have made default in payment due and as 
security has mortgaged the land and premises more fully 
described in the First Schedule hereto by Mortgage Bond 
Nos. 8610 dated 23.02.2016, 8611 dated 23.02.2016, 
8623 dated 01.03.2016, 8750 dated 07.07.2016, 8849 
dated 19.10.2016 and 9018 dated 15.06.2017 all attested 
by A. V. A. Dissanayake  Notary Public of Anuradhapura 
on the Development Loan facilities in favour of Hatton 
National Bank PLC and there are now due and owing to 
the Hatton National Bank PLC as at 31st May, 2018 sum 
aggregating to Rupees One Hundred and Eight Million 
Two Hundred and Sixty-four Thousand Nine Hundred 
and Seventy-eight Only (Rs. 108,264,978.00) on the said 
Bonds.

Whereas Mallawa Arachchilage Don Gamini 
Chandrasiri and Jayantha Jayakodiarachchi as the 
Obligors  have made default in payment due on Bond  
No. 8496 dated 13.10.2015 attested by A. V. A. 
Dissanayake, Notary Public Anuradhapura (morefully 

described in the Second Schedule hereto) and Bond  
No. 8497 dated 13.10.2015 attested by A. V. A. 
Dissanayake, Notary Public of Anuradhapura (morefully 
described in the Third Schedule hereto) in favour of 
Hatton National Bank PLC and there is now due and 
owing to the Hatton National Bank PLC as at 31st May, 
2018 a sum of Rupees Twelve Million and Thirty-four 
Thousand One Hundred and Ninety-two and Cents 
Forty-four Only (Rs. 12,034,192.44) due on the Term 
Loan facility extended to you among other facilities on 
the said Bonds.

And the Board of Directors of Hatton National Bank 
PLC under the power vested by the Recovery of Loans 
by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, do 
hereby resolve that the property and premises morefully 
describe in the First, Second and Third Schedules, hereto 
and mortgaged to Hatton National Bank PLC by the said 
Bond Nos. 8610, 8611, 8623, 8750, 8849, 9018, 8496 and 
8497 be sold by Public Auction by P. Muthukumarana, 
Licensed Auctioneer of All Island for recovery of the 
said sum aggregating to Rupees One Hundred and 
Twenty Million Two Hundred and Ninety-nine Thousand 
One Hundred and Seventy and Cents Forty-four Only  
(Rs. 120,299,170.44) on the said Bonds together with 
further interest from 01st June, 2018 to date of sale 
together with costs of advertising and other charges 
incurred less payments (if any) since received.

The first schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 5623 dated 14th October, 2012 
made by A. M. B. Rathnasiri, Licensed Surveyor (being a 
resurvey of the Lot 1 in Plan No. 617 dated 27th March, 2000 
made by A. M. B. Rathnasiri, Licensed Surveyor) bearing 
Assessment No. 88/28, Harischandra Mawatha, of the land 
called Ponnawarankulamakele situated at Stage 1 of the 
New Town of Anuradhapura in Grama Niladhari Division 
No. 249, Part 2, Stage 1 of the New Town of Anuradhapura 
in Grama Niladhari Division No. 249, Part 2, Stage 1 
within the Municipal Council Limits of Anuradhapura and 
Divisional Secretariat Division of Nuwaragam Palatha East 
of Kanadara Korale, Anuradhapura District in North Central 
Province and which said land marked Lot 1 according to the 
said Plan No. 5623 is bounded on the North by Lots 548, 
553 and 555 in F. U. P. A. 3, on the East by Lot 555, 556 in F. 
U. P. A. 3 and Lot 2 in Plan No. 5623, on the South by Road 
(MC), on the West by Lot 548 in F.U.P.A. 2 and containing 
in extent Two Roods and Six Decimal Seven Two Perches 
(0A., 2R., 6.72P.) according to said Plan No. 5623, together 
with the right of way and other users along and over the road 
reservation depicted in the Final Urban Plan No. A 2.
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The Second schedule

Of an allotment of State Land, situated at Yahalegama 
Village in Grama Niladhari Division No. 236, in Kanadara 
Korale in Divisional Secretary's Division of Nuwaragam 
Palatha East in the District of Anuradhapura in North 
Central Province and bounded and on the North by Land 
of D. Rohini Withana, on the East by Land of Dayawathi, 
on the South by Land of Herath and on the West by Nuwara 
Ela Reservation and containing in extent Two Acres  
(2A., 0R., 0P.) together with the buildings, trees, plantations 
and everything else standing thereon.

and after a resurvey of the aforesaid Land marked Lot No. 
01 in Plan No. 2013/An/346 dated 14.12.2013 made by P. B. 
Illangasinghe, Licensed Surveyor, situated at Yahalegama 
Village in Grama Niladhari Division No. 236 in Kanadara 
Korale in Divisional Secretary's Division of Nuwaragam 
Palatha East in the District of Anuradhapura in North 
Central Province and bounded and on the North by Land 
of D. Rohini Withana, on the East by Reservation of High 
Tention Electricity Power Line, on the South by Land of H. 
K. Herath and on the West by Nuwara Ela Reservation and 
containing in extent Two Acres (2A., 0R., 0P.) or Hectare 
Naught Decimal Eight Naught Nine Four (Hec. 0.8094) 
together with the buildings, tress, plantations and everything 
else standing thereon.

The third schedule

of an allotment of State Land, situated at Yahalegama 
Village in Grama Niladhari Division No. 236, in Kanadara 
Korale in Divisional Secretary's Division of Nuwaragam 
Palatha East in the District of Anuradhapura in North 
Central Province and bounded and on the North by State 
Land, on the East by Land of Dayawathi, on the South by 
Land of D. N. P. K. Withana and on the West by Nuwara 
Ela Reservation and containing in extent Two Acres  
(2A., 0R., 0P.) together with the buildings, trees, plantations 
and everything else standing thereon.

and after a resurvey of the aforesaid Land marked Lot  
No. 01 in Plan No. 2013/An/347 dated 14.12.2013 made 
by P. B. Illangasinghe, Licensed Surveyor, situated at 
Yahalegama Village in Grama Niladhari Division No. 236 
in Kanadara Korale in Divisional Secretary's Division of 
Nuwaragam Palatha East in the District of Anuradhapura 
in North Central Province and bounded and on the North 
by State Land, on the East by Reservation of High Tention 
Electricity Power Line, on the South by Land of D. N. 
P. Kumara Withana and on the West by Nuwara Ela 
Reservation and containing in extent Two Acres (2A., 0R., 
0P.) or Hectare Naught Decimal Eight Naught Nine Four 

(Hec. 0.8094) together with the buildings, tress, plantations 
and everything else standing thereon.

By order of the Board of Directors,

	 K A L T Ranaweera,
	 DGM (Legal)/Board Secretary.

10-1157/1

hatton  national  bank  plc
borella  branch

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Hatton National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 

Act, No. 04 of 1990

H S Packaging (Pvt) Ltd.

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National 
Bank PLC held on 30th August, 2018 it was resolved 
specially and unanimously.

Whereas H S Packaging (Pvt) Ltd as the Obligor 
and Chamat Kanil Joseph De Silva Wijeyeratne as 
the Mortgagor mortgaged and hypothecated property 
morefully described in the First, Second and Third 
Schedules hereto by Mortgage Bond Nos. 2958, 2959 
and 2960 respectively all dated 05.07.2016 all attested 
by S. R. Faaiz, Notary Public of Colombo, in favour  of 
Hatton National Bank PLC as security for repayment of 
the loans granted by Hatton National Bank PLC to H S  
Packaging (Pvt) Ltd.

Whereas the aforesaid Chamat Kanil Joseph De Silva 
Wijeyeratne is the virtual owner and person who is in 
control of the aforesaid H. S. Packaging (Pvt) Ltd and as 
a Director of H. S. Packaging (Pvt) Ltd is in control and 
management of the said Company and accordingly, the 
aforesaid Chamat Kanil Joseph De Silva Wijeyeratne is 
the actual beneficiary of the financial accommodations 
granted by the Hatton National Bank PLC to H. S. 
Packaging (Pvt) Ltd.

And whereas H. S. Packaging (Pvt) Ltd and Chamat 
Kanil Joseph De Silva Wijeyeratne have made default in 
payment of the sum of due to Hatton National Bank PLC 
and there is now due and owing to the Hatton National 
Bank PLC as at 18th July, 2018 a sum of (Rupees 
Sixty-two Million Two Hundred Thousand Three 
Hundred and Ninety-two and Cents Fifty-seven Only  
(Rs. 62,200,392.57) on the said Bonds and the Board of 
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Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC under the power 
vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special 
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, do hereto and mortgaged 
to Hatton National Bank PLC by the said Bond  
Nos. 2958, 2959 and 2960 be sold by Public Auction by 
P. Muthukumarana, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for 
recovery of the said sum of Rs. 62,200,392.57 together 
with further interest from 19th July, 2018 to date of sale 
together with costs of advertising and other charges 
incurred less payments (if any) since received.

The first schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted 
in Plan No. 1994 dated 20th October, 1941 made by P. 
F. Goonesekara,  Licensed Surveyor together with the 
buildings and everything else standing thereon bearing 
Assessment No. 23, Mount Pleasant Off Baseline Road 
situated at Mount Pleasant Baseline Road in Maradana 
within the Grama Niladhari Division of Dematagoda in the 
Divisional Secretary's Division of Thimbirigasyaya within 
the Municpal Council Limits of Colombo in the District of 
Colombo Western Province and which said land is bounded 
on the North by Mount Pleasant leading to Baseline Road 
on the East by premises bearing Assessment No. 21, Mount 
Pleasant on the South by premises bearing Assessment  
No. 10, Mount Avenue and on the West by premises bearing 
Assessment No. 25, Mount Pleasant and containing in extent 
Ten Decimal Seven Five Perches (0A., 0R., 10.75P.) and 
registered under title E 78/75 at the District Land Registry 
of Colombo.

The Second schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 3A depicted in Plan No. 1088 dated 06.11.1986 made 
by K. A. Kapugeekiyana,  Licensed Surveyor from and 
out of the land called Karapinchakotuwa together with the 
buildings and everything else standing thereon bearing 
Assessment No. 2, Walpola Road situated at Walpola 
within the Grama Niladhari Division of 491/A, Walpola 
and Divisional Secretary's Division of Kaduwela in the 
Palle Pattu of Hewagam Korale in the District of Colombo 
Western Province and which said Lot 3A is bounded on the 
North by Land of Dalsy Ranasinghe, on the East by Land 
of Doreen Ranasinghe, on the South by Road and on the 
West by balance portion of, the same land and containing 
in extent Eighteen Decimal Nought Five Perches (0A., 0R., 
18.05P.) according to the said Plan No. 1088 and registered 
under title B 03/51 at the Land Registry of Homagama.

The third schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted 
in Plan No. 130 dated 26th February, 1969 made by  

S. D. Liyanasuriya,  Licensed Surveyor from and out of the 
land called “Etambagahawatta” together with the buildings 
and everything else standing thereon bearing Assessment 
No. 16, Gothami Lane situated at Welikada within the 
Grama Niladhari Division of Borella North and within the 
Divisional Secretary's Division of Thimbirigasyaya and 
within the Municipal Council Limits of Colombo in the  
District of Colombo Western Province and which said land 
is bounded on the North by passage, on the East by portion 
of the same Land of D. S. Ranasinghe and the South by 
Remaining Portion of the Same land of Narayana Mudalige 
Catherina Perera and on the West by Second Lane of 
Gothami Road and containing in extent Three Decimal Two 
Five Perches (0A., 0R., 3.25P.) according to the said Plan 
No. 130 and registered under title E 71/06 at the District 
Land Registry of Colombo.

By order of the Board of Directors,

	 K A L T Ranaweera,
	 DGM (Legal)/Board Secretary.

10-1157/2

hatton   national  bank  plc
Negombo  branch

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Hatton National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) 

Act, No. 04 of 1990

M/S LK Japan Enterprises (Private) Limited.

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National 
Bank PLC held on 30th August, 2018 it was resolved 
specially and unanimously.

Whereas M/S LK Japan Enterprises (Private) 
Limited as the Obligor has made default in payment 
due on Bond Nos. 4627 dated 09.06.2014, 5103 dated 
13.08.2015 and 5282 dated 05.02.2016 all attested by  
G. M. M. Fernando, Notary Public of Negombo the 
property morefully described in the First Schedule hereto.

Whereas M/S LK Japan Enterprises (Private) Limited 
as the Obligor and Adambaralage Marlon Lalindra De 
Alwis as the Mortgagor mortgaged and hypothecated 
property morefully described in the Second Schedule 
hereto by Mortgage Bond Nos. 3398 dated 27.04.2011, 
4479 dated 19.02.2014, 5280 dated 05.02.2016 and 5725 
dated 09.02.2016 all attested by G. M. M. Fernando 
Notary Public of Colombo, in favour of Hatton National 
Bank PLC as security for repayment of the loans 
granted by Hatton National Bank PLC to M/S LK Japan 
Enterprises (Private) Limited.
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Whereas M/S LK Japan Enterprises (Private) Limited 
as the Obligor and Adambaralage Marlon Lalindra De 
Alwis as the Mortgagor mortgaged and hypothecated 
property morefully described in the Third Schedule hereto 
by Mortgage Bond Nos. 3397 dated 27.04.2011, 4480 
dated 19.02.2014, 5281 dated 05.02.2016 and 5724 dated 
09.02.2016 all attested by G. M. M. Fernando Notary 
Public of Colombo, in favour of Hatton National Bank 
PLC as security for repayment of the loans granted by 
Hatton National Bank PLC to M/S LK Japan Enterprises 
(Private) Limited.

Whereas the aforesaid Adambaralage Marlon 
Lalindra De Alwis is the virtual owner and person who 
is in control and management of the aforesaid M/S LK 
Japan Enterprises (Private) Limited and as a Director of  
M/S LK Japan Enterprises (Private) Limited accordingly. 
Further if the corporate veil of the company is unveiled, 
the aforesaid Adambaralage Marlon Lalindra De Alwis 
seen as the owner of  M/S LK Japan Enterprises (Private) 
Limited.

And whereas M/S LK Japan Enterprises (Private) 
Limited and Adambaralage Marlon Lalindra De Alwis 
have made default in payment of the sum due to Hatton 
National Bank PLC and there is now due and owing to 
the Hatton National Bank PLC as at 14th June, 2018 a 
sum of Rupees Twenty-three Million Seven Hundred and 
Twenty-six Thousand Seven Hundred and Thirty-five 
and Cents Thirty-three only (Rs. 23,726,735.33) on the 
said Bonds and the Board of Directors of Hatton National 
Bank PLC under the power vested by the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 
1990, do hereto and mortgaged to Hatton National 
Bank PLC by the said Bond Nos. 4627, 5103, 5282, 
3398, 4479, 5280, 5725, 3397, 4480, 5281 and 5724 be 
sold by  Public Auction by I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed 
Auctioneer of Colombo for recovery of the said sum of 
Rs. 23,726,735.33 together with further interest from 
15th June, 2018 to date of sale together with costs of 
advertising and other charges incurred less payments (if 
any) since received.

The first schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land Lot 1A 
depicted in Plan No. 4789 dated 08.04.2007 and 05.12.2011 
made by P. D. N. Pieris,  Licensed Surveyor from and out 
of the land called Siyambalagahawatta and Maragahawatta 
together with the buildings and everything standing thereon 
situated at Kurana Katunayake within the Limits of Kurana 
Katunayake Urban Council in Dasiya Pattu of Aluthkuru 
Korale in the Grama Niladhari's Division of 142-B Kurana 
Katunayake and the Divisional Secretariat Katana in the 

District of Gampaha Western Province and bounded on the 
North by Land of Princy Allan Dassanayake, on the South 
by Land of S. G. Wijewardhane and Road, and on the West 
by Lot 1B (Reservation along Lagoon) and containing in 
extent Nineteen Perches (0A., 0R., 19P.)

The Second schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land Lot 1 
depicted in Plan No. 1623 dated 14.08.2009 made by  
D. M. H. Dhammika Bandara,  Licensed Surveyor from 
and out of the land called Kohombagahawatta together 
with the buildings and everything standing thereon bearing 
Assessment No. 10, First Cross Street situated at Ward 
No. 2, Kotakampu within the Municipal Council Limits 
of Negombo in the Grama Niladhari's Division of 156-A 
Munnakkara North and the Divisional Secretariat Negombo 
in the District of Gampaha Western Province (within the 
Registration Division of Negombo) and bounded on the 
North by Lot 1 in Plan No. 781, on the East by Negombo 
- Newstead School premises, on the South by Lot 2 and on 
the West First Cross and containing in extent Ten Perches 
(0A., 0R., 10P.)

The third schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land Lot 1 
depicted in Plan No. 2881 dated 13.10.2006 made by P. 
D. N. Peiris,  Licensed Surveyor from and out of the land 
called Kohombagahawatta together with the buildings and 
everything standing thereon situated at Kurana Katunayake 
in Ward No. 2 within the Urban Council Limits of 
Katunayake -Seeduwa in the Grama Niladhari's Division of 
Kurana - Katunayake South and the Divisional Secretariat 
Katana in the District of Gampaha Western Province and 
bounded on the North by Land of Wimalawathie Perera, 
on the East by remaining portion of same land (Lot 2B in 
Plan No. 553 dated 13th May, 1995 made by P. D. N. Peiris, 
Licensed Surveyor), on the South by Nayaka Road and on 
the West by Lot 1 in Plan No. 2813 (Lot 1A in Plan No. 553) 
and containing in extent Twelve Perches (0A., 0R., 12P.)

By order of the Board of Directors,

	 (Mrs.) K A L T Ranaweera,
	 DGM (Legal)/Board Secretary.

10-1157/3
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hatton  national  bank  plc
Negombo  branch

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Hatton National Bank PLC under  

Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990

M/S Sri TV (Private) Limited.

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National 
Bank PLC held on 30th August, 2018 it was resolved 
specially and unanimously.

Whereas M/S Sri TV (Private) Limited as the Obligor 
and Arsakulasuriya Anton Thushara Kurera as the 
Mortgagor mortgaged and hypothecated properties by 
Mortgage Bond Nos. 4673 dated 14.07.2014 (morefully 
described in the First Schedule hereto) 4674 dated 
14.06.2014 (morefully described in the Second Schedule 
hereto) and 5339 dated 31.03.2016 (morefully described 
in the Third Schedule hereto) all attested by G. M. M. 
Fernando, Notary Public of Colombo in favour of Hatton 
National Bank PLC as security for repayment of the 
loans granted by Hatton National Bank PLC to M/S Sri 
TV (Private) Limited.

Whereas the aforesaid Arsakulasuriya Anton Thushara 
Kurera is virtual owner and person who is in control 
and management of the aforesaid  M/S Sri TV (Private) 
Limited and as a Director of M/S Sri TV (Private) 
Limited accordingly. Further if the corporate veil of 
the company is unveiled, the aforesaid Arsakulasuriya 
Anton Thushara Kurera seen as the owner of M/S Sri TV 
(Private) Limited.

And whereas M/S Sri TV (Private) Limited and 
Arsakulasuriya Anton Thushara Kurera have made 
default in payment of the sum due to Hatton National 
Bank PLC and there is now due and owing to the Hatton 
National Bank PLC as at 02nd June, 2018 a sum of 
Rupees Eighteen Million Three Hundred and Fifty-five 
Thousand Seven Hundred and Twenty-eight and Cents 
Twenty-nine Only (Rs. 18,355,728.29) on the said Bonds 
and the Board of Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC 
under the power vested by the Recovery of Loans by 
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 do hereto 
and mortgaged to Hatton National Bank PLC by the said 
Bond Nos. 4673, 4674 and 5339 be sold by Public Auction 
by I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for 
recovery of the said sum of Rs. 18,355,728.29 together 
with further interest from 03rd June, 2018 to date of 
sale together with costs of advertising and other charges 
incurred less payments (if any) since received.

The first schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted 
in Plan No. 3377 dated 07.04.2004 made by M. D. 
Edward,  Licensed Surveyor from and out of the land 
called Makullagahakumbura and Kanjilamarththadithottam 
together with the buildings and everything standing 
thereon situated at Ettukul within the Limits of Negombo 
in the Grama Niladhari's Division of 73 - Ettukala and the 
Divisional Secretariat Negombo in the District of Gampaha 
Western Province (within the Registration Division of 
Negombo) and bounded on the North by Land of Baumann, 
on the East by St. Sylvester Road and Land of Baumann, 
on the South by Lot 2 in Plan No. 6715/1995 and on the 
West by Remaining portion of the same land and land of 
Baumann and containing in extent Twenty Eight decimal 
Nine Nought Perches (0A., 0R., 28.90P.)

The Second schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land depicted 
in Plan No. 2252 dated 10.03.1987 made by R. I. Fernando,  
Licensed Surveyor from and out of the land called portion of 
Pokunabodawatta together with the buildings and everything 
standing thereon situated at 02nd Division, Hunupitiya 
within the Municipal Council Limits of Negombo in the 
Grama Niladhari's Division of 159A - Hunupitiya and the 
Divisional Secretariat Negombo in the District of Gampaha 
Western Province (within the Registration Division of 
Negombo) and bounded on the North-East by Land of  
G. A. J. S. Perera, on the South-East by G. A. J. S. Perera 
and South-West by lands of I. T. S. Wettasinghe and W. D. 
E. Lanza and on the North-West by Chilaw Road and Land 
of containing n extent Seventeen Perches (0A., 0R., 17P.)

The above property has been recently surveyed and 
shown in Plan No. 6310 dated 27.03.2007 made by D. P. 
Wimalasena, Licensed Surveyor and is described as follows. 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in the said Plan No. 6310 from and out of 
the land called portion of Pokunabodawatta together with 
the buildings and everything standing thereon situated at 
02nd Division, Hunupitiya within the Municipal Council 
Limits of Negombo in the Grama Niladhari's Division of 
159A - Hunupitiya and the Divisional Secretariat Negombo 
in the District of Gampaha Western Province (within the 
Registration Division of Negombo) and bounded on the 
North by Chilaw Road, on the East by Land of G. A. G. S. 
Perera and on the South by Land of G. A. G. S. Perera and 
Land of D. J. Wijetunga and on the West by Land of D. J. 
Wijetunga and Land of W. D. Clotilda Lanza  and containing 
in extent  Seventeen Perches (0A., 0R., 17P.)
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The third schedule

All that divided and defined allotment of land Lot 1 
depicted in Plan No. 2901B dated 27.11.2005 made by 
D. H. M. .S. K. Herath,  Licensed Surveyor from and out 
of the land called Kaludiya Ela Estate together with the 
buildings and everything standing thereon situated at 
Mugunuwatawana within the Grama Niladhari's Division 
of 569 - Mugunuwatawana in the Divisional Secretariat 
Chilaw within the Madampe-Chilaw Pradeshiya Sabha 
Limits Yagam Pattu of Pitigal Korale North in the District of 
Puttalam North Western Province (within the Registration 
Division of Chilaw) and bounded on the North by Land 
of W. L. D. Banduwardana, on the East by Lot 7 in Plan  
No. 5747 made by Michael D. Fernando, Licensed Surveyor 
and Road to Main Road, on the South by Lot 6 (Registration 
for Road 8 ft. wide) in Plan No. 5747 made by Michael  
D. Fernando, Licensed Surveyor and on the West by Land 
of late Mapa Mudiyanselage Karunadasa and Henarath 
Arachchige Leelawathie Licensed and containing in extent 
Nine Acres One Rood Thirty Perches (9A., 1R., 30P.)

 By order of the Board of Directors,

	 (Mrs.) K A L T Ranaweera,
	 DGM (Legal)/Board Secretary.

10-1157/4

The bank of ceylon

Notice under Section 21 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Chapter 397) as amended by Act,  

No. 34 of 1968 and Law, No. 10 of 1974 and Act, 
No. 54 of 2000 

	
mortgaged Property situated at No. 33/3C, Buthgamuwa 
Road, Rajagiriya for the liabilities of M/S Seemasahitha 
(Janatha) Ekabadda Govi Samagama at Nisansala, 
Thimirikadawala Jayanthi Mawatha, Anuradhapura.

At the meeting held on 02nd April, 2018 the Board of 
Directors of this Bank resolved specially and unanimously.

That a sum of Rupees Thirty-three Million Seven Hundred 
Forty Thousand Seven Hundred Eighty-five and cents Thirty 
only (Rs. 33,740,785.30) on account of the Reschedule 
Loan A2 is due from M/S Seemasahitha (Janatha) Ekabadda 
Govi Samagama of No. 938, Buddagaya Mawatha, Stage II, 
Anuradhapura and on account of principal and interest up to 

31.01.2018 together with interest on Reschedule Loan A2 
facility of Rupees Twenty-eight Million Two Hundred Forty-
nine Thousand Five Hundred Forty-four and cents Eighty-
five only (Rs. 28,249,544.85) at the rate of Ten Percent 
(10%) per annum from 01.02.2018 till date of payment on 
Mortgage Bond No. 818 dated 18.09.2014 attested by M. W. 
A. S. P. Wijewickrama, Notary Public.

That in terms of Section 19 and 28 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Cap. 397) and its amendments M/s T & H 
Auctioneers the Reputed Pioneer Chartered Auctioneers 
at No. 50/3, Vihara Mawatha, Kolonnawa be authorized 
and empowered to sell by public auction the properties 
mortgaged to the Bank of Ceylon and described in the 
Schedules hereunded for the recovery of the said sum 
of Rupees Thirty-three Million Seven Hundred Forty 
Thoiusand Seven Hundred Eighty-five and cents Thirty 
only (Rs. 33,740,785.30) is due on the said Bond No. 818 
together with interest as aforesaid from 01.02.2018 to date 
of sale, and costs and monies recoverable under Section 26 
of the said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance and that the Chief 
Manager of Recovery Corporate of the Bank of Ceylon to 
publish notice of this resolution in terms of Section 21 of the 
said Bank of Ceylon Ordinance.

The first Schedule 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
2A depicted in Plan No. 7005/9000 dated 12.08.2013 made 
by S. Wickramasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Delgahawatta” bearing Assessment No. 33/C/3, Welikada 
Road together with the buildings, trees, plantations and 
everything else standing and growing thereon situated 
at “Kotuwegoda” in Grama Niladhari Division of No. 
491B, Kotuwegoda within the Municipal Council Limits 
of Kaduwela in the Divisional Secretary’s Division of 
Kaduwela in Palle Pattu of Hewagam Korale in the District 
of Colombo Western Province and which said Lot 2A is 
bounded on the North by Premises bearing Assessment No. 
33/C/5, Welikada Road, on the East by Road 4.0m wide 
(Lot L in Plan No. 1627 by Sudarman Sripala, Licensed 
Surveyor), on the South by Road 6.0m wide (Lot B2 in Plan 
No. 1593) and on the West by premises bearing Assessment 
No. 33/C/2, Welikada Road and containing in extent 
Fourteen Perches (0A., 0R., 14.00P.) according to the said 
Plan No. 7005/9000.

The above allotment in the said Plan No. 7005/9000 is a 
resurvey of the following land to wit:-

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 2 depicted in Plan No. 1631 dated 20.10.1997 made by  
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S. Siripala, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Delgahawatta” together with the buildings, trees, plantations 
and everything else standing and growing thereon bearing 
Assessment No. 33/C/3, Keels Kingsgate Homes situated 
off the Road from Welikada to Buthgamuwa situated at 
“Kotuwegoda” aforesaid and which said Lot 2 is bounded on 
the North by Lot H in Plan No. 1627 of S. Siripala, Licensed 
Surveyor, on the East by Lot L (Reservation for 4m wide 
Road) in Plan No. 1627 of S. Siripala, Licensed Surveyor, 
on the South by Lot B2 in Plan No. 1593 (6m wide Road 
Reservation) of S. Siripala, Licensed Surveyor and on the 
West by Lot 1 and containing in extent Fourteen Perches 
(0A., 0R., 14.00P.) according to the said Plan No. 1631 and 
registered in B 304/03 at the Land Registry, Homagama.

the  second Schedule 

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot B2 (reservation for a road) depicted in Plan No. 1593 
dated 23.08.1997 made by S. Siripala, Licensed Surveyor 
of the land called “Delgahawatta” situated along the road 
from Welikada to Buthgamuwa at Kotuwegoda aforesaid 
and which said B2 is bounded on the North by Lot B1, 
on the East by Lots B1 and B3, on the South by Lot A in 
Plan No. 1592 and on the West by Road from Welikada 
to Buthgamuwa, containing in extent Sixteen decimal 
Eight Perches (0A., 0R., 16.8P.) according to the said Plan  
No. 1593. Registered at the Land Registry, Homagama in 
Volume/Folio G 1215/237.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot L (reservation for a road) depicted in Plan No. 1627 
dated 16.09.1997 made by S. Siripala, Licensed Surveyor 
of the land called “Delgahawatta” situated off the road from 
Welikada to Buthgamuwa at Kotuwegoda aforesaid and 
which said Lot L is bounded on the North by Lot H, on the 
East by Lots I, J and K, on the South by Lot B2 in Plan 
No. 1593 made by S. Siripala, Licensed Surveyor and on 
the West by Lot G and containing in extent Four decimal 
Eight Perches (0A., 0R., 4.8P.) according to the said Plan  
No. 1627. Registered at the Land Registry, Homagama in 
Volume/Folio G 1222/10.

3. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot B3 (reservation for a drain) depicted in Plan No. 1593 
dated 23.08.1997 made by S. Siripala, Licensed Surveyor 
of the land called “Delgahawatta” situated off the road 
from Welikada to Buthgamuwa at Kotuwegoda aforesaid 
and which said Lot B3 is bounded on the North by Lots B1 
and B2, on the East by field called Borupana property of 
UDA, on the South by Lot A in Plan No. 1592 and on the 
West by Lot B2 and containing in extent Nought decimal 
Five Perches (0A., 0R., 0.5P.) according to the said Plan  

No. 1593. Registered at the Land Registry, Homagama in 
Volume/Folio G 1215/238.

	 Chief Manager,
	 (Recovery-Corporate).

Bank of Ceylon,
Recovery Corporate Unit,
No. 4, Bank of Ceylon Mawatha,
Colombo 01.

N. B. - After obtaining approval of the Board of 
Directors on 02.04.2018 under Section 21 of the Bank of 
Ceylon Ordinance (Chapter 397) as aforesaid sums of  
Rs. 300,000, Rs. 250,000 and Rs. 100,000 have been 
deposited on 21.05.2018, 14.06.2018 and 31.08.2018 
respectively by M/S Seemasahitha (Janatha) Ekabaddha 
Govi Samagama and the sums are recovered from the 
outstanding liabilities of the company.

10-1220

SEYLAN  BANK  PLC—Nugegoda  branch
(Registered under Ref. PQ 9 according to the 

Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Seylan Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 

of 1990 as amended

Account No. : 0120-12767993-101.

It is hereby notified that the under Section 8 of the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 
as amended that at a meeting held on 27.08.2018 by the 
Board of Directors of Seylan Bank PLC it was resolved 
specially and unanimously.

“Whereas Rajapaksha Pathiranage Mahendra Pradeep 
Kumara of Colombo hereinafter called and referred to as 
the ‘Obligor’ has made default in payment due on Bond 
No. 1566 dated 30.05.2017 attested by Ms. Deepani 
Range, Notary Public in favour of Seylan Bank PLC 
(Company Registration No. PQ 9 under the Companies 
Act, No. 7 of 2007) and there is now due and owing to the 
Seylan Bank PLC on account of principal and interest up 
to 30th May, 2018 a sum of Rupees Eighteen Million Nine 
Hundred and Sixty-three Thousand Five Hundred and 
Thirty-nine and Cents Twenty-three (Rs. 18,963,539.23) 
together with interest on Rupees Eighteen Million Five 
Hundred and Sixteen Thousand Five Hundred and 
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Eleven and Cents Seventeen (Rs. 18,516,511.17) at 
Eighteen Percent (18%) per annum from 31st May, 2018 
in respect of the Housing Loan Facility on the said Bond 
and the Board of Directors of Seylan Bank PLC under 
the powers vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended, 
do hereby resolve that the property and premises more 
fully described in the Schedule hereto and mortgaged to 
Seylan Bank PLC by the said Mortgage Bond No. 1566 
be sold by Public Auction by Ms. Chandima Gamage, 
Licensed Auctioneer for recovery of the said sum of 
Rupees Eighteen Million Nine Hundred and Sixty-
three Thousand Five Hundred and Thirty-nine and 
Cents Twenty-three  (Rs. 18,963,539.23) together with 
the interest as aforesaid from 31st May, 2018  up to the 
date of sale, with costs of advertising, any other charges 
incurred less payments (if any) since received.”

THE SCHEDULE 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 36/14 dated 01.12.2014 made by  
S. L. P. Satharasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of the Land called 
Ambagahawatta bearing Assessment No. 42A Pamankada 
Road being a resurvey of the existing boundaries of Lot 
2437 in Registration Plan No. 1186 dated 12.03.1985 
made by D. S. Hettige, Licensed Surveyor, Registered in 
Volume 99 Folio 37 situated at Kirillapona in Ward No. 45, 
Pamankade East within the Grama Niladhari Division of 
Pamankada East and in the Divisional Secretariat Division 
of Thimbirgasyaya, and within the Colombo Municipality 
in the District of Colombo Western Province and which said 
Lot 1 is bounded on the North by Lot 2436 (Assessment  
No. 42A, Pamankada Road and Solomons Road), on the East 
by Solombon's Road Lots 55A1B2 and 55A1B1 (Assessment 
No. 44/33, Pamankada Road), on the South by Lot 55A1B2 
and Lot 55A1B1 (Assessment No. 44/33 Pamankada Road) 
Lot 2435 (Assessment No. 42 Pamankada Road) and on the 
West by Lot 2435 (Assessment No. 42 Pamankada Road 
and Lot 2436 (Assessment No. 42A, Pamankada Road) and 
containing in extent Six Perches (0A., 0R., 6P.) or 0.0152 
Hectare according to the said Plan No. 36/14 together with 
the soil, trees, plantations, buildings and everything else 
standing thereon.

Which said Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 36/14 dated 
01.12.2014 made by S. L. P. Satharasinghe, Licensed 
Surveyor, being a resurvey of the existing boundaries of Lot 
2437 depicted in Plan No. 1186 dated 12.03.1985 made by 
D. S. Hettige, Licensed Surveyor described below :

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 2437 depicted in Plan No. 1186 dated 12.03.1985 
made by D. S. Hettige, Licensed Surveyor of the Land 
called Ambagahawatta bearing Assessment No. 42 (Part)  

Pamankada Road being a sub-division of Lot 55B1A in 
Registration Plan No. 4, Kirillapone Registered in Volume 26 
Folio 143 to Volume 75 Folio 225 situated at Kirillapone in Ward  
No. 45 Pamankada East within the Grama Niladhari Division 
of Pamankada East and in the Divisional Secretariat Division 
of Thimbirigasyaya, and within the Colombo Municipality 
in the District of Colombo Western Province and which said 
Lot 2437 is bounded on the North -West by Lot 2436, on the 
North-East by Solomon's Avenue Lot 55B2B, on the South-
East by Lot 55B1B2 and Assessment No. 44/33, Pamankada 
Road Lot 55B1B1 and on the South-West by Lot 2435 
containing in extent Six Decimal One Nought Perches  
(0A., 0R., 6.10P.) according to the said Plan No. 1186 
together with the soil, trees, plantations, buildings and 
everything else standing thereon and registered in Kiri 99/37 
at the Colombo, Land Registry.

By order of the Board of Directors,

	 Mrs. K. Hatch,
	H ead of Legal.

10-1201

	
PEOPLE’S BANK—MAHARAGAMA BRANCH 

& MOUNT LAVINIA BRANCH

	 Resolution under Section 29D of the 
People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by 

the  
Act, No. 32 of 1986

It is hereby notified that the following Resolution was 
unanimiusly passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s 
Bank under Section 29 D of the people's Bank Act, No. 29 of 
1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting 
held on 21.06.2017.

Whereas Mr. Athukoralage Herbet Sirimevan Perera 
And Giranga Hewage Thamara Ruwani Dharmadasa 
Perera have made default on payment due the Mortgage 
Bonds No. 2572 and dated 03.08.2006 and No. 3020 
dated 16.05.2008 both attested by Mrs. D.C. Induruwa 
- Attorney at Law & Notary public of Colombo and 
Mortgage Bonds No. 2192 dated 30.03.2011 and No. 4753 
dated 07.12.2015 both attested by Mrs. L.M. Narangoda - 
Attorney at Law & Notary public of Colombo in favour of 
the people’s Bank and there is now due and owing to the 
People's Bank a sum of Rupees Six Million One Hundred 
and Forty-one Thousand Four Hundred and Fourteen and 
Cents seven (Rs. 6,141,414.07), Rupees Four Million 
Two Hundred and Ninety-six Thousand Five Hindred and 
Eighty and Cents Eighty-two (Rs. 4,296,580.82), Rupees 
One Million Two Hundred and Fifty-five Thousand 
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Six Hundred and Ninety-six and Cents Eighty-nine  
(Rs. 1,255,696.89), Rupees Six Million Seventy-five 
Hundred Thousand (Rs. 6,750,000.00), Rupees Four 
Million One Hundred and Seventy-nine Thousand 
One Hundred and Sixty-six and Cents Sixty-seven  
(Rs. 4,179,166.67) and a sum of Rupees Two Million  
(Rs. 2,000,000.00) on the said Bonds. The Board of 
Directors of the people’s Bank under the powers vested 
in them by the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as 
amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby resolve 
that the property and premises mortgaged to the said 
Bank by the said Bonds No. 2572, 3020 and 2192 be sold 
by Public Auction by Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo 
for recovery of the said sum of Rupees Six Million One 
Hundred and Forty-one Thousand Four Hundred and 
Fourteen and Cents Seven (Rs. 6,141,414.07), Rupees 
Four Million Two Hundred and Ninety-six Thousand 
Five Hundred and Eighty and Cents Eighty-two  
(Rs. 4,296,580.82) together with interes thereon at the 
rate of Twenty-six per Centum (26%) per annum from 
04.02.2017, Rupees One Million Two Hundred and Fifty-
five Thousand Six Hundred and Ninety-six and Cents 
Eighty-nine (Rs. 1,255,696.89) together with interest 
thereon at the rate of Sixteen per Centum (16%) per 
annum from 04.02.2017, Rupees Six Million Seventy- 
five Hundred Thousand (Rs. 6,750,000.00) together 
with interest thereon at the rate of Thirteen per Centum 
(13%) per annum from 05.02.2017, Rupees Four Million 
One Hundred and Seventy-nine Thousand One Hundred 
and Sixty-six and Cents Sixty-seven (Rs. 4,179,166.67) 
together with interest thereon at the rate of Thirteen per 
Centum (13%) per annum from 05.03.2017 and a said 
sum of Rupees Two Million (Rs. 2,000,000.00) together 
with interest thereon at the rate of Thirteen per Centum 
(13%) per annum from 28.02.2017 to date of sale and 
costs of sale together with money recoverable under 
section “29 L” of the said People's Bank Act less payment 
(if any) since received.

Description of the Property and Premises 
mortgaged

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot A depicted in Plan No. 358 dated 08.02.2000 made 
by S. Abeyratne Licensed Surveyor of the land called  
“Delgahawatta” bearing Assessment No. 47, Station Road 
situated at Rathmalana North Ward No.18, Vidyalaya within 
the Municipal Council Limits of Dehiwala - Mount Lavinia 
in the Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale in the District of Colombo 
Western Province and which said Lot A is bounded on the 
North by Station Road, on the East by Premises bearing 
Assessment No. 45, Station Road, on the South by Road 
Lot 4 in Plan No. 340 and premises bearing Assessment  
No. 43/3, Station Road and on the West by  Premises bearing 
Assmt.  No. 49 A, Station Road and containing in extent 

Thirteen decimal Six Eight Perches (0A., 0R., 13.68P.) 
together with buildings, trees, plantations and everything 
standing thereon as per the said plan No. 358.

Which said Lot A is a re-survey of the following Land:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 2 of the land called Delgahawatta depicted in Plan  
No. 340 dated 24th December, 1967 mada by  
S. Dharmawardana Licensed Surveyor together with house 
bearing Assessment No. 47, Station Road and the trees, 
plantations, soil and everything standing thereon situated at 
Galkissa, within the Municipal Council Limits of Dehiwala 
- Mount Lavinia in the Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale in the 
District of Colombo Western Province and Which said Lot 
2 is bounded on the North by Station Road, on the East by 
Lot 3, on the South by Lots 4 & 7 and on the West by Lot 1 
and containing in extent Fourteen Perches (0A., 0R., 14P.).

 
Together with the right of way over the allotment of land 

marked Lot 4 of the said land called Lot B of “Delgahawatta” 
in the plan No. 340 being a reservation for a road situated at 
Galkissa, aforesaid and which said Lot 4 is bounded on the 
North by Station Road and Lot 2 and Lot 3, on the East by 
Lots 5 & 6, on the South by Lot 6 and on the West by Lots 
3 and 7 and containing in extent Five Decimal Five Nought 
Perches (0A., 0R., 5.50P.).  

By order of the Board of Directors,

	 Regional Manager,
	 (Colombo Outer).

People’s Bank,
Regional  Head Office (Colombo Outer),
No.102, Stanley Thilakarathne Mawatha,
Nugegoda.

10-1178

SEYLAN  BANK  PLC—chilaw  branch
(Registered under Ref. PQ 9 according to the 

Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Seylan Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery 
of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 

of 1990

Account No. : 0150 35389744 001.

It is hereby notified that the under Section 8 of the 
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,  
No. 4 of 1990 that at a meeting held on 27.08.2018 by the 
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Board of Directors of Seylan Bank PLC it was resolved 
specially and unanimously.

“Whereas Karunage Premathilake of Galmuruwa 
carrying on business as a Proprietorship under the 
name, style and firm of “K. P. Agencies” at Galmuruwa 
herein after called and referred to as the “Obligor” has 
made default in payment due on Bond No. 1640 dated 
14th March, 2016 attested by Ms. W. Sunethra Nilmini 
Fernando, Notary Public in favour of Seylan Bank PLC 
(Company Registration No. PQ 9 under the Companies 
Act, No. 7 of 2007) and there is now due and owing to the 
Seylan Bank PLC on account of principal and interest up 
to 04th April, 2018 a sum of Rupees Seven Million Eight 
Hundred and Forty-seven Thousand Eight Hundred and 
Fifteen and Cents Thirty-five (Rs. 7,847,815.35) together 
with interest on Rupees Seven Million One Hundred 
and Sixty-one Thousand (Rs. 7,161,000.00) at the rate 
of Nineteen Percent (19%) per annum form 05th April, 
2018 in respect of Term Loan Facility on the said Bond 
and the Board of Directors of Seylan Bank PLC under 
the powers vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, as amended, do 
hereby resolve that the property and premises morefully 
described in the Schedule hereto and mortgaged to 
Seylan Bank PLC by the said Bond No. 1640 be sold 
by Public Auction by Mr. Thusith Karunaratne, Licensed 
Auctioneer for recovery of the said sum of Rupees 
Seven Million Eight Hundred and Forty-seven Thousand 
Eight Hundred and Fifteen and Cents Thirty-five  
(Rs. 7,847,815.35) together with the interest aforesaid 
from 05th April, 2018 up to the date of sale, with costs of 
advertising, any other charges incurred less payments (if 
any) since received.”

THE SCHEDULE 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 depicted in Plan No. 5633 dated 17.02.2016 made 
by A. A. Wimalasena, Licensed Surveyor of the Land 
called Graceland Estate situated at Dummalasuriya, 
Pothuwatawana and Thimbirigaswela villages in the 
Grama Niladhari Division of 542 A, Galmuruwa South 
within the Divisional Secretariat Division of Madampe 
within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Chilaw in Yagam 
Pattuwa of Pitigal Korale Notrh, within the Registration 
Division of Chilaw in the District of Puttalam, North 
Western Province and which said Lot 01 is bounded on the 
North by Road (RDA), East by Lot 7A and Lot 7B in Plan  
No. 48/97 dated 20.03.1997 made by W. C. S. M. Abeysekara, 
Licensed Surveyor, South by Lots 16, 17 and 18 in the said 
Plan No. 48-97, West by Lots 4A and 4B in the said Plan  
No. 48/97 containing in extent Thirty Perches  
(0A., 0R., 30P.) together with buildings, trees, plantations 
and everything else standing thereon.

The above described land is being an amalgamation of 
the below described lands:-

01. All that divided and defined allotment of land 
marked Lot 01 depicted in Plan No. 500/2008 dated 
11.09.2008 made by I. Kotagabe, Licensed Surveyor of the 
Land called Graceland Estate situated at Dummalasuriya, 
Pothuwatawana and Thimbirigaswela villages aforesaid 
and which said Lot 01 is bounded on the North by Road 
from Madampe to Kuliyapitiya, East by Lot 7A and Lot 7B 
in Plan No. 48/97 dated 20.03.1997 made by W. C. S. M. 
Abeysekara, Licensed Surveyor, South by Lots 16 and 17 in 
the said Plan No. 48/97, West by balance portion of Lot 5B 
and Lot 5A in the said Plan No.48/97 containing in extent 
Twenty Perches (0A., 0R., 20P.) together with buildings, 
trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon.    

02. All those divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 01 and Lot 02 depicted in Plan No. 490/2008 dated 
05.07.2008 made by I. Kotagabe, Licensed Surveyor of the 
Land called Graceland Estate situated at Dummalasuriya, 
Pothuwatawana and Thimbirigaswela villages aforesaid and 
which said Lot 01 and 02 are bounded on the North by Road 
from Madampe to Kuliyapitiya, East by balance portion of 
Lot 5A and Lot 5B in the said Plan No. 48/97, South by 
Lots 17 and 18 in the said Plan No. 48/97, West by Lot 4B 
and Lot 4A in the said Plan No.48/97 containing in extent 
Ten Perches (0A., 0R., 10P.) together with buildings, trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon.    

By order of the Board of Directors,

	 Mrs. K. Hatch,
	H ead of Legal.

10-1200

people’s  bank—nuwara eliya 
branch - 134

it is hereby notified that the following resolution was 
unanimously passed by the Board of Directors under 
Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as 
amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting held 
on 24.07.2018.

And Whereas Weerasinghe Mudiyanselage Wijesinghe 
(National Identity Card No. 701883411V) has made 
default on Bond No. 770 dated 31.10.2014 attested by T. 
M. Thilini Abeynayake, Notary Public of Nuwara Eliya, 
and there is now, due and owing to the said People's Bank 
a sum of Rupees Eight Million Four Hundred Ninety-
nine Thousand Five Hundred Ninrty-eight and Cents 
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Six (Rs. 8,449,598.06) and Rupees Eight Million Four 
Hundred Ninety-nine Thousand Five Hundred Ninrty-
eight and Cents Six (Rs. 8,449,598.06) at Average Weigh 
Prime Lending Rate + 5.5% from 31.10.2015 and, 

Weerasinghe Mudiyanselage Wijesinghe (National 
Identity Card No. 701883411V) has made default on 
Bond No. 82 dated 11.01.2017 attested by G. G. K. 
Maheshika Rathnawardana, Notary Public Nuwara Eliya, 
and there is now, due and owing to the People’s Bank a 
sum of Rupees Four Million (Rs. 4,000,000) and Rupees 
Four Million (Rs. 4,000,000) at Average Weight Prime 
Lending Rate + 5.5% from 19.08.2017,

To date of sale and cost of sale less payments if any 
since received, the Board of Directors of the People's 
Bank under the People's Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as 
amended by Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that 
the property and premises mortgaged to the said bank by 
the said Bonds Nos. 770 and 82 be sold by Public Auction 
by M/S Schokman & Samarawickrama, Licensed 
Auctioneers of No. 290, Havelock Road, Colombo 05. 

description of the property 

All that divided allotment of land called "Pedro Estate" 
situated at Boralanda village, Grama Niladari Division of 
Buluela No. 535 I, within the Urban Council limits of Nuwara 
Eliya, Divisional Secretary's Division of Nuwara Eliya, 
Oyapalatha korale, Nuwara Eliya District, Central Province, 
land marked as Lot 01depicted in Plan No. 1078 dated 
11.01.1997 made by S. P. Rathnayake Licensed Surveyor, 
bonded on the on the North by Udapussellawa Road, on the 
East by land claimed by K. G. D. jennona, on the South by 
land claimed by K. G. D. Jennona and footpath and on the 
West by Footpath, containing in extent thirty decimal four 
eight perches (0A., 0R., 30.48P.) and together with building, 
soil, trees, plantations and everything standing thereon and 
right of way.

The above sail land recently resurveyed as follows:-

All that divided allotment of land called "Pedro Estate" 
situated at Boralanda village, Grama Niladari Division 
of Buluela No. 535 I, within the Urban Council limits 
of Nuwara Eliya, Divisional Secretary's Division of 
Nuwara Eliya, Oyapalatha korale, Nuwara Eliya District, 
Central Province, land marked as Lot 01depicted in Plan  
No. 959 dated 04.03.2013 made by Nimal Liyanage 
Licensed Surveyor, Bonded on the on the North by 
Udapussellawa Road and road reservation, on the East by 
land claimed by K. G. D. Jennona, on the South by land 
claimed by K. G. D. Jennona, Pedro Estate and footpath 
and on the West by Footpath, Udapussellawa road and road 
reservation, containing in extent Thirty decimal Four Eight 

perches (0A., 0R., 30.48P.) and together with building, soil, 
trees, plantations and everything standing thereon and right 
of way.

This land registered under Volume/Folio A176/49, at the 
Land Registry, Nuwara Eliya.

By order of the Board of Directors,

	 O. K. D. R. Wasantha,
	 Regional Manager.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
No. 40, Park Road,
Nuwara Eliya.

10-911

The bank of ceylon

Notice under Section 21 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Chapter 397) as amended by Act,  

No. 34 of 1968 and Law, No. 10 of 1974 
	
At the meeting held on 17.09.2018 the Board of Directors 
of this Bank resolved specially and unanimously.

1. That a sum of Rupees Five Million One Hundred and 
Thirty-four Thousand Seven Hundred Forty-five and cents 
Seventy-two only (Rs. 5,134,745.72) on account of the 
Principal and interest upto 21.05.2018 together with further 
interest on Rupees Four Million Nine Hundred and Sixty-six 
Thousand Seven Hundred Thirty-three and cents Thirteen 
only (Rs. 4,966,733.13) at the rate of Eleven (11%) per 
centum per annum from 22.05.2018 on Reschedule Loan 
“A”, and a sum of Rupees Two Million Seven Hundred and 
Ninety-five Thousand Five Hundred and cents Fifty-seven 
only (Rs. 2,795,500.57) on account of the principal and 
interest up to 21.05.2018 together with further interest on 
Rupees Two Million Seven Hundred and Sixty Thousand 
Nine Hundred Eighty-seven and cents Eighty-seven only  
(Rs. 2,760,987.87) at the rate of Four (4%) per centum 
per annum from 22.05.2018 on Reschedule loan “B”, is 
due from Mr. Sampath Amarasinghe and Mrs. Rathnayaka 
Mudiyanselage Leelawathie of No. 47, Samagipura, 
Mahiyanganaya on Mortgage Bond No. 392 dated 
10.07.2015 attested by Mrs. M. B. T. R. Siriwardhana, 
Notary Public.

2. That in terms of Section 19 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Cap. 397) and its amendments Mr. Thusitha 
Karunarathna, Auctioneers of No. 182/3, Vihara Mawatha, 
Kolonnawa be authorized and empowered to sell by public 
auction the properties mortgaged to the Bank of Ceylon and 
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described in the Schedules hereunded for the recovery of the 
said sum of Rupees Five Million One Hundred and Thirty-
four Thousand Seven Hundred Forty-five and cents Seventy-
two only (Rs. 5,134,745.72) on Reschedule loan “A”, and 
a sum of Rupees Two Million Seven Hundred and Sixty 
Thousand Nine Hundred Eighty-seven and cents Eighty-
seven only (Rs. 2,760,987.87) on Reschedule loan “B” 
due on the siad Mortgage Bond No. 392 dated 10.07.2015 
attested by Mrs. M. B. T. R. Siriwardhana, Notary Public, 
together with interest as aforesaid from 22.05.2018 to date 
of sale and costs and monies recoverable under Section 26 
of the Bank of Ceylon Ordinance and that the Manager of 
Mahiyanganaya Branch of the Bank of Ceylon to publish 
notice of this resolution in terms of Section 21 of the said 
Bank of Ceylon Ordinance.

The Schedule 

All that defined and divided allotment of land called 
“Puhulyaya” situated at Redeekotaliya Village (Part), 
in Mahiyangana New Town Grama Niladhari Division 
Aluthnuwara Division, Mahiyangana Divisional Secretary’s 
Division, Badulla District, Province of Uva and which 
said (Sub Division of Lot No. 2021 in TOPO 57 Uva) 
land is depicted as Lot 2036 in Plan No. TOPO P. P. 57 
(Inset 49) Sheet No. 02 dated 19.11.1987 authenticated by 
Superintendent of Survey Badulla for Survey General and 
which said portion of land is bounded according to the 
said Plan, on the North by Lot 2035, on the East by Lot 
2037, on the South by Lot 2038 and on the West by Ground 
Chena, Paddy Field and Forest (Lot 2026) and containing 
in extent within these boundaries, Naught decimal Naught 
Three Three Two Hectares (0.0332 Hec.). Together with 
the building and everything else standing thereon and Right 
of way over and along Lots 2053, 2048 depicted in Plan 
No. TOPO 57 (Inset 49) Sheet No. 02 and registered at the 
Badulla Land Registry under Q 06/60.

The above Land has been described according to a recent 
survey Plan as follows:-

All that defined and divided portion depicted as Lot 
1 in Plan No. 7029 dated 29.06.2004 made by M. K. 
C. Premachandra, Licensed Surveyor of the land called 
“Puhulyaya” situated at Ridikotaliyagama (Part) Bintenna 
Korale, Mahiyangana Divisional Secretary’s Division, 
Badulla District, Province of Uva, which said defined and 
divided portion is bounded on the North by Lot 2035 in Inset 
49, Sheet No. 02 in TOPO P. P. 57, on the East by Lot 2037 
in Inset 49, Sheet No. 02 in TOPO P. P. 57, on the South by 
Lot 2038 in Inset 49, Sheet No. 02 in TOPO P. P. 57 and 
on the West by 2026 in Inset 49, Sheet No. 02 in TOPO  
P. P. 57 (Road) and containin in extent Thirteen decimal One 
Three Perches (0A., 0R., 13.13P.) together with everything 

thereon and bearing Assessment No. 39/1 Housing Scheme 
Road (Left).

 
By order of the Board of Directors of the Bank of 

Ceylon,

	 Mr. D. M. C. B. Dissanayaka,
	 Manager.

Bank of Ceylon,
Mahiyanganaya,
20th September, 2018.

10-1221

The  bank of ceylon

Notice under Section 21 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Chapter 397) as amended by Act,  

No. 34 of 1968 and Law, No. 10 of 1974 
	
At the meeting held on 07.09.2018 the Board of Directors 
of this Bank resolved specially and unanimously.

1. That a sum of Rupees Thirty-one Million Three 
Hundred and Ninety-three Thousand Three Hundred and 
Thirty-four and Forty-four cents (Rs. 31,393,334.44) is 
due from Mr. Pathira Kankanamge Pubudu Sampath and  
Mr. Pathira Kankanamge Dharshana Shantha partners of 
M/S Captain Garden Tea Factory, Gonamulla Junction, Galle 
on account of the principal and interest up to 24.08.2018 
and together with further interest on Rupees Five Million  
(Rs. 5,000,000) at the rate of Seventeen per centum per 
annum (17%) from 25.08.2018 on the Overdraft facility 
and Rupees Ten Million Three Hundred and Twenty-eight 
Thousand Five Hundred (Rs. 10,328,500) at the rate of 
Seventeen Per centum per annum (17%) from 25.08.2018 
on the 1st Loan and Rupees Nine Million Eight Hundred 
and Thirty-nine Thousand Two Hundred and Sixty (Rs. 
9,839,260) at the rate of Fifteen decimal Five per centum 
per annum (15.5%) from 25.08.2018 on the 2nd Loan and 
Four Million Four Hundred and Seventy-four Thousand 
(Rs. 4,474,000) at the rate of  Ten decimal Nine Four per 
centum Per annum (10.94%) from 25.08.2018 on the 3rd 
Loan till the date of payment on Mortgage Bond No. 3892 
dated 03rd November, 1997, Mortgage Bond No. 4472 dated 
22nd December, 1998, Mortgage Bond No. 6673 dated 03rd 
June, 2003 all attested by Lalith U. Gamage, Notary Public, 
Mortgage Bond No. 2822 dated 20th March, 2012 attested 
by N. P. G. Chandrika, Notary Public, Mortgage Bond  
No. 291 dated 16th December, 2014 attested by I. T. Gamage, 
Notary Public and Mortgage Bond No. 3668 dated 18th 
June, 2015, Mortgage Bond No. 3747 dated 20th August, 
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2015 and Bond No. 3960 dated 04th April, 2016 all attested 
by N. P. G. Chandrika, Notary Public.

2. That in terms of Section 19 of the Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance (Cap. 397) and its amendments Mr. Thusitha 
Karunaratne, M/s T & H Auctions, the Auctioneer of No. 
50/3, Vihara Mawatha, Kolonnawa be authorized and 
empowered to sell by public auction the property mortgaged 
to the Bank of Ceylon and described in the Schedules 
hereunder, for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Thirty-
one Million Three Hundred and Ninety-three Thousand 
Three Hundred and Thirty-four and cents Forty-four  
(Rs. 31,393,334.44) due on said Mortgage Bond No. 3892 
dated 03rd November, 1997, Mortgage Bond No. 4472 dated 
22nd December, 1998, Mortgage Bond No. 6673 dated 
03rd June, 2003 all attested by Lalith U. Gamage, Notary 
Public, Mortgage Bond No. 2822 dated 20th March, 2012 
attested by N. P. G. Chandrika, Notary Public and Mortgage 
Bond No. 291 dated 16th December, 2014 attested by  
I. T. Gamage, Notary Public and Mortgage Bond No. 3668 
dated 18th June, 2015, Mortgage Bond No. 3747 dated 20th 
August, 2015 and Bond No. 3960 dated 04th April, 2016 all 
attested by N. P. G. Chandrika, Notary Public together with 
the interest as aforesaid from 25.08.2018 to date of sale, and 
costs and monies recoverable under section 26 of the said 
Bank of Ceylon Ordinance and the Manager of Galle Super 
Grade Branch of the Bank of Ceylon to publish notice of this 
resolution in terms of Section 21 of the said Bank of Ceylon 
Ordinance.

The Schedule 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
A depicted in Plan  No. 297 dated 08th June, 1997 made by 
H. K. Alles, Licensed Surveyor of the land called portion 
of Captain Garden Estate being a portion of Dehigahahena 
situated at Hiyare in Grama Niladhari Division of  
No. 109D, Amalgama with in the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits 
of Akmeemana in Four Gravets of Galle in Divisional 
Secretary’s Division of Akmeemana in the District of Galle, 
Southern Province and which said Lot A is bounded on the 
North by Pradeshiya Sabha Road to Aalagama and on the 
East, South and West by balance portion of Captain Garden 
occupied by P. K. M. Jayasinghe and containing in extent 
Two Acres and Twenty-seven Perches (2A., 0R., 27P.) 
according to the said Plan No. 297.

Which said land is a resurvey of the land described 
below:-

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 1366A dated 23rd June, 1980 
made by H. Wisumperuma, Licensed Surveyor of the land 
called portion of Captain Garden Estate being a portion 
of Dehigahahena situated at Hiyare in Talpe Pattu, in the 
District of Galle aforesaid and which said Lot 1 is bounded 

on the North, East, South and West by portion of Captain 
Garden Estate and containing in extent Two Acres and 
Thirty-two Perches (2A., 0R., 32P.) according to the said 
Plan No. 1366A. Registered in J 73/66 at the District Land 
Registry, Galle.

the  second  schedule

	 1.	 Seven (7) Nos. withering units of site 48’’ x 6’’  
3 1/2 ex. timber structure complete with 2’’ x 2’’ G. I. 
Mesh and Kuralon netting to spreading bed 48’’ Dia 
Air Input Fan Unit complete with mixing chambers 
Transformation Duct and 5hp 6 pole Motr.

	 2.	T wo Nos. CCC 44’’ SA Tea Roller with Kitul table 
lining and Kitul half crescent battons G. M. Batton 
tips Rittle Cone Ring and Tonque 11 Gear Units 15  
H P Motors and Starters.

	 3.	T wo Nos. Reciprocating Roll Breaker c/w Motors & 
Starters.

	 4.	T wo Nos. 5ft CCC Driers c/w I. D. Fans Motors & 
Starters.

	 5.	 One No. CCC Chota Sifter c/w with Motor & Starter.

	 6.	 One No. Chota Sifter c/w with Motor & Starter.

	 7.	T wo Nos. Michie Sifter c/w with Motors & Starters.

	 8.	 One PPJ 3 T Electrostatic stalk extractor complete 
with feed conveyor.

	 9.	T wo Nos. Browns Dust Fans c/w Motors & starters.

	 10.	 One No. CCC Tea Blower c/w Motors & starter.

	 11. 	One No. Blower (Local) 5.5 HP c/w Starter Aluminium 
Impecker.

	 12.	 One No. Reaston Generator.

	 13.	T he Switch Board totally enclosed steel cabinet 
complete with One No. change over switch 01  
No. Trip Switch, 03 Nos. A Meter 0-200, One  
No. V Meter 0-500, 10 Nos. switch phased and factory 
wiring and lightning.

	 14.	 One No. Griler 88 Bench c/w with Motor & Starter.

	 15.	 One No. 46-5’’ Tea Roller.

	 16.	 “Senvec” colour separator Tea cleaning Machine 
Model C 7500w.

	 17.	 One No. of Saction Winnower

	 18.	 One No. F G Wilson 135KVA Generator.

	 19.	 One No. Lathe Machine 3 1/2 x 12’’.
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	 20.	 One No. Welding Transformer 300A.

	 21.	 One No. Air Compressor.

	 22.	 “Senvec” Super “BTR” Series Colour Separator Tea 
Cleaning Machine, Model: BTR 300W Capacity 125 
KG/Hr.

	 23.	 “Intelligent DCS 4000 C (384)” Series “Anysort” 
Tea colour separator 

		  Above Schedule in order.	

By order of the Board of Directors of the Bank of 
Ceylon.

	 Mr. M. G. U. Shanipriya,
	 Chief Manager.

Bank of Ceylon,
Galle Super Grade Branch,
17.09.2018.

10-1225

SEYLAN  BANK  PLC—dehiwala  branch
(Registered under Ref. PQ 9 according to the 

Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
Seylan Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery 

of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions)  
Act, No. 4 of 1990

Account No. : 0140-12748598-001.

It is hereby notified that under Section 8 of the Recovery of 
Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as 
amended that at a meeting held on 27.08.2018 by the Board 
of Directors of Seylan Bank PLC it was resolved specially 
and unanimously.

“Whereas Blue Ocean Breeze (Private) Limited a 
company duly incorporated under the Companies Act, 
No. 07 of 2007 bearing Registration No. PV 112305 and 
having it’s Registered office at Dehiwala as “Obligor” 
has made default in payment due on Primary Mortgage 
Bond No. 1415 dated 16th November, 2016 and Primary 
Mortgage Bond No. 1425 dated 28th November, 2016 
both attested by Deepani Range, Notary Public, in favour 
of  Seylan Bank PLC (Company Registration No. PQ 9 
under the Companies Act, No. 7 of 2007) and there is 

now due and owing to the Seylan Bank PLC on account 
of principal and interest up to 06th August, 2018 a sum of 
Rupees Sixty-one Million Eight Hundred and Seventy-
eight Thousand One Hundred and Forty-three and Cents 
Twenty-nine (Rs. 61,878,143.29) together with interest in 
respect of the facilities as stated below on the said Bonds 
and the Board of Directors of Seylan Bank PLC under 
the powers vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks 
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended, do 
hereby resolve that the properties and premises more 
fully described in the Schedule hereto and mortgaged to 
Seylan Bank PLC by the said Mortgage Bond Nos. 1415 
and 1425 be sold by Public Auction by Mrs. Chandima 
Gamage, Licensed Auctioneer for recovery of the said 
sum of Rupees Sixty-one Million Eight Hundred and 
Seventy-eight Thousand One Hundred and Forty-three 
and Cents Twenty-nine (Rs. 61,878,143.29) together with 
interest as mentioned below from 07th August, 2018 up 
to the date of the sale, with costs of advertising, any other 
charges incurred less payments (if any) since received."

(a)	I n respect of Term Loan I facility is a sum of Rupees 
Thirty Million Six Hundred and Seven Thousand 
Six Hundred and Seventy-one and Cents Forty-six  
(Rs. 30,607,671.46)   together with interest on Rupees 
Twenty-nine Million (Rs. 29,000,000.00) at the rate of 
Nineteen percent (19%) per annum from 07th August, 
2018 to date of sale.

	(d)	I n respect of Term Loan II facility a sum of Rupees 
Thirty-one Million Two Hundred and Seventy 
Thousand Four Hundred and Seventy-one and Cents 
Eighty-three (Rs. 31,270,471.83) together with interest 
on Rupees Twenty-nine Million Nine Hundred and 
Twenty-eight Thousand Eight Hundred and Ninety-
one and Cents Eighty-seven (Rs. 29,928,891.87) at the 
rate of Nineteen Percent (19%) per annum from 07th 
August, 2018 to date of sale.

THE FIRST SCHEDULE 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 1584A dated 06.07.2016 made 
by N. Liyanage, Licensed Surveyor (being a resurvey and 
amalgamation of Lots 1 and 5 depicted in Plan No. 988SD 
dated 20.09.2004 and 15.10.2004 made by W. B. K. H. R. 
Gunawardena, Licensed Surveyor) of the land called part of 
St. Edward Bungalow and Premises situated at St. Edward's 
Road Nuwara Eliya in the Grama Niladhari Division of 
Glenfall Lane and in the Divisional Secretariat Division 
of Nuwara Eliya within the Municipal Council limits of 
Nuwara Eliya Oyapalatha Korale in the District of Nuwara 
Eliya Central Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on 
the North by Lot 3 in Plan No. 988A (access way), on the 
East by Lot 2 in Plan No. 988A (Road Reservation), on the 
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South by Road and Lot 2 in Plan No. 988SD and on the 
West by Lot 2 and Lot 4 in Plan No. 988SD and Lot 4 in 
Plan No. 988A and containing in extent Twenty Six Perches  
(0A., 0R., 26P.) or 0.0657 Hectares according to the said 
Plan No. 1584A together with the soil, buildings, trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon.

Which said Lot 1 in Plan No. 1584A being a resurvey 
and amalgamation of Lots 1 and 5 in Plan No. 988SD 
dated 15.10.2004 made by W. B. K. H. R. Gunarawardena, 
Licensed Surveyor described below.

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 988SD dated 15.10.2004 made 
by W. B. K H. R. Gunawardhana, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called part of St. Edward's Bungalow and Premises 
situated at St. Edward's Road in Nuwara Eliya in the 
Grama Niladhari's Division of Glenfall Lane, within the 
Divisional Secretaries Division of Nuwara Eliya, within the 
Municipal Council limits of Nuwara Eliya in Oyapalatha 
Korale Nuwara Eliya Division in the District of Nuwara 
Eliya Central Province and bounded on the North by Lot 
5 and Lot 2 in Plan No. 988A, on the East by Lot 2 in Plan 
No. 988A, on the South by Road and on the West by Lot 
2 and containing in extent Eleven Perches (0A., 0R., 11P.) 
or 0.0278 Hectares according to the said Plan No. 988SD 
together with the soil, buildings, trees, plantations and 
everything else standing thereon.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 5 depicted in Plan No. 988SD dated 15.10.2004 made 
by W. B. K H. R. Gunawardhana, Licensed Surveyor of the 
land called part of St. Edward's Bungalow and Premises 
together with the trees and plantations and everything 
standing thereon situated at St. Edward's Road in Nuwara 
Eliya in the Grama Niladhari's Division of Glenfall Lane, 
within the Divisional Secretaries Division of Nuwara Eliya, 
within the Municipal Council limits of Nuwara Eliya in 
Oyapalatha Korale Nuwara Eliya Division in the District of 
Nuwara Eliya Central Province and bounded on the North 
by (Access way) Lot 3 and Lot 5 in Plan No. 988A, on the 
East by Lot 2 in Plan No. 988A, on the South by Lots 1 and 
2 and on the West by Lot 4 in Plan No. 988SD and Lot 4 
in Plan No. 988A and containing in extent Fifteen Perches 
(0A., 0R., 15P.) or 0.0379 Hectares according to the said 
Plan No. 988SD.

THE SECOND SCHEDULE 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
1 depicted in Plan No. 600 dated 17.07.2016 made by K. 
G. S. Mahindarathna, Licensed Surveyor (being a resurvey 
and amalgamation of Lots 1, 2, 3 and 4 depicted in Plan  
No. 305A dated 20.04.2012 made by K. G. S. Mahindarathna, 
Licensed Surveyor and Lot 1 and pert of Lot 2 (Drain) in Plan  

No. 1587 dated 04.04.2010 made by K. Weerapane, Licensed 
Surveyor) of the land called Kos Kola Ange Kumbura (now 
Garden) bearing Assessment Nos. 216, 216/1 and 222 
George E. De Silva Mawatha situated at Pitakanda Nuwara 
Dodanwela in the Grama Niladhari Division of Aniewatta 
and in the Divisional Secretariat Division of Kandy within 
the Municipal Council Limits of Kandy Kadawath Sathara 
Gangawata Korale in the District of Kandy Central Province 
and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North-East by 
remaining portion of same land (remaining portion of Lot  
3A in Plan No. 3186A), on the South East by George E 
De Silva Mawatha, on the south by remaining portion of 
same land Lot 1 in Plan No. 452 of W. M. E. Uduwawala, 
L.S. Assessment No. 216D and part of same Land Lot 2 in 
Plan No. 12 and on the North West by Stream and part of 
same land (Lot 2 in Plan No. 12) and containing in extent 
One Rood and Twenty Five Decimal Six Three Perches  
(0A., 1R., 25.63P.) or 0.1660 Hectares according to the 
aforesaid Plan No. 600 together with the soil, buildings, 
trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon.

Which said Lot 1 in Plan No. 600 being a resurvey 
and amalgamation of Lots 1, 2, 3 and 4 depicted in Plan  
No. 305A dated 20.04.2012 made by K. G. S. Mahindarathna, 
Licensed Surveyor and Lot 1 and pert of Lot 2 (Drain) in 
Plan No. 1587 dated 04.04.2010 made by K. Weerapane, 
Licensed Surveyor described below.

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 305A dated 20th April, 2012 
made by K. G. S. Mahindarathna, L.S. from and out of 
land called “Kos Kola Ange Kumbura” bearing Assessment  
Nos. 216, 216/1 and 222 George E. De Silva Mawatha 
(being part of Lot 1 in Plan No. 12 dated 19th March, 1988 
made by W. M. E. Uduwawala, Licensed Surveyor and also 
being a part of Lot 03 in Plan No. 3186A dated 23.10.2006 
made by G. Heenkenda L.S) situated at Pitakanda Nuwara- 
within the Grama Seva Division of Aniwatta West within 
the Municipal Council Limits of Kandy within the Kandy 
Kadawathsathara Gangawata Korale Divisional Secretary in 
the District of Kandy Central Province and which said Lot 1 
is bounded on the North-East by : Lot  02 in the said Plan, on 
the South-East by : by access marked Lot 03 in the said plan 
and Wire fence separating remaining portion of the same 
land (remaining portion Lot 3A in plan No. 3168A), on the 
South-West by : part of the same land Lot 02 in plan No. 12 
and on the North-West by : Drain and containing in extent 
of Twelve Decimal Six Naught Perches (0A., 0R., 12.60P.) 
according to the said plan No. 305A together with the soil, 
trees, plantations and everything standing thereon.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 2 depicted in Plan No. 305A dated 20th April, 2012 
made by K. G. S. Mahindarathna, L.S. from and out of 
land called “Kos Kola Ange Kumbura” bearing Assessment  
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Nos. 216, 216/1 and 222 George E. De Silva Mawatha 
(being part of Lot 1 in Plan No. 12 dated 19.03.1988 made 
by W. M. E. Uduwawala, L.S. and also being a part of Land 
marked Lot 03 in Plan No. 3186A dated 23.10.2006 made by  
G. Heenkenda L.S.) situated at Pitakanda, Nuwara 
Dodanwela within the Grama Seva Division of Aniewatta 
West within the Municipal Council limits of Kandy within 
the Kandy Kadawathsathara Gangawata Korale Divisional 
Secretary in the District of Kandy Central Province and 
which said Lot 2 is bounded on the North-East by remaining 
portion of the same land (remaining portion of Lot 3A in 
plan No. 3186A), on the South-East by Lot 04 in the said 
Plan and Access marked Lot 03 in the said plan, on the 
South-West by Lot 01 in the said plan and on the North-
West by Drain and containing in extent of Fourteen Decimal 
Two Seven Perches (0A., 0R., 14.27P.) according to the said 
plan No. 305A together with the soil, trees, plantations and 
everything standing thereon.

8. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 3 depicted in Plan No. 305A dated 20th April, 2012 
made by K. G. S. Mahindarathna, L.S. from and out of land 
called “Kos-Kola Ange Kumbura” bearing Assessment  
Nos. 216, 216/1 and 222 George E. De Silva Mawatha 
(being part of Lot 03A in plan No. 3186A dated 03.10.2006 
made by G. Heenkenda, L.S.) situated at Pitakanda, Nuwara 
Dodanwela Village within the Grama Seva Division of 
Aniewatta West within the Municipal Council limits of 
Kandy within the Kandy Kadawathsathara Gangawata 
Korale Divisional Secretary in the District of Kandy Central 
Province and which said Lot 3 is of the extent of Six  
(0A., 0R., 6P.) and is bounded according to the said plan on 
the North-east by Drain separating Lot 4 in the same plan, 
South-East by  George E. De Silva Mawatha and Lot 02 in 
plan No. 3186A, South-West by Lot 2 in plan No. 3186A 
and remaining portion of the same land (remaining portion 
of Lot 3A in plan No. 3186A) and on the North-West by 
Lots 1 and 2 in the same plan.

9. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 4 depicted in Plan No. 305A dated 20th April, 2012 
made by K. G. S. Mahindarathna, L.S. from and out of land 
called “Kos-Kola Ange Kumbura” bearing Assessment  
Nos. 216, 216/1 and 222 George E. De Silva Mawatha (being 
part of Lot 03A in Plan No. 3186A dated 03.10.2006 made by  
G. Heenkenda, L.S.) situated at Pitakanda, Nuwara 
Dodanwela Village within the Grama Seva Division of 
Aniwatta West within the Municipal Council limits of 
Kandy within the Kandy Kadawatsathara Gangawata 
Korale Divisional Secretary in the District of Kandy Central 
Province and which said Lot 4 is bounded on the North-East 
by remaining portion of the same land (remaining portion 
of Lot 3A in plan No. 3186A), South-East by George E De 
Silva Mawatha, South-West by Drain separating Lot 3 in the 
same plan and on the North-West by : Drain separating Lot 

2 in the same plan and containing in extent of Seventeen 
Decimal Five One Perches (0A., 0R., 17.51P.) according 
to the said plan No. 305A together with the soil, trees, 
plantations and everything else standing thereon.

5. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 depicted in Plan No. 1459 dated 18th March, 2007 
made by K. Weerapane, Licensed Surveyor from and out 
of land called “Koskolaange Kumbura (now garden) (being 
Lot 1 in plan No. 3186B surveyed on 3rd October, 2006 
made by G. Heenkenda, Licensed Surveyor which is part 
of Lot 1 in plan No. 12 dated 19th March, 1988 made by 
W. M. E. Uduwawala, Licensed Surveyor) situated at 
Pitakanda, Nuwara Dodanwela Village within the Grama 
Seva Division of Aniwatta West within the Municipal 
Council limits of Kandy within the Kandy Kadawatsathara 
Gangawata Korale Divisional Secretary in the District of 
Kandy Central Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded 
on the North-East by : Remaining portion of Lot 1 in Plan  
No. 12 Assessment No. 216 (Balance area over 1 acre) on 
the South-East by : George E De Silva Mawatha, South-
West by : part of same land Lot 1 in plan No. 452 by W. M. 
E. Uduwawela, Licensed Surveyor Assessment No. 216D 
and part of same land Assessment No. 216D and on the 
North-West by : Stream and remaining portion of Lot 1 in 
plan No. 12 Assessment No. 216 (Balance area over 1 acre) 
and containing in extent of Fifteen Perches (0A., 0R., 15P.) 
according to the said plan No. 1459 together with the soil, 
trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon and 
with the right to Drain and sent out the Drain and Storm 
water and waste water, accumulated in the said allotment 
over and along the Drain marked Lot 2 in the Plan No. 1459 
upto the stream show in the said Plan No. 1459.

Which said divided and defined land and premises 
marked Lot 1 in Plan No. 1459 has been recently surveyed 
and shown as Lot 1 in Plan No. 1587 dated 04.04.2010 
made by K. Weerapana, Licensed Surveyor and described 
as follows :

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked 
Lot 1 in Plan No. 1587 dated 04th April, 2010 made by 
K. Weerapane, Licensed Surveyor from and out of all that 
land called “Koskolaange Kumbura” (now garden) (being 
a resurvey of Lot 2 in plan No. 1459 dated 18th March, 
2007 Lot 1 is also Lot 1 in plan No. 3186B surveyed on 
03rd October, 2006 by G. Heenkenda Licensed Surveyor 
which is part of Lot 12 dated 19th March 1988 by W. M. 
E. Uduwawala Licensed Surveyor) situated at Pitakanda 
Nuwara Dodanwela within the Grama Sewa Division of 
Aniewatta West within the Municipal Council Limits of 
Kandy within the Kandy Kadwatsathara Gangawata Korale 
Divisional Secretary in the District of Kandy Central 
Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the North-East 
by : Remaining portion of Lot 1 in Plan No. 12 Assessment 
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No. 216 (Balance area over 1 acre) on the South-East by 
George E De Silva Mawatha, South-West by part of same 
land Lot 1 in plan No. 452 by W. M. E. Uduwawela, 
Licensed Surveyor Assessment No. 216D and part of same 
land Assessment No. 216D and on the North-West by Stream 
and remaining portion of Lot 1 in plan No. 12 Assessment 
No. 216 (Balance area over 1 acre) and containing in extent 
of Fifteen Perches (0A., 0R., 15P.) according to the said plan 
No. 1587 together with the soil, trees, plantations, buildings 
and everything else standing thereon.

By order of the Board of Directors,

	 Ms. K. Hatch,
	H ead of Legal.

10-1202

people’s   bank—matale  branch (002)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors 
People's Bank under Section 29D of the People’s 

Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 which has been amended 
by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

This is to announce that under Section 29D of the People's 
Bank Act, No. 29 which has been ammended by the Act, 
No. 32 of 1986, at the meeting of the Board of Directors 
of People's Bank held on 29.06.2018 it was resolved 
ananimously:

Whereas Rohan Gamini Palendegama as the obligor 
has made default in payment due on Mortgage Bond 
No. 11473 dated 02.08.2017 attested by Ms. Shriyanjani 
Kumari Abeykoon, Noraty Public of Matale in favour 
of People's Bank and there is now, due and owing to 
the People’s Bank a sum of Rupees Thee Million Two 
Hundred and Thirty Thousand (Rs. 3,230,000) on the 
said Bond and the Board of Directors of People's Bank 
under the power vested by the provisions of section  
No. 29D of the Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 do hereby 
resolve that the property and premises morefully 
described in the schedule hereto and mortgaged to the 
People's Bank by the said Bond No. 11473 be sold by 
public auction by Shockman and Samarawickrama 
company, Licensed Auctioneer of Kandy for recovery 
said sum of Rs. 3,230,000 together with further interest 
from 03.12.2017 at the rate of Sixteen and decimal five 
eight percent (16.58%) per annum together with other 
chargers incurred less payment (if any) since received. 

The SCHEDULE 

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 
No. 04 depicted in the plan No. 1953 dated 25.08.2009 made 
by Mr. C. D. Dayarathna, Licensed Surveyor, from and out 

of land called Godapola portion (Kotasa) of Bandarapola 
plantation situated at Bandarapola. Godapola village 
within the Grama Niadhari's Division of Alwatta in Rattota 
Pradeshiya Sabha limit in the Divisional Secretary Division 
of Rattota Udasiya Paththuwa-South in Matale District 
of Central Province and bounded, on the North by Lot  
No. 03 of the same land, On the East by Muwandeniya 
Kotasa (portion) of the said land, On the South by balance 
portion of the same land which divides the lot 03 of the 
same land and on the West by Muwandeniya-Kandenuwara 
road and containing in extent 07 Acres 01 Rood and 37.5 
Perches (07A., 01R., 37.5P.) the aforesaid allotment of land 
has been recently surveyed and shown in the plan No. 3036 
dated 31.05.2016 made by Mr. C. D. Dayarathne Licensed 
Surveyor and is described as follows,

All that divided and defined allotment of large land marked 
lot No. 02 depicted in the said plan No. 3036 from and out 
of land called, Godapola portion (Kotasa) of Bandarapola 
plantation situated at Bandarapola.- Godapola village in 
Alwaththa Grama Niladhari's Division and bounded, on 
the North by Lot No. 01 of the same Plan, On the East by 
Muwandeniya portion (Kotasa), On the South by the land 
marked as lot No. 03 and on the West by Muwandeniya-
Kandenuwara road and containing in extent 07 Acres 01 
Rood and 37.5 Perches together with the buildings and 
everything else standing thereon including plantation.

The aforesaid allotment of land has been recently surveyed 
again and shown in the plan No. 3313 dated 14.09.2016 
made by G. V. B. Darmarathna Licensed Surveyor and is 
depicted as follows,

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked lot 
No. 01 depicted in the said plan No. 3313 from and out of land 
called, Godapola Kotasa (portion) of Bandarapola plantation 
together with the buildings and everything else standing 
thereon including plantation, situated at Godapola village in 
Alwaththa Grama Niladhari's Division and which said Lot 
No. 01 is bounded, on the North by Lot No. 01 depicted on 
the plan No. 3036 made by Mr. C. D. Dayarathna, Licensed 
Surveyor, On the East by Muwandeniya Kotasa (portion), 
On the South by the balance portion of same land owned by  
Mr. Anura Weerawansa and on the West by Provincial 
Council road running from Muwandeniya to Matale 
and Containing in extent 07 Acres 01 Rood and 37.5  
Perches (07A., 01R., 37.5P.) and registered in the Folio  
No. A 42/130 at the District Land Registry of Matale.

By order of the Board of Directors.

	 Regional Manager.

People’s Bank,
Regional Office,
No. 02, Meewaththakumbura Road,
Matale.
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